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CORPORATE PROFILE

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited ( Stock Code: 1929 ) is
a world-class leading jeweller listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong in December 2011. Being the
largest jeweller listed in Hong Kong by market capitalisation,
which is also one of the world’s top few, the Group also excels
as the number one for sales in the world.

The iconic brand “Chow Tai Fook” of the Group has been
widely recognised for its trustworthiness and authenticity, and
renowned for product design, quality and value. The
acquisition of Hearts On Fire, an internationally acclaimed U.S.
luxury diamond brand, in August 2014 has further underpinned
the Group’s stature as a diamond expert in the industry.

The Group boasts an extensive retail network comprising over
2,250 Chow Tai Fook and Hearts On Fire points of sale
spanning nearly 500 cities in Greater China, Singapore,
Malaysia, South Korea and the United States, as well as a
strong and fast growing e-tail network through operating its
Chow Tai Fook eShops and various e-tail accounts on other
online shopping platforms.

The Group’s sophisticated vertically integrated business model
provides it with an effective and tight control over the entire
operation chain from raw material procurement, design,
production, to marketing and sales through its extensive POS
and e-tail channels.
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> ANNUAL RESULTS IN 5 MINUTES
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FINANCIAL &7 % MAJOR ACHIEVEMENTS EZE(H

Revenue & %258

Impressive RSV growth at 29.3%
4 27 7 J \t 3 L in e-commerce business
H K$ I . EFEBEGHNTEEERERY
- e — $#29.3%
million B&8 7 YoY Change [EJtb& 1t

'17.00/0

Proflt Attrlbutable to Shareholders

HK$5 456.0 |

million BE&B T

YoY Change FBItE£1t

'25.00/0

Earnings per share SR EF|

24.6

HK cents &4l

Net openings of
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1 80 POS
Ey

FY2014 201481 B 2

727 i SSSG

Hong Kong, Macau

FEHEE & and other markets
Full year dividend per share 0 &8 F?&Eﬂﬂmiﬁ
2EFRBE v 32 8 /0
* | ]
28 O Hong Kong and Macau 1 3 3
. EBRRF poS T

HK cents &4l

Dividend payout ratio

K=
(0]
51.3% | i
Mainland China- ) _.__- FEERE
Net Assets per share EREEF4E o B Ay it

Mainland China —
FY2014 201481 B POS i%% . Jewellery business

HK$3.8~;§;& HE R - BRE XK

Included final dividend of HK15.0 cents, subject to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

BERHRE 16.081l - AFRRENRAREERFTAFAG LIE -

HK$4.1 NI - 101%
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Strategic acquisition of Hearts On Fire
TR BS |4 U 8% Hearts On Fire

Co-operations with multinationals and
celebrities to launch exclusive collections

HPEBEARRAAGEELBRART

RFID-enabled devices to
enhance efficiency and customer
experience
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Number of Members
SEEAY

Hong Kong and Macau
BEREM
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Mainland China
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1,004,000

people A

Members’ Repeat
Purchases as a % of RSV
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Hong Kong and Macau
BEREM

19.3%

Mainland China
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29.2%

Revenue from gem-set jewellery as a % of total revenue
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Strategy Overview
REEHIE

> CHOW TAI FOOK AT A GLANCE
BRE—E
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HORBARERARPERLRRER - BREMM
[E e KIE | B0 mIEEE - ST

As an iconic and trusted brand with 85 years of heritage, our commitment
to maximising long-term growth and shareholders’ returns embodies our
core brand value of “Sincerity ® Eternity"”, as illustrated below:

GROWTH 5 & RETURN [E] 3R
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Financial Organic growth Retail network Margins Asset turnover Capital structure
B 7% AL R expansion & A58 EERAEX ERGEE
penetration
TERKER
R85
Key SSSG New store GPM®™, SG&A®, Inventory Capex™, gearing,
Analysis EEERE productivity, EBIT® turnover cash flows
B D AT e-commerce growth EMED HERSH FEREXR ERMRHW
HMIEERE BARITHREX? EREEHE
EFHKIER ERAFE Reme
w AVAYA 0® 290, @é’{‘) ®
; )\/4 hidy O N
A ¥ | W}
X & v Ll
Business Market Products Branding & Operations Management
2w development ER marketing wom =
mIBEE mER ISR
Major Risk & Uncertainty in Evolving customer Brand & Inefficiencies Matching talents
Challenge economy, rise of preference & customer loyalty K= to our needs
3 25 [ P B L 28k e-commerce expectation 0 T B = A A EEW IR
RENIREEEZ FBEEEFRHAEZEZ BHE
BTBHNAR n
Key Strategy Strategic Customer-oriented Maintaining Streamlining our Investing in
TEER penetration & & product brand perception upstream & training &
POS network differentiation & membership midstream human capital
optimisation EETEE programme processes BEEYR
REEMEBER EmE=Et R m AR A At LiERE ABER
BUEEHRAR S3=1=Ei |
(1) Being gross profit margin M EFI= )
(2) Being selling and distribution costs and administrative expenses (2) iﬁ’%&ﬁi&jﬁ}z$%&ﬁﬁ5§]§z
(3)  Being earning before net interest and taxation @) SEATFIE
(4) Being capital expenditure (4) AR
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This graphical summary illustrates our vertically integrated business model,
which is critical to keep us ahead of the game in delivering best quality
products and services. It is also key to the sustainability of our business.
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carat of diamond
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Procurement of raw
materials
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Vertically Integrated Business Mode
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MIDSTREAM Hjiz >

Produced 4 &

50%+

of gem-set jewellery sold
(in sales volume)
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6“{"/‘ Design
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Sold $HE

1 8 milliong &+
pieces of products

HEm

BAR Retail and Wholesale
TEmNE

Well established relationship with
suppliers of diamonds (De Beers,
Rio Tinto Group, ALROSA, etc.),
gemstones and precious metals
around the world

B2 Ik 8 A 4 fE 7 ( W De Beers
HEE ALROSAE ) EREKESRE
HEREY R ITFBIER

< Rough diamond cutting
and polishing

BRERYEIRITE

4 diamond cutting and polishing
sites in Botswana, South Africa and
Mainland China, with over 2,000
employees, processed over 230,000
carat of diamond in FY2015

S FL A - B 3ER P B A 45E
BOE RITEEIEE 182,000 % &
8+ 720158 B F JE hn I 8 i@ 230,000
RER

Award-winning in-house R&D team
with over 700 employees

EREH 2 FEEN - BEBIBT7004

N Jewellery
manufacturing

V /S L

4 production sites in Shunde,
Shenzhen, Wuhan, and Hong Kong,
with over 5,800 employees, producing
around 50% of our products sold

RAEE R RERBENIEEE
HEiFEEHEiB5,800 % EE - £EEX50%
BME LB ERE

Extensive retail network with over
2,200 POS in Mainland China, Hong
Kong, Macau and other markets
covering nearly 500 cities, 23,000
frontline staff, over 40 e-commerce
platforms, and over 300 franchisees
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> CHOW TAI FOOK AT A GLANCE AA%E—E

The following diagram summarises
channels and revenue:

the relationship between our sales

T BB 3 5 R B

POS Classification &

Revenue Components
%E!ﬁ \#E&**" £EA )

[=]m

BHEERBENRE -

POINTS OF SALE = Total POS
BA®B BEAY
| : |
Self-Operated POS™ : Franchised POS®
HETEg BT
| ! |
Same Store Other Store
::: /& H b5
L
S St Other St 1 E-commerce®
ame Store er Store ¢ and Others
Sales Sales D EEX T
== [/5HE == H/EfHEE VN B 4t ®
\ | |
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Retail Revenue™ B Wholesale Revenue®?
TELEEO BEExE
\ |
L
Total Revenue ¢
e D
[ |
REVENUE g
J&% TN NN T
) G Ko ¥ o
Notes: BiaE -

(1) Self-operated POS include wholly-owned POS and joint-venture POS. We record
sales when products are sold to our retail customers at retail price
(2)

(3)

We record sales when we wholesale our products to franchisees at wholesale price

E-commerce and others include the sales of our products through online sales
channel and occasional sales events
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Product Flow

Eminiz

The following is the product flow of our gem-set jewellery from THARBMKERREHBRBEETELANER
procurement to sales to customers: AR

Procurement Rough diamond
of raw material cutting and polishing
R RHEREE BAERYEIRITE BROERBE

Logistics Jewellery manufacturing
and Distribution and quality assurance

EIXED BREERGE R mERE

Sales to customers
EFEF
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> CHAIRMAN SS ATE V
Eﬁﬁii

The coming year will no doubt bring
its fair share of opportunities and
challenges. Nevertheless, | remain
confident in our products, services,
and people — that they will continue
to delight our customers and be their
trusted jewellery brand.

AR —FZ A A5 2 R T8 BBk E
H)—F o N RAERMWER - ki
EEBABTMEL @ REHESR R
BEP  FRAEKARFPERNKE M
[
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DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

This year marked a significant moment for Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group
Limited as we celebrated our 85th anniversary, a time in history which we
are proud to have reached. While this presents a natural opportunity for us
to be introspective — to reflect on our history and consider becoming even
better in the chapter ahead, this year is extraordinary because of both the
challenges and opportunities unique in the markets in which we operate
our business.

During FY2015, the Group recorded a revenue of HK$64,277.0 million, a
decrease of 17.0% compared with the previous year. Profit attributable to
shareholders of the Company declined 25.0% to HK$5,456.0 million, while
earnings per share decreased to HK54.6 cents. The Board has proposed a
final dividend of HK15.0 cents per share for FY2015.

Mainland China, the market which has underpinned our rapid growth and
success in the last decade, is undergoing a phase of change in its
economy. GDP growth target has slowed to 7.0-7.5%, the lowest in more
than two decades, as the country is repositioning for measured yet high-
quality and sustained growth. In addition, Chinese consumers are
exhibiting an increasingly sophisticated taste in all major categories
including luxury goods, as a result of a general increase in education level
and an ease of information access.

On the other hand, continuous urbanisation and a growing middle-class
indicate that growth opportunities still abound in Mainland China, to which
we remain fully committed. In particular, “Internet+"”, a national strategy
unveiled in March 2015 by Premier Li Kegiang, further reinforces to us the
importance of embracing technology in retailing in Mainland China; we are
pleased and excited to have already embarked on the path of omni-channel
retailing, using the Internet and technology to bring about a better
customer experience. We believe that our POS expansion strategy in
Mainland China, coupled with an intelligent use of technology, will make us
more apt at catering to our customers and allow us to benefit from the
changes undergoing in the market.

Hong Kong and Macau, the market in which we have long presence and
deep knowledge, experienced a major market shift with telling impacts.
Tourists from Mainland China, which have for long been the mainstay of
this market, have started to see a decline in growth in both their number
and spending power of late. Moreover, the luxury sector as a whole shows
signs of slowing after years of rapid growth.

In spite of the headwind, Hong Kong and Macau remain a very important
part of our business as we are confident that they remain popular
destinations for Mainland tourists in the long run; there are indeed no
places like Hong Kong and Macau which offer Mainland tourists such a
unigue shopping experience as characterised by their shared Chinese
heritage, diverse product offerings, and tax-free advantages.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT XFE®EE

I would like to highlight to you our major undertaking this year that goes to
show our ambition to cater to an ever-changing customer taste through an
enriched product portfolio. The acquisition of Hearts On Fire, a US-based
internationally acclaimed luxury diamond brand, in August 2014 was our
strategic move in an attempt to elevate ourselves as a world-class diamond
expert. We believe that having an exclusive premium diamond jewellery
line will go a long way for us as it further unlocks the potential of our vast
POS network in the region to benefit from the increasingly sophisticated
Chinese clientele.

Looking ahead, we will continue to focus on Greater China while
maintaining our leadership position throughout the region. \We will continue
with our efforts in different areas of our business to further the distinctive
strengths of the Chow Tai Fook brand. Integrating our online/offline
channels, leveraging technology to introduce brand new experiences for
our customers, rewarding our most loyal customers and, last but not least,
maximising our operational efficiency are the guiding principles to which
we subject ourselves and channel our collective efforts.

The coming year will no doubt bring its fair share of opportunities and
challenges as discussed earlier. Nevertheless, | remain confident in our
products, services, and people — that they will continue to delight our
customers and be their most trusted jewellery brand.

I must thank my fellow Board members, our senior management team and
especially our staff for their hard work and loyal contributions. Your efforts
form the backbone of our ongoing success, as we build value for our
shareholders, business partners and customers.

Dr. Cheng Kar-shun, Henry
Chairman

Hong Kong, 5 June 2015

10 Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited Annual Report 2015

AEE BINEZIERBNEREENERES
MEBEPTNE RS - $%.B€2014¢8ﬂﬁﬂi§
MU 2R B E B A B IR 214 & 2 B A G h¥ Hearts On
Fire * FHRMEFHK A A BBHMER o STAKEER -
BMREEBRSMEBEMNEMRRY  Sr2mEELR
NIRRT EREE RN TMEZ HamK AR T
BEEF  HBRMORERER -

RERK RSB ESIRRATERS  LE7
FEAERAMNELML - RAIHH DRI ZEXBEH
B E—HIREANERENERSF  RANT
EEBRREARMOR L B TRE  ERAMEAE
BERRmEER  RERLHENES  XEIEA
BERZEXE AMA2BLTHEERER LABRM
KRB -

\|

BRRTSCArA - R AR — 4 2 A AR P S A2 T A B B
BN —F o DB AAHRMANER  RELZEE

TIFRMED  BEHEERNRBER  FRAKXKEK
ARPEEBNHKRERME -
RAZBUHESEERC ERE  LHEHERME

IE’J#%IVEN_\UBZEEK&ME/UWW ERLH) TR
Wj]mﬁzﬂa‘ﬁix?%ﬂxi EBBHNEPAEREE
HUSH BRI RS -

E]
BRAEL

A% 201556 A5H
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> MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STRATEGIC REPORT

As Chow Tai Fook embarks on our 86th year of business, we remain
positive about the future of our business. The year ahead marks a
year of change and we are optimistic that we have the right initiatives

In place to deliver steady and sustainable growth over the long run.

AR X AREEAS 864 -

HERBARKBZADATEWIED © ELHRIRD

e - RPBETNER  YNEZRENFENERRGLEE

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

In spite of the challenges in the market environment during FY2015, our
team remained steadfast in our commitment to deliver the best products
and experience to our customers. \We are pleased that FY2015 represents
a year of progress to our team:

Retail network expansion: \We added a net of 180 POS to our network;
while it is crucial to maintain our market leadership, we will continue to pay
close attention to our POS strategy and make prompt revisions when
necessary during unpredictable economic times;

E-commerce rising momentum: We led our e-commerce business to
continue its strong trajectory from the year before with a solid RSV year-
on-year growth of 29.3%;

Hearts On Fire to broaden product portfolio: We completed the
acquisition of Hearts On Fire, an internationally-acclaimed brand, in August
2014 with an aim to enrich our product offerings to customers with
sophisticated preference; we opened the first Hearts On Fire store in
Mainland China in Shanghai;

Collaboration with multinationals and Korean celebrities to maximise
brand exposure: \We worked with prominent multinational partners like
De Beers, Rio Tinto Group and Disney to jointly explore new frontiers in
jewellery; we launched exclusive collections with Korean celebrities and
leverage on the power of social media to promote our brand;

Membership programme to reward loyalty: \We continued to step up
our efforts in customer relationship management, which has seen repeat
purchase, a key indicator of customer loyalty, steadily rise over the past 2-3
years; and

Use of technology to understand customers’ preferences and to
enhance efficiency: We introduced RFID-enabled devices to our POS,
streamlining storefront and backend procedures and enabling our
salespeople to focus on serving our customers and providing the best-in-
class experience.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STRATEGIC REPORT FE=& KRR E

In the year ahead, we remain committed to a balanced approach of growth
and return, with specific goals further outlined in five main areas:

Market Development

In Mainland China, we plan to add a net of 1560-160 POS to our network in
FY2016. We believe room for expansion is still significant for us, as we are
currently present in just 484 cities out of over 700 in the country. To
ensure that our new additions will fully capture market potential, we will
focus on lower tier cities and rely on local expertise and professional
knowledge to facilitate market entry. In addition, we will be conducting
upgrades in approximately 10% of our existing POS to “high-end luxury”
or “elegance” style over the next three years in response to the evolving
retail landscape. Most of the upgrades will happen in Tier | and Il cities,
where customer expectations tend to be higher.

In Hong Kong and Macau, the FY2016 emphasis is on efficiency, where
we continue to consolidate our retail network where appropriate to manage
our rental costs.

Overseas market remains a strategic component in our market
development plans — our vision remains that we be the trusted brand
wherever Chinese consumers populate or frequently visit; we have set
foot in Taiwan, Malaysia and Singapore — as well as our newest regional
market: South Korea.

Last but not least, e-commerce, online-to-offline (“020") and other forms
of omni-channel retailing are areas where we believe hold significant
growth potential. Our “Smart+" initiative is a perfect example of our
commitment in this area; we aim at integrating the interface of our
distribution channels and client facing windows with the Internet and a
broader application of innovative tools in providing customers a seamless
shopping experience. While we believe that the core of our business has
never been changed, this initiative intends to explore ways to extract 020
synergy and to help us stay connected with our customers, especially the
younger generations, in interactive and innovative ways.

Products

As we believe one of the biggest challenges in the industry is the evolving
customer preference, the main objective of our product strategies is to
stay connected with our customers. Market-driven strategy and customer-
oriented design are the two primary elements in our strategy.
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Our goal is to create a distinct value for our customers through product
differentiation. As mentioned, the Hearts On Fire acquisition is a conscious
attempt to complete the high end of our product offering spectrum. We
meet escalating customer expectation with a comprehensive agenda; in
particular, we see room for growth in fashion-oriented collections, art
jewellery and designer collaborations and we have established the
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Creative Centre as a result to foster creativity.

Branding and Marketing

To successfully manage our brand and customer loyalty is a key to our long
term success. We are committed to dedicating ourselves to the integrity of
our brand and to strive for a healthy and quality repeat purchase from our
members.

We aim to lead our branding and marketing activities in an effective and
efficient manner to maximise our brand exposure. As we engage in an
increasing number of 020 marketing activities, we see huge potential in
combining conventional advertising and digital marketing tools to achieve a
targeted brand exposure.

This year our annual high-end jewellery auction “Reflections of Siem” has
once again been a great success — it creates a significant differentiator for
us at the high-end of our product spectrum.

Operations

As we are a vertically integrated business that ranges from raw materials
procurement to retailing, improving on various business processes to drive
towards efficiency has always been the main objective.

We are committed to developing and investing in initiatives and
technological know-hows that allow for more efficient distribution and
inventory flow in our retail network. This year we kick-started a 2-3 year
programme to unify and retain inventory ownership to facilitate inventory
flow in our retail network. Other short to medium term initiatives include
the logistic systems in Logistic and Distribution Centre, the use of RFID-
technology in the stock-taking process and increasing steadily our in-house
production ratio through development in our production capabilities. We
see these measures as necessary investments for our future growth which
may take years to bear fruits; however, as market leader, we strive to create
breakthroughs for our industry in achieving greater operational efficiency.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STRATEGIC REPORT FE=& KRR E

Management

Our people represent our most valuable resource; it is our priority to
provide them with the right training. We need a staff equipped with the
right capabilities to realise our business plan. We will continue to
emphasise on staff training and motivation as the key components of our
long-term business development.

We are going to establish the Chow Tai Fook Academy to further hone the
expertise of our staff. Through online courses, classroom work and on-the-
job training, the Chow Tai Fook Academy delivers courses taught by
external consultants and senior executives to develop all-rounded,
professional and capable employees.

Looking Forward

As always, | would like to thank our management team, business partners
and staff for their continued dedication and commitment to building our
business.

As Chow Tai Fook embarks on our 86th year of business, we remain
positive about the future of our business. The year ahead marks a year of
change and we are optimistic that we have the right initiatives in place to
deliver steady and sustainable growth over the long run.

Wong Siu-Kee, Kent
Managing Director

Hong Kong, 5 June 2015
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FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

BBREERE

For the year ended 31 March EZ3831HILFE

Profit attributable to

As at 31 March R3831H

Revenue shareholders of the Company POS

BERE RABRREMRER ZEH

(HK$ million B &) (HK$ million B & 7T)

80,000 8,000 2,500
2,000

60,000 6,000

40,000 4,000

20,000 2,000

2012 2013 2014 2015 13 2014

HK$ 64,

2717.0

million EEE T

ks 5,490.

million B&E T

For the year ended 31 March &Z38318LLEE

Earnings per share

Full year dividend per share

1,500

1,000

500

2015

2012 2013 2014 2015

2957

POS ZE&H

As at 31 March R3831H

Net assets per share

ERER 2EERKRE BREETFH
(HK cent 711l (HK cent 7511 (HK dollar/&T)
80 4 5

30

40 20

o

2012 2013 2014 2015 2012 2013 2014

28.0*

HK cents &1L

54.6

HK cents 4L

Note: The percentages calculated are subject to minor rounding differences

2015 20m 2012 2013 2014 2015

4.1

HK dollar &7t

M BOLA HAERIMAENER

* Included final dividend of HK15.0 cents, subject to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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> FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS BABR&ERE

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
For the year ended 31 March HK$ million HK$ million HKS$ million HK$ million HKS$ million
HE3ANABLEE BEET BHEBT BEBT BHEET HEET
Revenue & %5 35,042.5 56,571.1 57,433.9 77,4071 64,277.0
Gross profit EF) 9,927.6 16,447.9 16,283.1 21,152.3 19,072.4
Operating profit" A& & 5| ™ 4,651.7 8,440.1 7.316.7 9,252.1 6,888.1
Profit for the year &€ )4 7 3,672.5 6,570.9 5,678.4 7.449.2 5,535.8
Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company 78/ &) % 5 & {32 7 3,637.6 6,340.6 5,505.3 7,272.0 5,456.0
Earnings per share (HK cent) &% Z# (&) 39.5 68.5 55.1 72.7 54.6
Full year dividend per share (HK cent) 2 & &8R 2 (&(l) N/A i 10.0% 22.0 36.0 28.0
Gross profit margin FEFI% 28.3% 29.1% 28.4% 27.3% 29.7%
Unrealised hedging loss/(gain) on gold loans and bullion 1.2% (0.7)% (0.3)% 0.4% (0.5)%

forward contracts®?
ECEERESRPANABBENER ()2

Adjusted gross profit margin®? 29.5% 28.4% 28.1% 27.7% 29.2%
KRB IR ) ERN

Operating profit margin® 4 &% | & @ 13.3% 14.9% 12.7% 12.0% 10.7%
Net profit margin % & 10.5% 11.6% 9.9% 9.6% 8.6%
Dividend payout ratio & £ 3 N/A T 27.4%% 40.0% 49.5% 51.3%

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
For the year ended 31 March HK$ million ~ HK$ million ~ HK$ million ~ HK$ million  HK$ million
HE3ANABLEE BHEBT HEBET BHEET BEBT HEBER
Operating cash flows before movements in 5,630.7 9,189.6 7,662.6 9,464.9 7,292.1
working capital
EEECAEN KERENE
Net cash from/(used in) operating activities (2,612.3) (6,653.7) 10,030.3 (5,419.5) 7,568.2
e EBmE (PR ReFHE
Net cash from/(used in) investing activities (75.9) 477.0 (1,112.6) (1,727.3) (3,092.7)
BREZBAME/ (FTA)REFE
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities 6,107.3 10,497.0 (10,622.6) 8,220.6 (5,471.5)
BEEHHNE /(A REFE
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 3,419.1 4,320.3 (1,704.9) 1,073.8 (996.0)
Re kAL SEMEN (Rd)FE
Capital expenditure EAF 3 (823.9) (867.2) (1,174.1) (1,368.3) (2,767.9)
Pro forma free cash flow® £ B HE &R (2,452.1) (6,058.3) 8,150.5 (412.0) 2,764.0
(1) Earnings before net interest and taxation (1) SR AR
(2) Adjusted gross profit margin, a non-IFRS measure, eliminates the effect of unrealised hedging loss/(gain) on )

gold loans and bullion forward contracts, which the Company believes is useful in gaining a more complete
understanding of its operational performance and of the underlying trends of its business

(3) Earnings before net interest and taxation, divided by revenue 3) BEEAFER AL

(4) Dividend per share and dividend payout ratio derived from the profit in the second half of FY2012 after the (4) FRIREER S RE A SHRBEER 2012 BEE N HEFF]
Global Offering

(5) Net cash from/(used in) operating activities less capital expenditures and net movements for gold loans (5) WSEBE/ (A RS FEREAREIRESREZTES

Note: The percentages calculated are subject to minor rounding differences Mk : BN EERIEBHEALER
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2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

As at 31 March HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
R3H31H BHEBEBTT BEET BEET BEET HEBETT
Non-current asset FFRENEE 1,5645.5 2,156.0 3,441.6 4,262.8 7,038.3
Current assets mENEE 27,503.2 45,258.3 39,777.0 57,654.3 54,082.7
Inventories 7 & 17,100.8 29,694.2 27,314.8 42,543.7 39,797.6
Bank deposits and cash equivalents® 5,761.1 10,004.8 8,330.5 9,971.9 8,477.5
RITERRRSEEYO
Current liabilities 7 &) & & 17,213.2 14,218.0 8,412.8 22,506.9 19,879.9
Bank borrowings #£17E % 2,881.0 9,000.6 1,000.0 6,299.6 6,750.6
Gold loans =& EE 3,931.6 5,806.6 4,835.7 10,786.8 8,338.3
Net current assets i 8) & & %58 10,290.0 31,0403 31,364.2 35,047.4 34,202.8
Net assets & & #58 11,672.9 29,573.0 33,860.7 38,452.4 40,540.8
Total assets EE4%E 29,048.7 47,414.3 43,218.6 61,817.1 61,121.0
Net debt/(cash)” &3, (BR& ) /FHE? 7,606.5 4,802.4 (2,494.8) 7,114.5 6,611.4
Net gearing ratio® JFEAREELL KO 65.2% 16.2% N/AASE R 18.5% 16.3%
Inventory turnover period (days)"? 17 & E# & (K) 10 249 271 242 276 321
Return on equity" J& 7K [B]f 2 01 31.5% 22.2% 16.8% 19.4% 13.7%
(6)  Included bank balances and cash, pledged bank deposits and short-term bank deposits (6) EERITHEBRERS  BEPRITERRERRITER
(7)  Aggregate of bank borrowings and gold loans, net of bank deposits and cash equivalents (7) RITERRESEEZHEERRITERARREEED)
(8)  Aggregate of bank borrowings and gold loans, net of bank deposits and cash equivalents, divided by total (8) MITERRECEEZHE(NRRITERRREEEY) BRAESEE
equit
9) T:e Ziroup had a net cash position as at 31 March 2013, and therefore the net gearing ratio was not 9 AEER2013FIANBERNFHSMR  WFEABBLRL T
applicable pikil
(10) 2;'\5736gvemory balance at the end of the year divided by cost of goods sold for the year, multiplied by (10) BIFERGFELEBBRUFADEERMKAR - BIIA365/366
(11)  Being profit for the year divided by total equity at the end of the year (1) BNFEREFIRAFRIE AR
Note: The percentages calculated are subject to minor rounding differences M3 Bt AR AR ER

Exm01s5ER 17 <



> FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS BABR&ERE

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
For the year ended 31 March HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BZE3A3MBLEE BEBT BEBT BEET BEBT BEET
RSV ZEE
Mainland China — Jewellery business 22,770.8 36,220.2 37,969.4 50,321.0 45,590.5
BN - TRE B TS
Mainland China — Watch business 743.1 1,870.6 1,339.4 1,864.4 2,259.3
FR B A, - SEEREETS
Hong Kong, Macau and other markets 15,303.0 23,986.2 25,885.7 35,096.2 26,463.7
BA ORPIREAM TS
Total 425t 38,816.9 62,077.0 65,194.5 87,281.6 74,313.5
Retail sales volume (unit) 852 (#4)
Mainland China — Jewellery business 7,183,000 9,127,000 9,793,000 14,438,000 13,493,000
AR A — BREE B AT
Mainland China — Watch business 170,000 121,000 95,000 118,000 144,000
R A, — SESREETS
Hong Kong, Macau and other markets 2,334,000 3,225,000 3,861,000 6,109,000 4,942,000
B ORFIREAMTIS
Total 45+ 9,687,000 12,473,000 13,749,000 20,665,000 18,579,000

For the year ended 31 March

HZE3H31BLEE

Same Store Sales Growth E/E &R

Same Store Sales Growth RI/EEEE R 33.8% 40.3% (3.3)% 18.6% (24.1)%
Same Store Sales Volume Growth 11.1% 18.9% (2.5)% 35.6% (20.3)%
F/EHEEK

Mainland China — Jewellery business 35.0% 31.9% (2.9)% 18.6% (16.1)%
ARl - ZREE B R ETS

Hong Kong and Macau 32.4% 48.5% (3.8)% 20.2% (32.8)%
BB KRR

Gem-set jewellery TR &2k & £ 19.1% 31.9% (9.9)% 8.4% (4.6)%
Gold products &% ZE 51.3% 48.1% (0.2)% 27.6% (34.1)%

As at 31 March ®3H31H

POS network ZE 4345

Mainland China A B A, 1,274 1,532 1,731 1,965 2,124
Jewellery POS ZhEZ &2 1,206 1,448 1,640 1,828 1,992
Watch POS E&Z &5 68 84 91 137 132

Hong Kong, Macau and other markets 84 95 105 112 133

B RFIRHEMTIS

Total 425t 1,358 1,627 1,836 2,077 2,257
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> MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &1 Esi3hEd J}ffﬁ

FINANCIAL REVIEW B #5[E]

Organic growth Retail network expansion &
RERE R penetration
SEARERR

HBSE .

/“7 =
v & R
REVENUE

For the year ended 31 March &E3A31H L&

Revenue by reportable segment
RA2RH WD NEERE

(HK$ million B &87T) gﬂ%ﬁ
80.000 77,4071 -

60,000 64,277.0

57,4339
40,000 (11.4)% B Mainland China — Jewellery business
FEIRMH — RE R
18.3% B Mainland China — Watch business
20,000

RN — EERET
I Hong Kong, Macau and other markets
B AR EMTS

(25.0)%

S

2013 2014 2015
Revenue by operation model Revenue by product
REERNE S NEERE REREDNEEEE
(HK$ million & &/ 7T) (HKS$ million B &7 7T)
80.000 77,4071 80.000 77.407.1
64,227.0 64,277.0
60,000 60,000
57,4339 57,433.9 B Gem-set jewellery
) TRES SRR & B
40,000 B Retal 265 40,000 I Gold products 3 & 2 &
B Wholesale £ > W Platinum/Karat gold products
20,000 20,000 "’ s/ Ke R
I Watches $#8%
14.4%
0 0 /o 5.3%
2013 2014 2015 2013 2014 2015
Note: The percentages calculated are subject to minor rounding differences et ARt EERUR A AR

The Group recorded a revenue of HK$64,277.0 million in FY2015 (FY2014:
HK$77,407.1 million), representing a decrease of 17.0% over last year. The
decrease was mainly attributable to high base effect caused by the gold
rush in FY2014, slowdown of economic growth in the Greater China region
and regional market structural changes.
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Nevertheless, the growth of 6.4% in overall sales of gem-set jewellery
(which is a high margin product and closely correlated to the consumer
sentiment), coupled with a slowdown in demand for gold products resulted
in an improvement in product mix. The gem-set jewellery mix for Mainland
China (including Watch business segment) and Hong Kong, Macau and
other markets in FY2015 were 26.1% and 28.4%, respectively, while those
for FY2014 were 20.5% and 21.8%, respectively.

The revenue contribution of the jewellery business in Mainland China to
the Group’s revenue continued to increase which was mainly attributable
to the nationwide continual urbanisation, the growing affluence of Mainland
Chinese in terms of increasing disposable income per capita and their
growing demand for luxury goods.

Mainland China — Jewellery business

Overview

2013
HK$ million
BEBTT

For the year ended 31 March
BZ3A31BLEE

Revenue & %%

R KEEREM(ASTNEER  MEHESEY
BEENRYAH) BRHEELR64%  NEESE
MERBATR  SEREAE—SHE KEER
S E 2015 IEE - FE AN (B EEE
EHE)BEES BPFREMTE S HIH26.1% Kk
28.4% -+ M 2014 BB FE 5 FI1520.5% % 21.8%

TEAMIKE RS ARE S RENTRREEL N
TEEZANBEFWBERE - RHERB AR B
WA LTt @ AR EmanBERERERY -
EREAmNEENEE LT -

FER M — RERH

2014 2015
HK$ million HK$ million
BEBTT BEAET

2015 vs 2014
YoY change
Eil=4:-£|4

Retail T& 23,117.9 30,508.6 26,768.4 (12.3)%
Wholesale #E% 5,980.6 10,007.7 9,142.8 (8.6)%
Total 485t 29,098.5 40,516.3 35,911.2 (11.4)%
RSV Z&£E

Self-operated POS H2&Z &2, 26,969.0 35,558.7 31,013.4 (12.8)%
Franchised POS Jni8 =2, 10,674.6 14,044.9 13,811.1 (1.72)%
E-commerce E-F & 264.8 516.8 663.3 28.3%
Others At 61.0 200.6 102.7 (48.8)%
Total 5t 37,969.4 50,321.0 45,590.5 (9.4)%

Due to the exceptionally high base caused by the gold rush following the
unprecedented slump in international gold price in FY2014, the revenue
and RSV of jewellery business in Mainland China recorded a decrease of
11.4% and 9.4%, respectively, over the same period last year. As the high
base effect from gold rush faded out and customer’'s demand for gold
products gradually normalised, the decrease in sales showed a narrowing
trend across FY2015. The RSV exhibited a decrease of 16.0% in THFY2015

2014 BFERRLERALEEL  BEECHESE
BEEHTE  TENBKEEFEEERTEED
RIEEFRE TR 11.4% [29.4% - HFEERIE =S BT
SIEMRERTERS  BERFUESEMNTREN
A IEE » 2015 B B4 & 55 & AR T ET = < 2015 81
HEE ¥ FNZEEREFREMD16.0% - M
2015 BABFE T HFRAFRMATE37% °

over the same period last year, and a decrease of 3.7% in 2HFY2015 over
the same period last year.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW B %% (2l 8

Organic growth
AERIE R

Retail network expansion &
penetration

et ) S—
> HiE2E g
¥ L ™0

The relatively stable sales performance of franchised POS over that of self-
operated POS was mainly driven by a steady increase in the percentage of
franchised POS opened during FY2015, which were mostly located in
lower tier cities where growth potential lies and are generally more resilient
to economic fluctuations.

Our retail revenue, being sales from self-operated POS, e-commerce and
other direct channels, decreased by 12.3% over last year.

Our wholesale revenue, being sales recognised when inventories are
delivered to franchisees and recorded at wholesale price, decreased by
8.6% over last year. The decrease in wholesale revenue was higher than
that for the RSV of franchised POS, which was mainly attributable to more
conservative approach of our franchisees in stock replenishment. Starting
from FY2015, our franchisees will progressively adopt the new optimised
mechanism that we would retain inventory ownership until sales
transactions are completed with retail customers, upon which wholesale
revenue is recognised at the prevailing price. For more details, please refer
to page 74.

E-commerce and others included the sales of our products through online
sales platforms and occasional sales events such as jewellery exhibitions
and wedding expos.

As at 31 March 2015, we operated 30 (31 March 2014: 21) e-commerce
platforms, including our direct website Chow Tai Fook eShop and all major
third-party marketplace platforms in Mainland China, namely Tmall.com,
JD.com, VIP.com, Suning.com, mei.com, and Amazon.cn.

With an average selling price of around HK$1,000, our e-commerce
platforms offer a younger line of products with lower entry prices, targeting
the younger customers who form a large portion of online shoppers. In
response to the needs of the younger generation, some of our products
are supplied exclusively on our e-commerce channels, and we are putting
more emphasis on the rapidly growing mobile platforms in the
coming year.
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RSV by product

During FY2015, we continued to collaborate with renowned international
brands such as FOREVERMARK, Rio Tinto Group and Disney to offer more
licensed and patented products that are unique and exclusive. The RSV of
them was mainly from gem-set jewellery, which showed an increase of
85.6% over last year. Fuelled by a stable volume growth, gem-set jewellery
maintained its momentum from last year and recorded 5.2% growth in
Same Store Sales, resulting in a remarkable improvement in product mix.

With over 14.0 million of newly married couples in Mainland China per
annum, wedding business continued to be one of our major sources of
income, contributing around 39.2% (FY2014: 32.1%) of our RSV. We have
seen an increasing popularity of gem-set jewellery within the segment as a
result of our continual investment in marketing and product development
in response to the booming wedding market.

The charts below set forth the breakdown of our jewellery products RSV
and that for gem-set jewellery by price range:

RSV by price range — Jewellery products
REREEIINTEE — KEER

BRERIINTEE

K206 RERER - FAVE—F s ENC - 7
MEEMETEERRELREOSIERHRE X
HHESBRMENESR - WEBNERTEETR
REKEEHMEH HEEEREZFHR LT
85.6% - HEBMEEERMEDKERREH 2HE -
i [F /5 S5 65 TheR1S5.2% g &« (REERMESRELRE -

HRFEALESFENILH 1408 EUMIERE - 5K
EBMREBRMNEZRARE BT EELN39.2%
(20148 FE 1 32.1%) - BEZRMAREHHERED
RIEETIE METHREMSERERERERMAE
KRE B G MBI ER R BT -

TEHIIZEFEEI D NREERTEEARKER
MEMHEEEDT

RSV by price range — Gem-set jewellery
REREEIINETEE — KEEHREN

HKS FY2014
BT 20148 B

FY2015
20158 BUF

Less than 274 2,000
2,001-10,000
10,001-30,000
30,001-99,999
100,000-500,000

More than A 500,000

Note: The percentages calculated are subject to minor rounding differences

et © BRI HARKBEARER

HK$ FY2014 FY2015

BT 014 BFEE 20158 BFE

Less than 277 2,000 ]

2,001-10,000 | |

10,001-30,000 [

30,001-99,999 [

100,000-500,000 [

More than 7 500,000 ]
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> MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &2 @3 o i

FINANCIAL REVIEW B #8218

Organic growth Retail network expansion &
RERE R penetration

SERAERR
HBSE .
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RSV performance and POS network by region and tier
of cities

R

The diagram below illustrates the RSV performance of our jewellery POS
network in Mainland China by geographical region and tier of cities over
the same period last year, and the coverage of our POS network as at 31
March 2015:

Northeastern ®it
*15.0% Fée

224 pos z e

Western 7

“12.2% Fee

360 pos e

Northern 4t

*11.3% %%

300 pos ze2s

Central Z/
v] 2% %

388 pos zew

Eastern R
A 57 0/0 %Séfa

358 pos zees

Southern %75

 +9.3% %

362 pos ze2;
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FY2015 RSV and POS by region
EitEEAN2015HEESEERTEY

FY2015 RSV and POS by tier of cities
EHTRAE SN0 HEESEERTEY

POS RSV
TEY TEE

Eastern 5 | |
Southern ¥ | ]
Western ZE 7 | |
Northern %1t [ |
Central ZE |
Northeastern 4t | ]

Note: The percentages calculated are subject to minor rounding differences

In terms of RSV performance by region, our POS in Eastern region of
Mainland China performed better than other regions, followed by Central
and Southern region.

In terms of RSV by tier of cities, Tier Il and other cities showed resilience
when compared with Tier | and Il cities. In recent years, we have been
focusing on POS expansion in Tier I, Il and lower tier cities in order to
achieve a broader coverage. These cities which experience higher
economic growth are in general more resilient to global economic
fluctuations and have seen rapid expansion in their jewellery markets. At
the same time, we continued to upgrade the positioning and branding of
our POS in Tier | and Il cities to cater to the sophisticated customers in
these cities.

FY2015 RSV and POS by store age
BERESHN201MBFETEERTEY

POS RSV

TEHN TEE
Tier | —#% | |
Tier Il Z#R | ]
Tier lll and others | |
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BRI NWEEERREMS  HARTEABER
WENTERRRRE  EAREPRERMBE -

BT RNESOTEEN ST - =R LREMETHR
BB~ —EmeE e nF B ERFE=
=REBREB T IR T EHBE - BOOMRARY
G  HWERTHEEERES  —RY2REE
BHBHRRIRE  AREMSGEREETRR - &
FITREER T —  ZA R T E R E R R g
R NAEZEWTHSREREP

FY2015 RSV and POS by POS operation model
REEHEEELE SN0 BFEZEERTEH

POS RSV
TEH TEE
Less than 2 years | |
DR
More than or |
equal to 2 years
GES=1Y N

Note: The percentages calculated are subject to minor rounding differences

New POS openings continued to contribute to our RSV growth. In FY2015,
16.8% (FY2014: 18.6%) of our RSV was contributed by POS opened within
2 years. RSV contribution from franchised POS have been increased from
28.3% in FY2014 to 30.8% in FY2015, thanks to our continuing effort in
collaborating with franchisees to open franchised POS and leveraging on
franchisees’ network and local knowledge.

POS RSV
TEH TEE

Self-operated | |
(Concessionaire)

hy
Self-operated |
(Rental)
HE(ASE)
Self-operated |
(Self-owned property)
HE(BEDF)
Franchised | |
hngd

M B EERIMEENER

THASTER " EAKRMONTEERRERMREZ - ©
2015/ FE © 16.8% (2014 B/ UFE : 18.6%) UE
EERBIMFARZNTES - NMBSEHNTE
BEEBBE20148 BUFE /) 28.3% = 201658 B F E
#30.8% ' RHARBRMAMEMMBEAMNESREE
)T B - TETERMNBEE A ERRMBE TSN -

EAE2015FF R



> MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &1 E3ThE 54

FINANCIAL REVIEW B %% (2] 8

Organic growth Retail network expansion &
AR penetration
FEARRER e
HiE2E g
Nz B
S Z =Ll
\ Y4 ™ 0
- - —

Self-operated POS

The RSV from our self-operated POS recorded a decrease of 12.8% when
compared to that of last year. While new POS openings continue to
contribute to our sales, our Same Store Sales recorded a decline of 16.1%.

Sales per store by store age
RIERBDNEIEHER

HEZER

HEETEHNTEEREFRL128% - BEHHR
MEERSETHHER  BREHEDTRE16.1% -

150.0%

100.0%

136.7%

50.0%

0%

Less than 2 years"! 2-4 years 4-6 years
kS VEYES 4Z65

POS — date 4/2013~3/2015 4/2011~3/2013 4/2009~3/2011
of opening 201348 & 201148 2 200948 &

ZEY — 201553 H 201343 H 2011538
BIR B B

Number of 298 364 193
POS
TEZHE

| | Ratio of annual sales per store to average Same Store Sales per store

BEFEHEREGETHREHEZLH

The productivity for POS of age less than 2 years was 64.9% of that of
Same Store average. While productivity and efficiency of our POS
improved as our POS ramped up, it takes around 6-8 years for a new POS
to reach the average Same Store Sales level. Together with new store
profitability, breakeven points and payback period analysis, these are
important references and indicators in formulating our POS expansion plan.
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FY2015
RSV per annum:
HK$27.4 million®
20158 B &
BETEME -
2748 EE T

6-8 years 8 years or more

BZ=B8F 8 EIA L

4/2007~3/2009 3/2007 or
200748 & before
20093 H 200734

=% B AT

176 216 1,247

(1) For POS of age less than 1 year, sales is adjusted on an annualised
basis

ERTR1FNTER 2 HERFEERE

2) Included value-added tax (“VAT")
BIERER

ERIAEMENTEREENRRAEFHEN
64.9% - BEBETEHNZELRR  EENREEX
BAMRES  BFRRREEHDBN6ESFIAEN
FIHRIEHEKRF - BN GETE R BR S
MEMANGE N WL TFEEER AL RESR
MSERZNIER -



SSSG

REHELR
FY2014 FY2015
014 B F 2 20158 FE
60.0%
40.0%

20.0%

0%

-20.0%

-40.0%

-60.0%

For the year ended 31 March

BE3HA3MHLFE

SSSG FIJEHEIE R
Same Store Sales volume growth [ElJE S8 &

SSSG - Gem-set jewellery FJEHEE K — IREERE A
SSSG - Gold products F/SIHEER - ECEMm

Average selling price” — Gem-set jewellery P& B — TR ik & &
Average selling price® — Gold products ‘FHEBY - &4 E R

(1) Average selling price on FY2015 Same Store basis, and includes VAT

Although the gold rush in FY2014 caused volatility to our overall SSSG and
gold products SSSG, the gem-set jewellery SSSG was relatively stable and
maintained a healthy growth in FY2015.

Average quarterly sales and its contribution to annual sales
FHEEHERER A FEEERNER

(HKS$ million B &7#7T)
31.6%
15.0
26.1% 29.4%
120
90 223% 213%

Q1 Q2 03 Q4

Note: The percentages calculated are subject to minor rounding differences

MisE : BALA HERIMERLER

The Chinese tradition of jewellery gift-giving during ceremonial and festive
events has generated solid event-driven demand for our products,
particularly in Q4 of our financial year when important holidays and events,
such as Chinese New Year, Valentine's Day and peak season of wedding
registration, happen.

-O- Overall 82
-O- Gem-set jewellery ZRE5 $% & &
-O- Gold products F&E

YoY change

Eld-(4

18.6% (16.1)% N/ATE R

33.6% (16.0)% N/ATEH

6.4% 5.2% N/ATE

28.9% (23.8)% N/ATEH
HK$ HK$
BT BT

6,628 6,833 3.1%

3,450 3,396 (1.6)%

(1) 2015 BRFEREELENTHER - 2IEAER

BE2014AMBRFERBES I RRMNEBRREH
EREURESERRAEHERRKRE - BIREER
BT RS SR RAERTE - N 2015 M BFERE
TR

FY2014 Average quarterly Same Store Sales
WUFTREFETHEERIEHER

FY2015 Average quarterly Same Sme Sales
20158 B 2 P RS S R

FY2014 Quarterly sales contribution to annual sales
UM BFEFEHERYFEHERNER
FY2015 Quarterly sales contribution to annual sales

015 BREFEFEHERHFEHEROEM

Gold rush triggered by the drop of international gold price in Q1 FY2014
caused an unprecedented surge in gold sales, leading to an abnormally high
sales contribution of Q1 FY2014

014 BFEEFERSEZHERORBED NI ZESHE
BE LT S0V RFEETHEGLARERS -

TEER LBERENEY REMBAEKESR
LHERBEMZMRFEENFE —RRGESCHES
BERBHELBAGSEEENA LS - S HMFH
ERBRBREMTERS -

FEK&E2015F F ik
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Mainland China — Watch business A ity — SEERER
2013 2014 2015 2015 vs 2014
For the year ended 31 March HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million YoY change
BZ3A31MHILLEE BEET BEET BEETL [ Eb # 1k
Revenue &% 1,209.9 1,631.9 1,931.0 18.3%
RSV Z&1(E 1,339.4 1,864.4 2,259.3 21.2%

While the increase in sales of our watch business in Mainland China was BER2014FBEE - BATH B A 1) 52 81 5 75 8
mainly driven by the net addition of 46 POS in FY2014, our Same Store EXEXFIEMN 46 ESSRFTHESMEH - BREE
Sales decreased by 4.5% when compared to that of the same period last IHEREKFRIETEA.5% o A5 HEG R A TFE <R
year. The drop in our SSSG reflected a generally weak consumer sentiment BERMinEEBNEEEIBAKR 2015 BFE T ¥
in the luxury market, accompanied by the impact of currency fluctuations in FERRSHZE  EMESHBEMEINTIS

the second half of FY2015, which may have driven consumptions to

overseas markets.

Hong Kong, Macau and other markets B8 AMRHMTS

Overview BE

2013 2014 2015 2015 vs 2014
For the year ended 31 March HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million YoY change

BEIAALEE BEEBT BEET HEBT FEL

Revenue & %%

Retail =& 26,041.7 35,076.8 25,961.4 (26.0)%
Wholesale #t 2 1,083.8 182.1 473.4 160.0%
Total 4251 27,125.5 35,258.9 26,434.8 (25.0)%
RSV Z&£E

Hong Kong &% 21,308.2 29,362.6 22,329.2 (24.0)%
Macau & 4,454.6 5,590.7 3,904.1 (30.2)%
Taiwan and other Asian markets

A& R H MmN 5 122.9 142.9 212.6 48.8%
The United States <& - = 17.8 N/ATRE
Total #85t 25,885.7 35,096.2 26,463.7 (24.6)%
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Throughout FY2015, the sales performance of Hong Kong, Macau and
other markets was shadowed by the high base, generally weak consumer
sentiment and economical structural changes, resulting in a decrease of
25.0% and 24.6% for revenue and RSV, respectively.

Our retail revenue, being sales from self-operated POS, e-commerce and
other direct sales channels, decreased by 26.0% when compared with last
year.

Our wholesale revenue recorded an increase of 160.0% over last year. Our
wholesale revenue included occasional wholesale to diamond traders and
sales to franchisees and retail partners of Hearts On Fire, which was
mainly recognised when inventories are delivered to franchisees or retail
partners and recorded at wholesale price.

The RSV from Taiwan and other Asian markets included sales from our
self-operated POS in Taiwan, franchised POS in Singapore, Malaysia, South
Korea, as well as the 8 Hearts On Fire POS in Taiwan.

Compared to that of Hong Kong and Macau, the RSV of Taiwan and other
Asian markets showed better performance and recorded a growth of
48.8% over last year, which was attributable to the Hearts On Fire POS in
Taiwan we acquired on 31 August 2014, and a generally relatively stable
consumer sentiment in the regions.

The RSV of the United States represented the sales generated from 2
Hearts On Fire self-operated POS, which were located in Las Vegas,
Nevada and King of Prussia, Pennsylvania, yet exclude the retail sales of
retail partners of Hearts On Fire.

RSV by product

During FY2015, we continued to collaborate with renowned international
brands such as FOREVERMARK, Rio Tinto Group and Disney to offer more
licensed and patented products that are unique and exclusive. The RSV of
them was mainly from gem-set jewellery, which showed an increase in
RSV of 7.6% over the same period last year.

While our products are always regarded as popular gift for wedding in
Hong Kong and Macau, wedding business continued to be one of our
major segments, contributing around 41.0% (FY2014: 36.0%) of our RSV.

mw%&ﬁ %ﬁ BE RPFIREMTENHEER
RESES  TREBAHEEENNEESEAZN
%%*ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ&%%ﬁ%%Th%ﬂ%&MB%

EERNELZEN EFEBLEMERHEE

TE
REWHEE  WEFHD26.0% °

B2 R EFILN160.0% © AL EE BT E
ERXRSGEECFERBEMEEEBREMBER &
Hearts On Fire ZERHLIHEMS &5 - REHREF
ERXNFMBERRTERHRSERL A EEAR -

REREMTNTENTEERBERMANGENESE

TER - RETINE - BRAEREENINESTEE A
MR & &8 & Hearts On Fire ZE IR SHESE o
L BEAREM  a2RHMADNTISENTEERR

HANE  BEFIERA88% RN 20144F
8 A 31 Bt Hearts On Fire R & T E 2 - MLt
BB B AR BTER -

EEMNZEEEVARNEZ NN ENTRE S AR
M EELFH2EHearts On Fire AL T EEESE
KIS EEE - T B EHearts On FireRE BN TEE -

REREINTER

2015 FFER - B — A IR KB NG ~ 7
AEEMHTESEERERMENAIERHREER - M
HEEZBERNENER HTEETEREHKEERE
REM MELKREERENHNTESEREZFRYPLER
+FH7.6% -

HFER—EWIE AE S RPYEEREFNEFIEY -
BIREBDRERMNEZ DI ERL41.0% (2014
B FE : 36.0% ) INEEE -

AARE2015FEH 29 <
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SERAERR
HBSE

L &

The charts below set forth the breakdown of our overall RSV and that for
gem-set jewellery by price range:

RSV by price range — Jewellery products
REREEZINEEE — KEEM

TEHIREREESDH
HMEEEDN

ERTEERARERRE

RSV by price range — Gem-set jewellery
RERSEEZINTEE — KEEREH

48% g7%

1.8%

HK$ FY2014 FY2015
BT 014 BFE 20158 BFE

Less than 274 2,000
2,001-10,000
10,001-30,000
30,001-99,999
100,000-500,000

More than A 500,000

Note: The percentages calculated are subject to minor rounding differences

According to the Commerce and Economic Development Bureau of Hong
Kong and the Macau Statistics and Census Service, in FY2015, the number
of Mainland tourists to Hong Kong and Macau increased by 12.8% and
8.8% compared to the same period last year, to 48.1 million and 21.1
million, respectively.

Although the visitation of Mainland tourists showed positive growth, the
portion of overnight visitors decreased from 43.6% in FY2014 to 41.1% in
FY2015. At the same time, we saw notable change in their spending
preference and drop in sales contribution from them, as evidenced by a
decrease in portion of revenue settled through China UnionPay or
Renminbi (FY2015: 56.4%, FY2014: 60.1%) and a decrease in the
contribution of RSV from the touristic area (including the Airport, Causeway
Bay, Mong Kok, Shatin, Sheung Shui, Tsim Sha Tsui, Yau Ma Tei and
Macau), which declined from 79.9% in FY2014 to 77.3% in FY2015.
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1.3%
17.6% 14.7%

HK$ FY2014 FY2015
BT 014 BFE 20158 BFE

Less than 274 2,000
2,001-10,000
10,001-30,000
30,001-99,999
100,000-500,000

More than A 500,000

et © BRI HERKBEERER

REESEHEREEERBMRIIGHELERNE
B R2015 B R E - 5 A AR A B X F R AR
HIN12.8% E48.1 B E AKX 58RI E A 2 RIE
N8.8% E21.1ABAX °

BE N B2 ABIG AN - HEBR B LI 2014 BT
FEML36% FNEE201HBFERIA1.1% © R -
BMEEIMMAEEBECHABTR  BRMANEE
BEITMEM TR (AP REBRBSARBEENE
ZELL B TP (2015 B/ U FE : 56.4% © 2014 BABUFE -
60.1%) « U RIR¥E (BIEHS - RRE A Y
B Bk RU0R A &R TEEE B R 2014
HFER79.9% Bk ZE 2015 B FER 77.3% * Al R,
—3it -



Hong Kong and Macau

Number of Mainland tourists in FY2015 (YOY change)
015 BEEREE A (B #1)

HONG KONG &

+12.8%

Hong Kong &5

MACAU j%rd

A8.8%

Macau J&F9

FY2015 RSV and POS by area
ZEFES N0 REFESEEHETER

POS RSV
TER THEE
Touristic area % & | |
Other area E-Ath |

Note: The percentages calculated are subject to minor rounding differences
MisE: BALAT HERIBALELER

The relatively weak consumer sentiment in Hong Kong and Macau was
also reflected in the decrease of customer traffic. Based on the overhead
people counters we have installed in some of our key POS in the touristic
area, customer traffic has decreased by around one-third over the same
period last year. Nevertheless, thanks to our successful marketing and
sales strategies, the conversion rate has shown an improvement.

We recently noticed a change of preference in Mainland tourists for
overseas destination. The possible change in inbound tourism from
mainlanders may post structural changes to the retail industry in Hong
Kong and Macau and aroused uncertainty over our business. While we
seek to expand our footprint in the region to cover more popular
destinations of Mainland tourists, we will also focus on enhancing the
operation efficiency of our existing POS and consolidating POS to enhance
store productivity.

BB R

Revenue
settled by
China UnionPay
or RMB
A B SR B R A R
BENERE

56.4%

(FY2014: 60.1%
(2014 AR EE : 60.1%)

(FY2014
(2014 A BUFE : 39.9%

Iy

ERETRTRREERRPDEE BB RS - R
ERANRER BN EBTERLEN AR -
EREBREFABATRO=92— - EBEML &
BRI RS R - EREDART -

AT AR i R ER R RS SR B M3 6 TR
o NBERIGOREEA EEEE ST ED
MREFIEEEEBELERL  ERMANEBFETHE
ERE - RPN BAEBRE  MIREXZ AT
FROOONAPREB MM ARTEEIRARET
ERNEERE  UBATEMNRITERYCE -

EAE2015FER 31 <
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FEARRER

TSR )
- é‘ﬁu

|\
L 4 At
FY2015 RSV and POS by store age FY2015 RSV and POS by POS operation model
BIERE SN0 RFETEERETER BREEHEERAAINNHHFESEEETEY
@ POS RSV
TEE TEE
3.6% ‘ Self-operated [ |
POS RSV 1.8% (Concessionaire)
TEH TEE HE(HEM)
Less than 2 years | | Self-operated H
kS (Self-owned property)
A
More than or | | HE(EHNR)
equal to 2 years 94.6% Self-operated (Rental) " |
2F A 96.4% N§ B (HE)
(1) Depending on the terms of individual rental contracts,
concessionaire elements might be included
RFEHEESRNER - TaeRSER/IK
Note: The percentages calculated are subject to minor rounding differences Misk : Ao EERARBEUER

New POS openings continue to contribute to our RSV growth. In FY2015, FHRARTEHEEARMNTEEERELER - ¥
14.4% (FY2014: 20.6%) of our RSV was contributed by POS opened within 2015 NFfE » 14.4% (20148 BRFfE : 20.6%) T
2 years. EEREMFARZNTES -

Sales per store by store age
RIEREIDNEEHEES

150.0%
122.7%

100.0% 104.7%
FY2015

50.0% RSV per annum:
HK$248.5 million
201581 BUF &
BETEME -

0% 24858 BT

Less than 2 years'! 2-4 years 4-6 years 6-8 years 8 years or more
2 LA 2545 4265 6585 8EFSIA

POS — date  4/2013~3/2015 4/2011~3/2013 4/2009~3/2011 4/2007~3/2009 3/2007 or

of opening 20134 % 201148 % 200948 % 200748 % before

ZEH - 201553 A 201353 A 201143 200953 A 200753 A

PR B = BARY

Number of 26 31 11 9 5 112
POS

ZERHE

[ | Ratio of annual sales per store to average Same Store Sales per store (1) For POS of age less than 1 year, sales is adjusted on an annualised basis

BEFEHEREGEFHREHE 2L ERTB1VFNTERZ HERRFCEERE
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Hong Kong and Macau market is relatively mature. Our new stores are BB RORPITHISHEE A o BAIRIHNIE B8 AR k2
typically situated in touristic area where productivity can be very high since & BREREENNEERSKE  BERREN
opening. They generally do not have the same ramp up pattern as the POS BEEPEAMTERTE -

located in Mainland China.

SSSG

EEHELER
100%

— FY2014 FY2015
80% 201451 R fE 20158 B FE

60%
40%
-O- Overall #§8
-O- Gem-set jewellery BkE8 $3 4% & &
-O- Gold products &% 2

20%

0%

-20%
-40%

-60% !

-80% :
a1 iV a3 04 al 2 a3 4

For the year ended 31 March YoY change
HE3ABMBLEE Eil4:3(
SSSG RIS HERR 20.2% (32.8)% N/ATE A
Same Store Sales volume growth B/ EE & 40.3% (27.7)% N/ATE
SSSG - Gem-set jewellery F/EHEE R — KB FER A 10.7% (14.6)% N/ATE H
SSSG - Gold products R/EHER K - EELEMm 26.4% (44.4)% N/ATEH
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Average selling price™” — Gem-set jewellery FHIEE — BRE SE R & & 13,782 12,025 (12.7)%
Average selling price — Gold products FHHEEY - BEE 5,372 5,309 (1.2)%
(1) Average selling price on FY2015 Same Store basis (1) 2015 BUFEREEENFIHEE
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FEARKRER

A =

LY 0

= 0

Average quarterly sales and its contribution to annual sales
FHEEHERERHFEHERNTR

(HKS$ million & &% 7T)

0411
180.0 31.0% 29.4% I FY2014 average quarterly Same Store Sales
w0 WUHTRER FHEERAERER
140.0 W FY2015 average quarterly Same Store Sales
0] 015 B EFEFHFEREHESR
= | : 21.2% -O- FY2014 quarterly sales contribution to annual sales
100.0 014 RFEFEHERN FEHERENEM
80.0 -O- FY2015 quarterly sales contribution to annual sales
w00 ] ISBAEF FEBE HE S O AR
40.0 (1) Gold rush triggered by drop of international gold price in Q1 FY2014 caused
— unprecedented surge in gold sales, leading to an abnormally high sales contribution of
200 Q1 FY2014
0.0 0V BFEEFRRSEEZBENRBED TSI RESHE

BE LT QUMBFEEFHEGELARES

Q1 Q2 03 Q4

Note: The percentages calculated are subject to minor rounding differences
Mk BA At HARKBAENLER

For Hong Kong and Macau, the demand for our products is generally BEAERRPIEHRMNEROFTRBEEPRVBRFES
concentrated in Q3 of our financial year, which Christmas, our annual mega =FE BEEREINE FERERERERIEERS

gt

sales and traditional wedding season fall into. Bn e

D Hearts On Fire D Hearts On Fire

We acquired Hearts On Fire, a luxury diamond company offering IR 20144 8 B 31 H & AHearts On Fire © —X
premium bridal and fashion jewellery products, on 31 August 2014. SHE = AR IR S B M IR B E o A SR 2E N A A A

Approximately 50% of Hearts On Fire's products sold were bridal Fit & ) Hearts On Fire & @ #950% & & 15 & 7]
collection, 40% were classic collection, and 10% were designer 40% RS ZT - 10% xR RTIEmR © 201581
collection. Around 63.2% of Hearts On Fire jewellery sales in FY2015 REER + Hearts On Fire #163.2% MEKE #HE B
were priced between US$1,000 and US$10,000. 71,0005 7T = 10,000 E T °
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HEARTS ON FIRE

Retail Network
TERK

King of Prussia,
o Pennsylvanla

5 Las Vegas,” "éﬁ/i):'b M
Nevada EtEE
NEZH N~ ,’ ‘

1 5 4 hn H

0/4

Retail partner locations
TEBHEHVE

M Area with Hearts On Fire self-operated POS Hearts On Fire E 4 T & B @5
B Area with Hearts On Fire retail partners location Hearts On Fire & B £ Fr1E R 52
I Hearts On Fire POS operated by Chow Tai Fook management F /& A48 % 12 [ FX 48 & #) Hearts On Fire ZE %

Hearts On Fire offers its product to a passionate and loyal customer
base through its global independent retail partner network, self-operated
stores and Hearts On Fire's website (www.heartsonfire.com).
Wholesale revenue, being sales to retail partners, contributed to around
80% of Hearts On Fire's revenue, while the remaining 20% was retail
revenue from self-operated stores and Hearts On Fire’s website. Its
major market was in the United States, with presence also in Latin
America, Caribbean, Europe and Asia.

As at 31 March 2015, there were 2 and 8 POS directly operated by
Hearts On Fire in the United States and Taiwan, and 524 retail partner
locations in 28 countries around the world.

While Hearts On Fire continued to be led by the founders and original
management team, Hearts On Fire POS in Mainland China and Hong
Kong and Macau would be operated by Chow Tai Fook management,
leveraging the knowledge and connections in the region and enabling
more efficient deployment of resources.

Shanghai J:;"§1 /k

jing B3R . »
Nanjing Fa’ ¢ Taiwan &

A

\

28 ﬂ

Countries around the world
ETER

Hearts On Fire Z B E 2B LT EBHHE

B E I Hearts On Fire 493 (www.heartsonfire.com)
AERFEEFNTFREER - BT SFAH
B GHE L EEA) (b Hearts On Fire 2 2%/ 80% °
R T 20% & 58K B H & 5 K Hearts On Firef8/E °
Hearts On Fire X EMHAER - PR NT X
M gL ~ BUM R IEM o

%2015¢3ﬂ31 H ' Hearts On FireREB & & /&
il E%,ﬁ@”'ﬂlﬁﬂg’%%ﬁ - WHE 2 Bk 28 (A
KR A4 AZEBHEE -

B E Hearts On Fire DA AI A RRE EIEBKE
B mE R - B8 KIBPIA Hearts On Fire T &
BEHAAREREBCY  BRERMYZEED
BREREERBLS  BRZEAZSEMERK -

FEK&E2015F F ik
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FIE

©

. J

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT ENREFNZ
MARGIN

Overview BE

Our gross profit decreased by 9.8% from HK$21,152.3 million in FY2014 to B EN B 2014 HEEE 21,1523 B BB T T
HK$19,072.4 million in FY2015, while the gross profit margin increased 9.8% £ 20150 M FE /19,0724 5 EB L - MEF

from 27.3% in FY2014 to 29.7% in FY2015. % [ 201481 B 4 ¥ #027.3% 3% % 201581 Bl 4 [ )
29.7% -°
Unrealised hedging gain/loss REREWWEHE

Due to the drop in market gold price near our financial year end, we MEESERERIORMY BT EERE T - &M
recorded an unrealised hedging gain for FY2015. The table below set forth A BE 7R 2015 BF B R [ 8545 R Z IR 40P s - TRES
the gross profit margin, unrealised hedging loss/(gain) on gold loans and 2013 BFEE 2015 HFENENE - E2EER
bullion forward contracts, and the adjusted gross profit margin for FY2013 HeERRAGHWARBBEERER (&) MEABED
to FY2015: EHE

For the year ended 31 March

BE3A3MBLEE

Gross profit margin FEF|%& 28.4% 27.3% 29.7%
Unrealised hedging loss/(gain) on gold loans and bullion forward contracts

B EERESRBAA RSB EINER () (0.3)% 0.4% (0.5)%
Adjusted gross profit margin &% HEF| R 28.1% 27.7% 29.2%

Note: The percentages calculated are subject to minor rounding differences

et - BRI HARKBEERER
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The chart below illustrates how the fluctuations in gold price affected our
unrealised hedging gains or losses near the end of financial years:

London gold price

TE

DTS EZ EEINE B R PO RFERD

REEIR S W S 1R

RBLE
1,800.00
1,700.00
Closing London gold price was higher than the average
160000 gold price of T-120 days, therefore we recorded
- an unrealised hedging loss in FY2014
o S - _ Closing London gold price was lower than the average
= 15000 R WHEERT- 29%%%1’:]1 gold price of T-150 days, therefore we recorded
BB 2014 B B 8345 an unrealised hedging gain in FY2015
W =
g 140000 RBEESWHEBRRT-10R=ZLE
S BB MA20158 R EF B G R BRI E
= 1,300.00
1,200.00
1,100.00

31/3/2013

— London gold price fRE £ 1B

31/3/2014

— Average of T-120/150 days" T-120/150 K F 49 (&

(1) Average of T-120/150 days refers to the average gold price of previous 120 or 150 days on rolling basis. As
gold inventories turnover was slower in FY2015, average of T-120 days and T-150 days was used for FY2014
and FY2015 respectively.

Changes in adjusted gross profit margin

Our adjusted gross profit margin increased from 27.7% in FY2014 to
29.2% in FY2015. The below diagram reconciles the major factors in the
fluctuations of the gross profit margin:

Changes in adjusted gross profit margin

KRBRENENZED

31.0%

30.0%

29.0%

28.0%

21.0%

26.0%

25.0%

FY2014
2014 B FE

FY2015
20158 B F

Note: The percentages calculated are subject to minor rounding differences

(1)

31/3/2015

T-120/150 X FH9{E 5B EE 1205k 150 A E & - 1201581
BEEESFEAWRIE 8020148 HEE R 20168 REEH B fE
FAT-120 K % T-1650 K #)FH9 % -

RRABRNENREE

T EEIBEE N KR 20148 BE E H27.7% 18 %
2015 I RFER)29.2% » NEIBE R EFN KR EBHES
FSE=d 3

(1

(2)

Improvement in product mix !
EmBasEn
Change in gross profit margin by product @

REMEDNEREREFH
Others Eft

As the gross profit margin for our gem-set jewellery were generally higher than that of
other products, the increase in gem-set jewellery mix in FY2015 led to

an overall improved gross profit margin -
SENIRE SR S MR R E R RN EMER - H2015H BFEIRE R
A LASEEENK LA

Change in gross profit margin by product refers to the effect of the change in

gross profit margin from the same product category in the same segment of

the same operation model. The decrease was mainly due to the pricing pressure

amid weak market sentiment K
REQESOENEZE JREECIER —SER AP R — D APE —
ERFRENZZHNTE - TREZRNTISRSMSIBNERES

et © BALA N ERAMEEEER
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SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION COSTS
AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Overall

Our selling and distribution costs and administrative expenses (“SG&A")
increased to HK$12,344.4 million (FY2014: HK$12,207.2 million),
representing an increase of 1.1% over the same period last year. Our
SG&A was mostly related to POS operations, product handling and
production support, and therefore was highly related with number of POS
and total sales volume. The below set forth the breakdown by nature and

segment of such expenses:

For the year ended 31 March & Z3H31H L&

SG&A by reportable segment
RA 2D HE D NEHERITHEX

HERDHERAURATHE X

A

R SEE Ry A A A BT S ([ 56 RITHA
T )EE 12,3444 E BB T (2014 B BFE : 12,207.2
BEAL) REFRBEMI A% - RAKHEE RT
BAY T EHTELE  EREENEESIRIANE -
AR TEHHENEEHEHEATYHAGR - TX
YR SRS IEE RO IE D H T

SG&A to revenue ratio
HERITHHAXIHE XL =

(in HKS million & ##7T)
16,000

YoY change
5123212

12,344.4

12,2072

12,000

8,000

4,000

2013 2014 2015

Note: The percentages calculated are subject to minor rounding differences
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B Mainland China —
Jewellery business

hEIRM - KB

Mainland China —
Watch business

PR - R

B Hong Kong, Macau and
other markets

B BFIREMTS

(in HKS million & &4 7T)

16,000

4,000

YoY change

192%  FEHEZ({
16.0% 15.8%
122072 123444

(7.5)% H Staff costs
BIRA

(11.8)% ] Concessiqnairs fees
HIEDK

[ Rental expenses

HEMX

I Advertising and promation expenses
BEREEMX

I Depreciation and amortisation
£ R gy
M Others E 1t

-O- As % of revenue
Frib & %ma D

M B EARIMEENER



Mainland China — Jewellery business
RE Rt — BRE K

For the year ended 31 March &Z38318 L&

SG&A to revenue ratio
HERTHAIGEERLE

(in HK$ million BE#T)
10,000

8,000

6,000

4,000

2,000

19.1% 136%

18.2%
Depreciation and amortisation®

7,379.2
’(78)% [ |
T R

B Others'®
/E;m(ﬁ]

=O- As % of respective revenue

it EXER DT

Staff costs'"!

8 TR
Concessionaire fees”
w5

Rental expenses

HEMX

Advertising and promotion expenses®

EEREERXY

2013 2014 2015

Note: The percentages calculated are subject to minor rounding differences

(1)

2)

4

(5)

Within our staff costs, 30.3% (FY2014: 38.0%) was performance based and decreased due to the drop in
sales, while the remaining portion of the staff costs was mostly fixed in nature, and increased in line with the
increase in number of staff. The staff costs to revenue ratio increased from 6.1% in FY2014 to 6.3% in
FY2015, which was attributable to the operating deleverage on the fixed portion

The decrease in concessionaire fees was generally in line with the decrease in our retail revenue. The
average ratio of concessionaire fees to the revenue for self-operated (concessionaire) POS was 9.4% for
FY2015 and 9.3% for FY2014

While the advertising and promotion expenses decreased by 3.2% when compared to the same period last
year, the expenses to revenue ratio increased from 2.0% in FY2014 to 2.2% in FY2015 due to operating
deleverage. We believe that a stable marketing investment would help us to regain market share as the
market recovers

Depreciation and amortisation increased correspond to the expansion of our POS network and new
production facilities

Others in SG&A included packing materials, certification fees, royalty fees to the licensing companies,
postage and transportation, utilities and overhead for POS and operations centres. While the ratio to revenue
increased mainly due to operating deleverage, such expenses increased mainly due to increase in POS and
sales volume of gem-set jewellery

M BOLA EARAMAENER

(1

(4)

(5)

BIMRAH - 303% (2014 /B JE < 38.0%) AIERI[ETHE - BEtHE T
FEmm D T REMA BETERA - BElEE ABE MM L5 - 8 TRA
(RSB Rk 2014 BFEH6.1% 1 Z 2016 BUFE#96.3% +
2 e T B AN ) B TR AT A AR AT A
HESREBETELEENEMAL - 2016 KFE - 5% (HB)T
EUDMIGEEEN TR E9.4% + 2014 HEFERI3%

EEREERXBREFRNATRI2%  HAXIEEEBOLLER20145
HFEMN20%EE2015 U RFER2.2% - ZRNEELLERRE
e - HMRABENTSREBPRMRTSERREETHHE

PE N R A TS BB IR R T A AR A T A A0

HERTBRASMAMBERNE  EF8A  FHREERFANHIF
B BERERER MEARTEMNEERLOREZEEMA - G5L
EMAERENLERTI RN AECERERRER L MEERIER
BETE RN A AIRE i E i E BB AYIE N

EAE2015FE®R 39 <



> MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &1 ExfhE 5 #

FINANCIAL REVIEW B #8218

Margins
R

©

. J

Mainland China — Watch business HE R — EERERK

For the year ended 31 March &£38318 L&

SG&A to revenue ratio
HERTHAS &£ =

(in HK$ million &) YoY change
500 [GlE%:2iq
22.8% 23.6%
21.3%
500

400
B Staff costs
BITRA
300 || Concessionaire fees
HHEDK
] Rental expenses
200 HERM
= Advertising and promotion expenses
ELEREEMX
_ 100 | | ] Depreciation and amortisation
R
Il Others
0 HAl
2013 2014 2015 O~ As % of respective revenue
IS =R

Note: The percentages calculated are subject to minor rounding differences

Wi ESLHE AR ER
The increase in SG&A for Watch business in Mainland China was generally B A SEER IS RS E R TE A SIE A B 2

in line with that of revenue, which increased by 18.3% when compared BIGAN—B MEEERREFRBAEIMN18.3% o
with same period last year.
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Hong Kong, Macau and other markets

The breakdown of SG&A, if excluded that related to Hearts On Fire which
we acquired during the year (HK$231.3 million), was as below:

For the year ended 31 March &Z38318 L&

SG&A to revenue ratio
HERTHAIGEERLE

(in HK$ million E&#7T) YoY change
6,000 e FEEL

5,000 12.4% 12.6%,

4,616.6

4,000
B Staffcosts”
BImAN
3,000 B Concessionaire fees
| HEDK
] Rental expenses?
2,000 Hemx"
I Advertising and promotion expenses®
BEREHEHRY
1,000 B Depreciation and amortisation*
HreEmndig
| | Others
0 Hity

2013 2014 2015

<O~ As % of respective revenue
FiEEx@East

Note: The percentages calculated are subject to minor rounding differences
Mz BALA EERIMEENER
(1) Within our staff costs, 43.9% (FY2014: 54.8%) was performance based and decreased due to the drop in

sales, while the remaining portion of the staff costs was mostly fixed in nature, and increased in line with the
increase in number of staff

(2) The increase was mainly due to the opening of POS in touristic area and the renewal of rental contracts in
Hong Kong and Macau. Out of the 19.6% increase in rental expenses, approximately 5.7% was attributable
to the effect of renewal of POS rental contract, while the remaining increment was mainly attributable to
new POS openings

(3) The increase in advertising and promotion expenses correspond to our various marketing campaigns during
the year, including the collaborations with Korean celebrities to launch exclusive collections and launch of
Hearts On Fire

(4) The increase was mainly due to the increased number of POS and the acquisition of World Peace Centre

R AMREMTS

HERITHAZMDITI T (BRETT RN EARATR
fEH) Hearts On Fire iHBAMZ 231.3 8 8B T) :

(1) BIHAH - 43.9% (2014 A « 64.8%) BIRKBE - BEHET
PR - 8T REOD BEERA - BElE B ABUE T LR

2  ENTFERARERERIFRTEHARNEE RRPINEQE A
o HEMX EIR19.6%F - £957% AN EEMBLOBEBMAY - #

THEEERBNFRTES

@ EEREMMASGENEHRFAETHERAT SRR - 2IFE
B A S EHE B R Z5 R Hearts On Fire

@) BT ERHBNTEREE R LA
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OTHER INCOME, OTHER GAINS AND
LOSSES AND OTHER EXPENSES

Other income was HK$453.0 million for FY2015 (FY2014: HK$351.7
million), represented an increase of 28.8% over last year, which was
mainly attributable to the increase in interest income, franchise income,
government grants and rental income.

Other gains and losses decreased from a gain of HK$130.2 million in
FY2014 to a loss of HK$35.9 million in FY2015, which was mainly
attributable to the net foreign exchange loss of HK$12.7 million in FY2015,
while there was a gain of HK$136.4 million in FY2014.

Other expenses increased to HK$94.7 million in FY2015 from HK$38.0
million in FY2014. The increase was mainly due to the increase in
charitable donations and transaction costs related to the acquisition of
Hearts On Fire during the year.

FINANCE COSTS AND TAXATION

Our finance costs increased from HK$222.8 million in FY2014 to HK$380.5
million in FY2015. While the interest rates for bank and gold loans was
relatively stable, the increase in finance costs was mainly attributed to the
relatively higher bank and gold loan level across FY2015 when compared
with that of FY2014.

Our tax expenses decreased from HK$1,713.8 million in FY2014 to
HK$1,123.3 million in FY2015, and effective tax rates was 18.7% and
16.9% for FY2014 and FY2015 respectively. The effective tax rate for
FY2015 was lower than that for FY2014, which was mainly due to one off
effect of the reversal of excessive withholding tax provision for dividend
payments previously recognised by certain subsidiaries of Group. For more
details, please refer to note 23 of the financial statement on page 220.
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PROFITABILITY, BASIC EARNINGS PER
SHARE AND DIVIDEND

Our operating profit decreased from HK$9,252.1 million in FY2014 to
HK$6,888.1 million in FY2015, representing a decrease of 25.6% over the
same period last year. The charts and tables below depict the gross profit
margin, SG&A to revenue ratio, operating profit margin, net profit, profit
attributable to shareholders, basic earnings per share, dividend per share
and dividend payout ratio for FY2013 to FY2015:

AT EFE MR 2014 RS 899,252.1 B B8 TR £ 20158 B 5 [Z £96,888.1
BEBIL BEFREPHD25.6% o THIEIXRSET 2013 KFEZE 2015 BB F
FZEME  HERTHAS(MEEBE IR  CEHFE  HEF - REE
EEF - FREAAT  SRESLRER

Mainland China — Jewellery business

FEIR — REEK FEIRH — EERE

Mainland China — Watch business

BN BREFBIRK
BRE

For the year ended 31 March &Z3 A31HILEE

Overall
e
Zgg%\ﬂM%
19.2%

16.0% 15.8% —
o— o o
12.7%

12.0%

2013 2014 2015

<O~ Gross profit margin 5%
-O- % of SGRA to revenue SHE RAITH X Tt EXEA DL
-O- Operating profit margin A& 4 3 12

Note: The percentages calculated are subject to minor rounding differences

Mt © BRI HERKMERIER

Hong Kong, Macau and other markets
&8 B REMTS

30.9%

29.8% 2.9%
0\2723)%//0 26.5% 27.1% 257% 268%
2.4% .
. - zwm
0#8(;1/0 ’ 228% 26% 18.3%
, 14.4%
12.3% 13.6% 6%
10.1% 10.5% .
o\o___o 12.4% 12.6%
5.5% 5.0%
14%
2013 2014 2015 2013 2014 2015 2013 2014 2015

<O~ Gross profit margin 7%

-O- % of SG&A to revenue
HERITHRAZ B EETEAD T

-O- Operating profit margin 48 &z Fi| &

<O~ Gross profit margin FEF%&
-O- % of SG&A to revenue
HERITHRXAMEEEEADLTL

-O- Operating profit margin 4% 45 FI| &

Note: The percentages calculated are subject to minor rounding differences
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<O~ Gross profit margin 7%

-O- % of SG&A to revenue
HERITHAZAMEEEEAEDLL

-O- Operating profit margin 48 & % 12
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2013 2014 2015 2015 vs 2014
For the year ended 31 March HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million YoY change
HBZE3ANAILEE BEAT BEAT BEBT G244
Net profit /¥ 7l 5,678.4 7,449.2 5,535.8 (25.7)%
Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company
AR AR IES T 5,505.3 7,272.0 5,456.0 (25.0)%

2014 2015 2015 vs 2014
For the year ended 31 March HK cents HK cents YoY change
BZ3A3MALFE Bl 7l G214
Basic earnings per share BAERZF| 55.1 727 54.6 (25.0)%
Dividend per share Sk 5
Interim A 6.0 17.0 13.0 (23.5)%
Final RHA 16.0 19.0 15.01 (21.1)%
Full year & 22.0 36.0 28.0 (22.2)%
Dividend payout ratio J& 8 % 40.0% 49.5% 513% 1.8ptsfAE D%
Note: The percentages calculated are subject to minor rounding differences Mzt BNt EA RS REEUER
(1) Being proposed by the Directors of the Company and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the 1 AN TEEEA M AR RENEREREASIE

forthcoming general meeting
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RETURN ON EQUITY, INVENTORY BEE®ER  FEABEK
TURNOVER AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE E#&%1#E

over BEF#E
assets) (&% HEE)

1 . 1 times %

14: 1.3 times) (2014 BT E

iplier EEZ{EE
equity) (BEE HERBH)

1 o 5 times {5

14: 1.6 times) (2014 FHEFE

enue) (FRAEHHE)

8.6%

14:9.6%) (2014 BARFE

Affected by Affected by Affected by
SERE SERH SERE

Operating deleverage Lengthened Reduced

EEEEIEENE inventory turnover net gearing
FERAEER BEXRER/LRED

contributed 1.6pts

of the decrease of ROE contributed 2.5pts contributed 0.3pts
ANAL +0 7 A2 paN
SEAREIFRE TR 1.6 A5 of the decrease of ROE of the decrease of ROE
LDIRAEFRETBE 2.6 EE DB LIRAEFRETBE 0.3 EE D2

Our Return On Equity (“ROE"), calculated by net profit divided by total 2015 8 BUF B BAP AR AN 21 3R 3= (320F ' FIBR LA 2
equity, was 13.7% for FY2015 (FY2014: 19.4%), representing a decrease BEETHE) B13.7% (2014 BRFE 1 19.4%) B
of 5.7 percentage points over that of same period last year. The decrease FREATRS7TEESH  TERANFHENEREAE
in ROE was mainly due to a decrease in net profit margin and asset B R AT

turnover ratio.

EAE2015FEH 45 <



2013 2014 2015

As at 31 March A3 831H

Inventory balances by category (in HK$ million)
RERNESNEFEFER(BEET)

> MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &2 Es1mEa D
FINANCIAL REVIEW E7 7 [E1 8
Asset turnover
BEERAER
C WA
4
Inventory balances and turnover period FEABRKEAEH
As at 31 March R3H31H
Inventory balances by product (in HK$ million)
RERESNEFEFAR(BEET)
50,000 YoY Change
R
40,000 42567 39,797.6
30,000 -
273148 9.0% B Gem-set jewellery RE SR & £
20,000 (24.3)% M Gold products &£ E
10.000 (9.0)% W Platinum/karat gold products 44 K& E &
: (10.7)% I Watches $%%
0 [ Packing materials &% #7k+

Capital structure

BARE

éﬁﬁ@

For the year ended 31 March &£38318 L&

Inventory turnover period (days) by category

BRERIINEFEREH(RR)

50,000

42,5437
40,000 39,797.6

30,000

27,3148

20,000

10,000

2013 2014 2015

Note: The percentages calculated are subject to minor rounding differences
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Our inventories decreased by 6.5% from HK$42,543.7 million as at 31
March 2014 to HK$39,797.6 million as at 31 March 2015, which was
mainly attributable to the decrease in gold products.

Our inventories turnover period increased from 276 days in FY2014 to 321
days in FY2015. The lengthened inventory turnover period was contributed
by the increase in inventory balance of gem-set jewellery and decrease in
that for gold products, which the turnover period for gem-set jewellery was
higher than that of gold products.

As at 31 March 2015, inventories amounted to HK$286.9 million were
located in our franchised POS under the new optimised mechanism. For
more details, please refer to page 74.

Capital structure

The Group principally meets its working capital and other liquidity
requirements through a combination of capital contributions, including cash
flows from operations, bank borrowings and gold loans. Gold loans and
bullion forward contracts are also used to hedge against the financial
impact of the price fluctuations in the Group's gold inventories.

The Group's daily operation was mainly financed by operating cash flow,
and relied on short-term borrowings to satisfy inventory financing needs
during peak seasons, working capital for future expansion plans and
unexpected needs. The Group has not experienced any difficulties in
repaying its borrowings.

The Group's income and expenditure were mostly denominated in Hong
Kong dollar (“HKD") and Renminbi (“RMB"), while its assets and liabilities
were mostly denominated in HKD, RMB and United States dollar (“USD").

HFINFEH20144E3 A31 HM42,543.7AEET T
%6.5%ZE 201693831 HHI39,797.6 BEH T *
TEANRESERRDAE °

FEEEHB 2014 IKEE#) 276 BIEE 2015 B 4
EW321H FTEAEHCERIZREANKEERY
MiFEAERIEN URESERNTEEEKR TR M
KEZREHNAEHESRNECEMNFEE -

201663 A31 A » FHELESI THMBESTERH
GFEE2869EEBIL c FEBRLHET4E

RN Y

AEEIZBERRELERESRE ROTEREER
EENEARBRERNEEESRAMABESHR -
EeEERESRHANTAEYMAEERESFE
BRRBNPHEZE -

AEERFEBAFTECTIZRELEERERE T
SUEHEERREEFRNGFEESR R  ARER
HEMBEEEE S R ZIMTR - AEENEER
B 5R07 N BT TR EE

AEBEZWARBXETEANETRARBE  ME
ERBEREZZNET ARBRETIHE

AAxiE2015FEHR 41 <
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The table below set forth the information regarding non-current assets, TREI|FAMR201543A31HRX201463A31HIE
inventories, bank deposits and cash equivalents, bank borrowings, gold REBEE - FE  BOGEAKEREEEY - BITER

loans, net debt, working capital and total equity as at 31 March 2015 and 2014: H5oEE  BERTFHE  SELoMEREE -
% to total % to total Denominated  Interest rate
2014 equity 2015 equity Currency™ structure! Maturity™
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
As at 31 March : ERER AR
M3A31H BEET BEET BEET =l FlZ=2EEm ZHA
Non-current assets 4,262.8 1.1% 7,038.3 17.4% 2,7755 N/A N/A N/A
FnBEE TER TER TR
Inventories 42,543.7 110.6% 39,797.6 98.2% (2,746.1) N/A N/A N/A
F& TER TER TR
Bank deposits and cash 9,971.9 25.9% 847715 20.9% (1,494.4) HKD, RMB Variable N/A
equivalents®? and USD interest rate
FIERRREEEY? BT FEH = TER
AREBRET
Total borrowings 17,086.4 44.4% 15,088.9 37.2% (1,997.5)
BEN
Bank borrowings 6,299.6 16.4% 6,750.6 16.7% 451.0 HKD and Variable Within
FITER RMB interest rate 12 months
BITRARE FEH = 12(8AR
Gold loans® 10,786.8 28.1% 8,338.3 20.6% (2,448.5) RMB and Fixed Within
HEEEY USD interest rate 12 months
AREBRET [EI T 7= 128 AR
Net debt* 7,114.5 18.5% 6,611.4 16.3% (503.1) N/A N/A N/A
RIFHEY TER TER TR
Working capital® 35,047.4 91.1% 34,202.8 84.4% (844.6) N/A N/A N/A
BEES T T i
Total equity 38,452.4 100.0% 40,540.8 100.0% 2,088.4 N/A N/A N/A
G Far ] TER TER TR
(1) Information about denominated currency, interest rate structure and maturity related to the condition as at (1) BRHESY « FIRGHE RSB AR2015F3A31 B 21ER
31 March 2015
2) Include bank balances and cash, pledged bank deposits and short-term bank deposits. As at 31 March 2014, (2) BERITEKRRRS BEMIRITFRRERIRITFR - R2014F3 A
the Group had HK$500.0 million of short-term bank deposits with original maturity of 12 months, carrying 310 A%EAFL00.0EBATEBRTER - RERAE12MEA - &=AE
fixed interest rate at 1.5% per annum EFFE15%:HE
(3)  The decrease in gold loans mainly due to the decrease in gold products inventories (3) HLEERLIERHNECERTFERDAE
(4)  Aggregate of bank borrowings and gold loans, net of bank deposits and cash equivalents @)  ROEFRFSEEZLB EHNRETEARREEEY)
(5)  Being net current assets (5) BUFRBEE
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Cash flows

The following listed the major items included in the calculation for pro
forma free cash flow and net increase/(decrease) in bank balances and cash:

REnRE

SEEZERRSRERRITEBRIERSFIEM O

D)FFBENTIREEMT

2013 2014 2015
For the year ended 31 March HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
HZE3A3MHILLEFE BEET BEET BEBT
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital
HEESEPRICKERENE 7,662.6 9,464.9 7,292.1
Decrease/(increase) in inventories ¥ &4,/ (32 10) 2,543.6 (15,072.6) 3,116.9
Net change in gold loans &% & &% & (705.7) 6,375.8 (2,036.3)
Net cash from/(used in) other operating activities
Hip &2 BBME (AR &%E (175.9) 188.2 (2,840.8)
Capital expenditure & AR 2 (1,174.1) (1,368.3) (2,767.9)
Pro forma free cash flow #Z EHEESHRE 8,150.5 (412.0) 2,764.0
Net change in bank borrowings $R1TERUF&8) (8,016.5) 5,296.9 450.0
Dividends paid B2 /F% & (1,709.9) (3,349.5) (3,534.0)
Net cash outflow used in acquisition of subsidiaries
WEHE A RIFTAIR & R FE (26.5) = (1,187.7)
Other movements Hffi & (80.6) (373.6) 518.2
Net increase/(decrease) in bank balances and cash
RITEBRBESE M (RD) B8 (1,683.0) 1,161.8 (989.5)

The below diagram reconciles the major items in the net decrease in bank
balances and cash:

Major cash flows items for FY2015 (HK$ million)
015 BHFETERSRE2BE(BEET)

TEBRRRTERLRASFRINTIRRALR

Pro forma free cash flow #% BB ESRE
42,764.0
I
I 1
20,000 3,116.9 2,036.3 28408
72921 19 Y /05U
15,000 L IE™ l2,767.9 1500

25,000

3,534.0
10000 | 9,466.6 - | 1187.7
| 5182 84711
5,000
o | I
As at As at
31 March 2014 31 March 2015
R2014E3 531 B R201563 531

W Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital
SEECRYR 2K ERS
mE

I Decrease in inventory balances

B Net decrease in gold loans
HREERFE

= Net cash used in other operating
activities
HitniE 2 ZBAMARSFE

W Capital expenditure & ANFH 37

I Net increase in bank borrowings
BITEAUREM

I Dividends paid 215 A% &

B Net cash outflow used in acquisition
of subsidiary 4z &1 &8 2 7
FRR& R FE

I Other movements H fth &)

FEK&E2015F F ik
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Capital expenditures

The Group's capital expenditures incurred during FY2015 amounted to
HK$2,767.9 million (FY2014: HK$1,368.3 million). The increase over that of
last year was mainly due to non-routine projects such as the acquisition of
World Peace Centre, an industrial building in Kwai Chung, and the
construction of Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Park in Wuhan.

Charge on group assets

Details of the Group's pledged assets as at 31 March 2015 and 2014 are
set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

Contingent liabilities

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31 March
2015 and 31 March 2014.

Capital commitments

Details of the Group's capital commitments as at 31 March 2015 and 31
March 2014 are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Capital structure
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FY2015 was a year full of changes and challenges.
Despite headwinds in our operating environment,
we are well-prepared to manage the fundamental
shifts arising from changing market dynamics.
Supported by our strong retail presence in Greater
China, we are geared up to capture the growth
opportunities for sustainable business development
and to maximise return to shareholders in the long run.

2015 A E R m S B BBk BY - BEELEIRFEAM - BT

EFBARE RN E SN TSI RN RORNIEEE -’

REATEMENEDTERS - BAER N ERIEELERK
 FERREBUALKEN S BRRGEREAERE

Mainland China Rt

A 1 POS
ZEH

Hong Kong, Macau and
Other Markets

&% BFIREMTS

A 21 POS
ZEH
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MARKET DEVELOPMENT

Overview

Throughout FY2015, as the China luxury market continues its transition to
a lower but more sustainable “new normal” growth in the long run, our
Group's RSV recorded a decrease of 14.9% over that of the previous year.
In the coming year, while we expect to encounter challenges ahead, we
remain cautiously optimistic.

Our markets in the region are undergoing a fundamental change driven by
evolving customer preferences and the foreseeable slowdown in economic
growth. In March 2015, the Chinese government announced to lower the
annual GDP growth target for 2015 to around 7.0% from 7.5%, the
slowest in 22 years. While policymakers are committed to implementing
necessary fiscal and monetary policies to build a stronger base for the
economy in the long run, the growth momentum in the luxury market will
be inevitably suppressed in the coming year.

Our customers are rapidly evolving too. Chinese consumers are becoming
increasingly sophisticated, educated and well-informed. They are
demanding for genuine products with strong design elements. They are
increasingly willing to travel abroad, and the depreciation of foreign
currencies against Renminbi and Hong Kong dollar has made alternative
travel destinations appealing to Mainland tourists and shoppers. They
embrace social and shopping experiences on the Internet through mobile
devices, which have now become indivisible parts of their lives. In
response to these changes, we strive to keep up the pace with evolving
customer expectations, in all aspects of an integrated and enhanced
shopping experience to our customers.
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Over the past 85 years, we are
committed to providing the best-
In-class products and services to
our valued customers, and this
sincere commitment is made
possible by our dedicated staff
across different functions.
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During FY2015

2015 B E
Addition Reduction Net
As at 31 March A3 A 31 A #n D R
POS network S &4
Mainland China /7 B A, 1,731 1,965 294 (135) 159 2,124
Jewellery POS IREZ &2, 1,640 1,828 280 (116) 164 1,992
Watch POS $BETEE 91 137 14 (19) (5) 132
Hong Kong, Macau and other markets
= R REMTIS 105 112 27 (6) 21 133
Total #&5t 1,836 2,077 321 (141) 180 2,257
Hearts On Fire retail partner location
Hearts On Fire &% /EH - - 532 (8) 524 524
Mainland China — Jewellery business HEIRt — BREEK
Traditional-style department stores still accounted for a major share of EHRBEAANESENHRASEEBEANNE - B
retail sales in the economy, yet the growing popularity of bigger shopping ERNUBYASNER TERNHEERBRETS
malls, abundant supply in retail sector, and the rise of e-commerce have EHEE  BEARMNAISZE B - RM AN
intensified the competitive retail landscape and casted more challenges to EEANTELEREEE - UERE TEE (e i

the department stores. We will continue to partner strategically with BEFEM RTERAGEETERNEK - 2016
leading retail enterprises to cope with the changing market conditions and HEE  ETRHRBNDERMNEREL  RIEE
consumer preferences, and to explore opportunities in the 020 arena. In BERBORAME T RARIE R EEERAENREE
FY2016, while the mass luxury segment remains our predominant focus, HmEMER °

we will put our emphasis on new store openings in lower-tier cities and

more affordable gem-set jewellery products.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Art Centre opened in Shenyang
RAABHREZMPLREGER

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Art Centre was officially opened in Shenyang BARBIREEMA LR 2015F 4 AEREFIERB
in April, 2015. It is the Group's largest standalone store with a total area o AREABEMNPOEEMER2,019FFK &
of 2,019 square metres and integrates the elements of art, jewellery AXREHRAMEFEEERESA  thRE——REE

and technology. The 1st floor of the centre encompasses the latest 7~ KB - R A—BHREBMKERME - KKE
seasonal jewellery products as well as the classic art pieces while the B L —EBREBEMEEZTHREN R - B3
2nd floor is the Chow Tai Fook Art Space that holds artistic jewellery BQEMBITIRE(ER - MP O BRI AARNEEl
exhibition regularly for the customers to enjoy the art of jewellery. - REBHEMKER  FEREHARIHREUL

ERATIRAE o
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As at 31 March A3 A 31 H

Addition

During FY2015
2015 BHEE
Reduction Net

20 A IR

Jewellery POS ZREZ &£ %

By tier of cities I M AR B!
Tier | cities —#R3# 230
Tier Il cities Z4R¥ T 1,012
Tier Il and other cities =48 2 EAb 35 T 586

Total 25t 1,828

By geography 1% & £ 5

Eastern X5 316
Southern 2/ 332
Western #7g 349
Northern #1t 282
Central ZE=R 349
Northeastern 31t 200
Total 4251 1,828

28 (19) 9 239
156 (65) 91 1,103
96 (32) 64 650
280 (116) 164 1,992
58 (16) 42 358
57 (27) 30 362
34 (23) 11 360
39 (21) 18 300
53 (14) 39 388
39 (15) 24 224
280 (116) 164 1,992

(1) Criteria for defining city tiers has been revised to keep our classification up to date.

In FY2015, a net of 164 (FY2014: 188) POS were opened, with 280 POS
(FY2014: 284) opened and 116 POS (FY2014: 96) closed. We saw a higher
proportion of net POS openings in Tier Il cities in FY2015 under the new
city tier definition, as these cities are undergoing different transformations
in their retail landscape, such as the opening of new shopping malls,
providing ample opportunities for further penetration in these cities. In
FY2015, the increase in net openings of POS in the Eastern and Central
regions led the rest of the country, while the Western region was least
aggressive.

As at 31 March 2015, our POS network has expanded to cover 484 (31
March 2014: 467) out of over 700 cities across the country. While we
continue to extend our footprint to cover more cities with adequate
affordability and demand for jewellery pieces, we would seek to open
more POS in underdeveloped cities that we have covered. To capture the
fast growing Tier Il and other cities, we would take a flexible approach to
our rollout plan to adapt to the differences in these local cities. In the
coming year, we intend to further utilise the franchise model to leverage
on our franchisees’ local knowledge and premises, particularly in Tier Il
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and other cities. In the long run, we are also optimistic about the growth
potential in Tier | and Il cities. To cater for escalating customer
expectations, we target to upgrade around 10% of our POS to “high-end
luxury” and “elegance” style in the coming three years. These stores are
mostly located in Tier | and Il cities, and our luxury diamond brand Hearts
On Fire, would be brought to some of these stores for customers who
strive for exceptional excellence.

— BRI EIE RIS LEERE - ﬁi%ﬁ?iﬁﬁ
RAMEBE  KR=F  HZMNEEZEHEH10%Z
BRAZEE| R [5HE]BE - L%?%%ﬁﬁ*m’ﬁ
VUREFHERSN —RE_&HE™ - BHREHSGS
SIARFINEEE L TR Hearts On Fire » AR FIR{H
& FRNEEKRE -

D Hearts On Fire

We have acquired Hearts On Fire, a luxury branded diamond company
offering premium bridal and fashion jewellery products, on 31 August
2014.

Hearts On Fire's products will be sold through standalone stores and our
existing distribution network in Mainland China via “shop-in-shop” and
"“counter-in-shop” strategies.

Standalone stores will serve as the most comprehensive brand builder with
complete product selection and experienced sales professionals who solidly
present the prestige brand image in the newly entered Mainland China
market, while shop-in-shop and counter-in-shop will broaden the reach to
customers through our existing extensive retail network.

Up to 31 March 2015, we have opened 2 standalone stores in Mainland
China, located in Shanghai and Nanjing, signifying the first step for
Hearts On Fire in entering the Mainland China market.

HEARTS ON FIRE

T &

.y

.h.-.."""'_....j

L w‘t’u

6 Hearts On Fire stores, which mainly located shopping malls, are
already in pipeline and prepare to launch in FY2016.

D Hearts On Fire

IR 20148 A 31 HEA—RIHE = inliE 5 LA
M PR 2 o A 2B 25 R $E B2 B Hearts On Fire ©

Hearts On Fire EmiBBEE /& &I FIFR B A
MEMNDHEBEE - ATERIE] R[IEREE] 2K
WS 85 & ©

FEEARTEENTEA TS EELZE\EE']DDHQE
AR EATENERERNKCREENIHE

B ABEREENREFER ﬁﬁJEEP)EfDEWE?
ERITE AR AN EZ T EEBEATIR

HZE201543 8318 ' FMERFREABE LG R
BERMR2MEELE 2 Hearts On Fire EEFE K
HTTHRIE—2 ©
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Mainland China — Watch business

While the underlying demand for high-end luxury watches remained weak
throughout the year, we recorded an increase in revenue in FY2015 mainly
contributed by the sales from new POS. In the coming year, we will step
up efforts to promote more affordable and entry-level luxury brands in this segment.

In FY2015, we closed a net of 5 watch POS (FY2014: net openings of 46
watch POS) in Mainland China. In light of the market dynamics in the
watch segment, while we may further consolidate our watch POS network
to improve operational efficiency, we strive to combine expertise and
technology to enhance our shopping experience.

For instance, in March 2015 we opened the first “TimeVallée” store in
Nanjing. Combining cutting-edge in-store innovations with the heritage and
expertise of 12 prestigious timepiece brands from different groups,
TimeVallée is a pioneering fine watch retail store that creates an unique
shopping experience for watch lovers to explore into the world of the fine
watchmaking. We believe that this new concept store would help us to
cope with the needs of the increasingly sophisticated and well-educated
Chinese customers.
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Hong Kong, Macau and other markets

Signaled by a continued decline in tourist spending on luxury goods and
weak consumer sentiment, our Hong Kong and Macau markets are
experiencing structural as well as cyclical shifts.

Since the implementation of the Individual Visit Scheme in 2003, we see a
growing trend of Mainland tourists coming from Tier Il or other lower tier
cities. This phenomenon, along with the slowdown in the pace of growth
in arrival numbers due to the rise of alternative travel destinations in recent
years, has changed the overall spending pattern of Mainland tourists,
resulting in a continued decline in the sales of luxury goods. Apart from the
fundamental shift, recently we see a loss of growth momentum in the
luxury market, after years of high growth. Nevertheless, we believe that
Hong Kong and Macau will remain popular destinations for Mainland
tourists in the long run, recognised by the unique shopping atmosphere
with a Chinese heritage, more diverse product offerings and a consumer
tax-free environment. The Individual Visit Scheme currently covers 49 cites
only, and our extensive POS network in Hong Kong and Macau enables us
to capitalise on the influx of Mainland tourists in the coming years.

As at 31 March A3 A 31 H

Addition

&g BFRHEMTHS

BEHECRNBEERETRE  MELEBENRE
BRBRLRMTS EREEBIE BRI -

B 2003 FEATIE AR BIASK - JRE — e H A
EORBATH AR B B A - I A FRANE
fhAREE B B LR - R B IR AR - Bt
ENBREHEBRATAMNE SRELRNHEER
BT RIRAMEES EEATERBEFNS
BREBAMAEERE N - BEWI - BHPEEE
RAEGHTERESRNBEEYRR E2TNERE
BIOSBHEBERNED  REMSHELRMANDIA
WEF AP E R o EAER S B ATEE Z 49 [EW
W RMEREEMERREZTEMMAE - eHIE
BARREFRE R E IR B -

During FY2015
2015 BIEE
Reduction Net

320 V8 IR

Hong Kong, Macau and other markets

58 R REMTS

Hong Kong & 86
Macau 29 16
Taiwan & /& 8
Other markets H {5 2
Total #85t 112

12 (5) 7 93
4 (1) 3 19
8 - 8 16
3 = 3 5

27 (6) 21 133
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To cope with the new market conditions, we will emphasise on more
affordable gem-set jewellery in the coming year. We would pursue to
consolidate our POS number and gross floor area in prime districts, aiming
to achieve greater operational efficiency in Hong Kong and Macau.

In FY2015, we expanded our footprint to overseas markets and opened a
store in Jeju Island, South Korea, in collaboration with the Shilla Jeju Duty
Free Shop. We take a pragmatic approach to our long-term rollout strategy
in the overseas markets, aiming to cover more popular destinations abroad
for Mainland tourists. In the coming year, we would continue to explore
the possibilities to work with partners with strong local knowledge and
network in South Korea and other popular destinations to Mainland
tourists.

In May 2015, we have opened our first Hearts On Fire POS in Tsim Sha
Tsui, Hong Kong. 4 Hearts On Fire POS already in pipeline and is planning
to launch in FY2016.

E-commerce and Omni-channel initiatives

For the year ended 31 March &Z 3 A 31 HILFE

E-commerce RSV as a % of total RSV
BFABEEEGERTEER L
Annual growth in e-commerce RSV
BT HHEEEFSE

Average daily traffic in unique visitors (Chow Tai Fook eShop, Tmall.com and JD.com)

FHBRRAEE — FEFH T (AABREEHEEE REERR)

As at 31 March A 3 B 31 H

Number of followers (Official Sina Weibo, Tencent Weibo and WeChat accounts)

B ABGIRME - BARMERMERETIRP)
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Despite the shrinkage in our overall revenue in FY2015, our e-commerce
business maintained its growth momentum generated from past years.
Chow Tai Fook was continuously ranked the “Best Selling Jewellery
Brand” on Tmall.com and was constantly ranked among the top five in the
Baidu search rankings for luxury products. According to L2's Digital 1Q
Index, in 2014 Chow Tai Fook was ranked as “genius” and first in digital
competence in Mainland China among local and international luxury brands,
while Hearts On Fire was ranked as “gifted” and thirteenth in digital
competence among global watch and jewellery brands.

The rise of e-commerce and mobile presence has made status quo not an
option, so we recently started a “Smart+" initiative to integrate the
interface of our distribution channels and client facing windows, such as
customer relationship management and marketing campaigns, with the
Internet and a broader application of innovative tools in providing
customers a seamless shopping experience. While we believe that the
core of our business has never been changed, this initiative intends to
explore ways to extract online-to-offline (“O20") synergy and to help us
stay connected with our customers, especially the younger generations, in
interactive and innovative ways.

BE20 R EENEREEERARE  HETEEE
BEEBELENG HREER - AXREEMYIX
HIRGHERERE YRENNEEESEEER
HAABPMS 25 - BIBL2EBEEIEL 20144
BB B Ak 80 BUS 5t 55 0 1 A K B S8 8K 2k
BEREFET A KA 5858 » M Hearts On Fire
WEIEHTF WAL HERRE R R A AXE | -
HHNE+ =N -

BEFEEMEEREANERS KM RIEM
At B AP RED [Smart+ | 518 - EREBMEEEZ
EAAFNITA BARMNSERELTFFES W
EFHEREEEMBEHERE  ARPRHEBENE
B BMRE ERMEAENESZOERLE -
FETEEERRIWBEEE LE T (1020)) HRIEZEE
MAR - LESREFHAANATE(LERFE—R)
RIEFEE o

Application of iBeacon technology at store level

P9 JE FE FiBeacon®t fif

Aiming to leverage our retail network to drive sales and mobile
presence, in 2015 Chinese New Year we partnered with WeChat and
became the first jewellery retailer to engage in iBeacon-based proximity
marketing activities through the overwhelming popular “Shaking”
feature in WeChat. iBeacon sensors, transmitting constant Bluetooth
signal to interact with the WeChat app in customers’ mobile devices,
were deployed in nearly 240 POS in Tier | cities and the nearby
advertisement locations. Customers were invited to turn on their
smartphones’ Bluetooth function, open the WeChat app and “shake”
their smartphones to receive coupons and enter a lucky draw for
featured gifts. The result was encouraging, as customers were willing
to engage in the campaign, and we recorded an above average coupon
conversion rate of over 50%.
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Maijor Risks & Challenges and Key Strategies — Short to Medium term
TERRRIEHEBRRE — EERH
€l

[=][=] Major Risks & Challenges Key Strategies

BAE R B

D) ETETABRRKSE

Challenging economic conditions and
uncertainty — Our sales and growth
opportunities could be hindered by weak
market sentiment and consumer confidence.
While an excessive number of POS could
have a negative impact on our profitability,
any failure to identify and capture
opportunities for new profit-making POS
would hinder our growth and market share

Rise of e-commerce and new channels
— The walls between physical stores and
e-commerce platforms are blurring,
pressuring us to explore innovations in our
extensive physical POS network

Competition in the jewellery business
— We face strong competition from
national and local competitors in jewellery
and watch industry.

Control over franchisees — Our franchisees
may take actions that are not in our best

interests, therefore harming our business
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¢ Retail network expansion and consolidation

POS opening decisions are backed by comprehensive analysis at
both macro and micro levels

Monitoring closely the productivity of new POS, including their
ramp-ups, profitability, break-even points, and payback periods
Closing of non-performing stores to keep our POS portfolio
optimised

In Mainland China, we would leverage more on franchisee's
knowledge and premises to penetrate into lower tier cities and
expand our geographical footprint

In Hong Kong and Macau, we would consolidate our POS network
to improve operational efficiency

Strengthening the relationships with leading retail enterprises to
leverage the resources of both sides in customer base, marketing
activities, channels, etc. for growth opportunities

e Promoting e-commerce and omni-channel retailing

Staying connected with our younger customers through
e-commerce platforms, offering themed youth line products with
some exclusive online items

Exploring possibilities to integrate multiple physical and online
channels to offer seamless shopping experience

Promoting the use of innovative tools and devices in enhancing
operational efficiency, understanding of customers’ preference
and shopping experience to facilitate business growth and
sustainable development

e Solidifying our leadership position — Riding on our long-standing
presence in the region, our extensive POS network, our iconic and
trusted brand, and our commitment to delivering a broad range of high
quality products

e Strengthening the selection and monitoring of franchisees —
Selecting franchisees carefully, establishing strong working
relationship with the right franchisees to unleash mutual benefit, and
taking necessary steps, such as the POS audit programmme, to monitor
our franchised POS
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- EEERANLARRERABENE TRETEHRMNER
RYERLBHERRTHELR

. EESENE — SHRMEERNEHEE RANZELBGE  Tan
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Products

Em
AVAVA
/4
—

PRODUCTS Em

Overview # &

Description
ELEeL]

Our
Predominant
Focus in
FY2016

2016 BB
EETES

BEE

EREN R E

Our Product Offerings FRIFIME RiB2

W

Gem-set Jewellery

RERBRE

Diamond &
gemstone jewellery

BOREOEM

Diamond represents
80% of the sales in
this category

BOEZERIHERE
2.80%

Bridal collections
IR AT
Mass luxury range

ERKE RS

Fashion-oriented
ornaments

SIOES I EN]

@

Gold Products
EEEM

Mainly designed for
events and festivals
pEEhE

Sold by weight
NESFHHE

Optimising product
offerings

BlEMER

Tighter control over
distribution process
to achieve higher
efficiency

hns& iz il o> 5 1A AR LA
BERE MK
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O

Platinum/Karat Gold Products

#He  KEER

Karat gold, platinum,
silver products

and selected gold
products

K& - e -« iREM
M EBETEMR

More exclusivity &
design elements

BB RE AR
TLE

Fashion accessories
in the youth line
segment
FEEmD AHIRF
i) B &ff

m
&
-
Watches
B iR

Mainly mid to
high-end luxury
brands
FERTEWMEBE
on

Focus on more
affordable and entry-
level luxury brands

INERAERA
FIARRI 2 B iR



Gem-set jewellery BkEE i B &

High-end luxury
BEZARJT

aﬁa?!m'l’.ﬁs
,Wi»

Hearts On Fire

?“$ .'s-i.;

“Reflections of Siem”

“Aerial” Collections Collections
Hearts On Fire [ 24y o BEBZ AR |
[Aerial ] &5l £
Mass luxury
e ERT - )
W iﬂ:-: T ..-:’“-
4-; iq’ . g%
r  —
o &
> -
Hearts On Fire “Lorelei” Collections “Bridal Collection”
Hearts On Fire[ Lorelei | &%l SERIEBRRT
7
-.r. L .
o ;;' J T q‘; [ e
¥» ) Ry
“Little Appreciation” Collections FOREVERMARK
NS -2 “Magic Square” Collections
FOREVERMARK
[Magic Square J\ ]2 % | 2271
Youth line
FRAY
‘ ) R
i Y |y
- - & BN 3 F
U IR,
“CTF x LMH" “Hello Kitty”
Collection Collection
[EAARTEx LMH] [Hello Kitty |
EY T £l

Introduction of Hearts On Fire
products to broaden our product
offerings and lift our brand equity

3| A Hearts On Fire EmAHEE @A
A RIEARMORIEEE

Continual effort in bridal market
BEB B RIBETIS

Enrichment of the selection of
collections with more trendy and
affordable fashion jewellery

AB )& 3 R AB AR AR E H) R ]
KRELEEMRY

Collaboration with overseas
celebrities and multinationals for
exclusive collections

SBR R EEIN AR BB @SS 1E

FEK&E2015F F ik
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Products
Em
AVAVA

X

D Hearts On Fire

Hearts On Fire's diamond jewellery can be assorted to three categories:
A) Bridal — comprised of its loose diamond sales and complete
diamond engagement rings, representing around 50.0% of Hearts
On Fire sales;

Classic — diamond jewellery designed for a broad range of gifts and
occasions which captures the timeless appeal of diamond,
representing around 40.0% of Hearts On Fire sales; and

Designer Fashion (include Aerial, Atlantico, Copley, llla and Lorelei
collections) — jewellery designs and collections which reflect
current fashion trends and the inspiration of Hearts On Fire's
Director of Design from ltaly, representing around 10.0% of Hearts
On Fire sales.

P %

L W “llla” Collection ring
1 A B 3REHE —
N A [illa) R 517

Liens g

"~ _.L.-r""“" ~ L.'l_'-‘:-!'

“Lorelei” Collection collar

B8 pRETSE —
[Lorelei| Z % 188K

Approximately 63.2% of Hearts On Fire's jewellery sales in FY2015 were
priced between US$1,000 and US$10,000, with most of the remaining
sales priced above US$10,000.
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D Hearts On Fire

Hearts On Fire (U A IRE 1] 0 A =48

A)  BE— BREABERELNDEREAEN
#J1f Hearts On Fire 355 888950.0% :

B) &8 — ARMBERMSAMRTHERIK
T RBEAOMKERE - 415 Hearts On
Fire $HE 8/ 40.0% : &

C) B & (& # Aerial ~ Atlantico * Copley

llla % Lorelei Z51|) — fBRE AR i 8 2 #O TR

BT &Y - ERH B Hearts On Fire ZE K
R &% 5t 2B+ 494 Hearts On Fire S5 & 5 1Y
10.0% °

“Aerial” Collection ring
iR —
[Aerial ] RHIAIE

201581 Bt €6 [E * Hearts On Fire £763.2% B 3k = £
EEENF1,00027TE 10,0005 7T HAHEETE
BAEP#RB 10,0003 TT °



Gold Products E£E &

Uniqueness in Craftsmanship & Design ¥8§— % — g T 2482

Ornaments & Accessories

E-OYST

Traditional &
Contemporary Products

Charming Gold
BHES

B0 K B 14 7

Maijor Risks & Challenges and Key Strategies — Short to Medium term
TERBREEERRERYE — 2P

[s][x] Major Risks & Challenges
D EEEBRKE

Evolving customer preference — Our market
share could be affected if we are unable to
respond effectively to changes in market trends
and consumption patterns; for instance, we are
unclear of the impact of fluctuation in gold price
on our sales, as gold price may not have a strong
or direct correlation with consumers’ demand or
with our sales and profitability

Escalating customer expectations for luxury
brands — Customers are becoming more
sophisticated and well informed, we have to
refine our approach to contend with their
increasing interest in exclusive luxury
experiences, in both product and service aspects

BEEFES — WRMATEANEYMISEBE M
ERANE L BRANHHNEBZZE - fln
BRREFRECBRBERMEENZE  REAR
SERVEABERRARMNEERBINENEE
VI BB R

BEHECRENANTEHAS — BETNEHA
REHE  HAMAVCE DR B H 8 2RI UM
RiMEEBE SRR H @R R

@lﬂ 4 Key Strategies

B 8 R

Staying customer-oriented and market-driven in our
product strategy

- Responding quickly to market changes and consumer
demand with a wide range of products

- Enhancing our ability to understand consumers’ preferences
on products through the use of technology tools, such as
RFID-enabled devices

Enhancing product portfolio through differentiation —
Taking initiatives to adapt to new customer expectations and to
acquire new customers, including the acquisition of the luxury
diamond brand Hearts On Fire, the establishment of
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Creative Centre, and bringing in more
fashion-focused products and designer collaborations

REUEEIERTBBDHER R

- BHREZESEA BREHTSE(RESAETES

- EREARGIEDENRESHHIL BARBREBEY
ERMEL

EB=RLCEREEERMAS — ROEEREBENHERESH
BE  SEKEEEEAMM Hearts On Fire * RIYFAKRRBKEAIE
FRD A R HE T B 2 B e v S B R % R TR S 1

FEK&E2015F F ik
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.u.
EEX0

EPNL

BRANDING AND MARKETING

Overview

Our success depends significantly on our strong brand perception across
all regions, and our ability to adapt to customers’ changing demand for
jewellery and consumption habits in Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau
and other markets.

Aiming to maximise our brand exposure and recognition through the
delivery of coordinated and consistent brand messaging to our customers,
our branding efforts could be divided into the following components:

mE R SR

BB

BN ERR BRI REN AR AR
HFIRES LA h B A BB [ N 5 8 P8
KEEHNFRIOEEBENEE o

RBBRATFEERHE - HOREEEARARER
TREBRAERAEE  HANREELITIEN DA
AT #B D

Conventional Customer Relationship  In-store Merchandise Public Relations
& Digital Marketing Management Display & Support & Events
ERRBIETISER EFBEFREE JEH R A mR Y B NHBERRED

BENE [RN AR m

e Increasing brand awareness e Chow Tai Fook e Design of our in-store retail e Managing the way we

that stimulates interest in Membership Programme display

our product range

FRF om bR 58 A B 3 AP
An A £

e Coverage and display

advertisements in traditional
and online social media

E"%ﬁﬁ&%tﬁxﬁ%ﬁgﬂ’]#&
BRES

e Steady increase in
the members’ repeat
purchase ratio

SERHELRRELR

e Sales-driven events covering
our POS and partnership
networks
B IH & B9 BB = T8
TEHREIERHRR
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communicate with

FAE® it 8l BT E RS B2 PUBTE, AT

create publicity and

e Managing merchandise maintain a strong

relationship with

EIR R SR public

EEHEARNR
//\ij_t EE*%&
ENRIRES RIFRIE

e Enhancing brand
image through annual
jewellery auctions and
other special events

BRFEREHER
HARIRBENIRE S M
[EHIZZ



Marketing

Some highlights of our marketing campaigns in FY2015 included:

Bridal Campaigns

The wedding jewellery market continued to be an important pillar of our
retail business. We strive to seize this valuable business opportunity by
strengthening our marketing efforts to support the “Bridal Collection”, one
of our signature collections after years of promotional efforts.

For instance, following its success last year, a viral marketing campaign to
film video clips of marriage proposals was launched, aiming to promote
wedding proposal culture in Mainland China and Hong Kong. The “Wedding
Club” was launched in the Hong Kong and Macau market to provide useful
information and organise themed workshops to attract potential
customers.

We also set foot in wedding expo across the nation, offering distinctive
shopping experiences to our customers in a warm and romantic
atmosphere.

Collaboration with China Pavilion at Expo Milano 2015

We are honored to be invited as the official global partner of the China
Pavilion at Expo Milano 2015, demonstrating our position in China with a
vision to shine in the global frontiers. Following our success at Shanghai
World Expo 2010 at which we launched the popular mascot “Peng Peng”
for the Australia Pavilion, we are once again showcasing our internationally
acclaimed jewellery design and craftsmanship in the World Expo.

i Es HENEEEeEE
Tiemled, Bt W 6 4 i T 5

INNS, St 4
' T 1 4

w

e i

Chiiia 8 L LECha L TR L

[iEtid

2015 R FEETHISHE TSR RE

rf i
1B E
EEHETE - ERRMNTELBOEBI L - B

BAORBILEERE - IRTISHERE TIEN LS
FEESNITENEREERZ — [TREBERT] -

|
L]

Blgn - & EFERKINE  BRMOBELESEDNTS
HEES  BREEREBEER  HETBRRLEE
HISKEE AL » IR R T I5H# L [Wedding Club]
REEREARER B TIENARSIBERP -

BRm2EzENESHES
REEXBHNBYRSR -

CEBEEELABEREDN

2015 Kt EEhEESE

BMRFEERE R 20156 FAEEEGHREENEIRAIE
B PBRAKXRLETE, ABEABRR(RY - &
iE)\Zy‘EF'EJ%%ﬁi‘?\ o WERBEIAIE #2010 F LG R
BESARMNRRESTHY (B HXEER 8K
Eﬁﬁ@m(%%&%%f&uﬁﬂlﬁ o
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On 15 June 2015, Chow Tai Fook will hold a brand day “Tribute to Beauty
of Life” in the China Pavilion at Expo Milano, aiming to praise the pavilion's
core concepts of “Heaven, Earth, Humans and Harmony"” through art
jewellery and to pay tribute to nature. Audience from all around the world
would enjoy this grand banquet of art jewellery in nature, unleashing the
new jewellery fashion of “Designed in China ¢ Made in China"”. Throughout
the World Expo period, we would ride on our extensive sales network and
introduce commemorative tickets and a series of special edition pieces,
including commemorative pins, badges, and other accessories in precious
metal, through our stores and e-commerce platforms. Through a series of
promotional activities, we target to raise awareness and draw public
attention to this global fiesta.

Rio Tinto fashion jewellery — “Chow Tai Fook Sunshine”

Collection

To explore the diamond fashion jewellery market in Greater China, we
joined hands with our strategic partner Rio Tinto Group and unveiled the
“Nature’s Glow"” diamond tiara and the “Chow Tai Fook Sunshine”
Collection in a product launch at Beijing in September 2014.

Marrying rare Argyle diamonds, spectacular design by Chow Tai Fook and
Ms. Su Mang, CEO of Trends Group, and Ms. Su’s spirit of self-affirmation
as a modern lady, “Nature's Glow" features an opulent centerpiece
inspired by the sun totem praised by indigenous Australians. Hand-picked
Argyle diamonds are merged with exceptional craftsmanship to create a
soft but stunning ombré effect, capturing the halos of the sun. Surrounding
the sun totem are magnificent diamond feathers to recall the prestige of
noble women and the pristine beauty of Argyle. Also inspired by the sun
totem, the “Chow Tai Fook Sunshine” Collection was launched in the
venue, offering elegant and stylish pendants and earrings to light up the
dreams and passion of women. All diamonds used in the collection — the
first collection that provides diamond traceability certificate issued by
Chow Tai Fook and Rio Tinto Group — are sourced from the world-famous
Argyle mine. Versatile and enchanting, the Chow Tai Fook Sunshine
Collection is sought after by fashion and style icons.

201566 A15H + ARBHN KB EREERERT
(e Az MEEHA  BEBIMKEREFEH
FEZLESTR - A Fll AKEARBE - 2k
WtEE R —RAMERETFENKE RARMHKEE
S R PERGT e PEIRE | BREFREM  HIE
BRIABRANEEMAE RS SHEERENE
FaErdEELRERMIEERESBLSE m
Z ENTEL URITHEBNEERRENEEE A
g kP REEARES  R3|EZ ABEER2H
EEBR RS -

HEREKRE — [BAREAX] R

REAATE R EN TS - R ERERBH
NAEER2014FIAELERBITNEREME LI
R [ Kz | RBRTE R [AXERX] R -

FRMMEREL  AAREERHERERFTL

THENDYRABARLTERRERZEARBEN
BrElsa  [Rizx] R 0EIURMNRERMS

MEORGER - BB OBENMNZABOFRMA
BRARNTHEEAZINMEENBOTESY  ME
BPHRRAGERTHNEE LR - KEZ L B
REREEEHOPELE  WET AMUERBL
SEBEENREAMHEMNERBONRRLE - BT
BARIG R RATER - RS EHEE [EAE
BYe] B2 - R BB BRI N B EMEREREIIR
B ERELNERETERELEER - ZRIIMA
BAUHBEZEERNWMERER  REFARAAER
NIREEHANBLPRES 2BERT) - BEEED
AR ET . BARBXRIAZERERITER
B
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“Reflections of Siem” Jewellery Auction

In April 2015, we held an auction dinner for our annual High Jewellery
Collection "“Reflections of Siem"” after series of exclusive previews
throughout the year, revealing the stunningly beautiful jewellery pieces to
entranced Chow Tai Fook guests and members. This collection was
inspired by the storied and historical nation of Cambodia, celebrating the
country's natural beauty, unique culture and storied history with 14 sets of
impeccable jewellery pieces.

Recalling the breathtaking sunrise, clouds and fog, rain, rivers, banyan
trees and terraced fields in Cambodia, the masterpieces lead viewers into
a journey where one will be amazed by the profound and rich Khmer
culture, the beautiful scenery by the Mekong River, the exotic floating
villages on the Tonlé Sap Lake and the magnificent architecture of Ta
Prohm temple. The Reflections of Siem collection showcases our fine
gemstone selection and artistry in high jewellery, as well as our mastery of
craftsmanship. Only around 300 selected high-tier members and guests
were invited to join this annual highlight where the 14 sets of jewellery
masterpieces were showcased.

In Celebration of Chow Tai Fook’s 85th Anniversary

To illuminate Chow Tai Fook's 85 years of glory, we launched an
unprecedented collaboration with four world industry leaders in the world
of jewellery, including Platinum Guild International, World Gold Council,
FOREVERMARK and Rio Tinto Group. We invited artists from different
fields to collaborate with jewellery experts from around the world to create
jewellery pieces under the themes of “Water”, “Earth”, “Man" and
“Light”, demonstrating the vigour of the jewellery industry.

[EXy e BEBEIR | IREHE

BN FEREIRE R [BAL o HEHM | RFEAE
T—RILAEES  RAHENEAAEREEREER
TEBEGBNREEM  HEN2016F4 ARTHE
BRE - W BERERIBZTUESAERBILNEE
KE RABRREBEAETELORBE  BEE
B IR - EHARREZBRORAZRRAEIE -

TEARMBHREOERRENER  EF W& 7
R BESPHARE RERKBER  HHS
FEEEEEREE  EATHAERRESR 1
AEEPOSWENZRZBENRMRRE - ARE
GEERTAMELFTHREEZE  SEAMEEN
BB ERBAT - [BALe BN | RIIRER
FAARBREEMBN S mAERTNECEENEX
ITHRETE - EAL300UEERHRGERTER
BEFELFERERMEE14EREHRE -

[ K& 85 B F E it

REZARBSFHERESL  RAAEERKEMA
BRKETERHERBESHE ERAESHE X
BERENBEEEE  BESAEMRXERRIKE
BREFATEIKR] -] TAI R AEKRE
B REKEENES -
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In November 2014, we staged our finale anniversary celebration with a
special High Jewellery show and exhibition at the China Art Museum in
Shanghai. At this gala night, we exhibited a multitude of signature
masterpieces that defined our strengths and achievements in world-class
design and craftsmanship. Apart from the masterpieces designed in
collaboration with four world industry leaders, we showcased our one-of-a-
kind for-auction items from the “Danseuse de Ballet”, "Ombre di Milano”,
and “Reflections of Siem" collections and the necklace “Fire”, a
masterwork crafted specifically for the occasion by Hearts On Fire. It was
a gala night that drew luminaries from the worlds of jewellery, fashion,
business and media.

Co-operation with Korean Celebrities

During the year, we partnered with G-Dragon, a Korean superstar and
fashion icon and Lee Min Ho, a renowned Korean actor and style icon, and
launched exclusive jewellery collections for them. The “CTF X G-Dragon”
Collection, featuring jewellery pieces designed by G-Dragon himself,
includes jewellery pieces based on the idol’'s signature logo and tattoos.
The “CTF X Lee Min Ho" Collection, inspired by Lee's lucky number “7",
features 10K gold and diamond pieces that carry Lee's initials (L,M and H).
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20146 11 A » BMELEHFERMZTRIT T Rimik
BEXERRE  RATEHB LT —HTENHERE -
RNES L RMBRT REGE BRERMER
FIMIEREMERRE DMK o RO KBERT
¥AEMEERGTOBELN  HAITMB R T B — &=
K= 3RS [ Danseuse de Ballet] * [Ombre di Milano |
Ko [BHL o BEZEYLMR | 5 K5I LA I Hearts On Fire &2
REAFERBUITENARMAIER [ BB | (Fire) 1B
c RIVEBWMS|I THER - A ARAREERD
—REBALE -

HEFHBAGHE

F - B EEL R T R AR B G 4 5 8. (G-Dragon) F1& 4
MEBEERRNHBEEHRHREE BEBRKRER
5l o [ BKX# X G-Dragon ] Z%I|A G-Dragon 33 5 i 5T Y
KREEMATY - LRV BEUNBRIZFRMZ AR
ATEANKEEN - [ARXEXTHER] R EH - U
THEREEENHT (7] ARFTES DY RAEe
THBAFTHEFEIL MEH MIKESREER
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The tremendous attention on the ground-breaking cooperation was
transformed into widespread discussions on the social media and
overwhelming responses in our online as well as physical stores. Exclusive
fans meetings with the Korean superstars were arranged for selected
members and customers. The success of both collections signified our
penetration into a whole new group of young and fashion-conscious fans.

D Hearts On Fire

Hearts On Fire utilise a multi-channel brand building and marketing strategy
across all forms of media to promote its brand, as illustrated as below:

ERLERPINEEAZRT - MEH XEBNEZ

W ERMNEEREERERERR -

ERERRPLHHERAE RANERYRLES

ZERVMAY - 125
B A A R AREE o

—

a Hearts On Fire

Hearts On Fire TEFTA AR FLAZ R
BEREEEMME - FIRT ¢

SIS ER

BB AFT— fkiﬁ“‘}\&ﬂ

Bridal &
Fashion Print
1B K% B 1 Dl G

To generate increase of
unaided brand
awareness particularly
for millennial women,
and to create
meaningful and
authentic connection to
fashion and celebrity

R SR T8 2 G KR O AN
BE - LHSEHEL
A B R B AR
ERMAERMEE

Digital & Social
Media
HEMtEFa

To create social
awareness and
desirability for the
brand worldwide, and
engage with customers
where they want to
interact-online, mobile
platforms, or social
network

BRI ER RO &
HAEER3 S - B
BrEH BHTE
St MBS B SR

Public Relations
& Events
DHBENEE

To create consumer
awareness and
desirability for the
Hearts On Fire brand
world-wide. Focus on
editorial outreach for
product features and
celebrity/red carpet
opportunities

£ 2 Bk # 3 Hearts On
Fire MIEREEE RAE
kg3l h - ZEHEME
BERBEMAANBE
ERTAEE

Email Marketing
R

To drive traffic to Hearts
On Fire website at
www.heartsonfire.com.
Distinct lists to ensure
the right message is
delivered to the right
audience at the right
time and create personal
connection

#7) Hearts On Fire

Ak (BB
www.heartsonfire.com)
B0 2 o AR B[R B
HEE LM@%Z—EEE@E’]
B [ 15 IE R {3 Bk
FRENZER EEEI1
N

Local Retail
Support
ZEBXE

To ignite retailers
support in local
advertising

EXFF
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[ [ ]

Chow Tai Fook Membership Programme & XE2 8512

As at 31 March /A3 A 31 B 2014 2015
Mainland China = B A it

Number of members € S5 1,231,000 1,504,000
% of Diamond, Platinum and Gold members #Bh A h=E2EE % 10.5% 10.4%
% of Basic members EAZ 8 % 89.5% 89.6%
Number of Fans members

[Fans members | £t B 2,258,000 4,694,000
For the year ended 31 March % 3 B 31 HILFE 2014 2015
Members' repeat purchase as a % of RSV

SEREBLTEEZ% 23.4% 29.2%
As at 31 March A3 A 31 B 2014 2015
Hong Kong and Macau ;&# it &

Number of members & E 2 B 161,000 202,000
% of Diamond, Platinum and Gold members #&4 - A2 KBS €8 % 9.9% 6.6%
% of Pre members & & % 90.1% 93.4%

For the year ended 31 March &% 3 B 31 HILFE

Members' repeat purchase as a % of RSV
EEFHBLHTEBEZ% 17.5% 19.3%

Note: The percentages calculated are subject to minor rounding differences MHEE  Bo A AR AR AR

Membership Tiers € &4 5| A

Basic Member/

Diamond Platinum Gold Pre Member
i U= Hees =0EE EXgB kg8

Annual qualifying spending FEAEZKEERE

Hong Kong and Macau (HK$)

. e 1,000,000 ] , '
EERBMGET) 500,000 200,000 30,000
Mainland China (RMB) 500,000 150,000 60,000 10,000
R E R (A RE)
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BPEESR MRS B3 EEADRMEFRT
HBENBBETRLEN  UEATHES - HH

Through continuous efforts to strengthen our membership programme, we
aim to enhance our ability to understand consumers’ spending behavior
and preferences and gauge market trends. Our membership programme is ME B EIEREBRF B EE KRS B AER
crucial in maintaining our Same Store Sales by encouraging repeat BIEHEKFRBEEE - BEAMT REFHHEEMNL
purchases and attracting new customers. Over the past two years, we REEMERIETE LT T ERRBME A BARE
recorded steady increase in repeat purchases ratios, which was primarily BHHER B ELHHNRBEHSE -

attributable to our effective strategies and efforts in interacting with

existing members as well as in acquiring new members.

Customers are entitled to join different tiers of the membership BEREHESBAMNTAERLATRALNE 8]
programme upon making qualified spending. Members can enjoy benefits gl-BEEeENZRAEHEKR /\ETIJUE/%/E%U#Tg
such as cash coupons and lifestyle events. Members in the highest-tier are B wfime i&%lﬁﬁﬁﬁ@%@ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁ %
invited to exclusive events such as jewellery auctions and luxurious BREG RFEJINREE o RE - H A T&F&
overseas trips. In the coming year, we will continue to promote and g EEtEl - IREHIERD ﬂﬁg}im%%,ﬁg o

strengthen our membership programme, aiming to capture the full sales
potential of our returning customers.

Maijor Risks & Challenges and Key Strategies — Short to Medium term
TEERRKSEBERE — EETH

[m][m] Major Risks & Challenges @l I Key Strategies

W) TEEBRRKE BAGREEE
e Managing our brand and customer loyalty — e Maintaining the perception of our brand and our membership
The strength of our brand, one of our most programme

important assets, is based on our reputation for
providing high quality products and excellent
customer services. Our sales and growth largely
generated from our customer loyalty would be - Encouraging repeat purchases by enhancing shopping and
affected if we fail to protect our brand lifestyle experience for members; for high-tier members,
providing customised products, services and access to special
events to maintain exclusivity

- Creating consistency in our brand perception across all
communication channels and all markets

¢ Infringement and unauthorised use of our
intellectual property — Our trade name and

related trademarks are critical to our success
and competitive advantage, yet they are
subject to infringement by other parties from
time to time. Any unauthorised use of our
intellectual property in counterfeit products
could harm our image and reputation

e Effectiveness of our branding and marketing
activities — Targeting the correct segment of
customers at the right time and place through
our marketing activities to create brand
awareness for us remains a challenge

e MEREFABEER — Mm@ ERM&E
REEZ— mBENRRREMRRELER
REFEPRBOBE - MERFAARERERE -
BEPRHETRNEE LIRR BT E

e ERERAKREFAEMOAIDERE — HANE
XA MRS RN REFESEH
B2 ETRSEEAM T RIE o EARSEENRE
EmE A RERfnERREE

s MERWBERFHOXD — HRMMEF - N5
R RSB IS ERERS RS S EREE
YEMEETH e B D A kB it

Protecting our intellectual property — Determined to protect
our trade name, trademarks and other intellectual property rights
to the extent we are able to under relevant local law

Increasing our brand exposure efficiently

- Aiming to send clear brand messages to the correct segment
of customers at the right time and place through our
marketing activities in an efficient manner

- Optimising the mix of traditional advertising and digital
marketing activities to increase sales by stimulating interest in
our product range

ERRERAERE ST
- EREBARERAEMSAE - BRERA

- BRERASEBVRAEER XBEHE: HNSREE &
HEMCER  RELEF2NERES) - RELEEHH

REAMERE — RORBBRBUMI AR AR IR HBE AR ER
MERAMH « IR R E A ERE

BERBEARME fmEE R

- RREEEHRMHBERTIZERLTE RS ERTHAWEREW
B (S B

- BlESES AR EFEES  RAERMEMES B
femimAHE
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OPERATIONS eE

Inventory Ownership Unification R-—EERERE

We are optimising our inventory management mechanism, inventories are ﬁZfFﬁIEfEftT“E‘TIﬁ%%‘I R EEEFEE ﬂ#
dispatched to franchised POS upon the receipt of deposits at value CRAFTSEMBRETE  MEAMRE
equivalent to the prescribed inventory level. We retain inventory ownership E% BEEHZEZPTHHEER G AL W‘fé?
until sales transactions are completed with retail customers, upon which FHER R -

wholesale revenue is recognised at the prevailing price.

We aim to achieve the following objectives: BHMWE BT -

e Promptly addressing customers’ needs across the whole retail o FREGFLZ  FEERBRHMETHE K
network through inventory pooling, where inventory distribution Frm e B EHERENEPE XK
becomes more efficient and flexible

e Facilitating the development of omni-channel retailing and online-to- o EREAEBRNGFERAD T RRESRBTER
offline (“020") interactions through enhanced inventory mobilization GEFT(020) B8z 2% R

e Strengthening the stability of our retail network through better o BRES ““T)W%E%'%’T?W“T%ﬂh hns& ¥ 5 85
management of the price risk on gold inventories distributed to FTHAZEGINECFTEERRARERE  #F5
franchised POS, which will be hedged through our gold hedging EREENIEE
mechanism

This optimised inventory management mechanism is being implemented EBLFEEERGEDEERET  BMEMEME
by stages and we expect that all our franchisees would start to adopt the Pﬁﬂ—:BAZOWEﬁB(iTE%ﬁTEWA%FHEE&E B o
optimised mechanism by the end of FY2017. We believe the inventory BMRE —FEEBRITAE B S HIERE
ownership unification would impact our wholesale revenue by %@d‘ﬁfx’ﬂ OOO 0B EBITESL 000088 BT FE
approximately HK$4,000.0 million to HK$5,000.0 million in total during the HER BN 2015 T F R BT ERE -
transition period, which approximates the amount of inventories held by

our franchisees during FY2015.
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In the long run, while the inventory ownership unification would impact our
inventory balance and inventory turnover by approximately 10.0% to
12.0%, it would not have significant impact on our revenue, profitability
and working capital requirement. We consider that the optimised inventory
management mechanism will continue to support our sustained and steady
expansion of our retail network in the dynamic market environment.

Up to the end of FY2015, 67 POS were under the new mechanism, holding
inventories valued at HK$286.9 million, representing 0.7% of total
inventories of the group as at 31 March 2015.

ICS RFID-technology Deployment Project

With shrewd foresight of the importance of advanced technology in
supporting business growth and sustainable development, we continued
to invest in innovative technology and applications.

The Group's self-developed ICS RFID-technology Deployment Project
successfully integrates Radio-frequency identification (“RFID") and Internet
of Things (“loT") technologies with the Inventory Control System(”ICS")
that we developed for comprehensive application to the jewellery logistics
and retail chain through the use of smart devices that are also RFID-enabled
and loT-based, including RFID tag, Logistic Tray, mHand and Smart Tray.

The project covers three significant aspects of retailing, including logistics
management, inventory management, and sales operation. It enhances our
operational efficiency and work accuracy through enabling faster access to
timely inventory information and improving the stock-taking process.
Furthermore, it improves our service quality by promptly providing relevant
product information to customers, and collecting big data for developing
training programme for salespeople, business analysis and decision making.

In FY2015, we clinched four awards in the loT category for the project,
including the “Retail and Supply Chain Management Winner Award" in the
Asia Pacific ICT Alliance Awards, the Gold Awards in both “RFID
Implementation Excellence” and “RFID Application Innovation” categories
in the GS1 Hong Kong's Hong Kong Internet of Things Awards, “IOT
Application Excellence Award” in the regional competition IOT GD-HK
Awards Co-organised by Guangdong RFID Technology Services Center as
well as Guangdong Internet of Things Alliance and GS1 Hong Kong.

REMS  #AR-—FEEARSZERMNETES
B RFEEEREL10.0%£12.0% - BEHMHE
X BARENIREELESHFRUEERNTE - #M
R BEEEEERHITRARMANTERRES
HHTMISREDNARFERERER -

HZE2015 M MFEFR - RAFMEHIH 67 EZE AT
BIFER2869EBEE T HESBEMN201543 A31
AlFEEFEN0.7% °

ICS B4R S SR i IR FA1E B

RS FERNCERREREBRRERIFSERRD
B2 HERERMERRER -

SE BTN ICSERN BRI EMIERRNKE
BREEBAIEDBBRMTBERFEEH R4
(11CSY) - 75 {E FR B ARGT SRR 30 DA BG4 R e 2 8
RETSERE MR FREFBHANERERR
SERRRBLIEEANKED R LT ESE -

ZEERE=ARTEET  BEYRER BEFERE
AR SEE T - RIFVEMGRERMEAICS] - BRI
EEER RREERERTEREEE - 1o B
REAAR  RE/FPRHABBEREN  RBSR
BE R E TR EBEFRIET - ARWEREIE -
RIBENBIRI - BEDITRORE - IR

HAMIR 2015 B ERAEZIA B RENEY B AR
R BREAEMLEAMEBENRRR Y [TER
HERERERNRE] REEERRBIHERNEE
VR AREE [ 2 WEGH AR RASER | kA
BEGITERPIRNER] MESR  THEEREAHK
REIDEIREH L - EREVBHEBEARBTEER
REBERBLENRNEBYBRB B EEDRE
[SEYHAERE] -

AARiE2015FEHR 15 <
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RFID Tag Logistics Tray mHand Smart Tray
ERIHAER Yma& FRREFBER BREERR

Every product is attached with

a RFID tag. Using RFID smart
devices enables fast access to
product information, facilitating
sales promotion and improving
the accuracy and efficiency of
stock taking and management.

598 7 49 I 25 4 451 8 40
5 - (R IBSHAR LR B
REERER AL  BREE
HE R DA R 12 7 A AR 3 o TR
AR ©

The RFID logistics tray,
integrated with the ICS, is set
up in distribution centre and
POS. With a built-in RFID
sensor, the tray can read tens
of products at one time
efficiently and accurately.

ﬁﬁv‘?ﬁ“fﬁ%ﬁﬁ mEEE
ZFRE  RRRERLRE
E2h o HBANE BRHTIAER
7 BRAT AR Eﬁ@tﬁﬂffﬂ%&
+1¢Fuuﬁ’1ﬁﬂ

mHands quickly scan RFID tags
to carry out stock taking
quickly, easily and accurately.

FRREFRHUBTREARBHEE
ORISR EEEF R AR
77 {3 1 455 o

The RFID-enabled Smart Tray
serves as a sales assistant to
provide various information that
facilitates sales, from product
specifications, special features
and prices, exchange rate
conversion, to the list of stock
in other POS, and to collect
customers’ preference for big
data analysis.

EREKIARM 2 EREER

RERHENE  RHERR
% ERFEeRER  Exf

HitE URHEMTEHNE
FEEEREAYHENE

Al WWERHEBERHEA
EFRERBIEDN -

Logistic and Distribution Centre #)57% R & & A0

The distribution centre, situated in our Shunde production site, will manage
all our products manufactured in South China region on a consolidated
basis, and some of our distribution processes will be automated, to further
enhance our capacity and efficiency. System installation has substantially
completed in FY2015, upon which system tuning and test run of the centre
has commenced.

URFEIEENEETL ST EARBRFAREERMEENMAZEN - X
MORERFHEREBL - FERXENEBRE— R - FHAEKR
BN 2016 MFE K o M R# AR MERERE -
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Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Creative Centre

To foster creativity in our product design journey, we established the
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Creative Centre during the year. With the
presence of award-winning jewellery designers and experienced
craftsmen, the center aims to refine traditional craftsmanship and
technique in the design, sample-making and production processes with the
latest technological developments. A state-of-the-art facility was opened in
Shunde to serve as a platform where design concepts of all sorts emerge
for product innovation and beyond. Ideas from internal as well as external
design talents from diverse backgrounds are exchanged, encountered,
connected and tested in this production-capable facility, where product
samples could be made timely to facilitate the product creation process. To
engage our customers in the process, we plan to organise workshops with
different themes in the facility for selected members and jewellery
enthusiasts in the coming year. In the future, we are committed to
nurturing creativity and boosting innovative power of our staff to reinforce
our corporate values of “Sincerity ® Eternity”.

RRBEHRERIZH DO

AEEMRREERME  RARFAKIZEARE
REEIZHR D - P OEAERNIKE R RER
TIr - §EEBSHRMEEERR T2 REM -
BAREMER A ERIE - BIAINIRIEFRREETIEY
AERUNERANLBEORESRETE - K

BTRABESNRFAAI IR AT BERREEEE
WEARZR BT BA R ZEEEMTAR

REELERER  REEREFER - REFFP2
sz R BRI ERKERZELRFFES BRI
BENERLZBIENTIED » K& - HABE
BEETIMRIENRBEEIWAH ) - 2ERMIAE
oo KB HREEE -

FEK&E2015F F ik
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Procurement and Diamond cutting & polishing

For the year ended 31 March Z 3 A 31 HILFE

@;{2@

s

REBEE R B R T B

2014

2015

Diamond cut and polished (in carat) A IE| MITE (LARAET)

As at 31 March A3 A 31 H

Number of employees in diamond cutting and polishing factories

BARLE RITEEME S T AH

As at 31 March 2015, we had four diamond cutting and polishing sites.
One of the sites is located in Shunde, Mainland China, two are located in
South Africa, and the fourth one is located in Botswana.

These diamond processing capabilities and our well-established
relationships with De Beers, Rio Tinto Group and ALROSA allow us to
make selection ahead of other peers from the available stock from a
number of suppliers, and ensure a supply of quality products that are
suitable for the market.
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Jewellery Production KELEE

In house/outsourced production mix of products sold — Jewellery products
BERBLEE MLEERES — KEER

FY2015
20158 BFE

FY2014
20148 BUF

RSV volume RSV
HE TEE
In-house production
P = =
Outsourced production -
S = =
Note: The percentages calculated are subject to minor rounding differences Mt : BN B RARARIER
In house/outsourced production mix of products sold — Gem-set jewellery
BERABEE MNALEERAS — KEEREH
FY2014 FY2015
0148 BFE 20158 B EE
RSV volume RSV
1hiHE HEEE
In-house production
P = =
Outsourced production -
ShIERE = u
Note: The percentages calculated are subject to minor rounding differences B : B EA R ARIER
As at 31 March 74 3 A 31 H 2014 2015
Number of R&D team members #13% E Bk 8 & B 670 790
Number of employees in jewellery factories Tk & Hi# B 5,600 5,800

s R B H 2 A TR

Our diverse product offering is conceived by our strong R&D professionals,
who work closely with our production management and sales management
departments to ensure that the product design direction is well aligned
with market needs. Our production sites in Hong Kong and Shenzhen
mainly produce gem-set jewellery, our sites in Shunde mainly produce
gem-set jewellery, gold and platinum/karat gold products while our sites in
Wuhan mainly produce gold products.

BESBHER - %
ZALREEERBPIRKETRBPIB DA - B
RERBEH T ARTEEE 3 - RITAES LAY
MEEEEBEERRRREN - RPRIEEHE
EEMIBAERERHEN B2 REE KEE
8 MRMAERR KN EEE Y EBLERSER -
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Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Park — Wuhan

The Jewellery Park, situated in China's transportation hub of Wuhan,
Hubei, will serve as a multi-functional, integrated platform combining
jewellery production, logistics and distribution, e-commerce, sales
exhibition and tourism, training and jewellery business support. The
Jewellery Park will further leverage our strategic strengths in vertical
integration and enhance the capacity and efficiency of our supply chain.
Phase One development of gross floor area of approximately 436,000
square metres on a land parcel of approximately 221,000 square metres
started in October 2013. The construction work is progressing well, of
which eight buildings were completed in FY2015 (Gross floor area of
approximately 176,000 square metres). Production operation had
commenced progressively since September 2014, with an expected annual
production of approximately 1.8 million jewellery pieces for FY2016
(FY2015: Approximately 0.7 million jewellery pieces produced). Another
land parcel of approximately 165,000 square metres was secured in
October 2014, upon which planning for Phase Two development would
commence.

Investments in the Jewellery Park for which specific plans have been
made amount to approximately HK$2.6 billion mainly for Phase 1, for which

HK$701.0 million have been spent up to FY2015.

Investment classification (with specfic plans)
RESF(SERREE)

B Land and buildings
T EREF

[ Others (Plant and machinery &

motor vehicles, furniture,

fixture and equipment)

HAlh (B Ktees - A= -

B - BB RERE)

Note: The percentages calculated are subject to minor rounding differences
Mist: BALATHAERIBALELER
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RARBHRECERE — RE

RAFERBEABILERZETORE VEEEXR -

H‘fﬁkﬁﬁiifgiﬁ %/ML&@EE %%Fﬁ% Eﬁﬁ&
R BIIRKEERER —BZEWELEETE
B — i%?@ﬁﬁiﬁ%Am RESES - =AM
HEEZENEYR  F—HBEREE(HEREY
221,000F 75K » 425 SEEFEA) 436,000 F 5K - ER
2013F 10T - EEBTERIEF - URBER
2015 B/ I F Bk T (BREMmMIEL 176,000 F 5 K) - B
20144F 9 AHEEZEHINE » 2016 T FE B 15 HE
W18 EENHMQHMBEE : BREHNOTASE
HEH) - 2014F 10 A BE A S — 18 E &4 165,000
KM - FTEIRRETE _HERIEE -

KENCEEXRCELEREZRETNA26ES
T TERARBRE—HEE  E4701.088%EE
R2016 R FEHE °




Major Risks & Challenges and Key Strategies — Short to Medium term
TERBRRESEARRR —EERH

U Key Strategies
L mms

[s][x] Major Risks & Challenges
W FTERBRRKE

Fluctuations in prices of raw materials — Our
purchases of gold, diamonds and platinum together
represents the largest component of our cost of sales.
Fluctuation of commodity price may adversely affect our
profitability

Supply of raw materials — Depending on the
availability of and our access to such raw materials

Achieving efficiencies in supply chain management,
logistics, and distribution — Our order-driven
midstream process determines the turnover of our raw
materials and jewellery products. Failure to optimise the
supply chain management, logistics, and distribution
process could hinder our ability to replenish our POS
inventory in a timely and efficient manner

Maintaining effective quality control — Failure to
maintain and execute strict quality control standards and
procedures over our in-house and outsourced
manufactured products could adversely affect our
operations

Potential interruption or security breaches to our
information systems — Any breakdown, failure, or
damage to our information systems may cause
interruptions to our increasing complex operations

Use of hedging instruments — Ultilising gold loans to
manage the fluctuations in gold price

Strengthening relationships with key suppliers —
Leveraging our diamond processing capability and the
bundling of downstream interests, particularly in product
development and marketing areas, to strengthen
strategic partnerships with prominent players for access
to a large, stable supply of high quality raw materials
and for creating synergy

Further streamlining our midstream process

- Unifying and retaining inventory ownership to
achieve distribution efficiency and to facilitate
inventory flow in our retail network

- Developing and investing in technological know-
how, such as the logistic systems in Logistic and
Distribution Centre and the RFID-technology in the
stock-taking process, to create breakthroughs in
achieving greater operational efficiency

- Steadily increasing our in-house production ratio
through development in our production capabilities
to ensure the stable supply and high quality of our
products, efficiency in the process, and further
progress in related technology

Upgrading our information technology — Taking
necessary measures, including setting up business
continuity plans, disaster recovery plans, back-up
systems and upgrading our management information
systems, to ensure the continuity of our operations and
to protect the integrity of our information

Exm201555R 81 <
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Major Risks & Challenges and Key Strategies — Short to Medium term (continued)
TERBRIEEEAERE —EE2P B w

[a][=] Major Risks & Challenges @lﬂ Key Strategies
D FTERBRRKE B8 6 2R B

o EMBERED — KBED BOLASSHMERMHEE e FAYNIA - ERESEREESERDY
AR AED D - AEERERZTE  HRFANBRNE

it . MBRIBEEEGEE — SERFOBENT LN RS

SRS REELE (L EEEREE R SRS

o FABEE — DURRABEME QLR R P ERER ) AR AR & FEBIE - AR BB e B b LR
= E b Py

o AREEMER YWRRKH — RAERFTENLEES o E-SRBBEETSE

REBRMRME RIRBEMOEE - ReeB(LHEEERE - G-REREEEAE  BRAWCHY  RERMTE
MR AR B DR R A R R E RS 848 e 55 P
- FARREERMAG  flimRRESEFLHYTERR
o BEEVMEEREH — REHATRIINHEENERERTR N EF LB R E RS SATh RE Rl - FEIRFHE B R
HITERENESEHIEEREFETFTERMINEE FHEEIR R
- BBNEEERNTEHENE ZEELD  BRERE
o BRANERRKTEPERHERDRN — ROIRGEHE - EIE - B8R - £ERER JRRRINE — PR
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MANAGEMENT

Human resources management

As at 31 March A3 A 31 H

Number of employees (excluding staff of franchisees) E THE (“FMEEMEFHET)

By function: #&zEkaEE] 5 ¢

Sales (worked in POS) $5% (RZE2H)

R&D and Production A% & 4 &

Procurement and Diamond Cutting & Polishing 2788 & &4 ) E| & T &
General and Administrative (worked in offices) —f& & 7T (R AZE)

Human resources is our greatest asset and we regard the personal
development and well-being of our employees as highly important. We are
committed to creating a strong sense of community and a motivating
environment with clear career paths and opportunities for advancement for
our employees to build employee loyalty and work dedication.

To embody our corporate values of “Sincerity ® Eternity” in employee
development, we will open the Chow Tai Fook Academy in June 2015. Our
vision is to foster all-round development of our employees by enhancing
their professional knowledge and personal quality. The Academy has five
faculties providing a wide variety of courses to our employees:

¢  Faculty of Jewellery — Everything about jewellery, covering material,
quality assurance, design, craftsmanship, production techniques, care
and maintenance, etc.

e Faculty of Watch — Everything about watch, covering sales skills,
brand & collection information, design and mechanism, repairs and
maintenance, etc.

¢ Faculty of Sales & Marketing — Technigues on sales and customer service

¢  Faculty of Management — Key management skills for executives

¢ Faculty of Professional Development — Tailored programmes for
professional and specialised roles

BE

ANERER
2014 2015
36,100 36,800
23,100 23,000
6,200 6,600
2,400 2,200
4,400 5,000

ANBRDEMREENEE  RAIFEFERETHE
ABRERU - RAOB DB EEK A EIBH R EAE
PRS- RETRHEAENBRAZRE#S
FEAS BB PRI o

BAMBETHRERBFI[EHR « KIE] HDEERE-
M201546 A - B FH B EARREIEE - HHiR
THEIMEZMNEREALGR  UREZEER - 2
A RESER  REMNE TRHSERRE

. KEBR — ARRENRAAE - BEEME
HERE Rt TE  £ERMN REZ -

. BEHRBR — GRERNTANE - BEHERE
g PRS- REHEETS - BERRES -

. BHBR — HEREPRBHOKI -
. EEBR —THABNBEREEKEE -

. EXRBR — EXRETRUNTRRRE -
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The advisory committee of the academy includes external talents from the
education and consulting professions in Hong Kong and Mainland China, as
well as internal senior executives coming from diverse business and
professional backgrounds. Three of our courses have registered in the
Qualifications Register under the Hong Kong Qualifications Framework, a
seven-level hierarchy of qualifications covering academic, vocational and
continuing education aspects.

In FY2015, we offered about 3,000 staff training courses and the aggregate
training hours attended during the year exceeded 940,000 hours. In the
coming year, with the establishment of the academy, we are geared up to
embrace future opportunities alongside our employees.

I
Ll

BRr@AZE e BERETERTERNBZHER
HAITERNIFAT REBRNLEBEZHRIEBRE
EESNRRITRAR - BRAN=ZARRCREEN
EERBNEERMETER EERBRE —ELH
WERESIHIE  RESN - BERBEREERA

MR2015 B E - BB AI3,00018 8 THEFIRRE -
i 45 A R 15 51| SR 12 B 28 38 940,000 /) B o BB 3 2
PTRIRRAL « RFEFAMING R B T I /B8 R i

Maijor Risks & Challenges and Key Strategies — Short to Medium term

TERRRABEERRE — EETH

[w][m] Major Risks & Challenges @U 3 Key Strategies
) ZERABRRKE BAGR RS
e Matching employees’ capabilities to the skills we ¢ Investing in training and human capital

need — While employees take the primary _
responsibility to develop their own skills, there could be

a mismatch between the skills that employees
developed and those that we need to sustain our
development. We may not be able to find certain
management talents and technical expertise, and at the

same time we may not be able to develop such needed

skills internally and we could not retain people who

possess the right skills. Any skills gap may have an

adverse effect on our business and operations

Undivided focus on devoting resources to equip our
senior management and employees to cope with
the changing landscape

Taking measures to motivate the right employees
and to foster the right skill sets among employees

e FEIWNEAMERMAFREEATE — #RA I REN o RAZIRADER

FEEEERBIARSY - HE T BFHNRALA s R MIFRE -
BROMBFERD o RFURMBEEEIEE TEEAS R

B - IR BEAERE BARR FTE R AE EEGE/\? o {Ef

BERR DRI REH B MM EH R LEB TN E
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT &R E

OUR CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

TEERESR

~__ Transparency
Pl
Corporate Governance -
TRER B
B
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Independence

Integrity

Shareholders
Communication

BREE

Board
Governance
EEEER

Corporate Culture
and Management
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Communication Policy
BBHR

Annual General Meeting
RRAFAE
Shareholders’ Rights

R RAER]

Investor Relations

REERBEF

Information for Investors

REEEM

P. 245

Board Governance Framework P.94

EEEERRE

Board of Directors

Exg

e Strategic planning $RE& 8 2|

e Corporate governance 1%%&4

P, €15

Attendance at Annual General Meeting and Board Meetings P. 103
BRRBFAERESEEZNHFELHE

Directors” Induction and Continuing Professional Development
ESEABREESEXERE

Company Secretary

NEMWE

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements P. 105
EERUMBRRAAENEE

Securities Transactions of Directors and Employees
EZKEEETESRS

Procedures and Internal Controls for Handling and
Dissemination of Inside Information

REREHREEENERFRAEE

Corporate Culture P.108
X

Business Practices

EHRT

Systematic Management P. 108

AfLER

Internal Control and Audit
AR &S

Risk Management
EkEE

Whistleblowing Policy
HIRHR

Audit Committee

P. 97

ENEEE

Review on financial, tax and
reporting related matters
ERBG BB LBREEREE
Review on risk management and
internal control systems

T [P B TR AN A BP ESAE R A
Engagement of external auditors
ZHEHNIEAZ LA

Nomination Committee

e

P. 100
Z2EES

Nomination, appointment and
re-election of Directors

EERE  TEREE

Board diversity

e

Directors' independence

EEEYM

Remuneration Committee

#

P. 101
EI=E

The Group's remuneration policy

for all employees

B & B HrBBeR

Remuneration of Directors and

senior management
EEREREEEEM

EAE2015FF R
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Corporate Governance Practices TEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2015, we have complied with all the HZE201543 A31 BIEFE - BMBESF LT R R
applicable code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code") S1AFEz EEART(EESRTA) Z2RAE
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. This report describes the FSFANES » RS AEBMOBEESRER - N
Group’s corporate governance practices and explains the applications of MR XEATARANOER - EESH TR K

the principles of the CG Code. The Board will review and improve the WECEELTH  UBRASELESENENE
corporate governance practices from time to time to ensure that the Group BT - BERMAOKREFE S AR

is under the leadership of an effective Board to optimise return for our

shareholders.

We focus our efforts towards three levels, namely our shareholders, our BMEBOR=ZRED  BIIRE - E5 REBAL -
Board and our organisation as a whole. We will discuss each of the B RA T EEFT 5 N FIERA -
following principles in the sections below.

Transparency Shareholders communication
gl BRER

Board governance
EFEgEn

Independence

By

Corporate culture and management
hEXERER

Integrity

E2AE
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Our Evolutions in Corporate Governance in the Year
FEELPEETRER

Hang Seng We are admitted to the Hang Seng Corporate Sustainability Benchmark Index in our first
Corporate attempt. In fact, we have embedded a caring culture and dedicated continuous efforts in

practising corporate social responsibility. We follow strictly the best practices established by
Sustainability our international business partners (such as De Beers, Disney, FOREVERMARK and Rio Tinto
Benchmark Index Group) and renew the respective licences to operate subject to external certifications. By
= g stepping further to the Hang Seng Corporate Sustainability Benchmark Index, we have more
EEFFERRE public recognition under a common standard applicable to listed companies in the areas of
RS organisational governance, the environment, fair operating practices, consumer issues,
human rights, labour practices and community involvement and development. We will keep
alert to the needs and expectations of our stakeholders and continue our efforts to enhance
our best practices.

E A HIEPN Q?JDEUAL\EET?%it%EJt%%i%%E%I EE L ZMFEESERBIEXUL  INREEH

BITOEMH @A - RIIEARETEDe Beers - Disney ~ KEENGE R NS EE BB LA (ERHA

:E%ﬁﬁ%’f? @ﬂ?l\*ﬂ;ﬂfa’i L'tiE ER R E’\Tﬁ’f%"A%’\EEﬂ%%%Em%%E%ﬁﬂé'fﬁi

PfE EMARIMREER $%‘?5§ HEEZE - AR BTHRAIMES2ERERZED

ﬁ@%%ﬁﬁTTﬁgﬁié?%Er/imﬂﬁa?T BB ﬁtﬂ?ﬁ/ﬂ—rﬁ%mﬁﬁg&ﬁﬂi BIES NIR
&ESFA

Investor Relations In recognition of our best practices in investor relations, we garnered five accolades among the

large cap companies at the inaugural HKIRA 1st IR Awards Presentation organised by the Hong
Awards Kong Investor Relations Association. This is a great motivation for us to further our belief and
REEBR KR practices in achieving high transparency with our shareholders’ communication. We are always
committed to attaining a higher corporate governance standard which exceeds the compliance
code. This year's annual report marks our new steps towards a more strategic focused, KPIs driven
and visualised presentation. We will continue our efforts to make use of this reporting model to
advocate integrated and future-oriented thinking during the enterprise decision making process,
which creates long term value for our shareholders.

EEEREEMARERMNEEE ERAEMEALREE - ﬁﬂ’ﬁ?ﬁé-%ﬁiﬂ%fﬁﬁ%“fﬁﬁ

i - 4 Z%ﬂiﬁj(ﬁ %%&ﬁ&&ﬁ%‘ﬁﬁ%ﬁ% STRIERE - AR AERFIBRT B =B
EE’J&%*D; %ﬁkﬂﬁﬁﬁb HMBNBEARTREBE SN EERKE - RNELRFE
iiﬁm’EﬁiT%%*ﬁa“& REREEERER - NREREMIERATE ]ILAR?MI:E’JEWET
AP HEERARER  EoEARBRTSEBRRAIELE S - ARRAEEBEE

o ﬁ‘hm?ﬂﬁ

F+a“m1

POS Audit We have successfully rolled out the POS audit programme to cover all of our stores in
Programme Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau. The design of this programme combines the use of

& skillful people, robust process and technology to build up an on-going and almost real time
ZEHERETE monitoring mechanism. An efficient mechanism to assure the protection of inventories and
cash and the operational compliance is a pragmatic risk management measure backing up our
extensive retail network and further penetration strategies. We will further improve the IT
programme to meet a high standard on the audit accuracy and efficiency.

AR T HE R S R B A E%&&F‘ﬁﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁ‘ﬂ?%ﬁ%&%?ﬂ EEPRAER - BEIREM
ERBH AR ENMBGA B EER S - REABEORGIERTE ReMEENA RN
REMERRANT EMENEEE— i?ﬁm%ﬁ’ﬂ%ﬂiﬁ CEVBENRREREGAERERS
R ENBEBISER - R RS R R E B -

Audit The Board has adopted a policy on audit re-tendering for our external auditor after serious
Re-tendering considgration on therbjectives and effectivene;s qf thfa policy. We cpn_ducted the first re-
s tendering exercise with several esteemed participating firms after our listing. It proved to be

AIars meaningful in enhancing the interests of our Group and our shareholders via active evaluation
SNEEAZ ZH and keeping fresh views in response to the emerging risks and challenges facing our industry.
In concluding this year's proposals, more emphasis will be heading to enhancement in IT
governance, environmental control and advanced tools used in auditing large volume
transactions.

%%ﬁi“Eﬂﬁ%ﬁé%ﬂﬁ%ﬁl\ﬂqﬁﬁﬁﬂiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ BRERERERERMZEE - HABF T ZREE
BHARSEFMRNERENRR - EREP - S8BT ZHAERAEHEARERMTER
HeyE EJ—L 2 S PR - iﬁm%$‘§§&ﬁﬁiﬂ_nﬁik c MEAEIAEEZ M FNERIR
FRIEMREARER  REZGIRERLETAARDERAERS -
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SHAREHOLDERS COMMUNICATION BRRERE

Enhancing transparency has been the core value driven by our Board since BEAM2011 EEBRZT LT EEFEUBNIERE
our listing on the Stock Exchange in 2011. We believe that high HEAZLERE - RMBEEREHEASIBRMER
transparency is a key to attaining good corporate governance. This equips RIFHCEEEMEAR  SRMEHEECEHYERMNT

ourselves to stand up to scrutiny and the changing regulatory environment. i *EWSE’J%E“ R BMATFHE CBIEF# - B
Our established practices of fair disclosure have contributed to the NANEFEE R FE S RS KON 2013 F 5B E

Company’s smooth transition into the more stringent statutory regime of NEE B2 EERERE TS -
disclosure of inside information put in place by the SFO in 2013.

Our major initiatives in the year R{FFERANEEE K

We initiated the release of key operational data quarterly via formal announcements published on the Stock Exchange website and
our company website. We set standardised template to disclose the key information that our management concerns and share with
shareholders in a timely manner.

BB EZ R RARRMEBTBEERARNEN TR - THEMFEEIRLELHIE - FMHIERERK  URBEEREERINTE
BRIERRARRDZ ©

We constantly enhanced the quality and the scope of disclosure of our performance and development plans, aiming to provide a
comprehensive picture for shareholders to appraise the Group's position fairly.

KPS EENKRANERA ST AFERARBEEZREE  BRARRIRREEER - EREA QAT EAEENARRT -

We have maintained a simple structure such that shareholders can easily understand our business model, company structure, key
performance indicators and accounting measurements. Please refer to Managing Director’s Strategic Report on pages 11 to 14 and
Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 19 to 84 for details.

PR EASERE  ERRAETIEBRMOEBEN  RAERE  ZE2XRBREFRSHHESIR - FEFL2HEN1E14EH
[BEREKBRIERE | RFE192848K [EREIWEST] -

We have ongoing communications with our investors and maintained a fair disclosure policy to disseminate material information of
the Group to the public.

KRR EEER  UEEATRERRAARENAEBNEEZEH °

We maintain “Investor Relations” section on our company website and provide meaningful and updated information for investors’
ease of reference.

BPMARMEEN EEERER] SARKEENENEN  UHEKREERE

o

Communication Policy BERE

Our shareholders’ communication policy is to promote effective HPNBREERRE AN ERF R EMEENEZE
communication with our shareholders and other stakeholders and to MAERRR TEHBHRERGERMPES - AFEA

encourage them to engage actively with us. To ensure fair and equal TREEwEEEEEE  BRAFMBZEES  81F
access to material information, we make use of various channels including wE TR . 2ERHEBRE  FEBRATE
results announcements and presentations, annual and interim reports, o A AREIEAE A TER B AL LB EE

press releases and company website. Our company website contains 835 . .
corporate information, latest publications as well as the recent BB EAD - (LR AER RS A REA R
developments of the Group, enabling our shareholders to have timely #fl o HPMERTIHRERBREN T ZEDR0R
access to the information of the Group. We also publish regular B P R PR B IR SR B SRS B 5 B R
announcements of key operational updates to enhance shareholders’

understanding of the Group’s business trend and its strategies in a

timely manner.
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Annual General Meeting

Our Chairman, Managing Director, chairmen of board committees (or their
respective designated members) and external auditors attended the annual
general meeting held in August 2014. The annual general meeting is a
platform for face-to-face communication with our shareholders where our
Directors are available to answer questions on the performance of the
Group raised by the shareholders. Shareholders who are unable to attend
the meeting are encouraged to vote in advance by proxy sent with the
notice of meeting.

All resolutions proposed in the last annual general meeting held in August
2014 were approved by our shareholders with votes ranging from 98.2%
t0 100.0%.

Shareholders’ Rights

We endeavour to ensure that shareholders are treated fairly and are able to
exercise their shareholders’ rights effectively. Shareholders are entitled by
the Articles and are also encouraged to participate in the Company's
general meetings or appoint proxies to attend and vote. Shareholder(s)
holding not less than 10% of the Company's paid-up capital may request
the Board to convene an extraordinary general meeting and put forward
proposals. The objectives of the meeting must be stated in the related
requisition signed and deposited with our Company Secretary at the
Company's headquarters at 33/F, New World Tower, 16-18 Queen'’s Road
Central, Hong Kong.

If a shareholder wishes to nominate a person for election as director in a
general meeting, the particulars of the candidate must be stated in a
nomination notice signed and deposited together with a notice of
willingness signed by the candidate to our Company Secretary at the
Company's headquarters or at the Registration Office (Tricor Investor
Services Ltd., Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong) of the Company. The notice should be given at least seven days
prior to the date of such general meeting.

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about the Company
to the Board could email their enquiries to ir@chowtaifook.com.

Shareholders Communication

BRERBEE

RRBEFAE

BAWER EFRLE ZEFZEIF (HKSF
EBEETEE) RIMNEZBANT B H/E R 201458 A
BITHRRBFAE - ERFBF RS L BRMANE
FRURBREREBASERROMEBEELRE -
EERFERRIRNFTE - ERREHEREDN
PRI BT EEMEIEBERASBRETFENNEK
ZERBRIRERR ©

2014F 8 ARTH FERFAEFARGHIREMNE I
EIRERIIERT R LA98.2% E100.0% I EHE R BB -

BRAER

BMBNEREEERTEF - MBI ABRITEE
BREAER o FRAPIBLENIG AT 40 AR T RO RR SR AE F &
HERARE SZRRERLFIRE LRE-FEHT
PRARRI0% EHMBRANBRABRE=ZTSEM
BRRFNASWIRESZE - BEREFTEZUEEAH
EREHAEHENEN  YESEIARWE - itA
RATER  BAEERFAEP 16-185H T R K/E 33
o

REMGRBRREAS HIRETMALEESE A
BERAEREAFAENDECEBIRZBANEERLR
BAZZENEEREZE KX TARQRBIN AR
E RARABRESERELERNERAR I
BEBEFRNEBERISIFAMAL22E - BANEENE
BEREAE BRI RS -

BRRNAAEEZEEANERARAEYR  TERE

ir@chowtaifook.com ©
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Investor Relations

We are committed to promoting open and constructive conversations with
our shareholders, the analysts, media and potential investors. Our investor
relations team which comprises the executive Directors and senior
management of the Group, hosts active dialogue with institutional
shareholders and the public through investor conferences, non-deal
roadshows, investor meetings, annual general meeting as well as media
interviews and press releases. In FY2015, we attended over 526 one-on-
one and group meetings. We also participated in seven investor
conferences and 18 non-deal roadshows, covering Boston, Chicago, Hong
Kong, London, Melbourne, New York, Seoul, Shanghai, Singapore, Sydney,
Tokyo and Toronto. Further, we maintain regular dialogue with a large
number of analysts from research institutions, of which 24 of them publish
reports of the Company regularly.

Major investor conferences that we participated in FY2015 are set
out below:

Shareholders Communication

BRRBE

REERRF

BPBNEPERR 28 FENEBEREER
AARRAZRUENEFE ARTEERSREELE
ARMBEEERRES  BRREENNE  ERXH
BOR - REESS  RREFRSARERTEMH
B EEEBREEMARALEEEE - R201581
BEE  BfiHFase R — ez kEREH -
%HFEDT%Eﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬂ‘@&18//\#&;%%@& :
BRKLTE ZNF B RY BEL AL
BE - LK B REREZRZ - U
BPMEZEEFAARBENZEO WA ERSH
H 24 20 B AR R EBERERRE -

B One-on-one meetings — % — &%

I Group meetings 42 & 3%

HPR 2015 MR FE B2 ETIARBKEEHN S

FY2015 Event Location
201581 BRF £ b B
April 2014 Daiwa Consumer and Gaming Conference 2014 Hong Kong
201444 7 RIEAREEMRTE s
September 2014 J.P. Morgan 18th Annual Asia Pacific Equity Conference Boston
2014494 BERANBEREER S R E
CLSA 21st Investors’ Forum Hong Kong
ERREEMTE &
October 2014 HSBC China Conference 2014 Shanghai
20144101 BRTTIREEF S Lt
January 2015 UBS Greater China Conference 2015 Shanghai
20151 7 IR A ER e Lt
March 2015 Daiwa Investment Conference Tokyo 2015 Tokyo
201543 RIBHREEHRNE R
Credit Suisse 18th Annual Asian Investment Conference Hong Kong
HEREERNE e
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We hold press and analysts conferences at least twice a year following the
release of interim and full year results announcements at which the
executive Directors and senior management of the Group are available to
answer questions regarding the performance of the Group. The
presentations and the webcasts for these conferences are available on our
company website. The company website contains an investor relations
section to reach out to the investment community and public with the
latest information of the Group. To promote transparency and fair
disclosure, we also make announcements of operational updates on a
quarterly basis.

We also promote proactive communication through the Company’s email
alerts and direct contact with our investor relations team via email at
ir@chowtaifook.com.

BOARD GOVERNANCE

The Board's role is to provide leadership of the Company and direction for
the management as an independent decision-making body. Our Board is
collectively responsible and accountable to our shareholders for the
Group's performance. We believe that high independence is crucial for the
Board to work effectively to create value and protect the interests of our
shareholders as a whole. As a listed company with the presence of a major
shareholder, the Board has endeavoured to establish appropriate policies
and processes to avoid conflict of interests or perception of the same.

Board Governance
Pazlash)
BEEIZER

BABFRIMRAERMTHR2FEARNSRET
AEMDMBRTE  ARBERTEZLRSAETER
EOEERAKERRORERH - ELERNBRNE
REHEFHARE LHEARFNHEY - —RREEMN
RBPALTAHEREEREERNEARESNEA -
REFEAERATFRE RO ESFAMEEL
BRE -

HAINEFEBEE BB AEF IR E ETBIHRR -
18 71 7] i 38 F T ir@chowtaifook.com B B i 8 & &
BAMRELPT ©

EEEEAR

BEXEeNACKRRERR TEABYARKERE
BEFYAR  EFERAKENRAREBRARY
BERER - HIEE BENBIMAEESAWE
fE- BIEEEMIMEZERRANENEH - FR—K
HEBRFEZBEEN LT RR] EESRNHES
EORELER  BRPHANRERLSABFEF

% -

Our maijor initiatives in the year B FIFERANEEEE

Roles of the Board Chairman and Managing Director are clearly defined and held by different persons.

BREATEEGIRNETRCENABY R TRALEE -

Functions and duties of the Board and the management are segregated.

EoEFENEEENEE -

The Board has reserved powers to make decisions on significant matters.

EZeRBENHEZFBELRE -

Independent non-executive Directors play a significant role in the Board in bringing independent judgement.

B FTEREESSNRERAGIEL B HIE -

Executive Directors have clearly defined roles and responsibilities. Please refer to Profile of Directors and Senior Management on

page 114 for details.

BREATHTEZNACREE - FEF2HE 1148 [EE5REREEASHN]

o

Rewards to executive Directors comprise a significant portion correlating to the Group’s performance and are subject to the review
by the Remuneration Committee made up of a majority of independent non-executive Directors.

WITERNHHE 2 AN EAKERFHBNEE  UHERASBUBFNITERERZHMEER

8>

EABALE -

ARE2016FF R
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Board Governance Framework
EEE2TARER

Board Committees

EEZSETZES

Shareholders R &

Board of Directors E£&

Management

.= .. .. == I
Audit Nomination Remuneration Executive Managing
Committee Committee Committee Committee Director
EREES] REZEE FHEES HITEER ERagE
responsible for the responsible for responsible for responsible for responsible for the
engagement of reviewing the making overseeing the management of the

external auditors and
review of the
Group's financial
information, financial
reporting system,

structure, size and
composition of the
Board, assessing the
independence of the
independent

recommendations to
the Board on the
Company's policy and
structure for the
remuneration of all

day-to-day
management and
operation with Board's
delegated authority

business and
implementation of
the Group's strategy
and policy

internal control non-executive the Directors and IRBESSNIREEE B 5 ERSIEREIT
procedures and risk Directors and making senior management HEERREESE REE R KBS FIR
management system recommendations to and on the

the Board on the establishment of a
B EZEINE BT appointment and formal and Operations
RBZASENBE re-appointment of transparent procedure s
- B ERE REr - Directors and board for developing
AEBESTE R IE FE I diversity remuneration policy Functional

[\ & I R %

of the Group for

department heads

BEEEREETIL approval by the Board and management
B RERANK 7 committees formed
B IERITEEH BERARBNEE by senior executives
B AR EE EENRRERES
REHETESHE BAER SR M 518 - LA R NEEHFIEERBE
E2EEEER BN IE RIBRAME TR A B8 E @
MESTREHERRE BB R BT AR+ [ EEZES
& EEgREHEESR

LA E BE A&
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Board of Directors

The Board currently comprises a total of 15 Directors, with eight executive
Directors, two non-executive Directors and five independent non-executive
Directors.

The roles of our Chairman and Managing Director are clearly defined and
there is an effective segregation of duties between the Board and the
management. Our Chairman, Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, provides
leadership for the Board and ensures that the Board works effectively and
all important issues are discussed in a timely manner. Our Managing
Director, Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent, takes the lead in managing the Group’s
operations and business development. Each executive Director has his
own role and function to oversee the Group's operations including
procurement, production, marketing, business and finance. Our Chairman
and Managing Director do not have any financial, business, family or other
material relationships with each other. The profile of each of the Directors
is set out on pages 114 to 120.

To ensure the operational efficiency of the Group, the Board has delegated
some aspects of its management and administration functions to the
Executive Committee which comprises all eight executive Directors, to
oversee the day-to-day management and operation in accordance with its
terms of reference as approved by the Board. Decisions made by the
Executive Committee are reported back to the Board while matters beyond
its delegated authority are reserved to the Board for its decision.

In the Board meetings held during the year, the Managing Director took
the lead to make reports to the Board on various aspects, including
business performance and prospects, financial performance, risk
management and corporate governance. The Company also provides
monthly updates to all Directors on the Group’s performance and position
to enable the Directors to make balanced assessment and informed
decisions for the benefit of the Group.

All of our independent non-executive Directors had full attendance and
active discussions in our Board meetings during the year. They served a
significant role in the Board to bring independent judgment on the
development, performance and risk management of the Group. Besides,
with their rich knowledge in public companies’ corporate governance
practices, they have contributed much to the Company in formulating
formal processes and framework to attain higher corporate governance
standards. As members of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee
and Remuneration Committee, they have also undertaken detailed
governance work under their respective terms of reference. Details can be
referred to the respective sections below.

Board Governance
BEEIZER

Exg

EXg AR ISRERAN  ENBESRRTE
= 2RERITEERSBEUIFNITES -

IFENERAEENAEERMAE THRRSE
FEMEEBNRE ETRBRAFLRIEFTSI
LEREESAWERRERTRAAERRE - &
FRREEMREEEREAEBEEMEBER - %
WTERNEEEAKBEZENTEACMBE &
ERE - EE B EENUH - RANIERE
FREEEWRBEWB - X KRR EMEKE
B ZEENEABNHENE11421208 -

RERAEENEERE EEGRRHSENTE
EHERNRITZESERRESSHEANBRERERR
EEMZEREE ATZBSEHNREREZNES
BHE MBUABESENEERABFERESR

.
F o

RENBTHNERSEET  EFHEEHERSZE
BEMESSERER BEEBRARIZ BB
G RREBMEEESL - ARATEANEEE
EEHHEAREEERMN - BEFRERAREE
HPE R LA REIER AR A RBERE -

RAFEER  ZPMEBIERTEETHLFET 24
MEFSSR MABGR2EFR -HwMEESST
HEREZAE  BAKBENER KBEMERERE
HBZ B FIET - oo PIBREY AR AR REER
BERNEENE  HHEPARRRIIERRFIER
NEHERNEEEAKTY  BHRZ - ERERE
Bg REZESNFMZESORE  MATRE
ELREeNBESEEZABNE AT - FEH2
BIAT HERI = &6 -
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In every case of reviewing and approving the Group’'s connected
transactions or matters that might have potential conflict of interests, our
independent non-executive Directors took the lead to review the details.
Furthermore, as a norm in our Board, all Directors who belong to the major
shareholder’s family have abstained from voting in all Board resolutions
relating to the approval of the Group's connected transactions even though
the transactions are in the ordinary and usual course of business and on
normal commercial terms.

Board activities in FY2015

Four Board meetings were held during the year. The agenda mainly
focused on strategic planning and corporate governance matters of
the Group.

EEBNES TARENBEX Z RS LEENE
EROFER  HRBEMNELFRTESTTIERMN
I s (EREZENEDN - MEBRIZRR
RENEROERMERELARERERINESS
REEMBREZR(AIRERZXZN—REFBIZH IR
ERHEEGRTETT) ©

ESE2015MBEENIHE
ZKEE A é%Aé—ETTE‘U\EE?ﬁ B
BRI RB T EEERE -

BEBHRAL

Strategic planning

e discussed on emerging risks and effectiveness of the Group's strategies in
the context of changing economic environment, advancement in technology
applications, and the latest analysis of consumers’ preference

e reviewed on the Group's medium term development strategies, including

various business and technology innovations, R&D and production, marketing

and human capital strategies

e reviewed on the long term investment projects at the strategic level, including

the synergies among stakeholders within Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Park in
Wuhan and those brought by the joining of Hearts On Fire to our Group

e received regular updates for business and financial performance of the Group

e authorised the Group's annual budget

HEEHR B

o wmAKEEAERELARBEERFEL R
RIERBMAR - DA&‘J%]%%‘%&?E’]E%E SR
FTaT B SR A A AR

o REAKEMPHERERR SESEXBER
Bz g MBEREE EHEANEBERE

i
e MEMEERSRHKEBE BERERE

BARBHRE N CEXRFHE 2B HRERE
LA B & Hearts On Fire i A 78 £ B i & 4 /9 1
Bz

o BENMAMASEXBMUBRENEMEHRS

ERAEENFETRAE

Corporate governance

e adopted re-tendering policy to highlight the importance of active evaluation of

the Group’s external auditor at appropriate time interval to enhance the
interests of the Group and its shareholders

e received reports from the Audit Committee on the continuous monitoring of
the Group's risk management and internal control systems

e approved the Group's financial statements, annual and interim reports
e authorised material banking facilities and capital expenditure

e reviewed and approved connected transactions
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of four independent non-executive
Directors, including Mr. Kwong Che- Keung, Gordon, Mr. Cheng Ming-Fun,
Paul, Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey and Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond.
Mr. Kwong Che- Keung, Gordon is the committee chairman.

Activities of the Audit Committee in FY2015

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year. At the invitation
of the Audit Committee, meetings were also attended by members of the
management (including the Managing Director, Finance Director and the
Risk Management Committee).

Board Governance
Pazlash)
BEEIZER

ERERE

EREZBERMNRBEILFATESAR  BRERER
FEAE - BRRRBIISE A - MERERSE A RADBER L 0 W
BEeELETEEGEE -

EREEE 20150 BEENTE
KEERN BREEEHBI-REH - EEXES
SHE TEERS (DEESLLE  UBKESLAE

REEZEE)MAHFEEE -

Review on financial, tax and reporting related matters

e discussed with external auditors on the audit plan including the audit of key
accounts, materiality level and the application of new or revised accounting
standards

e reviewed the Group's consolidated financial statements and disclosures in the
interim and annual reports and recommended them to the Board for approval

e held private meeting sessions with external auditors without the
management'’s presence

e reviewed the Group’s continuing connected transactions

As the Group acquired Hearts On Fire during the year, the Audit Committee
followed up with the management to report on the updated status in order
to ensure there were proper systems in place for the management and
controls, financial reporting and compliance, and its investment value was
properly delivered through the synergies added to the Group as targeted.

FHHH  HBRBEERER

o HINERHEINWELAE BREIZREE
%~ AIMBEFTEEMKTF - BT RERT SFHE
A A

o ERTMHWMESRFHRMBAEEGA MWK
LG EREFGHE

o HINBREEREITRAEERBHENEH

s ERAKENREMERS

R AL ERFAUEE Hearts On Fire * R|ixZ 82
EEEREERSENEN  BREZOEEMELR
AR BERERAENEZREY - WAREEE
MO REMESAEE  BRESERAHEREEE -

Review on risk management and internal control systems
e reviewed reports on risk management, internal control system and internal
audit of the Group

e discussed with the management and the internal audit team on the overall
risk assessment, internal control system, internal audit plan and internal
audit findings

e reported to the Board of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems

e received reports of the Group's whistleblowing policy

BN AREENRPEZERS

s ERAMAKERBRERE ANIEERSMA
AR A

o HEEIRERANFERASNREERBME
M EREZ 12 R BT A K A BP B AZ AR 8 B4R

e MEFGERASERAMEEMAMEE RS
E0)2%

o BHRBAMAKHZBREIZNHRS

EAE2015FF R
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Our internal audit team introduced to the Audit Committee the Financial
Control Assessment and Monitoring System which will be implemented
starting from the next financial year to monitor our Group's financial
statement controls based on respective risk assessments. At the same
time, the Audit Committee was also informed of the effectiveness of the
new programme on POS audit which has operated for one year. The
effectiveness of internal controls of various business units was also
updated to the Audit Committee according to the 3-year audit plan. The
Audit Committee supported the Group's efforts in developing the three
lines of defense model where our internal control procedures, risk
management, financial compliance and internal audit can work together.

The Audit Committee has reviewed and was satisfied with the
effectiveness of our internal control system. The assessment is based on:

e regular reports by the internal audit team, including the findings and
control risk assessment

e regular reports by management of continuous enhancement and
monitoring of the Group's internal controls, and implementing
recommendations from the internal audits

e certification of control effectiveness by the management, covering
financial, operational and compliance controls, with the adoption of
self-assessment approach

e observation from external auditors that they had not identified any
material control weakness during the annual external audit

e direct reports of the Group's whistleblowing mechanism that no fraud
of material impact was reported

e top management’s active involvement in creating a control
environment with high integrity

Right before the Stock Exchange announced the upgrading of risk
management’s importance in the Corporate Governance Code, we have
already been on the track to establish the risk management framework.
We have already conducted the second cycle of the risk management
process this year. The Audit Committee has reviewed and was satisfied
with the effectiveness of our risk management system.
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Engagement of external auditors

e assessed independence of external auditors and recommended
their re-appointment

e reviewed auditor’'s engagement terms, scope of work and responsibilities

e agreed the auditor’'s remuneration

During the year, the Company has conducted a re-tendering exercise on
the selection of the Group’s external auditors based on the new policy
adopted by the Board. The aim is to encourage auditors’ independence,
objectivity and accountability to our shareholders by means of active
evaluation. From the detailed proposals submitted to us, "fresh eyes”
were invited to review the Group all over as an outsider on risk-based
approaches which have brought useful insights to us. After consideration
on various factors, the Audit Committee recommended to re-appoint
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and to make better use of technology in
auditing our large volume transactions and focus more on the
IT governance.

During FY2015, the total fee paid/payable in relation to audit related
services of the Group amounting to HK$11.0 million, of which a sum of
HK$7.4 million was paid/payable to our principal auditor, Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, and the remaining was mainly paid/payable to other auditors
performing audit work for the Company's subsidiaries in Mainland China
which were subject to local statutory requirements. The remuneration paid
to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and its affiliated firms for services rendered
is listed as follows:
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FY2014 FY2015

20148 BNV E 201581 U B

Types of services HK$'000 HK$'000
REER T T FET
Statutory audit JAEEZ 4,320 4,737
Other audit related services E b2 48 #8 AR 7% 1,590 2,635
Non-audit services Mot 3£z 4% i 75 1) 923 1,533
6,833 8,905

Note: Non-audit services comprise primarily tax advisory services provided to the Group.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of four independent non-executive
Directors and two executive Directors, including Dr. Fung Kwok-King,
Victor, Mr. Cheng Ming- Fun, Paul, Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey, Dr. Or
Ching-Fai, Raymond, Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry and Mr. Wong Siu-Kee,
Kent. Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor, an independent non-executive Director,
is the committee chairman.

Activities of the Nomination Committee in FY2015

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board, approve the renewal of
the term of appointment for those Directors appointed in 2011 for another
three years, assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors and review the measurable objective in implementing the
diversity policy of the Board.

Nomination, appointment and re-election of Directors

All Directors (including non-executive Directors) have formal letters of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years commencing
from their respective dates of appointment, subject to retirement by
rotation in accordance with the Articles. At the Company’s annual general
meeting held in August 2014, five Directors, being at least one-third of the
Directors for the time being, retired from office by rotation in accordance
with the Articles. All of them were re-elected by shareholders to continue
their offices as Director. The Nomination Committee has reviewed the
Directors’ rotation plan to ensure that every Director will retire by rotation
at least once every three years at an annual general meeting.

Board diversity

As facilitated by the amendments in the Listing Rules, the Company
established its formal policy on Board diversity in 2013. The Company
recognises the importance of having a broad complement of skills,
experience and knowledge on the Board to bring along comprehensive
considerations in forming Board decisions.

Our Nomination Committee has reviewed the current composition of
Board members and appreciates that the broad spectrum of background of
the independent non-executive Directors adds great value on the
diversified perspectives in the Board. They come from diverse business
and professional background. Their experiences range from general
management to professional practices, from China business to global
enterprises, from private investments to companies listed worldwide. All
of them have proven experiences in forming corporate strategies, risk
management and corporate governance. While the executive Directors
possess management experience and professional knowledge of various
aspects, the diverse composition of the Board enables us to connect with
a wide range of stakeholders including our customers, suppliers, business
partners, investors and colleagues.
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As a whole, our Directors are of different age groups, length of services in
the Group and educational background (see Profile of Directors and Senior
Management section on pages 114 to 120 for details). The diverse
qualifications, experiences and cognitive approaches in the Board offer a
wider range of perspectives and innovation to corporate issues. The
Nomination Committee considers the current composition and structure of
the Board as appropriate. When considering new appointments in future,
while the Board will take into account the advantages of gender diversity,
the Company's policy remains that selection should be made on merits in
the context of the mix of talents, skills and experiences which the Board as
a whole requires to be effective.

Directors’ independence

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from all
the independent non-executive Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Board is of the view that all the independent non-
executive Directors are independent and at least one of them serving on
the Audit Committee has the appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise in accordance with
Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of three independent non-
executive Directors and two executive Directors, including Dr. Or Ching-
Fai, Raymond, Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor, Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon, Dr.
Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry and Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent. Dr. Or Ching- Fai,
Raymond, an independent non-executive Director, is the committee chairman.

Activities of the remuneration committee in FY2015
The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the year.
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e reviewed the effectiveness of the Company’s medium to long-term incentives e

for the management’s remuneration package to align with corporate goals to
be achieved in a longer term

e reviewed the Group's proposals for general salary adjustments with reference e

to the market conditions and the Group's overall performance

e assessed the performance of the executive Directors; determined, with
delegated responsibility, and reviewed the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management

e made recommendations to the Board about the remuneration of non-
executive Directors
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The Group’s remuneration policy for all employees

Our remuneration policy recognises the importance of attracting and
retaining talents as well as performance measurement and accountability.
It has been set to support our Group's business strategy and reinforce our
performance driven culture. In general, the packages include a mix of basic
salary, pension and discretionary bonus. Various sales incentive
programmes are also designed for frontline colleagues. We have
implemented formal appraisal system with interactive communication for
all employees. The remuneration policy is transparent in the sense of
defined measurement of performance targets and linkage with rewards. In
addition to the Group's business performance and individual performance,
we also consider a number of factors, such as general economic
conditions, living standard in various cities, package paid by comparable
companies and job responsibilities. Coupled with a structured remuneration
policy, we have made efforts to enhance our employees’ job satisfaction
and sense of belonging (see details in Corporate Social Responsibility on
pages 143 to 145).

Remuneration of Directors and senior management

The remuneration of executive Directors and senior management
comprises basic salary, pension and discretionary bonus. The discretionary
bonus is incentive-based with a significant portion linking to the overall
performance and profitability of the Group, as well as the share price of the
Company. This aims at enhancing the accountability of our Directors and
senior management by a better alignment of their rewards with the
interests of our shareholders. For FY2015, there was about 59% to 67%
bonus element in the remuneration package of the executive Directors.
The remuneration of each of the Directors is detailed in note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements on page 207. The Remuneration
Committee was of the view that the remuneration of our Directors and
senior management were fair and competitive in relation to the Group's
strategy and performance and the existing market conditions.

102 Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited Annual Report 2015

REBEEESFMECR
B E MM REMRWBIAF B - mﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ
MEE BREEERIHAEENERRE 26
%Wﬁ$%¥%°*&xﬁ ﬁM@%%$%$ R
R REBIEL - 1o B ABRTRE TR ZIEE
EHEEETE c A EREXWTIZGE 22880
BRVHESER RANFHREEHEES BN
BRSNS ELENEREER BT AEEN
EBRBERENABREIN  BMLEEEZHEELM
% B NERBR A KON AR TR AEKTE [
REINFHHKTREUBES - BA&ES BN
Mﬂﬁ I A A58 B T &) T 1 AR st %M 57 /B /2%
(HBEL2HMELEET] 51435 1458) ©

EERSRERESMH
HTESFKSREREFHREELAT S  Ehek
BYISTEAL - BIEAL RIS - B AB M EAE
BEERE  BANEIULALR RO EREE - B
B A A PP S MY BB B AR R R AR M R s B A —
BB EERSRERENPEE - 22015 K
FR  TESHFM2HOB 9% £67% BIEAL °
FHSEFEHFHOFE  F2HFE207 A [FaVBR
RIMFE12- FHEEERE - ERAEENEIEM
x#E L‘A&Eﬁﬁﬁﬂ EENaRERENTFHER
SFMAFZF N -



Attendance at Annual General Meeting and
Board Meetings

Board Governance
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Number of Meetings Attended/Eligible to attend for FY2015

2015 U EHIFE, SRR HEERAE

Annual

General Board Audit Remuneration Nomination

Meeting Meeting Committee Committee Committee

REFEBFRE EEEER ERZEEE yMZEES REZEEE
Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry EIRAEE+ 11 4/4 = 2/2 11
Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent =5RERE il 4/4 - 2/2 11
Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian BRE RS+ 11 4/4 - _ _
Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy ~ &Bz5i84:4E 11 4/4 - - -
Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong FRitt 8 o4 il 4/4 = = -
Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert PR A S A il 4/4 = = -
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton — ZB/RER 5t A4 Al 4/4 = = -
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter FREREA 11 4/4 = - -
Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson ESRIZ S A 11 4/4 - - -
Mr. Koo Tong-Fat HEBETA il 4/4 = = -
Mr. Cheng Ming-Fun, Paul BERA IS A mhn 4/4 3/3 - 11
Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor IBBE L Al 4/4 - 2/2 il
Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon  EBs& 5t 4 il 4/4 3/3 2/2 —
Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey SR 1N 4/4 3/3 - 11
Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond EEE L 1Al 4/4 3/3 2/2 11
Directors’ Induction and Continuing Professional ESABREESERR

Development

We will arrange orientation for new Board member joining the Company to
meet with other Board members and to have an overview of the Board
proceedings and culture. We will provide a package of orientation materials
containing information on the operation and business, corporate
governance policies, statutory duties and responsibilities of Directors. In
order for our independent non-executive Directors to understand the
management, operation and control systems, as well as the latest
innovations, within the Group, we arrange visits to our management
centres and production sites to enable them to interact with the
management on any recommendation for improvement. During the year,
our Directors visited Shenzhen and Shunde to inspect the new
development projects.
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The Company Secretary updates the Directors on the latest developments
and changes of the Listing Rules and the applicable legal and regulatory
requirements in the discharge of their duties. In addition to updates
introduced through internal meetings and presentation materials, we also
apply an electronic training platform to provide an alternative for all
Directors’ continuing professional development in an easily accessible way.

Directors also attended seminars or workshops relevant to their profession
and duties as directors. Their training records during the year are
summarised as follows:

RAWERNERRELHRVUNRFERLES - U
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Training on regulatory development, directors’ profession
or duties, or other relevant topics

BERALIRE - EEEXEGRBERNAMERBEBIRAE

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry ERATE L
Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent BRELE
Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian EERIE L

Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy BB A
Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong pRtt B S &
Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert PoRBZE A ST A
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton ERRER S A
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter ST it
Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson BRI S
Mr. Koo Tong-Fat HEELE
Mr. Cheng Ming-Fun, Paul ERBAFI S A4
Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor BEKE LT
Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon BB ReR ST
Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey NES 2o
Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond WS EE L

Company Secretary

Our Company Secretary is Mr. Cheng Ping Hei, Hamilton. He is also an
executive Director and is employed on a full-time basis. During the year, he
had taken no less than 15 hours relevant professional training as required
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. Our Company Secretary coordinates
the supply of information to the Directors. During the year, meeting agenda
and accompanying board papers were provided at least 3 days before the
date of the Board or committee meetings. Furthermore, all Directors have
access to the Company Secretary to ensure that board procedures and all
applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed.
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Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Board, supported by the finance department, is responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company and the Group. The
Board has prepared the financial statements in accordance with the
International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International
Accounting Standard Board. Appropriate accounting policies have also
been used and applied consistently. The Directors were not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may cast
significant doubt upon the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the auditors of the Company and the Group regarding
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Company
and the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 160
to 162 of this annual report.

Securities Transactions of Directors and Employees

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code"”). Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, the Directors confirmed that they had
complied with the required standard as set out in the Model Code during
FY2015.

The Company has also established written guidelines as required under the
CG Code in respect of the dealings in the securities of the Company by
specified employees (“Relevant Employees”) who are likely to come
across inside information because of their duties. Having made specific
enquiry of all Relevant Employees, they confirmed that they had complied
with the required standards as set out in the relevant written guidelines
during FY2015.

The Company has sent formal notifications to the Directors and Relevant
Employees reminding them of the “black-out period” as specified in the
Model Code during which they are not allowed to deal in the securities of
the Company at the relevant times.

Moreover, all Directors and employees are bound by corporate policies of
the Company to refrain from dealing in the Company's securities if they are
in possession of any inside information of the Group.
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Procedures and Internal Controls for Handling and
Dissemination of Inside Information

With the enactment of Part XIVA of the SFO in 2013, the duty of a listed
issuer to disclose inside information now becomes a statutory duty. Both
the listed issuer and its officers are responsible for the compliance of this
statutory duty. To comply with this statutory duty, our Group has a system
in place to promptly identify and escalate inside information to the Board
for appropriate action.

Established reporting and escalation system

We require all the operating units to fill in monthly questionnaires supplying
data and information relating to the business and corporate developments
and events which are possibly the subject of disclosure under Chapters 13,
14 and 14A of the Listing Rules and Part XIVA of the SFO. A list of subject
matters and thresholds which are required to be reported internally has
been maintained while the list of connected persons for internal reference
is reviewed regularly. We have also built in a reminder in the questionnaires
for the pre-approval requirements for transactions over a specified
threshold amount and stressing the importance of immediate disclosure of
inside information to the Company Secretary when such information is
identified or suspected between any reporting periods. The questionnaires
are reviewed and the Company Secretary will assess and if necessary
escalate to the Board so that the Board is kept abreast of all information
relating to the current performance of the Group, allowing it to make
informed judgment or assessments as to whether any significant change
has occurred in the operation and course of business of the Group.

Diligent board monitoring

Our operating units prepared regular reports and our management attend
monthly meetings to evaluate the business performance and financial
position of our Group. Pursuant to Code Provision C.1.2, the Group also
provides all Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) with
monthly management accounts of the Group for them to assess whether
any critical changes have occurred in the financial performance and
prospects of the business of the Group which constitute inside information
and require prompt disclosure by the Group.
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Continuous market observation

Corporate teams of the Group are responsible for gauging and monitoring
the fluctuation in share prices of the Company on the Stock Exchange and
screening media speculation, market rumours and analysts’ reports. This
exercise serves a few purposes, including (a) to understand the investors’
expectation and the market's sensitivity to provide background information
for the Directors to assess whether a significant discrepancy exists
between the expectation of the market and the Group's circumstances and
the likelihood of such information on the Group's circumstances will lead
to material share price movement when it is made public; (b) to monitor
whether confidentiality of the Group's inside information (that relies on a
safe harbour provision to withhold disclosure subject to the preservation of
confidentiality) has been leaked and therefore prompt disclosure is
immediately required; (c) to assess whether the Group should clarify media
news or market rumours in view of its possible influence in misleading the
market activities; and (d) to avoid the establishment of a false market in the
Company's securities.

Formalised communication channel

The Group has spokesmen policy which allows only designated and trained
executive Directors and senior management to hold meetings or briefings
or interviews with the media, analysts and investors. Attendance notes
and records are kept for future reference purpose. Besides, all enquires
from investors and analysts should be handled by our investor relations
team, while media interviews and media enquires should all be directed to
our corporate affairs team. No unauthorised persons should disclose any
information of the Group to outsiders. Requests from external parties in
the ordinary course of business of the Group for financial information or
operating data shall be approved by our finance department in order to
avoid any party sourcing material information related to the Group through
informal channels. So far as inside information is concerned, we will only
stick to the formal dissemination channel via the electronic publication
system operated by the Stock Exchange for equal and timely access by the
public.

Established disclosure policy

We adopted our own Policy on Disclosure of Inside Information in 2013
and circulated to all departments to raise awareness within our organisation
of the compliance requirements and responsibilities. Reminders are issued
to remind them of the Group's controls and procedures related to
disclosure of information whenever appropriate. Furthermore, Directors
have attended seminars and trainings to familiarise themselves with the
disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules and the SFO generally so
as to enable them to discharge their duties in an efficient and responsible
manner.

Board Governance
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CORPORATE CULTURE AND
MANAGEMENT

Corporate Culture

We believe that our commitment to ethical practices and critical oversight
on our organisational processes and structures has contributed to a strong
control environment. It enables our organisation to preserve its integrity
and be resilient to internal and external pressures. We consider “ethics”
and “science” are the two pillars in preserving integrity and disciplining
behaviour throughout the organisation.

Business Practices

With over 85 years of heritage, “Sincerity ® Eternity” has been our core
values and our brand is recognised for its trustworthiness and authenticity.
Early in the last century, we initiated launching standard specification of
gold jewellery fineness and implemented a “—[{&" (Fixed Price) Policy
which promoted price transparency and fair dealing with our customers.
Nowadays, various best practices have been well embedded in our
management system and operations. Adhering to the ethical and law-
abiding spirit in our business practices, we have been accredited by our
customers, business partners and other stakeholders. Our management
has demonstrated the visible model to lead our sustainable growth by
"“doing the right thing”.

More discussions on our corporate culture, fair business practices, mutual
trusting relationships with our stakeholders are shown in the Corporate
Social Responsibility on pages 137 to 154.

Systematic Management

Systematic management infrastructure and scientific analysis have been
the key to the internal controls on our business activities and governance
in our organisational behaviour supporting a sustainable growth in the scale
of operations.

Demonstration of our management by performance indicators are shown
in the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 19 to 84.
Discussions on the Internal Control System and Risk Management are
detailed in the sections below.
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Corporate Culture and Management
PEIERER

Our major initiatives in the year R{FFEANEEE K

We have successfully rolled out the POS audit programme during the year to cover all of our stores in Mainland China, Hong
Kong and Macau to assure the protection of inventories and cash and the operational compliance over our extensive retail
network.

fi@ﬂljﬁﬁﬁji@%ﬂtﬂwm - BBMBRPIBMENSEREZTE  ERMNEANTSERARPHRETE HeNEENSG
81 o

The use of management information system and technology has been highly supportive in building our centralised monitoring
systems in view of our organisation size and geographical horizon. Our self-developed ICS RFID-technology Development
Project successfully integrates RFID and loT technologies with our logistics management, inventory management and sales
operation. Please refer to Management Discussion and Analysis — Operations section for details.

ERRMNESRERMEEE - EREREREZRRBRAIAN SRR REZEZGHER - RIFIBTHEAICSERET SRR
ﬂ’%?ilﬁﬂEEUJH%?%%?EWEE‘E%EU&%H%%Tﬁiﬁﬁﬂé\ﬁé%ﬁﬁﬁ FEEEMAERT - HEF2H [BEERREST — 2E&]
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Our internal audit function reviews our major operational, financial, compliance and risk management controls on a continual
basis. The internal audit findings are timely communicated to our management to further follow up. We have already
completed the first cycle of three-year audit plan so far.

BANANEZRERFERS EREE - M5 - AR MEREEES - ANBZERATHRNEREER  WESRE - B
B R =FE T8N E @A -

The annual risk management cycle has become our regular exercise while the various business units participate in identifying
and mitigating the potential risks existed in the respective operations. Risk awareness has been enhanced in our Group after
experiencing the first and second risk management cycle.

FRREBREZFANEEET  SEXFEMSEEH MEHZREETNEERR - BERE _ERREEBHE - AEEH
BB BEMES o

We have increased promoting the whistleblowing policy which is open for all staff members to raise concerns about possible
improprieties. The policy reinforces our determination in preserving an integrity culture in all levels of organisation.
BME MRS ERWMEIE - AFRREEMEELAIROREFTREBETETRANEE - ZFHERMABFINEES EmBRHIEN
Ry e

Internal Control and Audit REPEEIE R B
The Board'’s oversight on internal control system ESSEENDEZRSR

The Board is responsible for the internal control of the Group and for EEEEEAEENANBEEEE - WEFimF HREE -
reviewing its effectiveness annually. In the year under review, the Board REBEFERN EXGFRATZZESRTAEEN

has reviewed, through the Audit Committee, the Group's internal control NBELERF - BEESHMT UBETNEREEY
system and is not aware of any significant issues that would have an NEPEEIE R R TE R MR TN E o JLIER
adverse impact on the effectiveness and adequacy of the internal control &f 73 1R #& Committee of Sponsoring Organisations of
system. The review is based on the internal control model set down by the the Treadway Commission (COSO) 28/ K A £ EX 22 15
Committee of Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway Commission AMEL  EPRENBESERNEENZIRE -
(COSO0) which covers the areas of control environment, risk assessment, EBRFEE  EHIEE) c AR RIBE R ESTE - 52
control activities, information and communication and monitoring within FrIEE (BT RETSHIBEEARER - BX
the Group. These procedures provide reasonable but not absolute SR HREF ©

assurance against material errors or losses or fraud.
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Internal control system

Procedure manuals and operational guidelines are applied in every segment
of our vertically integrated business model. In addition, we compiled the
Group Internal Control Manual setting out procedures for safeguarding
assets against unauthorised use or disposition, ensuring maintenance of
proper accounting records for the provision of reliable financial information
for internal use or for publication, and ensuring compliance of applicable
laws, rules and regulations.

The use of management information system and technology has been
highly supportive in building our centralised monitoring systems to place
tight control over the business activities in view of our organisation size
and geographical horizon. It allows close tracking of various inputs and
outputs of our business such as raw materials, human resources, our
products and customer relationship. It also traps audit trails in the
authorisation system. User permissions and responsibility of authorisation
are clearly defined and adequate records can be maintained in the system.

Reports and variance analysis of each segment in the upstream, midstream
and downstream, such as the performance of each POS and each product
category are easily accessible. The transparent information flow alerts us
promptly of deviations. Benchmarking with historical database and
comparables also acts as a detection device for unusualness.

During the year, in order to reinforce our internal control system, we have
conducted special review on certain processes, such as collection of
accounts receivable, trade-in of recycled gold from customers, contracts
tendering and IT security.

We have also rolled out a new programme of POS audit to strengthen the
monitoring controls in our POS. With the aid of self-developed computer
programme, POS audit can be easily carried out and its results can be
accessible, analysed and reviewed timely.

In addition, we are upgrading Enterprise Resource Planning System to
increase efficiency and strengthen controls. We also invited our internal
auditor’s early involvement to give advice in the design and implementation
of the new system.

Internal audit function

Our internal audit team co-operated with PricewaterhouseCoopers to
review our major operational, financial, compliance and risk management
controls on a continual basis. The internal audit works are scheduled in a
three-year audit plan, which is reviewed by the Audit Committee annually.
The audit plan is designed based on risk assessment. It aims at covering
each significant business unit involved in the Group's day-to-day
management within a reasonable period.
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During the year under review, the internal audit team has completed
review of the Group's financial controls, procurement and production
management, human resources and IT system controls. They prepared
reports and communicated their findings and recommendations to the
responsible business units and circulated to the Audit Committee. The
internal audit team held three meetings to discuss with the Audit
Committee and the executive Directors on the highlights of their findings.
The management is responsible for taking appropriate actions to rectify
any control deficiencies highlighted in the internal audit reports and the
Risk Management Committee follows up with the business units for the
implementation progress of those internal control recommendations so
that the issues raised by the internal audit team are properly resolved
within a reasonable period subject to the priority of risks. During FY2015,
the audit team did not raise any significant issues on the Group's internal
control system.

Risk Management

Risk governance structure and oversight

The Enterprise Risk Management Policy Manual laid down the rules for the
determination of risk management strategy, designed the platform for
continuous risk management process, and developed an enterprise-wide
risk management structure from accountability at business unit level to
leadership role at Board level. The Board is responsible for determining the
Group's risk profile with the appropriate risk appetite and formulating the
Group's risk management strategies. Business units, departments, divisions
and individuals are responsible for carrying out risk management activities
and measures to mitigate risks in their day-to-day operations. The risk
management system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk
of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Risk reporting
Bk RE

Risk identification

22 B 58

Risk
monitoring

EREE

Risk management process

R EERE

Risk analysis

B2 AT

Risk mitigation

E R RES

Risk evaluation

[ B ST (E
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As part of our commitment to establishing and maintaining a robust and
practical risk management framework in order to provide reasonable
assurance for the achievement of the Group's strategic directives, the Risk
Management Committee was set up in 2012, comprising the Managing
Director and other four executive Directors, and senior executives of the
Group. The Risk Management Committee is responsible for (i) building up
and leading the enterprise risk management processes, (ii) assessing and
prioritising key risks and (iii) assigning risk ownership and overseeing the
progress of works of risk owners. It aims at ensuring that effective internal
controls and continuous improvement measures are in place to mitigate
risks of strategic or external environment, financial, operational and
compliance nature with respect to the conduct of the Group's business.

The Audit Committee received half-yearly risk management reports and
had held regular meetings with the Risk Management Committee during
FY2015 to review the implementation of our risk management activities.
Accordingly, the Audit Committee concludes that they are not aware of
any significant issues that would have had an adverse impact on the
effectiveness and adequacy of the Group's risk management system in the
year under review.

Risk management process

The Group identifies and assesses risks both at the Group level and the
business unit level. The Risk Management Committee monitors and
updates the Group's risk profile and exposure and reviews the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system in mitigating risks.

Our annual risk management cycle starts with business units’ risk
registers. Heads of business units review and update respective risk
registers, which should set out key risks within their area of accountability.
This regular exercise aims at providing assurance that controls are
embedded and effective within the business and raising the awareness to
the potential risks and impact in their existing operation and identified
areas requiring further attention and work done in order to mitigate those
risks. At the end of the year, they evaluate on the progress and re-
assessed the risks level and the Risk Management Committee compiles a
report to the Audit Committee.

In this year, the Risk Management Committee completed the first annual
cycle of risk management. The respective management responsible for
human resources, supply chain, reputation and policy and procedures have
undertaken their responsibilities and rolled out measures and action plans
to mitigate these major risks identified in the first annual cycle. Since these
measures took time to show their results, most of their risk levels
remained the same.
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For the second annual cycle of risk management, the risks identified from
the risk registers were classified into four categories: strategic, operational,
financial and compliance. Risks are assessed based on an evaluation of
their potential impact and likelihood of occurrence. For example, possible
influence on financial liquidity resulting from the slowing down of inventory
turnover and potential impact on sales performance under challenging
economic conditions, among other things, are identified and analysed, for
which the corresponding mitigating measures are discussed in
Management Discussion and Analysis — Market Development, Products,
Branding and Marketing sections on pages 52 to 73.

Whistleblowing Policy

During the year, we have increased promoting the whistleblowing policy
which is open for all staff members to raise concerns, in confidence, about
possible improprieties in any matters related to the Group and
implemented a few improvements on the protocols to streamline the
handling processes. All incidents were promptly followed up by delegated
persons in accordance with the policy. Investigation results were
communicated to the Audit Committee and relevant executive Directors.

The aim of establishing the whistleblowing policy is to detect and rectify
control weaknesses at the earliest stage. More importantly, the policy
reinforces our determination in preserving an integrity culture in all levels
of our organisation.

Corporate Culture and Management
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
ESROREEAEBN

Executive Directors Responsibilities
HITES BE
Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry* (Chairman) NC, RC Strategic direction and overall performance of the Group
BRMAEB L (F/E) NEE KRG 7 5 REEGERIR
Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent (Managing Director) NC, RC Overall management of the Group
HIAESE (BEFRLIE) REENEEER
Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian* Branding and marketing activities and e-commerce operations
B A E mEERRMISHE G AREFEBEE
Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy?* Procurement of diamonds and gemstones and production
#EE L E management
A BEORBUREEER
Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong Mainland China operations
BRit B A& FR B A 2 S
Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert Diamond procurement and operations of Diamond Department
PREE A4 A 8B 2 A TR B
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton Financial management and company secretarial functions
B IRER S A BRI N WERE
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter Hong Kong and Macau and overseas operations
AR AE VR R KGN 2 R
Non-Executive Directors Responsibilities
FHITES BE
Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson# Bank and landlord relationship management
R ERIR S RITREFBARERE
Mr. Koo Tong-Fat Procurement of raw materials — coloured stones,
HEELA jadeite and pearls

R (EEER BRRLIKR) KB

Independent Non-Executive Directors Responsibilities
BYEHTES BE
Mr. Cheng Ming-Fun, Paul AC, NC Independent non-executive Directors serve a significant role in
g Pte the Board to bring independent judgment on the performance,
Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor NC*, RC development and risk management of the Group. As chairmen or
E R A members of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon e e Remuneration Committee, they also undertake detailed
)%Bf.!fé‘ﬁﬁ‘ﬁi ' ' governance work under their respective terms of reference
Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey e | BUIBSTERNEESNEAEERA  HARENRS - R
i 2 ' ' RERERBGETEVIER - (FREREZES REZESRFME
, _ BENFEERKE  RETREBESENBELETERBNERIE
Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond RC*, AC, NC
BB E L
NC = Nomination Committee member
REEERRKE
RC = Remuneration Committee member
FMZEB RN A

AC = Audit Committee member
EREZERKE

* Committee Chairman
ZREEIR
# Four Directors are family members related to the Company’s major shareholders. Apart from them, all other Directors are not related to each other.

MEEERERRREZRREBORERE - BRE 2 ERMERZ ML HEE -
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Chairman and Executive Director

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, GBS

Aged 68, joined the Group in 1971, was appointed as Chairman and an
executive Director in July 2011 and is a member of the Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company. Dr. Cheng is
responsible for the strategic direction and overall performance of the
Group. He is a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Dr. Cheng is
also chairman and an executive director of New World Development
Company Limited, chairman and managing director of New World China
Land Limited, chairman and an executive director of NWS Holdings Limited
and International Entertainment Corporation, chairman and a non-executive
director of New World Department Store China Limited and Newton
Resources Ltd, a non-executive director of SUM Holdings Limited, and an
independent non-executive director of HKR International Limited and Hang
Seng Bank Limited (appointed on 26 May 2014), all of which are listed
public companies in Hong Kong. He was a non-executive director of
Lifestyle International Holdings Limited until his retirement on 4 May 2015.
In addition, Dr. Cheng is also a director of several substantial shareholders
of the Company, including Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited,
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings Il) Limited, Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited
and Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited and its subsidiary, Chow Tai Fook
Enterprises Limited. Dr. Cheng is chairman of the Advisory Council for The
Better Hong Kong Foundation and a Standing Committee Member of the
Twelfth Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. Dr. Cheng is
the eldest son of Dato’ Dr. Cheng Yu-Tung, the father of Dr. Cheng Chi-
Kong, Adrian, an uncle of Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy, a cousin of Mr.
Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson and Mr. Cheng Sek-Hung, Timothy and a nephew
of Mr. Cheng Yu-Wai.

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent

Aged 59, joined the Group in 1977, was appointed as Managing Director in
July 2011 and is a member of the Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Wong is responsible for
the overall management of the Group. Mr. Wong has diverse experience in
both operations and management. He was responsible for developing the
Group's market in Mainland China and in 2008 he was promoted to
managing director of Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Company Limited. He is
also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group and a director of
Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited, which is a subsidiary of a substantial
shareholder of the Company. Mr. Wong is a member of the 2015 fair
organising committee of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council for its
Hong Kong International Jewellery Show and Hong Kong International
Diamond, Gem and Pearl Show, chairman of the Hong Kong Jewellers’ &
Goldsmiths’ Association Ltd., chairman of the supervising committee of
the Hong Kong & Kowloon Jewellers’ & Goldsmiths’ Employees’
Association Ltd, a vice chairman of the Gems & Jewelry Trade Association
of China, a member of Hong Kong Consumer Council, vice-chairman of the
Yantian District General Chamber of Commerce and a member of the
Yantian Committee of Chinese People's Political Consultative Conference.
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Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian

Aged 35, joined the Group in 2007, was appointed as an executive Director
in July 2011. Dr. Cheng is responsible for the branding and marketing
activities, customer relationship management and e-commerce operations
of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Dr. Cheng worked at UBS AG from
September 2003 to April 2006. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Group, a director of a substantial shareholder of the Company,
Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited and its subsidiary, Chow Tai Fook
Enterprises Limited. Dr. Cheng is executive vice-chairman and joint general
manager of New World Development Company Limited, an executive
director of New World China Land Limited, New World Department Store
China Limited and International Entertainment Corporation, and a non-
executive director of Giordano International Limited and Modern Media
Holdings Limited, all of which are listed public companies in Hong Kong.
Dr. Cheng is also chairman of New World Group Charity Foundation
Limited, the vice-chairman of the All-China Youth Federation, a member of
the Tianjin Municipal Committee of The Chinese People's Political
Consultative Conference, a vice-chairman of the Youth Federation of the
Central State-owned Enterprises, chairman of the China Young Leaders
Foundation, and honorary chairman of K11 Art Foundation and a member
of the board of the West Kowloon Cultural District Authority. Dr. Cheng
holds a Bachelor of Arts degree (cum laude) from Harvard University and
was conferred the Honorary Doctorate of Humanities by the Savannah
College of Art and Design. Dr. Cheng is a grandson of Dato’ Dr. Cheng Yu-
Tung, a son of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, a cousin of Mr. Cheng Chi-
Heng, Conroy, a nephew of Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson and Mr. Cheng
Sek-Hung, Timothy and a grandnephew of Mr. Cheng Yu-Wai.

Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy

Aged 37, joined the Group in 2007, was appointed as an executive Director
in July 2011. Mr. Cheng is responsible for procurement of diamonds and
gemstones as well as production management. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Cheng had worked at Yu Ming Investment Management Limited from
1999 to 2000 as a corporate finance executive. Mr. Cheng is an executive
director of New World Development Company Limited and a non-executive
director of China Huishan Dairy Holdings Company Limited, both of which
are listed public companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Cheng is also a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Group and a director of a substantial shareholder
of the Company, Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited and its subsidiary,
Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited. He holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Economics from The University of Western Ontario. He is a member of the
executive committee of the Diamond Federation of Hong Kong, China Ltd..
Mr. Cheng is a grandson of Dato’ Dr. Cheng Yu-Tung, a nephew of Dr.
Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, Mr. Cheng Kam- Biu, Wilson and Mr. Cheng Sek-
Hung, Timothy, a cousin of Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian and a grandnephew
of Mr. Cheng Yu-Wai.
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Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong

Aged 52, joined the Group in 1985, was appointed as an executive Director
in July 2011. Mr. Chan is responsible for the Group's operations in
Mainland China. Mr. Chan has been in the jewellery industry for 34 years.
He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Chan is a non-
executive director of Giordano International Limited, which is a listed public
company in Hong Kong. Mr. Chan is a member of the Hong Kong Trade
Development Council Jewellery Advisory Committee, an administrative
director of the Gems and Jewellery Trade Association of China, an
executive vice-chairman of the Guangdong Gold and Silver Jewellery
Chamber of Commerce, a vice-chairman of the Shenzhen Gold & Jewellery
Association, a general vice-chairman of Gold Association of Guangdong
Province, a vice-chairman of the Guangdong Golden Jewellery and Jade
Industry’s Association and a director of the Gemmological Institute, China
University of Geosciences (Wuhan).

Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert

Aged 64, joined the Group in 1977, was appointed as an executive Director
in July 2011. Mr. Chan is responsible for diamond procurement and
operations of the Group’s Diamond Department. He is also a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Chan holds a Bachelor's degree in
Business from Western lIllinois University. Mr. Chan is a Graduate
Gemologist of the Gemological Institute of America, a Fellow of The
Gemmological Association of Great Britain and a Lifetime Member of the
Gemological Institute of America, Alumni Association.

Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton

Aged 40, joined the Group in 2004, was appointed as an executive Director
in July 2011. Mr. Cheng is the Finance Director and Company Secretary of
the Group and is responsible for the Group’s financial management and
company secretarial functions. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Group. Mr. Cheng holds a Bachelor of Business Administration
degree in Professional Accountancy from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a Fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a Chartered Financial Analyst. He is also a member of the
Company Secretaries Panel of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries.

Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter

Aged 50, joined the Group in 1985, was appointed as an executive Director
in July 2011. Mr. Suen is a general manager who is responsible for the
Group's Hong Kong, Macau and overseas operations. He is also a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Suen holds an Executive Master's
degree in Business Administration from The Chinese University of
Hong Kong.
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Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson

Aged 56, joined the Group in 1979, was appointed as a non-executive
Director in July 2011. Mr. Cheng is responsible for the Group’s bank and
landlord relationship management. Mr. Cheng is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group and a director of Chow Tai Fook Enterprises
Limited, a subsidiary of a substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr.
Cheng is currently an executive director of International Entertainment
Corporation, which is a listed public company in Hong Kong. Mr. Cheng is
a vice-president of The Chinese Gold and Silver Exchange Society. Mr.
Cheng holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics from the University of
Hawaii, Honolulu. Mr. Cheng is a nephew of Dato’ Dr. Cheng Yu-Tung, a
cousin of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry and Mr. Cheng Sek-Hung, Timothy,
an uncle of Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian and Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy
and a nephew of Mr. Cheng Yu-Wai.

Mr. Koo Tong-Fat

Aged 64, joined the Group in 1985, was appointed as a non-executive
Director in July 2011. He is responsible for the procurement of raw
materials — coloured stones, jadeite and pearls of the Group. Mr. Koo has
been in the jewellery industry for 39 years. He is also a director of a
subsidiary of the Group. Mr. Koo holds a continuing education certificate in
operations management from the City Polytechnic of Hong Kong and the
Hong Kong Productivity Council. Mr. Koo is accounting director of the Hong
Kong Jewellers’ & Goldsmiths' Association.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Cheng Ming-Fun, Paul, JP

Aged 78, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director in
September 2012 and is a member of the Audit Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company. Mr. Cheng holds a Bachelor of Arts degree
from Lake Forest College (lllinois, the United States) and a Master's degree
in Business Administration from the Wharton Graduate School of Business
at The University of Pennsylvania. He is deputy chairman and an
independent non-executive director of Esprit Holdings Limited, a listed
public company in Hong Kong; and an independent non-executive director
of Global Logistic Properties Limited (a company listed on the Singapore
Stock Exchange) and Pacific Alliance China Land Limited (a company listed
on the AIM Board of the London Stock Exchange). In addition, he is a
director of the CHG Capital Growth Fund. He was an independent non-
executive director of Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited and Pou Sheng
International (Holdings) Limited, which are both listed public companies in
Hong Kong. He was also an independent non-executive chairman of
Vietnam Infrastructure Limited, which is listed on the AIM Board of the
London Stock Exchange, until his resignation in June 2014. He was a
former member of the Hong Kong Legislative Council as well as the former
chairman of Inchcape Pacific Limited, N M Rothschild & Sons (Hong Kong)
Limited, The Link Management Limited and the Hong Kong General
Chamber of Commerce.
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Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor, GBM, GBS, CBE

Aged 69, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director in
November 2011 and is chairman of the Nomination Committee and a
member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Dr. Fung holds
Bachelor’'s and Master’'s Degrees in Electrical Engineering from the
Massachusetts Institute of Technology and a Doctorate in Business
Economics from Harvard University. He is group chairman of the Fung
Group, a Hong Kong based multinational which comprises major
subsidiaries in trading, logistics, distribution and retailing. They include
publicly-listed Li & Fung Limited, Global Brands Group Holding Limited,
Convenience Retail Asia Limited and Trinity Limited. He is also honorary
chairman of Li & Fung Limited. In addition, Dr. Fung is an independent non-
executive director of Koc Holding A.S. (a company listed on the Istanbul
Stock Exchange), and China Petrochemical Corporation (PRC). He was an
independent non-executive director of Baosteel Group Corporation (PRC)
from October 2005 to January 2013, and BOC Hong Kong (Holdings)
Limited (Hong Kong) from June 2002 to 11 June 2014. In public service,
Dr. Fung is a member of the Chinese People's Political Consultative
Conference. He is also a member of the Economic Development
Commission of the Hong Kong Government, and chairman of the Steering
Committee on the Hong Kong Scholarship for Excellence Scheme from
September 2014. Dr. Fung was chairman of the Hong Kong Trade
Development Council (1991-2000), the Hong Kong representative on the
APEC Business Advisory Council (1996-2003), chairman of the Hong Kong
Airport Authority (1999-2008), chairman of the Council of The University of
Hong Kong (2001-2009), chairman of the Hong Kong-Japan Business
Cooperation Committee (2004-2010), chairman of the Greater Pearl River
Delta Business Council (2004-February 2013) and a member of the
Commission on Strategic Development of the Hong Kong Government
(2005-June 2012), chairman of the International Chamber of Commerce
("ICC") (2008-2010) and World Trade Agenda Initiative of ICC's G20
Advisory Group (2013-2014), a member of WTO Panel on Defining the
Future of Trade (2012-April 2013) and a vice chairman of China Centre for
International Economic Exchanges (March 2009-October 2014). The
Government of Hong Kong awarded Dr. Fung the Gold Bauhinia Star in
2003 and the Grand Bauhinia Medal in 2010 for his distinguished service to
the community in Hong Kong.

Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon

Aged 65, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director in
November 2011 and is chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of
the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Kwong is an
independent non-executive director of Agile Property Holdings Limited,
China COSCO Holdings Company Limited, China Power International
Development Limited, CITIC Telecom International Holdings Limited,
Global Digital Creations Holdings Limited, Henderson Investment Limited,
Henderson Land Development Company Limited, NWS Holdings Limited,
and OP Financial Investments Limited, all of which are listed public
companies in Hong Kong. He was also an independent non-executive
director of Quam Limited until his retirement in September 2012, an
independent non-executive director of China Chengtong Development
Group Limited until his resignation on 1 November 2013 and an
independent supervisor of the supervisory committee of Beijing Capital
International Airport Company Limited until his resignation on 30 June
2014 upon completion of his term. Mr. Kwong was a Partner of
PriceWaterhouse from 1984 to 1998, an independent member of the
Council of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange from 1992 to 1997, during
which, he had acted as convener of both the Compliance Committee and
the Listing Committee.
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Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey, GBS, JP

Aged 63, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director in
November 2011 and is a member of the Audit Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company. Mr. Lam is also an independent non-executive
director of C C Land Holdings Limited, China Overseas Grand Oceans
Group Limited, Bracell Limited (formerly known as Sateri Holdings Limited),
Wynn Macau, Limited and HNA International Investment Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Shougang Concord Technology Holdings Limited), all of
which are listed public companies in Hong Kong. He was also an
independent non-executive director of Hsin Chong Construction Group
Limited until his resignation on 10 May 2014. Mr. Lam is a member of the
National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference. He also holds a number of other public and community
service positions including being a non-official member of the Executive
Council and a member of the Legislative Council in Hong Kong, chairman
of the Assessment Committee of Mega Events Fund, a member of the
board of Airport Authority Hong Kong, a council member of Hong Kong
Trade Development Council, a general committee member of the Hong
Kong General Chamber of Commerce, a member of Independent
Commission Against Corruption Complaints Committee and a member of
the Fight Crime Committee.

Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond, SBS, JP

Aged 65, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director in
November 2011 and is chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a
member of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company. Dr. Or is also chairman, chief executive officer and an executive
director of China Strategic Holdings Limited, vice-chairman and an
independent non-executive director of G-Resources Group Limited,
chairman and an independent non-executive director of Esprit Holdings
Limited, and an independent non-executive director of Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China Limited and Television Broadcasts Limited, all
of which are listed public companies in Hong Kong. Dr. Or was a former
vice-chairman of Hang Seng Bank Limited until his retirement in May 2009.
Dr. Or was deputy chairman of the Council of City University of Hong Kong
until 31 December 2013.
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Honorary Chairman

Dato’ Dr. Cheng Yu-Tung, GBM

Aged 89, joined the Group in 1947, was appointed as Company's honorary
chairman and a non-executive Director in July 2011. He retired from the
position of non-executive Director in December 2012 and retained the title
of Honorary Chairman. Dr. Cheng is a director of several substantial
shareholders of the Company, including Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings)
Limited, Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings Il) Limited, Chow Tai Fook
Capital Limited and Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited and its subsidiary,
Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited. Dr. Cheng is the father of Dr. Cheng
Kar-Shun, Henry, the grandfather of Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian and Mr.
Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy, an uncle of Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson and Mr.
Cheng Sek-Hung, Timothy and the brother of Mr. Cheng Yu Wai.

Honorary Advisers to the Board of Directors

Mr. Ho Pak-Tao

Aged 84, joined the Group in 1947, was appointed as an honorary adviser
to the Board with effect from August 2011 and is responsible for advising
on research and development. Mr. Ho is also a director of a substantial
shareholder of the Company, Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited and its
subsidiary, Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited.

Mr. Wong Kwok-Ting

Aged 84, joined the Group in 1947, was appointed as an honorary adviser
to the Board with effect from August 2011 and is responsible for advising
on procurement. Mr. Wong is also a director of a substantial shareholder of
the Company, Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited and its subsidiary,
Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited.

Mr. Cheng Yu-Wai

Aged 83, joined the Group in 1949, was appointed as an honorary adviser
to the Board with effect from August 2011 and is responsible for advising
on procurement. Mr. Cheng is also a director of a substantial shareholder
of the Company, Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited and its subsidiary,
Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited. Mr. Cheng is a brother of Dato’
Dr. Cheng Yu-Tung, an uncle of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, Mr. Cheng
Kam-Biu, Wilson and Mr. Cheng Sek-Hung, Timothy, and a granduncle of
Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong Adrian and Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy.

Mr. Cheng Sek-Hung, Timothy

Aged 64, joined the Group in 1994, was appointed as an honorary adviser
to the Board with effect from August 2011. Mr. Cheng is a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Cheng is also a director of a
substantial shareholder of the Company, Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited
and its subsidiary, Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited. Mr. Cheng is a
nephew of Dato’ Dr. Cheng Yu-Tung, a cousin of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun,
Henry, an uncle of Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong Adrian and Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng,
Conroy, a cousin of Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson and a nephew of Mr.
Cheng Yu-Wai.
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Senior Management

Dr. Tan Guet-Lan, Lauren

Aged 48, joined the Group in 2011, is General Counsel of the Group. She is
responsible for overseeing the Legal Department of the Group. Dr. Tan is a
lawyer with over 20 years of international legal experience in regional and
global roles in Asia, North America and Europe providing legal advice and
support to multinational and start-up companies at both management and
operational level.

Mr. Chan Yee-Pong, Alan

Aged 43, joined the Group in 2010, is deputy general manager of the Group
and director of the Branding Department. Mr. Chan is mainly responsible
for the branding and marketing activities of the Group. Mr. Chan has over
20 years of experience in luxury branding and marketing.

Mr. Tsang Siu-Kwong

Aged 44, joined the Group in 1993, is deputy general manager of the Group
and head of the Management Information System Department. Mr. Tsang
is mainly responsible for the information system of the Group. Mr. Tsang
has over 22 years of experience in information technology.

Mr. Chan Chi Kong, Morison

Aged 48, joined the Group in 2012, is deputy general manager of the
Group. Mr. Chan is responsible for corporate planning and the related
affairs of the Group. Mr. Chan has over 25 years of experience in
accounting, auditing, corporate finance and management. He is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators, and a Chartered Financial Analyst. Mr. Chan is the past
Chairman of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants Hong
Kong. He is currently a member of the Financial Reporting Review Panel of
the Financial Reporting Council, Human Resources Development
Management Committee of the Hong Kong Management Association and
Council of Management of the Hong Chi Association.

Mr. Lau King Ming

Aged 48, joined the Group in 2013, is a deputy general manager of the
Group. Mr. Lau is responsible for the management of Chow Tai Fook
Jewellery Park in Wuhan. Mr. Lau has over 25 years of management and
consultancy experience. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lau was the
principal consultant of the Hong Kong Productivity Council.

Mr. Wong Kim-Ming, Mark

Aged 53, joined the Group in 1986, is senior manager of the Diamond
Department. Mr. Wong is responsible for the operation of the Diamond
Department and diamond manufacturing management of the Group.
Mr. Wong has over 28 years of experience in the jewellery industry.
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Mr. Cheng Ming-Chi

Aged 43, joined the Group in 1994, is senior manager in the Procurement
(Gemstones) Department. Mr. Cheng is responsible for managing and
purchasing gemstones such as jadeite, colour stones and pearls for
the Group. Mr. Cheng has over 20 years of experience in the
jewellery industry.

Mr. Lam Hung Shing, Max

Aged 32, joined the Group in 2011, is creative director of the Group. He is
responsible for the design and development of jewellery products. Mr.
Lam has over 11 years of experience in Jewellery design. He was awarded
Hong Kong Ten Outstanding Designer Award in 2014 and is an adjunct
professor of the Shanghai International College of Fashion and Innovation,
Donghua University.

Mr. Tam Chun-Wah, Daniel

Aged 52, joined the Group in 2011, is head of Production Management
Centre of the Group. Mr. Tam is responsible for the Group's production
management. He has over 22 years of experience in jewellery
manufacturing and 7 years of experience in gold inventory management.

Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby

Aged 41, joined the Group in 1999, is the general manager responsible for
managing the Mainland China Management Centre. He has also been
responsible for developing the Group’s e-commerce and high-end luxury
jewellery business in Mainland China since 2010. Mr. Liu has over 16 years
of experience in retail and administrative management.

Mr. Wong Tang, Alex

Aged 56, joined the Group in 2000, is the general manager responsible for
managing the Hong Kong and Macau Management Centre and
Chow Tai Fook Fei Cui Testing Centre of the Group. Mr. Wong has over 41
years of experience in the jewellery industry. Mr. Wong holds an Executive
Master's degree in Business Administration from The Chinese University
of Hong Kong. He is also a Graduate Gemologist of the Gemological
Institute of America and a Certified Gemmologist (Fei Cui) of the
Gemmological Association of Hong Kong Limited.
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report of the Company together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
FY2015.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group's core
business is manufacturing and selling of mass luxury and high-end luxury
jewellery including gem-set products, gold products and platinum/karat
gold products; and distributing watches of various brands. The activities of
the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group's revenue is derived from business activities conducted in
Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau and other markets. An analysis of the
Group's revenue and results is set out in note 7 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Results and Appropriation

The results of the Group for FY2015 are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 163.

The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK15.0
cents per share for FY2015 (FY2014: HK19.0 cents per share), amounting
to approximately HK$1,500.0 million (FY2014: HK$1,900.0 million). Such
payment of dividends will be subject to the approval of shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Friday,
31 July 2015 and are payable to shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company at the close of business on Tuesday,
11 August 2015. Together with the interim dividend of HK13.0 cents per
share paid in January 2015, the total distribution of dividend by the
Company for FY2015 will be HK28.0 cents per share (FY2014: HK36.0
cents). The payment date of the final dividend is expected to be on or
about 19 August 2015.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment during the year
are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

Financial Summary

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 244.
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Share Capital

Details of the Company’s share capital are set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements. There is no movement in the share
capital during the year.

Reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 March 2015 amounted to
approximately HK$5,536.8 million (31 March 2014: HK$5,535.2 million).

Movements in reserves of the Group during the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 166.

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the laws
of the Cayman Islands.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities

The Company had not redeemed any of its listed securities during the year.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased or sold any
of the Company's listed securities during the year.

Directors
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry
Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent

Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian
Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy
Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong

Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson
Mr. Koo Tong-Fat

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Cheng Ming-Fun, Paul

Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor

Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon

Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey

Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond
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In accordance with article 84 of the Articles, Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong, Mr.
Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton, Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson, Mr. Cheng Ming-
Fun, Paul and Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond will retire at the forth coming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and the Company considers that all of the independent
non-executive Directors are independent.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contracts of significance in
relation to the Group's business to which the Company, its holding
company and any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which any Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the financial year or at any time during the reporting year.

Continuing Connected Transactions

The Group has certain ongoing transactions carried on with connected
persons with expected annual transaction amounts exceeding the “de
minimis” exemption threshold and therefore the Company reports these
non-exempt continuing connected transactions during FY2015 under the
Listing Rules. These transactions are mainly related to lease of premises
and sale and purchase of goods. Information about the connected persons
is shown on page 129. Details of these transactions are set out in the
tables below.
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Lease of premises ¥J%iE

Name of counterparties

REHTER

Main purposes of
the leases

HEXEME

Master/framework
agreement date
REMESR B ER

Next renewal date

CTFE
BAARBERE

Standalone retail
shops,industrial and
office uses in
Hong Kong

MEENEILTERE -
TERBRAERE

28 November 2011*

2011411 H288*

31 March 2017

NWD
SRR

Offices and standalone
retail shops in
Hong Kong

28 November 2011/
11 April 2014

20114114288/
201448118

30 June 2017

NWDS
MHtREE

Concessionaire
counters operated in
department stores in
Mainland China

RABERMEE QR
PR EE

22 March 2012**

20123 4220 **

30 June 2017

Lifestyle International

FEER

Concessionaire
counters operated in
department stores in
both Hong Kong and
Mainland China

B K B A
BEARFREE

29 November 2011*

2011411 H298*

31 March 2017

TREZEAER 201743 A31H 201746 A30H 201746 A30H 201743 A31H
Annual cap approved and actual amount incurred for FY2015 (HK$million)
2015 BEFEENBHEFE LR EEREESE(AEST)
Annual cap 106.0 141.0 263.0 57.0
FELR
Amount incurred 78.4 116.0 90.6 19.1%
ERBESHE
Annual cap approved for subsequent financial years (HK$million)
HEMBFENEIEFE LR (BEAT)
FY2016 108.0 178.0 348.0 74.0
20168 B2
FY2017 108.0 199.0 455.0 97.0
20178 U R

Notes st -

*

%%

#

These agreements were renewed on 1 April 2014.

This agreement was renewed on 1 July 2014.

Real Reward Limited, which is 50% indirectly owned by the Company’s substantial shareholder CTF Holding
sold down its interests in Lifestyle International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1212) (“Lifestyle
International”) on 21 October 2014 whereupon Lifestyle International ceased to be an associate of CTF
Holding nor a connected person of the Company. Actual amount of continuing connected transactions for
FY2015 shown above represented the transactions incurred during the period from 1 April 2014 to 20

October 2014.

* ZEBHER2014F4R1BEH -

> ZRER2014F7 A1 AEE -

A B B AR R B K AR 15 AR i 7 7 50 % 25 9 Real Reward Limited
R2014F10 A2 R HEREMBAEREEMER A
1212) ([FEER ) O zRE - FIRERFBREAE
MABABARRNBEAT - FXAFI2015 HBFEH
R&#81E201454 A1 BE 20144 10 A 20 B HAR Frige

FEK&E2015F F ik
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Sale and purchase of goods $EERBE S @

Name of counterparties

REUTER

Major types of sale and purchase of goods

HERBEERMIEREA

Master/framework agreement date
e TEZR W B

Next renewal date
TREEZBH

NWDS
MHEREE

Use of shopping vouchers,
prepaid shopping cards,
joint name vouchers etc.
to purchase goods at NWDS stores,
and settlement of respective
purchase value, commissions
and rebates, where appropriate
EREES  BNEYREBEEESS
R REEENEEER - WAR
MEEEEEE  Me k&R (ER)

22 March 2012/11 April 2014
201243 H22H /20144 A 11 8

30 June 2017
201746 A30H

NWCL
MUERPEE

Use of gift vouchers to purchase goods
in our Group's POS and settlement of
respective voucher value and rebates;
sale of gold products

ﬁﬁ]?@%ﬁzﬁﬁlﬁﬁ"r EHEERER
BIHERSEERE
:.,fi\éuu

19 March 2013***
2013F3 19 H ***

30 June 2015
201546 A30H

Annual cap approved and actual amount incurred for FY2015 (HK$million)
2015 BFEENEHEFE ERRERELESH(FAEET)

Annual cap 49.0 267.4
FE LR
Amount incurred 37.1 53.6
ERELESHE
Annual cap approved for subsequent financial years (HK$million)
HEeMBEENEEFE LR (BEET)
FY2016 64.0 369.2
20168 L2
FY2017 96.0 390.1
2017 R EFE
FY2018 N/AT i 461.0
2018 &

Note: PRE

***  This agreement will be renewed on 1July 2015.

The Company has entered into master agreements or framework
agreements to set out the principles governing the above continuing
connected transactions. The Group has formal quotations and price
comparison mechanism or approved pricing policies to ensure the terms of

R R BAMN 20167 A1 AES -

individual transactions are on normal commercial terms and on arm's

length basis.
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Relationships between counterparties

The above mentioned counterparties are connected persons of the
Company mainly due to direct or indirect shareholding held by the
Company'’s substantial shareholder, CTF Holding, in these counterparties.
Shareholding relationships among the Company, CTFE, NWD, NWDS and
NWCL are illustrated in the simplified chart below:

CTF Holding"

ArEERr"

BT 2BE
ERZSETHRANRNEEAL  TERHRA
RATERRAANBEREZAFARFEREE T
Wt - RAR - ARELE  MERAER  HERE
& LT R rh B b B A 1 R R R TR (B

89.3%

The Company

RAF]

100.0%

43.0%

NWD(3)
it RaE”

72.3% 70.3%

Notes:

(1) Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited

(2) Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited

(3) New World Development Company Limited (stock code: 17)
(4) New World Department Store China Limited (stock code: 825)
(5) New World China Land Limited (stock code: 917)

(6) The approximate percentages of shareholding are shown for reference only to illustrate the relationships
between the connected parties. The information is sourced from the Disclosure of Interests published on the
Stock Exchange website as at the date of annual report, which however may not be updated or correct.

B aE

M RAXEER)ERAT

2 RARBEEARAF

@)  HERBRARAF (BOHRR - 17)

@ HEREEHEERQF (RO - 826)
(6)  HERFEMEERAF (BRMHHE : 917)

6 BOBBREADLERSE - ASAERES OIE o ZERRABEF W B MR L TRR R R
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Annual review of the continuing connected transactions
Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company has engaged
the Company’s auditor to perform certain review procedures in order to
report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has issued his unqualified letter in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group in this annual report in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’'s
letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the Group's
continuing connected transactions and the report of the auditor and
confirmed that the continuing connected transactions were entered into (i)
in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (ii) either on
normal commercial terms or better; and (iii) according to the relevant
agreements governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Announcements were published regarding the Group's non-exempt
continuing connected transactions. The Directors confirm that the
Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in so far as they are applicable.

Save as disclosed above, the significant related party transactions that did
not constitute connected transactions under the Listing Rules made during
the year were disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Connected Transactions

Acquisition of property holding companies

On 26 May 2014, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
Sincere Elite Limited, entered into a sale and purchase agreement with
Gigantic Global Limited to acquire the entire issued share capital of its
wholly-owned subsidiaries, Eagle Planet Limited, Fortune Ruby Limited
and Global Winner Limited (collectively, “Target Group"), together with the
loans owed by the Target Group to Gigantic Global Limited. Gigantic Global
was owned by NWD and CTFE as to 50% and 50% respectively. Details of
this connected transaction are disclosed in the Company’s announcement
dated 26 May 2014.

The acquisition was completed on 31 July 2014 at a cash consideration of
HK$850.0 million (subject to adjustment). Upon completion of the
acquisition, the Target Group became wholly-owned subsidiaries within the
Group. The major asset owned by the Target Group is World Peace Centre
which is a 25-storey industrial building located in Kwai Chung of Hong
Kong. That premises is partly used by the Group as workshops and offices
and partly let out.
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Acquisition and redevelopment of properties

On 26 November 2014, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, Wise City Investment Limited, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with Fook Tai Investment Company Limited to acquire a
property located in Kowloon City of Hong Kong. Before the acquisition, the
property was owned by Fook Tai Investment Company Limited, a
subsidiary of CTFE. The acquisition was completed on 26 November 2014
at the cash consideration of HK$66.0 million.

In order to redevelop the acquired property together with another adjacent
property already owned by the Group for expansion of the Group's retail
shop and provision of staff accommodation facilities, Wise City Investment
Limited respectively entered into two construction contracts on 26
November 2014 with New World Construction Management Company
Limited and New World Construction Company Limited, which were
indirect subsidiaries of NWD. The total contract sums in the amount of
HK$127.2 million under the two construction contracts are to be paid by
progress payments and the construction works are expected to complete
in 2018.

Details of these connected transactions are disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 26 November 2014.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, less than 30.0% of the Group's revenue was attributed to
the Group's five largest customers. Besides, 66.7% of the Group's total
purchases were attributed to the Group's five largest suppliers and 42.8%
of the Group's total purchases were attributed to the Group's largest
supplier. None of the Directors, their respective close associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) or any shareholder who to the knowledge of
the Directors owned 5.0% or more of the issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 March 2015 held any interest in any of the five largest
suppliers of the Group.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short EERESTHAERALTIEB LB 2
Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and B HEROREEEZERRAR

Debentures of the Company or Associated Corporation

As at 31 March 2015, the interests and short positions of the Directors and M2016F3A31H ' ARAIEERERITTHABRE
the chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and AR E AR EE (FEREBSLPEGEXY
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within ) BB - ABRARR D REREES - HEREES LS
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which have been notified to the EIEFIEXVEE 7 RESHIBE ME AR A KA
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV 2w MR AR SRS RIEFE H K B E 6015 352
of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept BREBTFHFENELMRZEZRAR - HIRE L
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the TR B 8% 10 Fra fUIR%E<F RIZB A& AR A) M X P
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code set out in ZHREmMOKBIT

Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:

Long position in shares RBRBZHFR

Number of shares
D 2B
Approximate

Personal Spouse Corporate % of
interests interests interests Total shareholding

BEARRIR
BN Fo B EEER a&f ERad

The Company (ordinary shares 72~ 7] (4 R EE 1.00

of HK$1.00 each) BTHNEBER)
Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry BRAEL 1,900,000 1,900,000 0.0%
Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent HRELE 12,000 12,000 0.0%
Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian HEMEL 20,000 20,000 0.0%
Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong BRitE S A 12,000 12,000 0.0%
Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert PRI A R4 12,000 12,000 0.0%
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton ELIRER SE A 4,800 4,800 0.0%
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter B kL 3,600 3,600 0.0%
Mr. Koo Tong-Fat HEFEEL 12,000 12,000 0.0%
International Entertainment BB IREERA T
Corporation (ordinary shares (ERMEE1.008T
of HK$1.00 each) VEER)
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter BERELE 4,000 4,000 8,000 0.0%
Note: GEE
(1) These shares are beneficially-owned by a company which is wholly-owned by Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong,Adrian (1) ZERHEBTABLI2EREN—RORAENES -
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Securities

As at 31 March 2015, following persons (not being Directors or chief
executives of the Company) had the following interests or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO:

Long position in shares

Beneficial
i ts

Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings Il) Limited
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited

Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited 8,933,937,400

Note:

As at 31 March 2015, Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited and Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings II) Limited
held approximately 49.0% and 46.7% interest in Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited respectively, which in turn held an
approximately 78.6% interest in Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited and accordingly each of Cheng Yu Tung Family
(Holdings) Limited, Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings II) Limited and Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited is deemed to
have an interest in the shares of the Company held by Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited. Chow Tai Fook (Holding)
Limited held 8,933,937,400 shares of the Company directly.

Share Option Scheme

A share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a
shareholders’ written resolution of the Company passed on 17 November
2011. No options have been granted, exercised or cancelled under the
Scheme since its adoption up to the date of this annual report.

The purpose of the Scheme is to attract skilled and experienced personnel,
to incentivise them to remain with the Group and to motivate them to
strive for the future development and expansion of the Group by providing
them with the opportunity to acquire equity interests in the Company. The
Board may, at its discretion, grant options pursuant to the Scheme to the
Directors (including executive Directors, non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors), the directors of the Company’s
subsidiaries and employees of the Group and any other persons (including
consultants or advisers) whom the Board considers, in its absolute
discretion, have contributed or will contribute to the Group.

FERRRESNER

20163 A31 8  IRIEFH K EBAEKHIFE 336158
FEMETCMATREMATAL(EIERRRESSH &
BITHAB) FTis A A A w i &AE R AR 15 B 25 %
BT

RRGBzHE

Number of shares
B EE

Approximate
% of
shareholding
BARRB DL

Corporate
interests

8,933,937,400 8,933,937,400 89.3%
8,933,937,400 8,933,937,400 89.3%
8,933,937,400 8,933,937,400 89.3%

8,933,937,400 89.3%

P &E

7201543 A31H ' Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited }2 Cheng Yu
Tung Family (Holdings II) Limited %& & # Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited 73 5§
B#149.0% % 46.7% #E# + 1 Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited 817 B A& (3% )
BRARIFE478.6% #x + EIit Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited *
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings I1) Limited }z Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited 1%
BRARERE(FR) BRARMFARTBRGFHEAEE - MAKREER) A
PR A )R B 5B AN A7) 8,933,937,400 AR AR 15 ©

BRER 8

AARMBRER2011F11 B17HN—HIRESE R
BT BRI ([ZEHE)) - B%ATEIRMBEZE
REHRAE - KADBMEEL - TERFHEZTET
AT B AR AR o

ZETEE EERRMERARAFRENEE - RalA
REMEROAR  HBRSEETAKE BBER
AEBNARERIERMB ) - EF2GAHBERE
ZETEMERBRAAARECFHABFELERN
EX(RRATES  FRTEZINELIFNTESR)
ARAMBATNES  AEBEMNREEARERNEM
AT (BREAAALER) ZHERE -
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The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
pursuant to the Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company shall not exceed 10% of the shares in the Company in issue on
the Company'’s listing date 15 December 2011, being 1,000,000,000
shares (“Scheme Mandate Limit"), which represented 10% of the shares
in the Company as at the date of this annual report. The Company may
renew the Scheme Mandate Limit with shareholders’ approval provided
that each such renewal may not exceed 10% of the shares in the Company
in issue as at the date of the shareholders’ approval.

The maximum number of shares underlying all outstanding options which
have been granted and have yet to be exercised pursuant to the Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30%
of the shares in issue from time to time.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company in the manner as set out
in the Scheme, the maximum number of shares underlying the options
granted to each eligible participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1.0% of the
shares in issue for the time being.

The period during which an option may be exercised by a grantee (the
"Option Period"”) shall be the period to be determined and notified by the
Board to the grantee at the time of making an offer, which shall not expire
later than 10 years from the offer date.

Subject to any restrictions applicable under the Listing Rules, an option
may be exercised in whole or in part by the grantee at any time during the
Option Period in accordance with the terms of the Scheme and the terms
on which the option was granted.

No amount is payable by the grantee upon acceptance of an offer of
an option.

The exercise price shall be determined by the Board but in any event shall
not be less than the highest of: (a) the closing price of the shares as stated
in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the offer
date, which must be a business day; (b) the average closing price of the
shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the offer date;
and (c) the nominal value of the shares.

The Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years after the date of
conditional adoption, i.e. 17 November 2011.
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Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed under the sections headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures of the Company or Associated Corporation” and “Share
Option Scheme”, at no time during the year was the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or its holding company or any fellow subsidiary, a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the year.

Donations

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to approximately HK$72.2 million (FY2014: HK$38.0 million).

Remuneration Policy and Pension Scheme

The remuneration policy of the Group is reviewed regularly, making
reference to legal framework, market conditions and performance of the
Group and individual staff (including the Directors). The remuneration
policy and remuneration packages of the executive Directors and
members of the senior management of the Group are reviewed by the
Remuneration Committee.

Particulars of the Group’s retirement benefit schemes are set out in note
36 to the consolidated financial statements.

Market Capitalisation

As at 31 March 2015, the market capitalisation of the listed shares of the
Company was approximately HK$83.4 billion (31 March 2014: HK$122.2
billion) based on the total number of 10,000,000,000 issued shares of the
Company and the closing price of HK$8.34 per share.

BEROHEREE 2LZH

BRIEZRSRSTHRASNAR B HERER 2
o ARG REEE 2 EERAR | —f K [EARE
FHEl —EAREESN AR HEFMEARHE
R R RIS R F M B R E - 5 A ] H A
SEEARHE FEFFERBAR B SEMEMEA
BB R SR EHERE T 2

BEEAN

EAFERN  AARTEREMEBLHLREMNEER
BB RATEBEERTRELN -

B

RAEBRFREHNEEREAMBRAR_N/T722E
B (2014 HFE : 38.0BHEBTT) °

FMBR R AT E

AEBEZHFWBERISELZRER  mARAEEH
ERET(BRER)XRAMEDRT - ARENTE
EREREEABZHMBELFHEAABHFMNEE

P =
ZiE] o

BRAASERRRENGG S ZFBHINNZE P BEHE
PIFES6

miE

201543 A31H AR AB #ETRMHE H
10,000,000,000 & JA K G AR UL T {E 8.34 B Lat & + A&
ANE LR TEL A834EE L (20143318 -
1,222 8% 7T) °
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Sufficiency of Public Float ZENARBERE

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within the BERRRESNARENERESHAN  EFHER
knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual report, the RAAFERBE - RA R #EFR R MNEEMNORE

Directors confirm that the Company has maintained the prescribed public EARFBRERTEDE10.7% °
float of 10.7%, which is a lower prescribed percentage of public float

requirement accepted at the discretion of the Stock Exchange.

Auditor ¥ EIRT

The financial statements of the Company have been audited by Deloitte RARMBHmEREEY s BERASTMITEZR - 12
Touche Tohmatsu, who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for e AEMAGHMTEMER - WARARR A ERERK

re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. RBFRG TREERERET-
On behalf of the Board REEZE

Dr. Cheng Kar-shun, Henry FE

Chairman R4

Hong Kong, 5 June 2015 H7% 201696 A5 H
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> CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
TEMEER

Committed to the corporate core value of
"Sincerity « Eternity”, Chow Tai Fook upholds legal
compliance in its business operation and gives
back to the society to fulfil its social responsibility
as a good corporate citizen by caring for the
society, participating in charitable activities and
supporting environmental protection.

e

RAEH « KB EZOEE
FRERTEEARNEERST
WHRBEOMHE  BORm IR
R BORELE  BTRELE
NROHERE -

Business Practices

EEBRT

Operate with integrity and adhere

to business ethics

HERE BTEmBR CD

Customer Service
BAE R

Serve with sincerity and protect
customers’ interests

FEAS RERTESR

B K18

Environmental Protection
RIERE
Support environmental protection

to achieve waste reduction and
energy conservation

MRFRIR BUDRIBERRRE
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SINCERITY - ETERNITY

Staff Benefits
BIFAE
Care about employees

with emphasis on trainings
and development

BEET JTEIRIIEE

Giving Back to the Society
EEE
Participate in charity to fulfill
social responsibility

HOAE BITHEAE



Business Practices
EHRT

&la

Business Practices EHRT

Chow Tai Fook attaches great importance to operational integrity and ARBRANRHBELSE  FTERIMNEFEE 2K
business ethics. The Group has adhered to business codes of practice for RFEERT  REZEXEBRANEETH  EE
years, including the operation codes of various business partners. As such, TERRAMETE °
Chow Tai Fook has received numerous recognitions and acknowledgements

from the industry.

To strengthen the regulation of the service provision of suppliers and the 7 hNo% A8 0 1 FE P SR A AR A% SRR R A JE B R R
procurement of raw materials and non-products, the Group has modified HEIE SEMSEEINAESRZFEN [HERES
the “Supplier Guidelines” which has been in use for years to the more AR - RARBETHEN [EREBER | - 5F4EM 587
comprehensive “Purchasing Policy”, with detailed and clear procedures BIZRFENIRFETR - HERRNZ iz aFEER -
and regulations of procurement and tendering, assessment and selection LA B 40 1e] i 60, 6 4 i 7 25 A | 2 /BT 28 0 WO RR S Al 2R ER
standards of suppliers as well as how to avoid conflict of interests with RIS - B EE N B LR P REE A R s T 2R Bk
suppliers. Mechanisms for declaration of interest and reporting have also BEZER UBCELSEANRIY| ABIZMHE
been set up to prevent and curb conflict of interests and corruption. PMEFR—EZEGEE XN EHEEHEREGAE
Fulfillment of corporate social responsibility is taken as a criterion for BREE  AEENMHEREERERT -
selecting suppliers. The Group also examines the legal compliance of

suppliers’ operations on a regular basis. These measures have been strictly

carried out by the Supplier Management Section of the Group.

Conducts stringent inspection on rough diamonds and polished diamonds procured to ensure that they are not “conflict
diamonds” in compliance with the Kimberley Process Certification Scheme.

BERERENEA LK RELBESBANREREE - BRLIE [FHRER] -

1929-1993 Zlotowski's Diamond Cutting Works (Proprietary) Ltd. and Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Company Limited, subsidiaries of the
Group, have been global sightholders of De Beers since 1973 and 1993, respectively. Their strict compliance with partnership
operation codes was best reflected in their business operation, social and environmental responsibilities, as well as mining
standards.

£ @} B A 7] Zlotowski's Diamond Cutting Works (Proprietary) Ltd. X B ABHKE 21TER Q815 BIR 1973 F K 1993 F K A
De Beers 2B AL E R - BT EERHMNEETA  BERITEER RN EERFEZENRELERR

Complies strictly with international labour standards and fulfills Walt Disney Company’s requirements on becoming a licensee
and is granted the Facility and Merchandise Authorization (“FAMA") for the production of Disney-branded products.

BIEE T BI85 TR - 74 Walt Disney Company GEL/B) B2 AR - s T AEE T EEMMIREE FAMA) ©

CTF Diamond Trading Company Limited and Foshan Yushunfu Jewellery and Diamond Company Limited, subsidiaries of the
Group, are admitted as members of the Responsible Jewellery Council, an international non-for-profit organisation, and strictly
complies with its code of practice for business ethics, human rights, social responsibilities and environmental protection.

EEMBARAEEABSBERA R REILAIER S i A AR A RK AR IE2FI4E 4 Responsible Jewellery Council € 8 -
BREETHAEBRMEERE AR HERBRERENEHIRT

Participates in the Natural Diamond Quality Assurance Mark Scheme organised by the Diamond Federation of Hong Kong and
observes the rules to sell natural diamonds and accurately disclose all diamond information during the sales process.

SEEBEOBEHRT [ RABORERE | Biatd BTHERABORNHERRETEMNREMERAERZFR -
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Business Practices Customer Service

EERT . RERY
& i& b4
=, n

In respect of risk management, the Risk Management Committee is
responsible for reviewing and managing the Group's strategic, operational,
financial and compliance risks and ensuring full compliance with all related
laws and regulations throughout the Group’s entire operation. As for crisis
management, a special crisis management team has been set up and its
core members include a number of senior management and heads of
relevant departments of the Group. The Corporate Affairs Section has also
produced the Crisis Management Handbook, in which crisis reporting
mechanism and handling procedures are provided to help prevent crisis
and enhance the efficiency and effectiveness of crisis management. The
handbook is distributed to all relevant departments and staff of the Group
for observation.

Besides, the Group continued to actively support the government’'s new
rules and operating regulations during FY2015, as well as participate in
activities held by chambers of commerce or industry associations in Hong
Kong and Mainland China for close communication and exchange in the
industry.

Hong Kong

e To support and cooperate with the Hong Kong Government in the full
implementation of the “Plastic Shopping Bag Charging Scheme". Since
1 April 2015, all POS in Hong Kong use non-plastic paper bags, canvas
shopping bags and jewellery boxes. For practical needs, the inner
transparent plastic bags, plastic holders or brocade bags, which are
exempted under the scheme, will be used to protect the jewellery from
being scratched. All extra plastic bags required by customers,
regardless of sizes, are charged HK$1 each in cash and the proceeds
will all be donated to charitable environmental protection groups. The
Group has explained to frontline and back office staff the Group’s new
measures in response to the new rules prior to the implementation of
the charging scheme by the Hong Kong Government. Some “Plastic
Shopping Bag Charging” signs are also displayed in all Hong Kong POS
as a reminder for customers.

e The Group participates in the Natural Diamond Quality Assurance Mark
Scheme introduced by the Diamond Federation of Hong Kong on 4
March 2015. The Group observes the rules to sell natural diamonds
and accurately disclose all diamond information during the sales
process so as to support the industry in establishing a fair operating
environment and protect consumers' interests.
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Mainland China A it
e The Group received the Precious Metal and Jewelry Standards Union o EFELEBLUEEAHiRCEEERBL2H|E

for a visit to the production facilities in Shunde with the aim of AR REKBEENMHNECEIRRER
promoting exchange and communication among jewellery
manufacturers.

e The Group participated in the president office meeting of the Gems & o ZHAFBRKRELLENHITERSNERBELSE -
Jewelry Trade Association of China to exchange with industry HITERENERELE  REEREMSHEE
representatives on industry development, brand building and market IR °

development.

e The Group participated in the New Quality New Yantian Forum o ZHHMEHNRFINMENERRE  HE

organised by the Yantian government to exchange views with E BREREAALZIGEAKE EmMBAKS
scholars, government authorities and industry peers on the EAPKE o

opportunities and challenges faced by the jewellery industry in Yantian.

Customer Service BE RS

Chow Tai Fook has always endeavoured to provide the best products and ARE—ERNABERRHSEBENERERY - A
services to customers and strictly complied with industry standards and BARRBE AT ERENMBADED - ERELBR
government laws. Testing centres meeting professional testing B EEEFERT BN N EBRBR KB AR L - DU
accreditation and international standards are set up in Hong Kong and TEMME - BERIRHERRE  REBEEERLS
Mainland China for testing product quality and providing customers with

product quality certification to protect consumers’ interests.

The Group was the first to introduce 999.9 gold jewellery of the highest fineness in Hong Kong and Macau. This standard
provides assurance of fineness and price to customers. Since then, the 999.9 fineness of pure gold has been widely adopted in
the industry, and was adopted by the Hong Kong Government in 1984 as the industry standard for gold jewellery fineness of
Hong Kong.

ERRMESAEHERSKE 9995 B - HEEBENCAREAMBAENESER - MEDHRC - WK 1984
FREEINERTERTEMHRERE

The Precious Metal Testing Centre in Shenzhen was accredited for CNAS-CLO1, which is equivalent to ISO/IEC 17025:2005
certification, by China National Accreditation Service for Conformity Assessment (“CNAS").

RIS E S BRI O ER B A BT E BRI £ B &3 HCNAS-CLOTRRE » ZRISO/IEC 17025 : 2005B MR KT 2 Rz °

Hong Kong's “Chow Tai Fook Fei Cui Testing Centre” was awarded the status of an accredited jadeite testing laboratory under
The Hong Kong Laboratory Accreditation Scheme (“HOKLAS") of the Hong Kong Government. It is one of the few professional
accredited testing centres to certify jadeite products.

Z‘Eif/ﬁﬂ’] [ARBHEREZTL | EBEBUN [EEERAA S BEEEEESERETRTER - RBEREMMBEHOKLAS
BE %%?\9 BRERUETHERER E’J%%ﬁ Ly e

The Group’s Gemstone Testing Centre in Shenzhen was accredited for CNAS-CLO1, which is equivalent to ISO/IEC
17025:2005 certification, by China National Accreditation Service for Conformity Assessment (“CNAS").

FHIRBERBP OEPHEARTEERRBAIEL B % H CNAS-CLO1 R * £RISO/IEC 17025 : 2005 BEIBR KT 2 B:% °
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Staff Benefits
BIFA

."ﬁe

To enhance and monitor customer service quality, the Brand Management
Sections in Hong Kong and Mainland China engage professional consulting
companies to conduct monthly mystery shoppers inspections to ensure
the service standards of frontline sales staff. Following the increase in POS
and frontline sales staff, the number of mystery shoppers inspections also
increases. In FY2015, the Group arranged approximately 6,000 inspections

Customer Service

BEEY
& 9

MRk ERBEREREEEAHE  BBMFBEANHE
mEEENEANEAEEETEEM AR TWE
BUETES  WRARHEE B TRIBFEEORBEK
T mMEEEENTESNAGEEE TARNER -
MR K E RN EBE 2800 - R 2016 B BFE -
S ETER BFF B A 3 221749 6,000 % 1% M4 RE B K

Lo KENT2ERTERSNEETETRH LR
FRBIARR IS BB ERKEEE  FEM
BRGHBRREERENER -

in POS in Hong Kong and Mainland China. The Group also collaborated
with industry associations such as Hong Kong Retail Management
Association or commercial institutions such as shopping malls to conduct
mystery shoppers inspections as a means to continuously and
systematically review the standard of sales service.

K201 BFEAN - ARAENBESREEEERINE
BENSEMNRR -

During FY2015, Chow Tai Fook's customer service was widely recognised
by the industry and consumers.

Award-winning Quality Service B& R EEKS

The Group has been awarded for two consecutive years (2013 and 2014) in the “Consumer Caring Scheme” organised by
GS1 Hong Kong for its outstanding performance in caring for consumers, fulfilling promises, service quality, and product
quality and safety.

SEEEMF (20138 R 2014 F) EHELEERRBHEMN [BOBXRTE | BERK  REEREEHEE  BEAH REEE -
mE S E T R EEHER R -

Chow Tai Fook participated for the first time in the “2014 Most Popular QTS Merchant Award Online Voting — Retail
Merchant” organised by Quality Tourism Services Association and was voted one of the top ten retail merchants by netizens.

BRZ2EBERERGBEEMR < [2014BE+AEXBLEERERS —TERHF] 5D EBREEERE TEXREESNE
I

Sales staff from the airport branch was awarded for their outstanding service in 2014 Customer Service Excellence
Programme Award organised by Hong Kong International Airport, in which three staff members received individual
recognition and four received corporate team recognition.

REBBEEEIS RN 2014 BERTRBAE  BESTHHEE TREHNRBERERE  BR=UEIEGEAALBESRT
AR PO & TR T (b 3 H B = i 552 iR

In the Individual Award (Watch & Jewellery) of the 2014 Service & Courtesy Award organised by the Hong Kong Retail
Management Association, one sales department head was awarded with the first place in supervisory level, while four sales
staff members were honoured with the first place in junior frontline level, the Outstanding Performance Award and the
Excellence Service Star, respectively, who also won the silver award of the Best Team Performance Award.

REBZEERRERPET L 20144 HRB ] O EARE(EREREEAN G —UHELTERELIERE B ROMHEE
BINRIEEERNFE—% BURRRERBERBZE - ZMMHE S TIRENEERZRETESHERGHKRENRE -
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Staff Benefits

In relation to human resources, the Group highly emphasises on training
and development of employees. Various on-the-job trainings were provided
according to the requirement of employees’ position, talent and interest.
The Group also organises diversified recreational activities to cater for their
work-life balance.

The Group formulates staff policies in compliance with labour laws of the
regions where we operate, and provide comprehensive salary package and
staff welfare for employees, while staff with outstanding performance may
receive discretionary rewards.

The Group provides medical insurance for its employees and their lineal
relatives. Paid wedding leave, gratuity leave and employee birthday leave
are granted in addition to those stipulated under the Employment
Ordinance.

To encourage and facilitate self-enhancement of employees through
continuous learning, the Group increased the amount of study subsidy in
September 2014 to cover half of the tuition fee or HK$4,000 maximum per
year. Training courses on product knowledge, jewellery appraisal and sales
techniques are also organised on monthly basis by in-house instructors.
Courses on management knowledge and professional skills are conducted
by professional instructors in collaboration with professional training
institutions. The Training Section under the Human Resources Department
of the Group reviews the courses from time to time and adds different
training programmes according to employees’ needs for skills and
development. To standardise the training system in Hong Kong and
Mainland China, the Group will launch the Chow Tai Fook Academy, which
is now ready to be kicked start in FY2016, to provide more professional
and systematic training courses on jewellery, watches, sales, management
and other expertise for employees.

In FY2015, the aggregate training hours of the Group amounted to over
940,000 hours. In addition, the Group also began to assist staff to apply for
recognition of prior learning from the Qualifications Framework of the Hong
Kong Government and succeeded to obtain more than 700 recognised
qualifications by the jewellery and watch and clock industries for over 400
employees.

T
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Staﬂ Beneflts
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Training in Hong Kong

The online learning platform, iLearning, was implemented in February
2015 to encourage staff to further their studies through online channels
in office or spare time. Putonghua online courses were first
implemented while courses on English and other jewellery knowledge
has been planned for FY2016.

Certificate courses in Gemstone Knowledge and in Advanced Level of
Jewellery Recovery recognised by the Qualification Framework of the
Hong Kong Government, were launched in March and April 2015,
respectively. While another course on the Certificate in Advanced Level
of Gemstone knowledge which has been recognised by the Hong Kong
Government is scheduled to be launched in FY2016.

The “Wisdom Dynamic Programme” has been launched in
collaboration with professional training centres for the second
consecutive year that 58 frontline and managerial grade employees
were recommended to learn NLP and management skills for inspiring
and practicing creative thinking, as well as enhancing work and
management performance.

Training in Mainland China

A two-day outdoor training was organised to strengthen inter-
departmental communication, co-operation and team sprit through
various outdoor group activities.

The etiquette training course organised for four consecutive years was
conducted by professional etiquette instructors for middle to high level
management on business etiquette and social skills.

Training programmes are provided to franchisees to strengthen their
understanding of Chow Tai Fook’s corporate culture and ensure their
service standard is in line with that of the Group.

A total of 72 management trainees were recruited at the 7th intake of
the management trainee programme to incubate management talents
for the Group.

The Group has always been concerned with the health and occupational
safety of staff members. To provide and maintain a safe and healthy work
environment, the Group holds fire drills and promotes occupational health
and safety regularly. It also steps up inspection particularly in factories to
prevent casualty at work.
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The Group has several corporate publications, such as “Chow Tai Fook
Jewellery Corporate News"”, “Chow Tai Fook Family” and the new
"SUNNY Express”, to continuously convey corporate messages, news and
development to all staff members as a means to enhance their
understanding of the Company and colleagues in different departments.
The Group has also set up open channels such as Weibo, WeChat and
email account for employees to express opinions directly to the
management so as to strengthen communication between management
and staff while enhancing management’s understanding of employees.
Meanwhile, a special team has also been set up to handle employees’
complaints confidentially.

Moreover, to care for staff's health and mental development, the Group
organised a wide range of recreational activities and interest classes for
staff during FY2015, such as establishing dragon boat team, soccer team
and basketball team, and organising yoga class, wine tasting class, pastry-
making class, movies, hiking, as well as soccer and basketball tournaments
and singing contests. Some of the activities also welcome family members
and friends of employees.

Environmental Protection

Chow Tai Fook places a strong emphasis on environmental protection.
Environmental protection policies and measures are in place to minimise
the damages that may be caused to the environment. Evaluations are
made from time to time to assess the impact of business operation on the
environment and make improvement. Newly-planned office buildings and
factories adopt environmental-friendly architectural designs to minimise
their impacts on the environment.

Production base Yushunfu in Lunjiao, Shunde, was the first factory in the
Pearl River Delta Region to participate in the “Cleaner Production
Partnership Programme” jointly launched in 2008 by Hong Kong's
Environmental Protection Department and the Economic and Information
Commission of Guangdong Province, and was awarded the “2011-2013
Hong Kong — Guangdong Cleaner Production Partner” commendation logo
in 2011. Furthermore, Yushunfu was one of the winners of the “Hang
Seng Pan Pearl River Delta Environmental Awards” organised by the
Federation of Hong Kong Industries in 2009. With completion of several
innovative environmental projects, the Company was awarded a “Green
Medal” for 2011 to 2014 and was granted the use of the "5 Years +
entrant” medal in 2015. Environmental-friendly designs are adopted at the
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Park in Wuhan currently under construction and
the newly completed headquarters building in Shenzhen, Mainland China.
LED compact fluorescent bulbs are used in the entire new headquarters
building. The environmental-friendly designs of the new headquarters
building was granted RMB470,000 from the Yantian district industrial
development fund by the Yantian government in March 2015 to facilitate
the Group's continuous environmental protection work.
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Environmental Protection

RERE
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Cleaner Production Partnership Programme &2 4% E K512

Foshan Yushunfu Jewellery and Diamond Company Limited 1L IEE & &iiEAEREA =

T5 fluorescent tubes have been used gradually and air-conditioning temperature guidelines introduced to reduce electricity
consumption.

FAWATOEENE - REIE=FRERES - gL PE -
Sealed glass bottles have been used to store volatile liquid to reduce emission of volatile organic compounds and improve
the air quality in the factory.

HREHEERFRAEREORE  ROEREERCAMOTIR  EREEREE -

Hang Seng Pan Pearl River Delta Environmental Awards 1842 %= SRR K€

Foshan Yushunfu Jewellery and Diamond Company Limited #IL#4IEE & &hiE&EGHR AR

The stream dewaxing process for recycling resin wax has been introduced. A total of 3.3 tonnes of wax was recycled in
FY2015, amounting to 49.3% of total wax usage, higher than last year's 47.7%.

BIAZ AR TR B EEREBEEE  R2015HKRERERWEAEEIIM  (AREEFAEMNLI93%  BE—FEH
47 7% B °

Recycled gypsum effluent is re-used while the filtered gypsum powder is transferred to collectors for recycling. In
FY2015, the scale of gypsum effluent recovery was expanded with a total of 5,348 tonnes of gypsum effluent recycled,
representing a significant increase of 232% over the previous year.

O ABREKEREBR  CBEENAERIR TREIWEERIRBAEE  R20160KRFEEBACUER @ B A EREKIES 348
Wi B _E—FE ARG 232% ©

Exhaust gas absorption tower is set up to filter as much as 70% of the exhaust pollutants, non-methane hydrocarbons,
emitted during the production process to effectively reduce emission.

REE RN ER A EBIZR PR Z RIS R YIEF AR 2 ZET70% - BRURDBEIER, ©

Gold smelting machine of high-frequency heating has replaced traditional smelting process and largely reduced the
emission of volatile organic compounds. Total annual emission was significantly reduced from 13.1kg to 0.7kg and the
impact on air quality was notably reduced.

WARARENRNRERBAEREE TR ABRVEZEEREEWOHER . SFERFRER 131 AT REBRIE0T
A BEREHEREEZNZE -
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The Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Park (Wuhan) BEXBIRE LLEXE (HE)

e In accordance with Class Ill Standards under Mainland China’s “Discharge Standard of Pollutants for Municipal Waste
Water Treatment Plant” and “Emission Standard of Pollutants for Electroplating”, a sewage processing system has been
installed to recycle industrial waste water of low pollution level for re-use in the production lines, while industrial waste
water of high pollution level is subject to special processing prior to discharge. A real-time surveillance system has been
connected to Wuhan Environmental Protection Bureau for promptly overseeing the discharge of sewage.

FTREBIERS - REKCRETKEIERS R MBI E) =GR E R(EFOS AW IR E) - MRS R TERKREER L
BRER  ARKFAREA RS SRIERK  URIERERRZGERIVEMRRERER - ERERISKERER

e |n accordance with Mainland China’s “Integrated Emission Standard of Air Pollutants” and “Emission Standard of
Pollutants for Electroplating”, a gas emission processing system has been installed to process gas emissions generated
from the production processes with special treatment prior to discharge in order to reduce air pollution.

RERAERG  BERCATUSRNEG S FRIEE) MBS R M RIRE) - 1 IR £ IR B e B A A - RE
TR -

e Use of solar energy or LED bulbs for street lights, wall lights, landscape lights and lawn lights at major passages to save
electricity.

EEREERAASEERA - SRA LEDEAEEE - f5E - RBENENE - SiRE -

e Solar-power heat water supply system is installed on the roof of dormitory to reduce electricity consumption.

BEETRRKGEBNIUKRSR - BIEREE -

e LOW-E (low radioactive emission) glass panes with insulation and temperature-control features are used to reduce the
use of air-conditioners and electricity consumption.

RAARAREIIEN LOW-E(RES) BB R - AR EREFNFEE -

Other Environmental Measures EfthIR{RIE

Foshan Yushunfu Jewellery and Diamond Company Limited #LAIEEESEMERERA A

Foshan Shunde Yuda Jewellery Manufacturing Company Limited 1L B2 E#EIRE &8s

e Gold Plating Division of the Jewellery Setting Department in Yushunfu and Yuda started to implement the project of
recycling cleansing water used in gold plating in November 2014, using liquid filters to purify the cleansing water of gold
plating for recycling. Cleansing water recycled amounted to 914 tonnes during the year.

R201445F 11 AERIBEIHNENKERRIFIESENFRLERETESFKDRERER - FMRZEBRRFLESER
KBRER - FRERESELNEIN4HE

e The new sewage processing system was installed in Yushunfu and Yuda in December 2014 and test runs were
conducted in April 2015. The system will commence operation during FY2016 after the completion of test runs.

R 2014512 B D RIERIBRRE TR ZE #1185 /KEEIE R KRR 2015 F 4 AETT @ B TR & AT R 2016 B F & N IETUHETT ©
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Environmental Protection Giving Back to the Society
BIRRE Bl i3 &

’,‘!

Shenzhen Precious Metal Testing Centre and After-sales Department #IIE € BigAlR LR E E

° The upgrade of gas emission processing system of Shenzhen Precious Metal Testing Centre was completed in November
2013 with the introduction of a bubbling processing system to purify exhaust gas. As such, hydrogen chloride which can
be processed under the system increased from 92% to 96.5%. Exhaust gas emission has been further reduced.

R2013F 11 BRI ESBIRAT OREREERFARTIE  5IASABARIERGFEER - BRKAEE2% ALEE
£96.6% * E—FRIEERIER

* In accordance with the “Zero-discharge of Sewage” plan adopted in 2014, a sewage processing system has been
installed to recycle the water used in tests. Water recycling rate of Shenzhen Precious Metal Testing Centre is up to
65%.

R 2014 FHEAT [BEKTHERR 518 SPERKEIE RS  FEERANEBKERER  ANESBRAT OB KEREAXEE
65% °

Chow Tai Fook Group Tower (Yantian, Shenzhen) B ABEEXERIJIEHE)

e Transparent semi-tempered glass panes, transparent tempered glass panes and LOW-E-coated materials are used in the
building to effectively prevent ultraviolet and infrared radiation from raising indoor temperature and enhance indoor
lighting. As a result, the use of lighting equipment is reduced. Autoclaved aerated concrete blocks have been used in
other parts of the external walls and extruded polystyrene boards have been used on the roof to reduce heat
transmission, use of air-conditioners and electricity consumption.

RNEFIE AR ABAF M « BERME B & LOW-E KR SEREYAL - BE Al B M IE RN RATINR A = AEEL - X A]
REEANE  RIEERAZNERA  IMEEMIHFEANERER - BTERAEERRR - BB EER - RO ERAEANMEE
e A heat recovery ventilation system, inverter-controlled refrigerators and water pumps have been installed in the air-

conditioning system, with maximum energy-saving efficiency of 30%.

ERAGIRM AL WAL - BIRRERISSMZETRKER - &ReAIEIRLE30%

* A solar-energy system has been installed in the underground car-park.

T EREISRA KGR -

e LED lighting has been installed inside and outside the building.

REANIMRA LEDBIRET -
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Office WAE

e Plans for the recycling of used paper, ink cartridges and plastic wares have been adopted in offices. LED or compact
fluorescent bulbs have also been used to minimise electricity consumption. Staff are encouraged to reduce printing and
paper consumption, and use electronic promotional materials to reduce printed materials. The Group collects relevant

data on a monthly basis for review.

MAERHREAR - D2 REBEUGETE - WA LED AL AR - RIEFREE S8 TRATENR A  AET

FREVEE T - A EIRGR - SEE A KER BEURER ©

POS ZE% ‘

* The Group has started to use LED or compact fluorescent bulbs and LED screens at POS in Hong Kong and Mainland

China to reduce electricity consumption.

B EAENTEREELE LED & EBRBRLEDERFR - HiEHE o

During FY2015, the Group carried out the first assessment on its factories
pursuant to 1SO26000:2010's social responsibility standards to facilitate
the formulation of a set of policies and procedures for compliance auditing
for its factories. The Group has planned to implement the second
assessment at the beginning of FY2016 in order to fully prepare the full-
scale implementation of corporate social responsibility standards in
accordance with 1ISO26000:2010.

Giving Back to the Society

Chow Tai Fook upholds the belief of “From the Society, for the society”
and encourages active employee participation in volunteer work and social
service, and renders its support to charitable activities. The Group has been
named a “Caring Company” by The Hong Kong Council of Social Services
since 2008 and has received the certificate since 2013 under the names of
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Company Limited and Chow Tai Fook Jewellery
Group Limited. The former received the 5 Years + Caring Company Logo in
2015 while the latter passed the stringent assessments of the Hong Kong
Productivity Council, which is the organiser of the Hong Kong Outstanding
Corporate Citizenship Award, in respect of business practices, customer
service, environmental protection and charitable activities, and was
awarded “Corporate Citizenship Logo (Enterprise)” in the fourth and the
fifth editions of the event consecutively.

The “"CTF CARES"” corporate volunteer team of the Group has actively
participated in community welfare and voluntary work since its
establishment in 2013. As at 31 March 2015, the number of corporate
volunteer team members in Mainland China and Hong Kong was 2,118.
During FY2015, volunteers participated in volunteer services for 1,897
times, spending an aggregate of 4,413 man-hours.

2016 B E - £ 8 H X 1S026000 : 2010 &9+
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Giving Back to the Society
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Sponsorship of Major Charitable Activities KEZZENFEBES

rganisation urpose of sponsorshi vent details

Org t Purp f sp hip Event detail

Hetg BEIEW LIRS

UNICEF To sponsor and support China Children’s Week — Little Artists Big Dream Drawing Competition
N UNICEF's healthcare services for FEHRERE — NERKSELELLE (2015)

HEee TSNS | nfEnis and wise * The Group has donated to UNICEF's Mainland China projects for three

funds for under privileged

) . consecutive years.
children in the remote areas of ¥

Mainland China. ER=TRBeERERSENTEMNMIER

EHLRYEBRABREES RN * The Group has donated “Chow Tai Fook 999.9 Pure Gold Photo Greeting
PRERE TS RRERE Cards”, tailor-made 925 silver badges, to and arranged 20 volunteers to assist
RERSREEIEE with the charity sale at the China Children’s Week — Little Artists Big Dream

Drawing Competition 2015.
B [EAAREI99.9REMEH LE R RAFRIR 2 925 RBE » Wk 20 7%
IE[FERERE2015 — NERRSBRELE | @5 HHRS

¢ Another product inspired by the creative concept of the drawing by the
competition’s overall champion will be launched jointly by Chow Tai Fook and
UNICEF in mid 2015 to raise more funds for UNICEF.
2015 F R AR E L B2 ISR F & (ERAIERL R RET A REXUNICEF & &
RIS —REMR  REMBEREERSEEETLEN

V' =y v @ B
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Organisation

-7

UNICEF
BEERE

e

Youth Qutreach
T

Diamond
Empowerment
Fund

Purpose of sponsorship

BHEMN

To sponsor and support
UNICEF's global prevention of
mother-to-child transmission of
AIDS

BRI FHAEREES SN
2HREE LIRS T RERETE

To sponsor Youth Outreach’s
fundraising show YO! Dance it
UP in support of its service for
youths at risk

o Ei (EFRYE | SRRE
BB S HEEEDFRY

To support Diamond
Empowerment Fund (DEF) in
providing support and education
in countries and areas which
have diamond-related industries.

3 #5 Diamond Empowerment
Fund (DEF) At R &t A A
FRRAFT S A B R B[R HET T S 4R
E#EER

Event details

EEFHE

UNICEF Charity Run BE&EIREESEEH (2014)

e The Group was the main sponsor of the event and 158 Chow Tai Fook
volunteers and employees together with their family members participated in
the charity run.

SEAEHNETEEH AT - H18HAXBELOET BEIRFERZNEEH

* The Group was the champion of “Most Supportive Group” and ranked third in
the “Top Fundraisers — Corporate Category”

SERBAERN Re2HEEE ] REEBARNN [REEFRE=2]

Title sponsor of YO! Dance it UP of the Youth Outreach
TEEEHE [FEHEIKE | (2015, 2014)

e The Group has been the title sponsor of YO! Dance it UP for two consecutive
years and supported the street dance performance organised by the Youth
Outreach to help the youths unlock their potential in dancing and build up self-
confidence.

BEMTEAER [EHRY | XHBELEGEDFEABEEREE 2
WASIH

Diamonds in the Sky Las Vegas Gala (2014)

¢ The Group was the premier partner sponsor DIEHEHDE
.. ) m Tl iy
of the fund-raising gala and donated auction e
items to help raise funds for DEF. T T
——
T T

REFBRENEBINHERR -
WBHIAE w4 DEF BE5KE

FEK&E2015F F ik
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Giving Back to the Society
[E): e

Voluntary Work ZEZ&T 55

Hong Kong and Macau &7 K& 89

Organisation Event details

s BB

Hospice Hike for Hospice ZZE&%|LZ1T (2015)

Rl e The Group was the major sponsor of Hospice for the fourth
consecutive year in support of Hospice's services in
palliative care and bereavement support. 40 CTF CARES
volunteers and staff participated in the charity walk.
SEEBENFEREDNEEED F BIOMLARBELET
RETHLZE  IREESNESMERIHLRS -

Hong Kong Cleaning Homes for the Elderly & & /& XiFkk (2015)

Famlly Welfare 60 CTF CARES volunteers and staff together with their

SOP'%EV family members visited some senior citizens living alone in

BBRE public housing estates and helped them clean their homes.

2 5= " o = e A e

wAe CORAABELET « AT REKELEHTHS KPS E
AHEMHBERSE - BHMEERE -

Po Leung Kuk Po Leung Kuk Charity Walk &R RZZ41T (2015)

RER e The Group sponsored Po Leung Kok Charity Walk to support
its social services. 191 CTF CARES volunteers, staff and
their family members participated in the Charity Walk.
SEEHREBEEST  XHRRBOTERBIE - 191
ZREABELET BT RERSHEEZHT -

e The Group received Silver Fund-raising (Team) Award
B MERIREE

Children’s CCF Fun Carnival CCF &# BT EF (2014)

Cancer } e In support of the CCF Fun Carnival, 27 CTF CARES

FoindaﬁIOﬂ N volunteers set up game booths for 500 children who suffer

RERRESD from cancer as well as and their family members to play and
have fun.

VERAABELETIERERRECRER [BRETIRF
I | REE(IBEL 0 7500 LS 7B R R AR _ERID BLERZE -
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Hong Kong and Macau & & & 8F9

Organisation Event details

7 BB

Oxfam Oxfam Rice Event K& E X1TE) (2014)
e

¢ To help raise funds for Oxfam China Development Fund to
help poor villagers in remote mountain areas in Mainland
China, 127 CTF CARES volunteers participated in Oxfam's
charity rice sale. They received the Top Fundraiser Corporate
Sponsor Award, the Gold Awards of the Outstanding Rice
Stall Fundraiser (Corporate Sponsor) and the Highest
Participation (Corporate Sponsor). The Group also clinched
the Oxfam Corporate Donor Award — Oxfam Corporate 3
Years Award.

XFEEGETERRESEN  BPHhEANBRERIURNE
BAL 127N AXBECETISHERE [£5K] - BE &
SERE(EPDEE)] - [FHKESTER(EEE)] & [&
BREFE(APHE)] BF - REERELEESAE [L9E
HRBREBH — EE=FIFER] OFETMR

Wu Zhi Xing Wu Zhi Xing & 1E1T (2014)

4 |17
AL * The Group has sponsored Wu Zhi Xing for two consecutive

years. 95 CTF CARES volunteers and staff together with
their family members participated in the fundraising
walkathon to support its volunteer services of building roads
and bridges in poor rural villages in Mainland China.

SEEERMFEYEILT  BHAABELET BETRH
RSHEZEZHT - X ESEHREAME 5 BAMEHEE -

Charity Fund Macau Walk for Millions &3 A% € B &1T (2014)

From e The Group participated in the “Macau Walk for Millions” for
the Reade.rs of the first time. Nearly 50 CTF CARES volunteers and
Macao Daily colleagues from Hong Kong and Macau joined the walkathon
News to support the organiser to provide emergency assistance
SBPIHRES for the underprivileged in Macau.

NS = N S Se s 5 =g g
PamERE EEER2MAPIRRSEST] 601 BB RRPIR

AABELETIRETSE  IRHIMEBREFTENSY
MR E SRR o

EAE2015F 5% 153 <



> CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY f#it&&4F

Mainland China HFElAit

Organisation

7

Enactus
g7

Event details

BB

Bao Bao Family Smart Dreamer Drawing Competition

EEEEASERBELLE (2014)

e The Group organised “Bao Bao Family Smart Dreamer
Drawing Competition” in Guangzhou, Chengdu, Shenyang,
Changsha, Beijing, Suzhou and Shunde, which attracted
approximately 1,300 children to show their creativity and
express their vision of a wonderful world. Through the
campaigns, the Group has made donation to charity
organisations and schools in the seven cities.

SEPEM - RER RS - &Y bR BN RIBEE (12
EFEASBREELE Y - Wa[H#M1,300%/ RS
e BHEAIEREMALHNEFER  KEINEREEHE
KT ECERTNEEERE LB -

“Love and Care” Yee Hong Heights Visit
[#=20R1E | EREREHEE (2014)

e 9 CTF CARES volunteers in Shenzhen visited more than 30
senior citizens at the Hong Kong Jockey Club Shenzhen
Society for Rehabilitation Yee Hong Heights and taught
them to do exercise.

RIBELET RN BEESFERIIERSEREI0ZH
&E  REMPIRER -

Enactus “Charity Run for Young People”
AT TRAEFEANARE Biel ] STE (2014)

* As a corporate partner of Enactus, the Group sponsored the
“Charity Run for Young People” in Shanghai. Over 50 CTF
CARES volunteers and colleagues participated in the charity
run to support the sustainable development project of semi-
final competitions of Enactus World Cup 2014 China
National.

SERATHERSENME  BERELERITNIRATFA
MAmBERN] F0ZERAARELETINET2M
EHAT 0 AXFF 2014 FZ AI7THE SRR P B vk PO 58 Y AT 45 AR B
RIRE -
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> MAJOR AWARDS AND RECOGNITION
FTRREREFET

CORPORATE ACCOLADES 1o %%
Hong Kong &%

2014 Asia’s Fabulous 50 Company, Forbes

2014 B AT K& {E LA A 50 i&

Chow Tai Fook was named one of the “Asia’s Fabulous 50 Companies” in 2014 with outstanding business and financial
performance as well as outlook by Forbes in August 2014 for the first time among a pool of 1,300 listed companies in the
Asia Pacific region that have at least US$3 billion in market capitalisation or annual revenue.

BEAREBRHE N ENEBRUERE RIS - AR 1,300 H M Ek 24 EEFEERTIA L ERARRBERM L - #2014
F8 A B RERB MR A 2014 FaE A& E LA R 5058 o

Retailer of the Year, JNA Awards 2014

JNA 2014 FEZEFAE

Chow Tai Fook was awarded the “Retailer of the Year” for the second year
at the third edition of JNA Awards organised by JNA magazine in
September 2014 in recognition of the Group's leadership in jewellery
retailing over the years.

AARER2014FIAE=ZBINARRBEREMNAREMTRE [FETEH
R BETAKRESZFRNIKETEENEZREN -

RFID Implementation Excellence — Gold Award and

RFID Application Innovation — Gold Award, Hong Kong loT Awards
BEBYBAAR [ SHERFIREPIXITERER SR | R [ SISEERINIREBIEIES

The "“ICS RFID-technology Deployment” project developed by the Group's
MIS Department garnered the Gold Awards in both “RFID Implementation

Excellence” and “RFID Application Innovation” categories of the Hong

Kong Internet of Things (loT) Awards organised by GS1 Hong Kong in ) HK loT AWARDS
September 2014. 0 é ;ﬁ B 8 K ?‘;i
SEEAEEIHEN [FEEHNEXAESSERMER | HB R 2014F9 A%E il ne

BEEREEHSERNT BN RBE S BRI SERRBTER | R Al
BB AR RMER ] AR E -
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Best loT Applications Award, Guangdong — Hong Kong loT Awards

EBYBRAARE | REVBAERAE]

The "“ICS RFID-technology Deployment” project received the “Best loT Applications Award” of GD-HK loT Awards co-
organised by GS1 Hong Kong and Guangdong - Hong Kong RFID Technology Service Centre in October 2014.

[FEIZG R ERS ERMTER | HE N 2014 F10 AEEEERFEH RS R EB BRI ERMIRE DO E < BB YEBARER
E [ EYHAERAAE] -

Excellence Award, HKMA / TVB Awards for Marketing Excellence

HKMA / TVBEEhIiE R EI% [ Sl |

The Group's “The.Perfect One' Bridal Campaign 20j3” won the W ARDS FORSARKETIN . b Y
"Excellence Award” in the HKMA / TVB Awards for Marketing Excellence - < 1 B 11 1
in October 2014 in recognition of its innovative use of viral-ready user ) .
generated content platforms and online social media to appeal to younger
customers.

AEER [TEBEERRFITHE 22013 R 2014 5 10 A% HKMA / TVB
MHREAE[E2WE] - URBH B EEAREERENAFBARNRFEA R
B RN S| FEEE o

Outstanding Listed Company Award, IFAPC
IFAPC £ BFEARE

Chow Tai Fook was presented the “QOutstanding Listed Company Award” LD LT
by The Hong Kong Institute of Financial Analysts and Professional .
Commentators Limited in November 2014 for the Group's overall -

outstanding performance in accounts transparency, corporate stability, .IH"-' hli“ﬁ i 13

business and operational performance, etc. between 1 July 2013 and 30 E g v B
June 2014. o Eih IR A

=i
.
AABR 20145 11 AEBEBRES T GRESE [ LHAREEAR] 55 A%

REER2013F7 A1 HE 201456 A0 BHRER B EHE - AREEME
RAEBREERFEEHENEEESFRE
Retail and Supply Chain Management — Winner Award, Asia Pacific ICT Alliance™A

DAEMMRBABHRBBEAR [TERMUBEETEAR AR |

The "“ICS RFID-technology Deployment” project developed by the Group
clinched the “Retail and Supply Chain Management — Winner Award" at

Asia Pacific ICT Alliance Awards, an annual flagship event of the f
information technology and communications field in the Asia Pacific “

region, in November 2014.

£ BB [ 1755 ) SR AT R AR ST SRR AE R | TEB R 201448 11 ABRTTAOTEA ,,é\Plcer
ANRENMAEERETAANRBANEHBAREE [DERGtEEEE AWARDS
A BIAHE | o 2014 Winner Award
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> MAJOR AWARDS AND RECOGNITION *ZE#1EK %

=)
A

i

Best Company for Leadership — Luxury Sector (Asia), IAIR

Chow Tai Fook received the award “Best Company for Leadership — Luxury — Tisasls fornede i s

Sector, Asia” from the international financial media IAIR for three
consecutive years in March 2015. Based on more than 50,000 online
questionnaires collected from IAIR's readers, the Group was selected
winner of the award by the judging panel in recognition of its distinguished
performance in the luxury industry in Asia.

AREBR 20154 3 A 18 48 = F SR FE B B Bt 48 4 88 IAIR /8 %% [ Best Company for
Leadership — Luxury Sector, Asia| #2185 o K& 517 B4R % 50,000 % () # 1AIR &
EWENE LAEHEIRARERTESE  SERMREMNEEZRITENE
FRIR o

Mainland China # B A its

No. 1 Luxury Brand for Digital Competence, Digital 1Q Index Luxury China

TEECHABEHER [BBEIE—EEmiE]

Chow Tai Fook topped the list in L2's Digital 1Q Index, a global benchmark for digital performance of consumer brands, in
May 2014 for its outstanding overall performance in digital competence across four dimensions, namely site and
e-commerce, social media, mobile and digital marketing in Mainland China among local and international fashion, watches
and jewellery brands.

FARBEEEAT REFRRH - S8 RIKE miET - BREAET BRI EE FREK  EEE  BET A REIS iS5 HEEN AR
B R BARARE - R2014556 ARE L2(ERARIHE mRBIHRIE R Digital 1Q Index(HIHEEIEE)FE L

No. 43 on China Top 500 Most Valuable Brands, World Brand Lab

HRABEERE [PES005EEBERE | F4311

Chow Tai Fook was ranked 43rd on the listing “China Top 500 Most
Valuable Brands"” by World Brand Lab in June 2014 for a brand value of
approximately RMB45.8 billion, up from the 44th in 2013. Chow Tai Fook
was the only jewellery brand in the top 100 list for 11 consecutive years.

BARBAK 458 BT AR MEEE - EHERREEREN 201456 A RMHH

[ B 500 S EBE MM | HE1T6E - #2013 EF 446 T E 2014 FE 5 43167 » FAATR
EE—EE N FESAANKERE -
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No. 22 on Best China Brand 2014, Interbrand

Interbrand 2014&{EF Bl M EE 2211

The group was ranked 22nd on the list “Best China Brand 2014" by
Interbrand, a US-based international brand consultancy, in November 2014

for the company’s financial performance and brand impact on business. EESt
Chow Tai Fook was the only jewellery brand in the top 25. Ehlna
AEEBHNHRR R EHOTE N - EZEBAR R LB Interbrand EE‘T&":'
2014511 AR 12014 S ER B @M ] PHTHAEF 2207 - AARRKE—R vyt
258K IRE M o

12

DESIGN AWARDS &zt 818

Hong Kong &%

Two Accolades by International Jewellery Design Excellence Awards

MIABIBRERE R AT RER

Two designers from the Research and Development Department clinched “The Innovation and Uniqueness in Design
Award” and “The Merit Award” in The 4th International Jewellery Design Excellence Award organised by Hong Kong Trade
Development Council in March 2015.

SEEMRBRABMERAN 201543 AEEEH S ERBENRNE N EHRIRE R AZRE [RE/BARI R [BEL] -
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> INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

B RS

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE MEMBERS OF
CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chow Tai Fook
Jewellery Group Limited (the “Company"”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 163 to 243, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2015, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued by
International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

HEAXRBHREREERAFRR

(RESHEZMELZHRAF])

AAZEAE (A TEE M) EBAPNHNE 163 %
3B ARNBHREEBERAR([ERR]) REWEB
AR (HBEEE]) NEEHBHRE - WS TBHIR
FEFER 201543 A31 BMERE T BAR R KRB ZZ
BILEFENGEEEREMEEKESR  AAESE
BERNGABERER  ULRTESHAREMERE
I EERRIEE R o

BERREEAAAREARSTEAEESHMNE
BB RE L RBB(RAIGI) MR ERERUE
BERRAVHEGEAMBRE  REEERRREGAY
MR BN EBIES] - LABAR A M B MER N FE
R EREF kB AR T B ER M BB A g5 AR R

B EEERERMANEFEZEFHE MR KRIE
HER - R R AP0 E B R B IRE R B R R 3R
Fo BRIz RIBERIEEME S - RATEHRA
RENABTREMEMALE ESABRE@EE - &K
FERIEER B ERETE - ZEAEZRRERIE
STERAR  WRIRRNTE  NAERERS Y
BHmER R MM EEMERERERAL -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT %32 #% 24 Bl 3 &

Auditor’s Responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2015 and of its
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

5 June 2015
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GEBEBEREMEZERRER

For the year ended 31 March 2015 &£ 201543 431 H IFFE

> CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Revenue EER 7 64,277.0 77,4071
Cost of goods sold HER AR (45,204.6) (56,254.8)
Gross profit EF 19,072.4 21,1523
Other income Hg A 8 453.0 351.7
Other gains and losses Hilz R EsE 9 (35.9) 130.2
Selling and distribution costs $HE K SHAAR (9,935.8) (10,035.6)
Administrative expenses THAX (2,408.6) (2,171.6)
Other expenses HibA = (94.7) (38.0)
Finance costs BhE A A 10 (380.5) (222.8)
Share of results of a joint venture PME—REBLEER 21 (10.8) (3.2)
Profit before taxation BB REF I 6,659.1 9,163.0
Taxation | 13 (1,123.3) (1,713.8)
Profit for the year FEEF 5,535.8 7,449.2
Other comprehensive (expense) income: Hth2m (BX) iz
Item that will not be reclassified BEETEEH 7D
subsequently to profit or loss: BamB)EA -
— remeasurement of defined benefit — BT E R ERAEE
scheme (19.0) 28.3
[tems that may be reclassified T er B =t
subsequently to profit or loss: EH :
— exchange differences arising on —BMEEANEL EE
translation 211 262.3
— share of translation reserve of a joint —DME—REEBELEZ
venture HHE (0.1) 0.1
21.0 262.4
Other comprehensive income for the year FEHEHMEZENE 2.0 290.7
Total comprehensive income for the year FE2HENBALE 5,537.8 7,739.9
Profit for the year attributable to: LT &5 BhFERR :
Shareholders of the Company RARRRR 5,456.0 7,272.0
Non-controlling interests FEFEAR RS 79.8 177.2
5,5635.8 7,449.2
Total comprehensive income UTEAEGRZE RS
attributable to: .
Shareholders of the Company NG S 5,456.2 7,547.8
Non-controlling interests FEPEIR I A 81.6 192.1
5,537.8 7,739.9
Earnings per share — Basic SREF — £ 14 HK54.6 cents #&fll HK72.7 cents /&1l

EAE2015FE®R 163 <



> CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

FaBHIRRR

At 31 March 2015 72201543 H31 H

Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEMK 16 4,4425 3,054.1
Land use rights T {E A 17 237.9 174.6
Investment properties WA 18 508.9 -
Goodwill eSS 19 257.8 -
Other intangible assets HEtmpEE 20 397.2 -
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, BEYE  BEMERE
plant and equipment Bftke 294.1 283.6
Interest in a joint venture R—REBELEZ#ER 21 = 10.9
Loan receivables U E R 22 39.8 36.5
Deferred tax assets TR IR & B 23 860.1 703.1
7,038.3 4,262.8
Current assets REBEE
Inventories PR 24 39,797.6 42,543.7
Trade and other receivables B 5 K H b el k18 25 5,785.4 4.872.7
Loan receivables Rl E R 22 4.3 1445
Convertible bonds A] 4 (&5 26 17.9 2156
Pledged bank deposits BIRMIRITER 27 0.4 5.3
Short-term bank deposits REERRITER 27 - 500.0
Bank balances and cash RITHB RIS 27 8,477.1 9,466.6
54,082.7 57,554.3
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables E o5 REMENRIE 28 3,997.9 4,128.3
Amounts due to non-controlling JESTBHT /BB A B FEIE A%
shareholders of subsidiaries &S0 29 197.3 228.2
Taxation payable FERTRLIE 595.8 1,064.0
Bank borrowings IRITER 30 6,750.6 6,299.6
Gold loans BEaEE 31 8,338.3 10,786.8
19,879.9 22,506.9
Net current assets REEESE 34,202.8 35,047.4
Total assets less current liabilities wWEERABAR 41,2411 39,310.2
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Retirement benefit obligations RIREFIAE 36 243.3 225.0
Deferred tax liabilities FEFIEEE 23 457.0 632.8
700.3 857.8
Net assets EERSE 40,540.8 38,452.4
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Share capital R 32 10,000.0 10,000.0
Reserves #E 29,429.5 27,173.3

Equity attributable to shareholders RA B RERELES
of the Company 39,429.5 37,173.3
Non-controlling interests FEIERER 1,111.3 1,279.1
40,540.8 38,452.4

The consolidated financial statements on pages 163 to 243 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 5 June 2015 and are
signed on its behalf by:

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent
B RAEE L ERERE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

3 EFE

BE2 R 201556 85 B #b I =2 FI SN E 163
BUIEIRAMBHRE WA TRESRSE

Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton
BRIRER £ 4
DIRECTOR

2F
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> CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FERREBR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z 201643 A31 HILEE

At 1 April 2013 201354718 10,000.0 5,498.7 2,499.5 5124 1,188.3 13,226.6 32,925.5 935.2 33,860.7
Profit for the year FEREEFI - - - - - 7,272.0 7.272.0 177.2 7,449.2
Other comprehensive income FEHMRERE

for the year - - - - 247.5 283 275.8 14.9 290.7
Total comprehensive income FE2ERSHE

for the year - - - - 2475 7,300.3 7,547.8 1921 7,739.9
Capital contributions from REMBRR

non-controlling shareholders FEFRR iR R

of subsidiaries AE - - - - - - - 204.9 204.9
Acquisition of additional interests Yz —%

in a subsidiary Wi B8 A R ESME RS - - - - - - - (1.1 (1)
Deregistration of subsidiaries HHEMBAR - - - - - - - (2.5) (2.5)
Transfers fatd - - - 94.3 - (94.3) - - -
Dividends (458 - - - - - (3,300.0) (3,300.0) (49.5) (3,349.5)
At 31 March 2014 201443A31H 10,000.0 5,498.7 2,499.5 606.7 1,435.8 17,132.6 37,1733 1,279.1 38,452.4
Profit for the year EREF - - - - - 5,456.0 5,456.0 79.8 5,535.8
Other comprehensive FEAEMNEZE

(expense) income for the year (B W - - - - 19.2 (19.0) 0.2 1.8 2.0
Total comprehensive income FE2EKZESE

for the year - - - - 19.2 5,437.0 5,456.2 81.6 5,537.8
Capital contributions from MBARFERRFETE

non-controlling shareholders

of subsidiaries - - - - - - - 92.0 92,0
Deregistration of subsidiaries B AR - - - - - - - (7.4) (7.4)
Transfers fitd - - - 52.8 - (52.8) - - -
Dividends [E:8 - - - = = (3,200.0) (3,200.0) (334.0) (3,534.0)
At 31 March 2015 2015437318 10,000.0 5,498.7 2,4995 659.5 1,455.0 19,316.8 39,4295 11113 40,540.8

Notes: PaE -

(a) Special reserve represents (i) the accumulated contribution from the Macau jewellery business and (i) the (a) HE B EE () RPIRE 55 2 251 B B (i) 2GR 1R 2 R 12 6 T &Mt
difference between the nominal value of the shares of various subsidiaries under common control, and B A B H9 AR 15 T (B B AR 15 £ () 25 4R Rk Uk Sk [R)370 1) TR BB A R E =2 <)
cash consideration payable arising from acquisition of these subsidiaries under common control pursuant CHOREZ 2% - FIERNERARRIZBROREEHARSHER
to the group reorganisation as more fully explained in the section headed “History and Corporate ANREREXRLET - BEA2011 F12 ABZ2BRER [EEL R AT
Structure” of the prospectus of the Company dated 5 December 2011 in connection with the initial listing 2R4E | —ERgt o
of the shares of the Company on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

(b) As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for foreign investment enterprises in Mainland China, (b) BEBATERMMINE R ENBRARRER  AARN A 3 B B

the Company’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are required to maintain a statutory surplus reserve fund.
Appropriation to such reserve is made out of net profit after taxation as reflected in the statutory financial
statements of the subsidiaries in Mainland China in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations
applicable to enterprises in Mainland China. The statutory surplus reserve fund can be used to make up
prior year losses, if any, and can be applied in conversion into capital by means of capitalisation issue.
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> CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z 201643 A31 BILEE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES ReEES
Profit before taxation R T AT Y4 ) 6,659.1 9,163.0
Adjustments for: TGS IEE T TR
Interest income B A (151.5) (133.7)
Interest expenses FEMAX 380.5 222.8
Fair value change of gold loans HEEENQATEED (418.0) (467.9)
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BENMREBITE
equipment 730.6 649.8
Depreciation of investment properties REYEE 17.5 -
Amortisation of land use rights - b {55 PR A R 5 14.1 13.6
Amortisation of other intangible assets HihER EEEN 24.0 -
Share of results of a joint venture PME—REBEEE 10.8 3.2
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE  BEME
equipment 0] 5= 17.4 3.9
Provision for defined benefit obligations TE BB IR R R AR B R 7.6 10.2
Operating cash flows before movements BEECER LE
in working capital Beme 7,292.1 9,464.9
Decrease (increase) in inventories &R (Em) 3,116.9 (15,072.6)
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 N EAh FE SR TE I AN (654.3) (837.2)
(Decrease) increase in trade and other B 5 R EAMEFIECHD)
payables AN (299.5) 2,300.1
Defined benefits paid B E R R AR A (8.3) (8.2)
Cash generated from (used in) operations SERTE (TR RS 9,446.9 (4,153.0)
Interest received A E 23.6 11.6
Income tax paid BETEE
Hong Kong Profits Tax BAEMEH (874.9) (253.1)
Enterprise Income Tax and withholding A A ZE PSR
tax in Mainland China NIEHE (903.0) (929.1)
Macau complementary tax SBFIFTIS T HR (124.4) (95.9)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) OPERATING £ &5 B1FF13 (FT /)
ACTIVITIES REFHE 7,568.2 (5,419.5)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BRETH
Interest received BEF B 127.9 122.1
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits B EPRITIFRK 14.3 21.4
Placement of pledged bank deposits GFEBRPRITFR (9.4) (0.6)
Withdrawal (placement) of short-term R (FE) EHERTT
bank deposits TR 500.0 (500.0)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE  WENRE (1,924.8) (1,176.1)
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, BEME BB NE
plant and equipment BffEe (133.2) (179.8)
Payment for acquisition of land use rights U B+ b (F FARET R (78.6) (12.4)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEME B MK
and equipment F{S 5818 12.9 20.9
Purchase of investment properties BEIREYE (549.1) -
Loan advanced by the Group REBEEBNER (10.5) (29.5)
Repayment of loan to the Group BEETAEBZER 145.5 6.7
Net cash outflow used in acquisition of WHEMNBATELEZHS
subsidiaries T FERE 33a (1,187.7) -

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING
ACTIVITIES BRETEFARSEHR (3,092.7) (1,727.3)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z= 201543 31 HIEFE

FEUTRER

FINANCING ACTIVITIES AESEE
Interest paid BEAFE (400.3) (174.8)
Bank borrowings raised EERRITEK 7,486.2 9,315.3
Repayment of bank borrowings ERBRITER (7,036.2) (4,018.4)
Capital contributions from non-controlling 1B A RIFEZ AR

shareholders of subsidiaries AR 92.0 204.9
Acquisition of additional interests U B —FEI BB A RIRE M 2

in a subsidiary - (1.1)
Dividends paid BERE (3,534.0) (3,349.5)
Gold loans raised PEEESEE 12,903.9 16,885.8
Repayment of gold loans EEESEE (14,940.2) (10,510.0)
Advance from non-controlling DL ENSIE 221

shareholders of subsidiaries R O EA 5K 48.8 86.7
Repayment to non-controlling EBETHBRR

shareholders of subsidiaries IR (91.7) (218.3)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM FINANCING &= &) (F7 ) F78

ACTIVITIES IR & BEE (5,471.5) 8,220.6
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH  RERBREZEW (B L) B

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FHE (996.0) 1,073.8
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FINESRRSEEY

AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 9,466.6 8,304.8
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ERFEHMEE 6.5 88.0
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRNRSRESEEY

AT THE END OF THE YEAR, BMRITEBRRS

REPRESENTED BY BANK BALANCES

AND CASH 8,477.1 9,466.6
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> NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M B HRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2015 &= 2015643 A31 B ILFE

1.

General

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated as an exempted company in the Cayman Islands with
limited liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands on
20 July 2011. Its shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 15
December 2011. Its immediate holding company is Chow Tai Fook
(Holding) Limited (“CTF Holding"”), and in the opinion of the directors
of the Company, its ultimate holding company is Chow Tai Fook
Capital Limited, both are incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Company's principal subsidiaries are set out in note
39. The address of registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.
The address of principal place of business is 33/F, New World Tower,
16-18 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$"), which is same as the functional currency
of the Company.

Application of New and Revised
International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”)

The Group has applied the following amendments to IFRSs and a
new interpretation issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (the “IASB") and IFRS Interpretation Committee (the “IFRIC")
of the IASB for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to IFRS 10,  Investment entities
IFRS 12 and IAS 27

Amendments to |IAS 32 Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities

Recoverable amount disclosures for
non-financial assets

Novation of derivatives and continuation
of hedge accounting

IFRIC-INT 21 Levies

Amendments to IAS 36

Amendments to IAS 39

The application of the above amendments to IFRSs and the new
interpretation in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group's financial performance and positions for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.
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> NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8Rk Kzt

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z= 201543 31 HIEFE

2. Application of New and Revised
International Financial Reporting
Standal‘ds (HIFRSS") (Continued)

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised IFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective:

IAS 1
IAS 28 (2011)

IFRS 9

IFRS 10

IFRS 12

IFRS 15

Amendments to IFRS 11

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 16
and IAS 38

Amendments to IAS 16
and IAS 41

Amendments to IAS 19

Amendments to IAS 27

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

Amendments to IFRS 10,

IFRS 12 and IAS 28

Amendments to IFRSs

Amendments to IFRSs

Amendments to IFRSs

Presentation of financial statements?®
Investments in associates and
joint ventures®
Financial instruments®
Consolidated financial statements®
Disclosure of interests in other entities®
Revenue from contracts with
customers*
Accounting for acquisitions of interests
in joint operations®
Disclosure initiative®

Clarification of acceptable methods of
depreciation and amortisation®
Agriculture: Bearer plants®

Defined benefit plans: Employee
contributions’

Equity method in separate financial
statements?®

Sale or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or joint
venture®

Investment entities: Apply the
consolidation exception®

Annual improvements to IFRSs
2010-2012 cycle?

Annual improvements to IFRSs
2011-2013 cycle’

Annual improvements to IFRSs
2012-2014 cycle®

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with limited exceptions. Earlier
application is permitted.

e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with earlier application
permitted.

¢ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017, with earlier application
permitted.

9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with earlier application
permitted.
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Application of New and Revised
International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs") (continsea

IFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

IFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. IFRS 9 was
subsequently amended in 2010 to include requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition, and further amended in 2013 to include the new
requirements for general hedge accounting. Another revised version
of IFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly to include a) impairment
requirements for financial assets and b) limited amendments to the
classification and measurement requirements by introducing a “fair
value through other comprehensive income” (“FVTOCI")
measurement category for certain simple debt instruments.

Key requirements of IFRS 9 are described below:

° All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of IAS
39 “Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement” are
subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and that
have contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, are
measured at FVTOCI. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair value at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under IFRS 9,
entities may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity investment
(that is not held-for-trading) in other comprehensive income,
with only dividend income generally recognised in profit
or loss.
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> NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8Rk Kzt

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z= 201543 31 B ILFE

2. Application of New and Revised

International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs") (continea

IFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (Continued)

° With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, IFRS 9
requires that the amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk
of that liability is presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s
credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in
fair value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in the
financial liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss. Under IAS 39, the entire amount of the change
in the fair value of the financial liability designated as fair value
through profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

° In relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9
requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under IAS 39. The expected credit
loss model requires an entity to account for expected credit
losses and changes in those expected credit losses at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary for a
credit event to have occurred before credit losses
are recognised.

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain the three
types of hedge accounting. However, greater flexibility has been
introduced to the types of transactions eligible for hedge accounting,
specifically broadening the types of instruments that qualify for
hedging instruments and the types of risk components of non-
financial items that are eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the
effectiveness test has been overhauled and replaced with the
principle of an “economic relationship”. Retrospective assessment
of hedge effectiveness is also no longer required. Enhanced
disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk management activities
have also been introduced.

The directors of the Company are in the process of assessing the
impact on application of IFRS 9.
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Application of New and Revised
International Financial Reporting
StandardS (HIFRSS") (Continued)

IFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”

In July 2014, IFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue
arising from contracts with customers. IFRS 15 will supersede the
current revenue recognition guidance including IAS 18 “Revenue”,
IAS 11 “Construction contracts” and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

° Step 1: ldentify the contract(s) with a customer

° Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance

obligations in the contract

o Step 5:  Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation

Under IFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods
or services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has
been added in IFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore,
extensive disclosures are required by IFRS 15.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of IFRS
15 in the future may have an impact on the amounts reported and
disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the
effect of IFRS 15 until the Group performs a detailed review.
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> NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8Rk Kzt

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z= 201543 31 HIEFE

Application of New and Revised
International Financial Reporting
Standal‘ds (HIFRSS") (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 19 “Defined benefit plans:
Employee contributions”

The Amendments to IAS 19 clarify how an entity should account for
contributions made by employees or third parties to defined benefit
plans, based on whether those contributions are dependent on the
number of years of service provided by the employee.

For contributions that are independent of the number of years of
service, the entity may either recognise the contributions as a
reduction in the service cost in the period in which the related
service is rendered, or to attribute them to the employees’ periods of
service using the projected unit credit method; whereas for
contributions that are dependent on the number of years of service,
the entity is required to attribute them to the employees’
periods of service.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application
of these amendments to IAS 19 will have a significant impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements, as all the contributions
made to the defined benefit plans are dependent on the number of
years of the service and are already attributed to the employees’
periods of service using the projected unit credit method.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of the
other new and revised IFRSs will have no material impact on the
results and the financial position of the Group, and the disclosures of
the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

Significant Accounting Policies

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments, which
are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if
market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair
value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of IFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of IAS
17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but
are not fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2 or value in use
in IAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its
entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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> NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8Rk Kzt

For the year ended 31 March 2015 &£ 201543 A 31 HILFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies contnuea) 3. EABFEE®

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of an
investee, it has power over the investee when the voting rights are
sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee unilaterally. The Group considers all relevant facts
and circumstances in assessing whether or not the Group's voting
rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

o the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the
size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote holders or
other parties;

° rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

° any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the
Group has, or does not have, the current ability to direct the
relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made,
including voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the date when
the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continuea)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the shareholders of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is
attributed to the shareholders of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the
Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group's equity therein.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group's interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified/permitted by applicable IFRSs). The fair value of
any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under IAS 39, when applicable, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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> NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8Rk Kzt

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z 201563 A31 BIEF/E

Significant Accounting Policies (continuea)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination is
measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related
to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with IAS 12 “Income taxes” and IAS
19 “Employee benefits” respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with IFRS 2 “Share-based payment” at the
acquisition date; and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with IFRS 5 “Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations” are measured in accordance with
that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’'s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess
is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity's net
assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured at their
fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another IFRS.
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Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as
established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the
accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each
of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating
units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the
unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or
loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or
loss on disposal.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of a joint venture are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting. The financial statements of a joint
venture used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity
method, an investment in a joint venture is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’'s share of the profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of the joint venture. When the Group’s
share of losses of joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in that
joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the joint
venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of that joint venture.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continuea)

Interest in a joint venture (continued)

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes a joint
venture. On acquisition of the investment in a joint venture, any
excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within
the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment,
is recognised immediately in profit or loss in which the investment
is acquired.

The requirements of IAS 39 are applied to determine whether it is
necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the
Group's investment in a joint venture. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with IAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in
accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of
the investment subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with its joint venture, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the joint venture are
recognised in the Group's consolidated financial statements only to
the extent of interests in the joint venture that are not related to
the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold in
the normal course of business and net of trade discounts.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and title
has passed.

Service income including franchise income is recognised when the
services are provided.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continuea)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Sales of goods that result in award credits for customers, under the
Group’s customer loyalty program, are accounted for as multiple
element revenue transactions and the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable is allocated between the goods supplied and
the award credits granted. The consideration allocated to the award
credits is measured by reference to the fair value of the awards for
which they could be redeemed. Such consideration is not recognised
as revenue at the time of the initial sale transaction — but is deferred
and recognised as revenue when the award credits are redeemed
and expired and the Group's obligations have been fulfilled.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than properties under construction in
progress) are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For land and buildings where the cost of land cannot be reliably
allocated between the land and buildings elements, the cost of land
and buildings are depreciated and amortised on a straight-line basis
over the lease terms or 20 years, whichever is the shorter.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of other
property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress
and land and buildings, less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method, at the following rates
per annum:

Plant and machinery 10%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20% — 33":%
Leasehold improvements Over the lease term, or 20%,

whichever is the shorter
Motor vehicles 25%
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Significant Accounting Policies (continuea)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of the reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Construction in progress is carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

If there is a transfer from investment property to owner-occupied
property evidenced by the commencement of owner’s occupation,
the property shall be measured at its carrying amount at the date of
change in use for subsequent accounting.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of investment
properties over their estimated useful lives and after taking into
account their estimated residual value, using the straight-line basis
over 20 years.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in
which the property is derecognised.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continuea)

Land use rights

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each
element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that
both elements are operating leases in which case the entire lease is
classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease
payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land elements
and building element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “land use rights” in the consolidated
financial statements and is amortised over the lease term on a
straight-line basis. Land use rights which are to be amortised in the
next twelve months or less are classified as current assets.

When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
land and building elements, the entire lease is generally classified as
a finance lease and accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination and recognised
separately from goodwill are initially recognised at their fair value at
the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a
business combination are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis
as intangible assets that are acquired separately.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains and
losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset
is derecognised.
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> NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8Rk Kzt

For the year ended 31 March 2015 &£ 201543 A 31 HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continuea)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit and loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is calculated using specific identification basis for gem-set
jewellery and watches; and weighted average for other inventories.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are mainly loans and receivables and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"). The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.
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Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts future cash receipts (including all fees paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial assets, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be
designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

° such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

° the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or
financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group's documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded
derivatives, and IAS 39 permits the entire combined contract
(asset or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL including convertible bonds are stated at
fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss includes any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade and other receivables, loan receivables, pledged bank deposits,
short-term bank deposits and bank balances and cash) are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment (see accounting policy on impairment of financial
assets below).
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 &£ 201543 A 31 HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continuea)

Financial instruments (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of impairment at
the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to
be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial assets, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:
° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest
and principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation.

For trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a collective
basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an
increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period, observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment losses was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the
extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date of the
impairment loss is reversed does not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continuea)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities classified as either financial liabilities at FVTPL or
other financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
A financial liability other than a financial liability classified as held for
trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

° such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

° the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or
financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group's documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded
derivatives, and IAS 39 permits the entire combined contract
(asset or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL including gold loans are measured at fair
value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised
in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any interest paid on the financial liabilities.

Other financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, amounts due
to non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries and bank borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.
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> NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8Rk Kzt

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z= 201543 31 B ILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continuea)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimate future cash payments (including
all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets (other
than goodwill)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continuea)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets (other
than goodwill) (continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from “profit before taxation” as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years, and it further excludes income or
expense items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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> NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8Rk Kzt

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z= 201543 31 B ILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continuea)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and a joint
venture, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to the extent
that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they
are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle
the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when it relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from
the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising monetary items are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continuea)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong
Kong dollars) using exchange rate prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under translation reserve (attributable to non-
controlling interests as appropriate). Such exchange differences are
reclassified to profit or loss in the period in which the foreign
operation is disposed of.

In relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not result in
the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share
of accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the term. Contingent rentals and
concessionaire fees arising under operating leases are recognised as
an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating
leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate
benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense
on a straight-line basis.
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> NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8Rk Kzt

For the year ended 31 March 2015 &£ 201543 A 31 HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continuea)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the
related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses
or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Retirement henefits costs

Payments to retirement benefits plans and government-managed
retirement benefits schemes are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

For defined retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is
determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial
valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting
period. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, is
reflected immediately in the consolidated statement of financial
position with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement
recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately
in retained earnings and will not be reclassified to profit or loss. Past
service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period of a plan
amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate
at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or
asset. Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

o service cost (including current service cost, past service cost,
as well as gains and losses on curtailments and settlements);

o net interest expense or income; and
° remeasurement.

The Group presents the first two components of defined benefit
costs in profit or loss in “selling and distribution costs” and
“administrative expenses”. Curtailment gains and losses are
accounted for as past service costs.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position represents the present value of the
defined benefit obligation.
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4. Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the group entities will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return
to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank borrowings, gold
loans and equity attributable to shareholders of the Company,
comprising share capital, reserves and retained profits as disclosed
in the consolidated financial statements.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure
regularly. The Group considers the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital, and will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues
as well as the raising of bank borrowings and gold loans.

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.
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5. Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Net realisable value of inventories is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal. These estimates are based on the current market condition
and the historical experience in selling goods of similar nature. It
could change significantly as a result of changes in market
conditions. The Group will reassess the estimation at the end of each
reporting period. As at 31 March 2015, the carrying amount of
inventories is HK$39,797.6 million (2014: HK$42,543.7 million). No
allowance for inventories was made for both years.

Useful lives, residual value and impairment of
property, plant and equipment, investment properties
and other intangible assets

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives,
residual value and related depreciation and amortisation charges for
its property, plant and equipment, investment properties and other
intangible assets. This estimate is based on the historical experience
of the actual useful lives and residual value of property, plant and
equipment, investment properties and other intangible assets of
similar nature and functions. Management will increase the
depreciation and amortisation charges where useful lives or residual
value are expected to be shorter or lower than estimated, or it will
write-off or write-down obsolete assets that have been abandoned
or sold. Changes in these estimations may have a material impact on
the results of the Group, which would be recognised in profit or loss
in the year when such change occur. As at 31 March 2015, the
carrying values of property, plant and equipment, investment
properties and other intangible assets are HK$4,442.5 million (2014:
HK$3,054.1 million), HK$508.9 million (2014: nil) and HK$397.2
million (2014 nil), respectively.
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5. Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

(Continued)

Deferred taxation in respect of temporary differences
attributable to the undistributed profits of
subsidiaries in Mainland China

The Group’s management determines the dividend distribution plan
of the subsidiaries in Mainland China. Based on the dividend
distribution plan, retained profits as at 31 March 2015 amounting to
HK$7,325.5 million (2014: HK$6,270.6 million) will be distributed by
the subsidiaries as dividend in the foreseeable future, while the
remaining retained profits amounting to HK$10,628.9 million (2014:
HK$9,569.8 million) has been set aside for reinvestment by the
subsidiaries and will not be distributed in the foreseeable future. The
Group’s management further reassesses the dividend withholding
tax rate based on current dividend distribution plan and determines
that certain of these subsidiaries should be entitled to a withholding
tax at the rate of 5% for dividend payments instead of 10%. The
dividend distribution plan is determined and made with reference to
the Group's approved expansion plans in Mainland China. Future
change in the dividend distribution plan may have a material impact
on the amount of deferred taxation being recognised.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill has
been allocated. The value in use calculation requires management to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating units and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
present value.

The carrying amount of goodwill as at 31 March 2015 was HK$257.8
million (2014: nil). Details of the impairment loss calculation are set
out in note 19.
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> NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 Bi i8R 5RM s

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z= 201543 31 HIEFE

6. Financial Instruments 6. eI A

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted,
including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and
the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect
of each class of financial assets and financial liabilities are disclosed
in note 3.

Categories of financial instruments

REReBEERSBEEEMOMRAER
BB RO ANRE (RERRIE G ER
AR R L0 Z ) KK RS -

EMTIRER

Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables (including cash and B WA
cash equivalents) (BEREeMREEEY) 12,185.8 13,473.2
Convertible bonds at fair value through BAFEFABEZZ
profit or loss o R ES 17.9 21.5
12,203.7 13,494.7
Financial liabilities SREE
Amortised cost SRR AR 8,173.0 8,076.8
Gold loans at fair value through profit or loss LA EFABENESEE 8,338.3 10,786.8
16,511.3 18,863.6

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, loan receivables, convertible bonds, pledged bank
deposits, short-term bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade
and other payables, amounts due to non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries, bank borrowings and gold loans. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include market risk
(interest rate risk, currency risk and commodity price risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.
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Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to
fixed-rate loan receivables, short-term bank deposits and gold loans.
The Group currently does not have any instruments to hedge against
the fair value interest rate risk.

Also, the Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk through the
impact of rate changes on interest bearing financial assets and
liabilities, mainly interest bearing pledged bank deposits, certain
trade receivables, bank balances and bank borrowings at variable
interest rates. The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management will consider hedging
significant interest rate risk should the need arise.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the cash flow interest
rate risk is considered insignificant and therefore no sensitivity
analysis is presented.

Currency risk

Certain group entities have foreign currency sales, which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk. During the year ended 31 March
2015, about 0.5% (2014: 0.7%) of the Group's sales are
denominated in currency other than the functional currency of the
group entities. During the year ended 31 March 2015, about 6.3%
(2014: 1.8%) of the Group's purchases, are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the group entities
making the purchase. The carrying amounts of bank balances
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB"), which are held by Group entities
whose functional currencies are not RMB, were HK$1,084.3 million
(2014: HK$2,402.3 million). In addition, certain group entities whose
functional currency is HK$, have intra-group advances to their
subsidiaries, denominated in RMB.

The Group mainly exposes to currency of United States dollars
("US$") and RMB, which are arising from relevant group entities’
foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities for the
Group’s operating activities.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy
to eliminate the currency exposures. However, the management
monitors the related foreign currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposures should the
need arise. As at 31 March 2015, if the exchange rate of RMB had
been 2% appreciated or depreciated against HK$, the Group’s profit
after taxation for the year would increase or decrease by HK$89.1
million (2014: HK$106.1 million).
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> NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8Rk Kzt

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z= 201543 31 B ILFE

6. Financial Instruments (continued) 6. I Ew

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Commaodity price risk

The Group is engaged in the sales of jewellery including gold
products. The gold market is influenced by global as well as regional
supply and demand conditions. A significant decline in prices of gold
could adversely affect the Group’s financial performance. In order to
reduce the commodity price risk, the Group uses gold loans to
reduce its exposure to fluctuations in the gold price on gold
inventory. Gold loans are settled at maturity which usually in 2 to 6
months (2014: 1 to 12 months) from date of inception and any fair
value change is immediately recognised in profit or loss.

As at 31 March 2015, if the market price of gold had been higher or
lower by 10%, the potential effect on gold loans and the resulting
impact on profit after taxation for the year would decrease or increase
approximately by HK$773.8 million (2014: HK$1,012.5 million).

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties failure to perform their obligations at the end of the
reporting period in relation to each class of recognised financial assets
is the carrying amount of those assets stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt at the end of the reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group's
credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk in trade
receivables, with exposure spread over a number of counterparties.
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6. Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

The Group, however, had concentration of credit risk in relation to
loan receivables from a borrower amounted to HK$140.0 million at
31 March 2014 which accounted for 77% of the Group's loan
receivables. At 31 March 2014, such loan receivables were secured
over certain properties in Hong Kong and the directors of the
Company considered that the market values of these properties
were in excess of the carrying amount of respective loan receivables
at the end of the reporting period. The Group had the right to collect
the secured properties upon default by the borrower. In order to
minimise the credit risk, the management reviewed the recoverable
amounts of the loan receivables regularly to ensure that adequate
impairment losses were made for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the directors of the Company considered that the Group's
credit risk on loan receivables was significantly reduced. Such loan
receivables were settled in the year and the directors of the
Company consider that the credit risk on remaining loan receivables
is not significant.

The credit risk on pledged bank deposits and bank balances is
minimal as such amounts are placed in banks with good reputation.

Liquidity risk

The management of the Group has built an appropriate liquidity risk
management framework for the management of the Group's short
and medium-term funding and liquidity management requirements.
The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining banking facilities and
by continuously monitoring forecasted and actual cash flows and the
maturity profiles of its financial liabilities.
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> NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 Bi i8R 5RM s

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z= 201543 31 HIEFE

6. Financial Instruments (continuea 6. €M I Aw
Financial risk management objectives and policies SRIEARETEEEREE @
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) RENE R (&)
The following table details the Group's remaining contractual TERRAKBEZEMARKTENIMAZF
maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up to & RERBRBAREARERZNERARE
reflect the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on ZEPAMGRE  URREMBEZRBERER
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The RRE - REBERENERALHERE

table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

Financial liabilities SRBE
At 31 March 2015 #201543A31H
Trade and other payables 5 REMENTE = 1,225.1 = 1,225.1 1,225.1
Amounts due to non-controlling  JEfH B A RIZEIEAL
shareholders of subsidiaries IRE B - 197.3 - 197.3 197.3
Bank borrowings RITER 1.5% 6,760.2 = 6,760.2 6,750.6
Gold loans E¢fEE 2.3% 7,537.6 825.1 8,362.7 8,338.3
15,720.2 825.1 16,545.3 16,511.3

Financial liabilities LRBE
At 31 March 2014 R201493A31H
Trade and other payables B 5 REMENTEA - 1,549.0 - 1,549.0 1,549.0
Amounts due to non-controlling  JEf B A RIZEIEAL
shareholders of subsidiaries MR FIE - 228.2 - 228.2 228.2
Bank borrowings RITER 2.1% 5,416.3 908.4 6,324.7 6,299.6
Gold loans =22fEE 2.4% 8,030.8 2,815.9 10,846.7 10,786.8
15,2243 3,724.3 18,948.6 18,863.6
Notes: FfaE -

(i) The amounts included in above for variable rate bank borrowings are subject to change if changes (i)
in variable interest rates differ from those estimates of interest rates determined at the end of
the reporting period.

(ii) The amounts of gold loans are determined with reference to quoted market bid price of gold (i)
traded in active liquid markets.
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6. Financial Instruments (continued 6. €I Aw

Fair value measurements of financial instruments ERTRAAEESE
(i) Fair value of financial assets and financial (i) REEEEUQNVENESHEE
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a kemeBEzAFE

recurring basis

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are CTRIEERSRAGBZATEIATIE

determined as follows: IHEETE :

. the fair value of gold loans is determined using . 52 EEZAFENAMRRESR
discounted cash flow valuation technique reference to FHEAERE  ER2RESRAT
quoted market bid price of gold traded in active liquid LEBEZEEMHEARERETE
markets as a key input; and ASE &

. the fair value of convertible bonds is determined in . A RBRESFE 2 ATFEDREARE
accordance with generally accepted pricing models BEN - ZBUEBBRSRESNT
based on discounted cash flow analysis. EE °

The following table provides an analysis of convertible bonds TREEVPIEA T ERRETEZAN

and gold loans that are measured subsequent to initial BREFRESEE  BRRATEBREMSG

recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on BESRBIEIHK -

the degree to which the fair value is observable.

At 31 March 2015 R20159F3H31H

Financial assets SWMEE

Convertible bonds o] HiES - - 17.9 17.9
Financial liabilities - S=N

Gold loans =eEE - 8,338.3 — 8,338.3
At 31 March 2014 M20149F3A31H

Financial assets SWMEE

Convertible bonds o] H R ES - - 215 21.5
Financial liabilities SRBE

Gold loans =2EE - 10,786.8 - 10,786.8

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of A RIRESEIM A FEFEZER

convertible bonds

At 1 April 2013 ®2013F4/1H 24.3
Currency realignment ERHEE (2.8)
At 31 March 2014 201493 A31H 21.5
Currency realignment EHAEE (3.6)
At 31 March 2015 7201593 A31H 17.9
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z= 201543 31 HIEFE

6. Financial Instruments (continueq) 6. I Ew

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(Continued)

(i) Fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis (Continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

In estimating the fair value of convertible bonds, the Group
uses market-observable data to the extent it is available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group performs the
valuation using discounted cash flow model with reference to
comparable market data.

(ii) Fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair value on
recurring basis

The fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities is
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and liabilities recorded at amortised
cost in the consolidated financial statements approximate their
fair values.

7. Revenue and Segment Information

Revenue represents the net amounts received and receivable for
goods sold less returns and net of trade discounts.

Information reported to the chief operating decision maker (the
“CODM") which comprises executive directors of the Company, for
the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on locations of the operations. In addition,
revenue derived from each location of operations is further analysed
into those from retail and wholesale markets when reviewed by
CODM. This is also the basis upon which the Group is arranged and
organised. In addition, the segment “Mainland China"” is further
separated into jewellery business (including gem-set jewellery, gold
products and platinum/karat gold products) and watch business for
better resource allocation and performance assessment. Therefore,
the Group's operating and reportable segments under IFRS 8 are
jewellery business and watch business located in Mainland China,
and operations located in Hong Kong, Macau and other markets. No
operating segments identified by the CODM have been aggregated
in arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.
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7. Revenue and Segment Information (continuea)

(a) An analysis of the Group's revenue and results
by reportable segment:

For the year ended 31 March

7. BEBENITFER @

(a) AEEEXFEREENTER
S

BE3IAMBLFE

Revenue e+
External sales INREHE
— Retail —ZE 26,7684  30,508.6 1,931.0 15935 259614 350768 54,6608 67,1789
— Wholesale* — #E 91428 10,007.7 - 384 4734 182.1 9,616.2 10,2282
Segment/group revenue DE/EEEERE 359112  40,516.3 1,931.0 16319 264348 352589 64,2770 77.407.1
Inter-segment sales* HEREHE 560.6 853.9 - - 2,922.2 3,685.6 3,482.8 4,539.5
36,471.8  41,370.2 1,931.0 16319  29,357.0 389445 67,759.8 81,9466
Gross profit E7 10,766.4 11,280.1 4721 443.0 8,282.7 9,634.3 19,5212 21,3574
Inter-segment eliminations 7 EREE (68.2) (28.9) - - (380.6) (176.2) (448.8) (205.1)

10,698.2 11,251.2
Selling and distribution costs HHE R AR E

4721 443.0 7,902.1 9/458.1 19,0724 21,1523

and administrative expenses THHEY (7,0403)  (7,379.2) (456.2) (3715)  (4,847.9) (4,4565) (12,344.4) (12,207.2)
Other income, net" Hi AT 123.8 206.7 12.0 10.7 243 89.6 160.1 307.0
Segment profit e 3,781.7 4,078.7 219 82.2 3,0785 5,091.2 6,888.1 9,252.1
Interest income FlEWA 151.5 133.7
Finance costs BERA (380.5) (222.8)
Profit before taxation BRE AR 6,659.1 9,163.0
Other segment information AN BIERH P

included in measurement ééﬁ'iﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ

of segment profit or loss DEER :

or segment assets:

Concessionaire fees v 2,076.6 23917 154.3 137.1 26.2 29.7 2,257.1 25685
Depreciation and amortisation ~ #7& K #54 475.1 4822 426 313 268.5 149.9 786.2 663.4
Operating lease payments ARMELERETE

in respect of rented premises 191.6 189.2 41.6 295 1,606.8 1,324.6 1,840.0 1,543.3
Share of results of a joint venture HME—RABLEZ £ - - - - 10.8 3.2 10.8 32
Staff costs EIﬁX$ 2,266.1 24588 137.2 1150 16533 18097  4,0566 43835

& Inter-segment sales are charged at a price mutually agreed by both parties. * HEBEHERESIHBEZBRRE -
¢ Wholesale mainly represents sales to franchisees. e HBEFTERRMEBNHE -
ul Amount represents other income, other gains and losses, other expenses and share of n ZEBEIERESRINERARBREXAN KT 2R

results of a joint venture for each reportable segment without allocation of interest
income and finance costs.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the
same as the Group's accounting policies described in note 3.
Segment profit represents the profit generated from each
segment without allocation of interest income and finance
costs. This is the measure reported to the CODM for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z= 201543 31 HIEFE

7. Revenue and Segment Information (continea)

(b) Analysis of the Group's property, plant and
equipment, investment properties and
inventories by reportable segment:

At 31 March

7. EXERTHFER @

(b) ZTZHSBEASHEREY
X BERRE REVER
BESH

M3A31H

Property, plant and equipment 1% - R LR E 3,387.3 2,584.3
Investment properties REME - -
Inventories FE 15,695.0 19,5753

101.4 724 953.8 397.4 4,442.5 3,064.1
- - 508.9 - 508.9 -
2,311.9 2,680.0  21,790.7 20,2884 39,7976  42,543.7

Segment assets and liabilities

Except for the above, no other assets and liabilities are
included in the measures of the Group’'s segment reporting
that are reviewed by the CODM. Accordingly, no segment
assets and liabilities are presented.
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7. Revenue and Segment Information (continuea)

(c) An analysis of the Group's revenue by products
is as follows:

7.

EEERTBER @

(c) RERINSTHAREZRES

T

Sales of fHE
— Gem-set jewellery — REEREN 17,378.9 16,332.2
— Gold products —\mEEM 34,214.2 47,359.6
— Platinum/karat gold products — e KEER 9,256.3 10,358.3
— Watches — Eik 3,427.6 3,357.0
64,277.0 77,4071

No individual customer contributed over 10% of the total
revenue of the Group in both years.

The Group’s non-current assets, excluding loan receivables,
interest in a joint venture and deferred tax assets, by
geographical areas are as follows:

MEFEA - BEENFEPHAEESF
BEEFHI0% AL -

B E 85 RSB IER B B E (D
BREEBEER N—REELEZERK
ERERIREE) AT

Mainland China AR A 3 4,020.7 3,112.8
Hong Kong, Macau and other markets F% - B RHEAM TS 2,117.7 399.5
6,138.4 3,612.3
8. Other Income 8. HltA
Interest income from FBUA
— banks — iR1T 125.1 115.2
— loan receivables — EIRER 2.8 6.9
— trade receivables — B R FIE 23.6 1.6
Franchise income EEE=JON 140.5 115.7
Government grants BT HERL 64.3 415
Gain on scrap sales BERHHE W 31.0 325
Rental income el 14.5 -
Others Hitb 51.2 28.3
453.0 351.7
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z= 201543 31 HIEFE

9. Other Gains and Losses 9. HtlmRG#E
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BERREEER
equipment (17.4) (3.9
Net foreign exchange (loss) gain FE 3, (E518 ) Wi /358 (12.7) 136.4
Others Hib (5.8) (2.3)
(35.9) 130.2
10. Finance Costs 10. E KA
Interest on borrowings wholly repayable ERRFREEERD
within five years fEEHE
— bank loans — RITER 148.9 37.1
— gold loans — EeEE 231.6 185.7
380.5 222.8
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11. Profit before Taxation

1. BR%

el NN

B

Al

Profit before taxation has been arrived at after
charging (crediting):

BREATE R 23 (GEA)

Directors’ remuneration (note 12) BE284 (M:E12) 80.4 62.7
Staff's retirement benefits scheme contributions & T iR 7@ /5T 2 5k 598.7 511.1
Staff costs 8TRA 3,377.5 3,809.7
4,056.6 4,383.5

Amortisation of other intangible assets H b & ey 24.0 -
Amortisation of land use rights + b (s PR AR 14.1 13.6
Auditors’ remuneration Z AN &

— audit related services — ZEHER RS 11.0 9.8

— non-audit services — FFZERTS 15 0.9
Concessionaire fees HIEDK 2,257.1 2,5658.5
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses FERABR AR 43,847.5 55,280.3
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment %)% « = MR EHITE 730.6 649.8
Depreciation of investment properties WEYETE 17.5 -
Donations (included in other expenses) BEGTAEMATA) 72.2 38.0
Fair value gain of gold loans (included in cost HeEENAFEKS

of goods sold) (FEASHENAR) (418.0) (467.9)
Operating lease rentals in respect of EAMECEHERS

rented premises 1,840.0 1,543.3

Employee’s Emoluments

12. Directors’, Chief Executives’ and

1285 RRTHAERES

[

Directors' fees EEHRS 4.1 35

Other emoluments to directors SEMHMLIE
— salaries and other benefits — ¥ NEMER 25.3 24.1
— performance-based bonus — BWIEAL 21.9 33.1
— retirement benefits scheme contributions — RIREFE B 23 2.0
— share based payment — DA AR A~ 26.8 -
80.4 62.7
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12. Directors’, Chief Executives’ and 12.EE - RETHAEREES

Employee’s Emoluments (continued) M€ @
Details of emoluments paid by the Group to the directors and the AEBRARARESERESITEA B A
chief executives of the Company are as follows: SFBET

Executive directors: HTEE -
Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry x4

(Chairman) (2§) 02 44 38 02 46 132 02 42 59 02 105
Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent BRERAE

(Managing director) (E54£47) 02 43 38 04 44 131 02 41 58 04 105
Dr. Cheng ChiKong, Adrian BEREL 02 12 09 02 23 48 02 10 14 0.1 27
Mr. Cheng ChiHeng, Conroy PB4 02 21 18 04 23 68 02 20 28 02 52
Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong RtExE 02 29 24 03 24 82 02 21 33 03 65
Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert BELEE 02 23 20 0.1 24 70 02 22 31 01 56
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamiton IREEE 02 23 20 03 23 11 02 22 30 03 57
Mr. Suen ChiKeung, Peter it 02 21 19 02 24 68 02 20 28 02 52
Non-executive directors: FHEE:
Mr. Cheng KamBiu, Wilson BERE 02 16 14 0.1 11 44 02 16 22 01 41
Mr. Koo Tong-Fat BEREE 02 21 19 01 11 54 02 21 28 01 52
Independent non-executive Buings:

directors:
M. Cheng Ming-Fun, Paul HEIEE 04 - - - 03 07 03 - - - 03
Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor EREEL 04 - - - 03 07 03 - - - 03
Mr. Kwong CheKeung, Gordon ~ BE& 5% 05 - - - 03 08 03 - - - 03
Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey gL 04 - - - 03 07 03 - - - 03
Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond TEREL 04 - - - 03 07 03 - - - 03
Total R 41 253 29 23 238 804 35 11 31 20 627

Note:  The performance-based bonus is discretionary based on the Group's financial results and KisE: BREA B AEEEEERASENBEEREERE
directors’ performance decided by the management of the Group. BfEHET -
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12. Directors’, Chief Executives’ and

Employee’s Emoluments (continued)

The five highest paid individuals included five directors (2014: four) of
the Company, details of whose emoluments are included above. The
emoluments of the remaining highest paid individual during the year
were as follows:

1285 RRTHAERES

Eﬂﬁ(%ﬁ)

hEZ&xmME ATREARARGAEZEE (2014
FNEEE) HEFHFBRN EX - FR
BT &= e A THFMOT

Employee (==
— salaries and other benefits — He REAMEF N/ATE B 1.6
— performance-based bonus — BERAEAL N/AREFR 6.1
— retirement benefits scheme contributions — RIREFFHEIMER N/ATEH 0.1
N/ATIE R 7.8

His emoluments were within the following bands:

BEHM N T 5IEE -

HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,000,000

7,500,001, 72 28,000,000/ 7T

N/ATE A 1

During the year ended 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors and the chief
executives of the Company or the five highest paid individuals
(including directors, the chief executives and employees) as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office. None of the directors have waived any emoluments
during the year ended 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014.

The Company issued to the directors and certain employees share
appreciation rights (the “SARs"”) that the Company would pay the
intrinsic value of the SARs to the directors and certain employees as
part of the discretionary bonus. At 31 March 2015, the Group has
recorded liabilities of HK$5.3 million. The fair value of the SARs is
determined using the Black-Scholes pricing model. The Group
recorded total expenses of HK$57.4 million during the year in respect
of the SARs.

#HZE201593 831 A %2014563A31 B ILFE -
AEBUTBEAARREERESTRAERKA
EEEMEAT(BEES &RTRABRE
B) XS - ARBIESMARKE NMAREE
B RO 28BS E A BB 18 - 1= 201543 A 31
BX%201443A31 BILFEYETMEEKE
(GREE=A7D

RARRERELERTARRESTRIHE
IMARBGUEANEEBEERRBELELSR
— &1 - M2015F3 A31H + AEE 1S53
BEBTHEEEE REEERNATER
HETERLGE AEERAFEHGSEE
574 BEBTHNERZISEREER o
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13. Taxation

13. 1B

The taxation charge comprises: RERAYBIE
Current tax: BIEATR I -
Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") in AR R 1 ZE TS
Mainland China 842.8 972.1
Hong Kong Profits Tax BBFEH 474.9 694.6
Macau complementary tax SRFIFTIS R TR 82.1 116.7
1,399.8 1,783.4
Under(over)provision in prior years: BAFEREBTR (BEEE) -
EIT in Mainland China PE R EMER 0.1 44.8
Hong Kong Profits Tax BTG (1.2) (0.3)
Macau complementary tax BT S R 4.4 _
33 445
Deferred tax credit (note 23) BRI A (M5 23) (307.8) (153.2)
Withholding tax* FEH* 28.0 39.1
1,123.3 1,713.8
o Withholding tax mainly represents withholding tax on intra-group licence income and interest * FENH T B EEANRQ BESERMZERA RN ERATE

income from Mainland China.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

Under the Enterprise Income Tax Law (the “EIT Law") of the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC") and Implementation Regulation
of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the subsidiaries in Mainland China is
25% for both years.

For certain subsidiaries of the Company in Mainland China, they are
entitled to the tax incentives in connection with the development of
the western part of Mainland China. The applicable tax rate is 15%
for both years.

Macau complementary tax is calculated at the maximum progressive
rate of 12% on the estimated assessable profit for both years.

No provision for taxation has been made for the operation in Taiwan
as there was no assessable profit for both years.
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]3 Taxat|0n (Continued)

13.

Taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before

FIE w0

FARAX HAREA B MEM2EERER

taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other FRA A& AT RRAA T
comprehensive income as follows:

Profit before taxation MR R T 6,659.1 9,163.0
Tax at the applicable income tax rate — REBTSRERTENFIE —

(Mainland China: 25%; Hong Kong: 16.5%; (FRE R - 25% :

Macau: 12%) BB 16.5% B 12%) 1,319.4 1,766.6
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for AR A O 2

tax purposes 39.0 20.9
Tax effect of income not taxable for BERBRANT 52

tax purposes (81.9) (129.5)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised FERRBERAREZE 34.3 30.3
Utilisation of tax losses previously B A SRR RN TIEEE

not recognised (1.3) (0.2)
Tax effect of tax exemptions and incentives EFRBERMHB A FRIE

granted to certain subsidiaries in BeREBNRETE

Mainland China (10.6) (18.4)
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences  RERRHIH LR EEZR

not recognised ofSais=2 8.3 6.1
Withholding tax on undistributed profits of B A T B A Bl R 0 R s A T8

subsidiaries in Mainland China 0/ (216.3) (39.5)
Underprovision in prior years BAFERETR 33 44.5
Withholding tax TEEL 28.0 39.1
Others Hit 1.1 (6.1)
Taxation charge for the year FRABIEL 1,123.3 1,713.8
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13. B w0

]3 Taxat|0n (Continued)

At 31 March 2015, the Group has tax losses of HK$298.4 million
(2014: HK$180.8 million) not recognised as deferred tax assets. All of
the unrecognised tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely,
except for HK$181.4 million (2014: HK$147.7 million) which will be
expired as follows:

Tax losses expiring in

RIBEERRATEDEW

201563 A31 8 » AEBERERARLEFIE
BEMTIERFEA29848 8% (2014 F :
180.8 B @B L) - T AMERH BB ER
HigEE - 18148 BB (20144F : 14778
BT R THIRREER :

— 2016 — 2016%F 4.1 55
— 2017 — 20174 2.7 4.7
— 2018 — 20184 4.8 6.2
— 2019 — 20194 125.4 131.3
— 2020 — 2020%F 44.4 -

181.4 147.7

Also, at 31 March 2015, the Group has deductible temporary
differences of HK$11.3 million (2014: HK$107.1 million) of which
deferred taxation has not been recognised. Tax effect of such
deductible temporary differences as at 31 March 2015 was HK$1.9
million (2014: HK$17.7 million).

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax of 5% to 10% (2014:
5% to 10%) is imposed on dividends declared in respect of profits
earned by subsidiaries in Mainland China from 1 January 2008
onwards. Based on the dividend distribution plan of the
management, retained profits as at 31 March 2015 amounting to
HK$7,325.5 million (2014: HK$6,270.6 million) will be distributed as
dividend in the foreseeable future, while the remaining retained
profits amounting to HK$10,628.9 million (2014: HK$9,569.8 million)
has been set aside for reinvestment and will not be distributed in the
foreseeable future.
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14. Earnings per Share

The calculation of the basic earnings per share for the year is based
on the consolidated profit attributable to shareholders of the
Company for the year and on the number of 10,000,000,000 (2014:
10,000,000,000) shares in issue during the year.

No diluted earnings per share is presented as there were no potential
ordinary shares during both years.

15. Dividends

14.

15.

BREF
FEBRERETZERAR RIIRE BT NER

Am Al AR FERE BT % 10,000,000,000
% (2014 £ : 10,000,000,000 f%) 5t & -

A R {8 4 B 3 VR B R M E 25 E
REEE R T -

B E

Dividends recognised as distribution during
the year:
2015 Interim — HK13.0 cents
(2014: 2014 Interim — HK17.0 cents)

RAFRERRDIRZBE.

20155 H A — G 13.08(L
(20144 : 20144 H) —

per share B17.0810) 1,300.0 1,700.0
2014 Final — HK19.0 cents 20145 R E — TAR19.07511L
(2014: 2013 Final — HK16.0 cents) (20144 : 2013F K —
per share B%16.07810) 1,900.0 1,600.0
3,200.0 3,300.0

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend of
HK15.0 cents per share, totalling approximately HK$1,500.0 million
in respect of the year ended 31 March 2015 (2014: HK19.0 cents per
share, totalling approximately HK$1,900.0 million) has been proposed
by the directors of the Company and is subject to approval by the
shareholders in the forthcoming general meeting.

REFEERE - ARAIESEEREE2016F
3A31ALEFEIRMN AR S F/K15.051L -
4 H#1,500.0 88T (2014F : & 19.078
fill - £ #£491,900.0 EEBIT) - HAFRRAIE
[ERRERAS LT HEE -
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16. Property, Plant and Equipment 16. 1% - RE K& HE

cosT 7%
At 1 April 2013 1201354318 1,070.1 167.7 1,137.1 1,118.8 407 2925 38269
Currency realignment EHAR 198 05 92 16.7 03 55 52.0
Additions NE 4932 67.8 373.0 3718 8.6 230.1 1,644.5
Transfer feae 1288 - - - - (128.8) -
Disposals e - (8.0) (63.2) 0.3) (3.7) - (75.2)
At 31 March 2014 20145374318 1,711.9 2280 1,456.1 1,507.0 459 3993 5,348.2
Currency realignment ErRE 15 (33) 0.6 18 (1.5) 08 (0.1)
Additions HRE 39%.3 935 4134 390.1 8.3 7463 2,045.9
Acquired on acquisition of RYERBRAMEA

subsidiaries (note 33(a)) (FiH3£33(a) - - 69 75.3 - - 82.2
Transfer fercd 450.0 - - 15 - (461.5) -
Disposals e - (5.5) (92.6) 37 13) - (103.1)
Transferred from investment

properties BERENE 27 - - - - - 217
At 31 Merch 2015 2015538318 25804 3127 17844 1,982.0 514 684.9 73958
DEPRECIATION wE
At 1 April 2013 201354818 2084 34.3 655.0 754.7 19.4 - 1,671.8
Currency realignment EHEK 37 0.1 5.0 139 02 - 29
Provided for the year FREE 56.1 211 286.4 2772 90 - 649.8
Eliminated on disposals HEHE - (3.1) (44.4) - 29 - (50.4)
At 31 March 2014 1201438318 268.2 524 902.0 1,045.8 25.7 - 2,294.1
Currency realignment EHEEK 04 (1.2) 06 16 - - 14
Provided for the year FREE 9.8 282 3148 281.9 8.9 - 730.6
Eliminated on disposals HEmE - (3.1) (67.6) 0.8 (13) - (72.8)
At 31 March 2015 12015437318 3654 76.3 1,149.8 1,328.5 333 - 2,953.3
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2015 120154374318 2,215.0 236.4 634.6 653.5 18.1 684.9 44425
At 31 March 2014 12014537318 1,443.7 175.6 554.1 4612 20.2 399.3 3,064.1

The carrying values of the Group's properties (including construction
in progress) which are situated on land under medium-term leases is
analysed as follows:

RIS T R E Y X (BIRERYE)
FREESHIT

In Hong Kong BE 441.3 64.9
In Mainland China AR B A D, 2,457.1 1,776.6
In South Africa mIE 15 15

2,899.9 1,843.0
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17. Land Use Rights

17. Lo PO

Carrying amount FREE
At 1 April ®4R1H 188.8 186.1
Currency realignment B AR (0.1) 3.9
Additions RE 78.6 12.4
Charged to profit or loss during the year RERNBEBRNG (14.1) (13.6)
At 31 March M3A31H 253.2 188.8
Comprising land use rights held under BIEM AT R ARG HEE
medium-term leases situated in BB T E AE
Mainland China 253.2 188.8
Analysed for reporting purposes as: THSEGRHRE AR
Current assets (included in trade and RHEE (BIEEESR
other receivables) EMERGRIER) 15.3 14.2
Non-current assets EMBEE 237.9 174.6
253.2 188.8

18. Investment Properties

18. REWME

COST Jo %N

Arising from acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 33(b))  WEEHIB A RIEARZIE (FizE33(b) 549.1

Transfer to property, plant and equipment EETYE . HE MR (23.5)
At 31 March 2015 R2015F3H31H 525.6
DEPRECIATION e

Provided for the year FREE 17.5
Transfer to property, plant and equipment BEEEYI - BB R (0.8)
At 31 March 2015 M2015%F3H31H 16.7

CARRYING VALUES BREE

At 31 March 2015 201593 HA31H 508.9
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18.

19.

Investment Properties (continued)

The fair value of the Group's investment properties at 31 March 2015
was HK$559.8 million. The fair value has been arrived at based on a
valuation carried out by the Knight Frank Petty Limited (“Knight
Frank™), an independent valuer. In accordance with the HKIS
Valuation Standards (2012 Edition) issued by Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors (“HKIS"). Knight Frank is a member of the HKIS, it has
appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the valuation of
similar properties in the relevant locations, its principal business
place is 4/F, Shui On Centre, 6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.

The fair value was determined based on the income approach, where
the market rentals of all lettable units of the properties are assessed
and capitalised at the market yield expected by investors for this
type of properties. The market rentals are assessed by reference to
the rentals achieved in the lettable units of the properties as well as
other lettings of similar properties in the neighbourhood. The
capitalisation rate is determined by reference to the yields derived
from analysing the sales transactions of similar properties in Hong
Kong and adjusted to take into account the market expectation from
property investors to reflect factors specific to the Group's
investment properties.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best
use of the properties is their current use.

Details of the Group's investment properties and information about
the fair value hierarchy as at 31 March 2015 are as follows:

18. REMHE w

AREENIZEYER 20153 A31 BHAFE
#569.8 B BHE T - B EMAEITRETETT
BRAR(FS D RESBNEMEBSEMZ
HSHNEMBSEEER (2012 F M) EIT21H
BEMET ROABBSIEMEEKB 22—
WA BERMIAEERBMEGENESR -
HEZLEMI AT B ETHEB6-8RInELH
DNATE o

ZRFETDRBRAEGE - ZRENEZRE
BBz MISHSRIEEERLBYER
HzmiplaEFhRiEE - mHEEE2E%
EYEAHEEM 2 BEARBARUDEN
Hip A BRIEF G - BIRED2EFERL
MEHEZX GRSz Bam®E  UEREE
Z M5 TR A B LA R AR R IR B W 5
BZHEE-

REFEREDEODTEN - RENELHR
RBEERR BRSNS -

at

AEBEREMEFIERBBAN2016F3 A31H
ATFESEHEHERET

Industrial property units located in Hong Kong

CIRNEBIN TEYEEN

508.9 559.8

The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over 20 years.

Goodwill

IR B ) 3 A B AR AR 20 FRHRITE -

19. B &

COST AND CARRYING VALUES
Arising from acquisition of subsidiaries (note 33(a))
and at 31 March 2015

RAR REE
U BE B B A B EE A R 518 (B9 RE 33(a))
M2015F 3 A31 H

257.8

216 Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited Annual Report 2015



1 9 G 00dW|” (Continued)

The recoverable amount of this group of cash-generating units is
determined based on a value in use calculation which uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by the directors
covering a five-year period, and a discount rate of 11.5% per annum.

Cash flow projections during the budget period are based on similar
gross margins and raw materials price inflation throughout the
budget period. The cash flows beyond that five-year period have
been extrapolated using a steady 6.0% per annum growth rate which
is the projected long-term average growth rate for the luxury
jewellery. In the opinion of the directors, no impairment loss was
required for the year ended 31 March 2015. The directors believe
that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions on
which the recoverable amount is based would not cause the carrying
amount of the group of units to exceed the aggregate its recoverable
amount.

20. Other Intangible Assets

19. 8w

AEERSEEBMH KOS ETREER
BEETHE(ERERAUERZsFHRZ
MREE - EREF115% BB EUR LR
BRRAETTRHE) MEE -

ZBEHENIRS RIENER BTN EF R R
EEEE AN R EHER LR - MiBB5FME
ERAFEATF0% 2B TEER(FAHEE
KRERPFHRRR)HE - EERE - 8F
2015F3 A31 At FEEBERERE - EE4
& ATE S EEATIRIE B BB R S M R A 12
AL TEENAEBENRAERAR
AU Bl & EBAAEE o

0. Hit B EE

cosT RS

Arising from acquisition of subsidiaries (note 33(a))

WEMEBAREEMFIR (H5E330) &

and at 31 March 2015 7201553 H31H 421.2
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION E-G F
Provided for the year and balance at 31 March 2015 4 A4 R 201543 31 B 458 24.0
CARRYING VALUES BREE
Balance at 31 March 2015 20153 A31 A% 397.2

The trademarks are amortised with useful life of 10 to 15 years.

21. Interest in a Joint Venture

ZERBRRAEAFH10E 16FHH -

2. R—RBELEER

Cost of unlisted investment JELETREMA 14.0 14.0
Share of losses FE(E &R (14.0) (3.2)
Share of translation reserve (R E GG = 0.1
- 10.9
AR @201 6FF 3R
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21. Interest in a Joint Venture (continved)

Details of the joint venture are set out as below:

21,

R—REELXZBRZw

BELENFBERINMOT

Fook Ming Watch Limited Hong Kong
RBEEBHRARAT s

HK$1,000,000
1,000,000 7T

50% 50%  Sales of watches in
Mainland China
AR B R RSB IE &

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's joint
venture is set out below. The summarised financial information
below represents amounts shown in the joint venture's financial

statements prepared in accordance with IFRSs.

The joint venture is accounted for using the equity method in these
consolidated financial statements.

BHARBEAECENTBERBZRTINT -
THIBMBERBERRZ A E D ERIBBERM
B E LR R AP TERMR IR S8 -

ZABERENEREN LSS A PBRRAR

Current assets mEEE 40.5 28.1
Non-current assets ERBEE 9.5 8.0
Current liabilities RERIE (55.4) (14.3)
Revenue BEH 34.2 33.4
Loss for the year AFEEEIR (27.0) (6.4)
Other comprehensive (expense) income for AEEEM2E (FX) kaE

the year (0.2) 0.2
Total comprehensive expense for the year AFEEE2EALAE (27.2) (6.2)
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21.

22.

Interest in a Joint Venture (continved)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the
carrying amount of the interest in a joint venture recognised in the
consolidated financial statements:

R—REELEZRR @

s BA T B R B BN R A TS R R AR
ReBCEZERRAELRE

Net (liability) asset of a joint venture AECE(BE)EEFE (5.4) 21.8
Proportion of the Group's ownership interestin  NEERABDE 2 HHE

a joint venture EmENL 50% 50%
Effect of unrecognised portion of share of loss ~ JE{G& B EEIBARERI M

of a joint venture ob-% 2.7 -
Carrying amounting of the Group's interest in AEBREEEZEZEFEEE

a joint venture - 10.9

Loan Receivables

Loan receivables are classified as current or non-current assets
based on contractual terms or the timing of recovery as expected by
the management. As at 31 March 2014, loan receivables under
current assets with carrying amount of HK$140.0 million were past
due for which the Group had not provided for impairment loss, since
such loans were secured by certain properties in Hong Kong.

For the loan receivables that were secured over certain properties in
Hong Kong, the directors of the Company considered that the market
values of these properties were in excess of the carrying amount of
loan receivables as at 31 March 2014. In determining the
recoverability of the loan receivables, the Group regularly monitored
the changes in credit quality of the loan receivables. The directors of
the Company are of the opinion that no impairment is considered
necessary in respect of such loans. Such loan receivables are settled
during the year ended 31 March 2015.

All loan receivables are denominated in functional currency of the
relevant group entity.

22. EWE

FEWEFRERE LGRS E R E B ] ke
B—irFEﬁﬁ'ﬁ?Bir\* BIMEISIERBEE - 12014 4F

BA3NE MPEEETELKEFREEER
1400 B&EBLEBH  MARNZEERENAE
BETYWERERR  REBEWRHEREEE
B e

FABBE THEEERNEKRER  AAF
E=R5 aigmﬁﬂ’]m@fmﬂjﬁ’bzomiBH
3N AEWERNIREE - FEERKERZA
WERER  AEETFHERERERNEER
BEEE  ARREERRBAUERIELR
B - ZEERNEE2015F3A31THIEFE
R -

P IR E SR AR S B BT E G FIE
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23. Deferred Taxation

23, B IE

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets)
recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the current
and prior years:

NTRARAFERBEFEARECHEREE
BEFIREE (BE) AR BRED

At 1 April 2013 R2013F4A1R 383 655.5 (613.4) - - - 80.4
Credit to profit or loss (note 13) 5t A8 (M3 13) (34.1) (39.5)* (79.6) - - - (153.2)
Currency realignment EHEE 06 120 (10.1) - - - 25
At31 March 2014 72014537318 48 6280 (703.1) - - - 703)
Avising from acquisition of

subsidiaries BB A A £ FIE - - - 6.0 (228 - (16.8)
Charge (credit) to profit o loss 718 (st A) iz (FiEE13)

(note 13) 444 (216.3)* (113.4) (27.1) 11 35 (307.8)
Utilised during the year FRER - (8.2) - - - - 82
Currency realignment EHER 0.1 07 (0.8) - - - -
At 31 March 2015 2015838318 493 404.2 (817.3) 21.1) 21.7) 35 (403.1)

o Under the EIT Law of PRC, a 10% withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared to foreign * RIRPEMEMESRHA - 5200841 A1 8 - AsHEEY

investors in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards.

Pursuant to approvals from the relevant PRC government obtained by certain subsidiaries of the
Group and reassessment of dividend distribution plan, certain of these subsidiaries should
entitled to a withholding tax at the rate of 5% for dividend payments. Therefore, the amount
included reversal of excessive withholding tax of HK$279.2 million (2014: HK$6.4 million).

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial
reporting purposes:

M D B REAE R RSN EE SRS - HARK10%

ZIEMHB -

FRIRZN S 875 T FY AR 2 R1ERAS B0 75 A T e L I BB A AR
B3R - & T S0 B A R A A EE R 5% MM
EMREZENR - Alt - @EAEBEXARENR 2 ZE
2792 BEHBT(20144F : 64 EEBIT) ©

VAR 723 3 B 75 3R 5 B & P 4 R T B TR A R

DT

Deferred tax assets FIERTHE E (860.1) (703.1)
Deferred tax liabilities BLERIREE 457.0 632.8
(403.1) (70.3)
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24. Inventories

24. &

Raw materials for: EENTERNEME
Gem-set jewellery IREETR B 6,705.6 7,431.4
Gold products HOEM 1,040.5 2,321.2
Platinum/karat gold products e KEER 174.6 333.1
7,920.7 10,085.7

Finished goods: Bk -

Gem-set jewellery IRE R A 14,061.3 11,625.6
Gold products HEEM 10,723.1 13,215.9
Platinum/karat gold products e KEER 3,492.8 3,695.9
Watches 7 3,447.2 3,859.1
31,7244 32,396.5
Packing materials BEYR 152.5 61.5
39,797.6 42,543.7

25. Trade and Other Receivables

25. B 5 R HAEKRE

Trade receivables B 5 FEWRIA 3,536.5 3,146.2
Prepayments to suppliers R TE A A 854.8 457.6
Deposits e 532.1 399.3

Land use rights charged within —F R IR T A
one year 15.3 14.2
Other tax recoverables H b AT [ Y Fi 18 719.0 681.3
Others Hith 127.7 1741
5,785.4 4,872.7

As at 31 March 2015, trade receivables of HK$42.5 million (2014:
HK$38.1 million) are from entities in which a director of the
Company, who has beneficial interests in the Company, has
significant influence. Trade receivables of HK$103.1 million and
HK$59.3 million (2014: HK$97.1 million and HK$82.2 million) are
from entities in which certain directors of the Company who have
beneficial interests in both the Company and those entities, and non-
controlling shareholders of the subsidiaries respectively.

R2015F3 A318 + BEHEWHKIEL25EEB
TL(2014% 381 EBB L) RAARA— B
BEARAIR S EESETAYENINERS -
B S EWGKIEI103.1 B8 ERE T KE93E BB T
(20144 : 971 BEHB T RS2 2EES L) AlD
ARERAARARZEEREZSENAD R
ETEEEEIALKBAREHERRRE -

EAfE2015FFR
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5. EZ R EMEWFIEw

25. Trade and Other Receivables (continued

The Group's sales to retail customers are mainly on cash basis. Sales
to certain customers are on credit with credit period up to 6 months.
For sales through concessionaire stores, the Group usually allow 30
days credit period to these receivables.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables presented
based on the invoice dates at the end of the reporting period, which
approximated to the respective revenue recognition dates:

AEBEHTETPNHENRE AT MAE
TEPHMHENARET R - EEREZ A6
H BEBNHEENS  A&E—RIEZFE
WRIELE T 30 S EH

AT RBREEREHZ RREHRNES
W FRIBNRE DT AERES B 2 WS
A ERRE

0 to 30 days 0£30H 3,149.7 2,680.0
31 to 90 days 31£90H 285.0 151.5
91 to 180 days 91£180H 62.3 257.9
Over 180 days 180H M 39.5 56.8

3,536.5 3,146.2

In determining the recoverability of the trade receivables, the Group
monitors change in the credit quality of the trade receivables since
the credit was granted and up to the reporting date. The directors of
the Company considered that the trade receivables that are neither
past due nor impaired to be of a good credit quality.

As at 31 March 2015, included in the trade receivable balances are
receivables of HK$411.8 million (2014: HK$179.9 million) carrying a
variable interest ranging from 7.4% to 8.4% (2014: 7.6% to 8.6%)
per annum.

Also, as at 31 March 2015, included in the trade receivable balances
are trade receivables with aggregate carrying amount of HK$101.8
million (2014: HK$314.7 million) which are past due at the reporting
date for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss as
there has not been a significant change in the credit quality and
amounts are still considered recoverable based on historical
experience. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

222 Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited Annual Report 2015

REETEE 5 BRI AT B2 EE - R
ERARUGEELREERE A EHEZREK
AEEEZNED - ARAEERR BEHE
WHIRBE AR BT ARRE - (FEEERL ©

M20156F3 A31H ' st AB ZEWFIEL LT
M sF BB RIB B411.88 BB L (2014F :
1799B &8 TT) FEFHEHRT7.4% £84%
(20144 : 7.6% £8.6%) 75 °

o - R2015F3 A31 8 @ 5t AE 5 EWRIA
EHRANREBHERHNAKREER101.88
EATHE SEWFHIE(20145F : 314788
) c AREEEZRTELREAEH BERER
TEBRRBRAZZREANRE - WAEE L E
FTIRBEEERE AEELARZZLEHRT
A EEE R



25.

26.

Trade and Other Receivables continued)

Ageing of trade receivables, based on the invoice
date, which are past due but not impaired

25. B 5 K H 4t FE U FE

RBEZOHEAHRERABENE
5 W 7R T Y A it

91 to 180 days 91£180H 62.3 257.9
Over 180 days 180H M £ 395 56.8
101.8 314.7

Convertible Bonds

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group invested in an
unlisted convertible bonds with principal amount of Australian Dollar
("AUS") $3,000,000, bearing interest at 8.0% per annum and a
maturity date of 31 December 2014, issued by a private entity (the
“Issuer"”) which is principally engaged in agriculture and wholesale of
pearls in Australia. The convertible bond is renewed during the
current year and bears interest at 7.0% per annum with a maturity
date of 31 December 2016 (the “Maturity Date”). The Group is
entitled at any time after the date of issue up to the Maturity Date to
redeem the convertible notes in cash or pearls or combination of
both or convert the convertible notes into ordinary shares of the
Issuer. The convertible notes comprised debt component and
embedded derivatives being the conversion option and the Issuer’s
early redemption option. Such convertible bonds are designated as
at fair value through profit or loss and in the opinion of the directors
of the Company, the fair value of the convertible notes is
substantially the same as the carrying amount.

26. R REH

HZE2012F3A31HIEFE  AEEKE—H
JEEMA HRES - A& $ 8 A3,000,000%
JC  FFES.0% ¢ BHIE A2014F12 8318 -
HEZERMNREDHRIFERSENT ST E
(TBITAND BT - Al AMBEHFRAFEER -
FHET0%  BIHHHA2016F 12 A31H ° &
EEAENETAREEHATMEERNES
REKEAMERABLR A LIRESFNGHER
BETANLTRAR - I RREEBEEEXHD
RBMARITETR  BIRRERBEITAZRESR
FEERE - ] LR EAFIEE RIEATEF AR
W MARAEZRE A ABREHFHAFE
HAREEABHER ©
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27. Pledged Bank Deposits/Short-Term Bank 27. B BB TER EHET

Deposits/Bank Balances and Cash

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the bank deposits carry
interest at the prevailing market rate of about 0.01% to 6.1% (2014:
0.01% to 4.3%) per annum.

As at 31 March 2014, the pledged bank deposits amounted to
HK$5.3 million (2015: nil) mainly represented deposits pledged to a
bank to secure the payment of construction in progress.

As at 31 March 2014, the short-term bank deposit carried fixed
interest rate at 1.5% per annum with an original maturity at 12
months and hence being classified as current asset.

As at 31 March 2015, the Group's cash and cash equivalents
denominated in RMB were HK$6,031.9 million (2014: HK$5,836.1
million). The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations in
Mainland China and the Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for other currencies through authorised banks to
conduct business in foreign currency.

Included in bank balances and cash are the following amounts
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the
relevant group entities:

RMB AR
uss$ E

R RITERRAS

HZE2015F3A31 BILEE @ BITHFERIZEF
THEMENF40.01% £6.1% (20144F : I
F0.01% £4.3%)5F 5 °

R2014%3 8318 EEIFHRITFERIES
BIC (20164 « ) EEHRAEZE TN RA—
FIERITVEHIR ©

MR201463 8318 BHSEITHEREFENR
15% WETEFERTE - REHAAE12EA - &
REARBEE -

20163 A31 H ' AEBIEARKIENR
S MEESEEMAEG031.98 EHB (20145 -
5836.1 B&EABIL) c ARBIYTAIBEARLRAR
fb W AT - ARIBER R BEAH AR B INEE
BIEFIRGE SERMPEEREMAT  A5H
BEBBREIRITETINEEY  BARKH
BABINE -

FARTHEBIRENFER TIIZAHER
(EIFFRAEEERNDEER) JIENTR

1,084.3 2,402.3
4771 471.5
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28. Trade and Other Payables

28. EZ R HEMNE

Trade payables B 5N IE 840.4 1,233.9
Deposits received from franchisees/customers A INEH /&P WEH RS 1,652.5 1,490.3
Other tax payables HibE{HIE 306.4 166.5
Accruals fEFtEH 390.9 4478
Accrued staff costs EETE TR 423.0 474.7
Interest payables FERTF & 59.5 79.3
Others Hith 325.2 235.8

3,997.9 4,128.3

Deposits received from franchisees/customers mainly represent
prepayments made by franchisees in Mainland China for jewellery
products. The amounts are unsecured and interest-free.

The Group normally receives credit terms of 7 to 180 days from its
suppliers. The following is an aged analysis of trade payables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of each
reporting period:

BINEAR, B F WEREZ & = 2 55 B A N
ERBEREERXNZBNTE - 2EAE
BERERE -

AEE—REHEEENENEERANT7H
Z180ATE - U TAREEZABNSRED
REE BN FRIBRIRR DT

0 to 30 days 0£30H 631.3 1,117.2
31 to 90 days 31£290H 36.7 18.2
91 to 180 days 91£180H 130.7 68.5
Over 180 days 180B M £ 41.7 30.0

840.4 1,233.9
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29. Amounts Due to Non-Controlling 29. BB A R FF IR IR R

Shareholders of Subsidiaries ;IE
The balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. HERRAEER - RE RIZERKM] FEE -
30. Bank Borrowings 30. BITEM

Bank loans, unsecured and repayable within RITER - IR

one year BE—FNEER 6,750.6 6,299.6
The bank borrowings carry variable interest rates ranged from 0.7% BITERIRZEBENEGF D - FERERLSFHER
to 0.8% over Hong Kong Interbank Offer Rate (“HIBOR") per annum TRZEFRE ([BFRITREFRED N T0.7%
or 90% to 92% of The Peoples’ Bank of China Standard Loan F08% KT EARBITEREELEFNEIO% ZE
Interest Rate (2014: ranged from 0.7% to 0.8% over HIBOR per 92% (20144 : F | EHBIRITEEHF LS MN
annum or 90% to 100% of The Peoples’ Bank of China Standard F0.7% £ 0.8% 5k B A RIR1TE REEF| =
Loan Interest Rate). 90% 2= 100%) °
As at 31 March 2015, the range of interest rates on the bank MR2015F3 A318 - BEARITERNENEN
borrowings were 0.9% t0 5.2% (2014: 0.9% to 5.6%) per annum. F0.9% £5.2% (20145 : 0.9% £5.6%) °
All bank borrowings are denominated in functional currency of PIAIRITERIRA HEE TR ERIIE -

relevant group entities.
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31. Gold Loans 3. =54 EE

The amounts represent borrowings from banks and the amounts ZRETERITER - MEMNRIEES S ER
payable are pegged with gold prices. £ o

As at 31 March 2015, the gold loans carry fixed interest rates of 1.2% MR2015F3A31H E€EERFFNEI12%
10 3.2% (2014: 1.2% to 3.5%) per annum, with original maturity of 2 %£3.2% (20145 : FFFE1.2% £3.5%) B EE
to 6 months (2014: 1 to 12 months) from date of inception. FEE - REHBAAKRLBARE2E6{EA (2014

£ :1Z=1218A8) -

Gold loans were borrowed to reduce the impact of fluctuations in ERECEEENERREESFERESE
gold prices on gold inventories. Gold loans were designated as BEBNZE ZEBEEBTERARATEA
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. BamEmasE -

Included in gold loans are the following amounts denominated in FAESEEATIIREEAEY (NWHEHEEH
currencies other than functional currency of the relevant group entities: TN EE) FIENRIE :

Uss$ ED 3,639.8 4,009.4

32. Share Capital 32. A

Authorised: VATE
50,000,000,000 ordinary share of HK$1 each 50,000,000,000/% F AR EME 1 B TT 2 & iMAk 50,000.0
Issued and fully paid: BEETRER
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each 10,000,000,000% FRREE 17T < E B 10,000.0
There were no change in the Company's authorised, issued and fully MEFERN  RRRZETE  BETRARRKR
paid capital in both years. R o
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33. Acquisition of Subsidiaries

During the year ended 31 March 2015, for the purpose of business
expansion, the Group had acquired controlling equity interests of the
following entities, using acquisition method:

(a)

In August 2014, a subsidiary of the Group acquired 100%
equity interest in Hearts On Fire Company, LLC (“Hearts On
Fire”), a company engaged in sales of luxury diamond
jewelleries, from independent third parties. The cash
consideration was finalised at HK$1,187.7 million. The primary
reason for the acquisition is to introduce an exclusive and
unique premium luxury diamond jewellery line to the Group's
existing diversified product offering, particularly in the Group's
retail network.

Details of consideration of the acquisition are as follows:

33. BB B 2 A

REZE2016FE3A3MBILLEE  AETES
AN B AU B SR U BB A TS B BE A I IR AEE

(a)

2014688 - AKE —KW B QAR
%7 5 = 75 W38 Hearts On Fire Company,
LLC ([Hearts On Fire] » {{f 5555 2= § &
ERNAR)HNEHRE REREEER
118778 BT - WEZTEERAKH
BREZTENERES (FIRAEERE
EMENERMES) LB B _N5E
ZEEAER

WHER BRI ¢

Consideration satisfied by cash

AR & R(E

1,187.7

Acquisition-related costs amounting to HK$22.5 million have
been excluded from the consideration transferred and have
been recognised as an expense in the current year, within the
other expenses line item in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of
acquisition were as follows:

WEEE R A 2258 BT et AR
HEORE  MANFERAB/RY - 5
NG & B R E b EmK R EMF X
A -

WU B R A B IS A B R FTAIE B (R
T

Property, plant and equipment L E =Y 82.2
Other intangible assets HEtErEE 421.2
Inventories FE 343.7
Trade and other receivables & 5 R E M EW A 273.9
Trade and other payables B MEMENRIE (191.1)

929.9
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33. WHEE B 2 B o

(@) (Continued) @ (%)

33. Acquisition of Subsidiaries (continued

Goodwill arising on acquisition

WEEEEE

Consideration transferred wEEAE 1,187.7
Less: Fair values of identifiable net assets acquired i : PrUtEEf Al 8B & AN T E (929.9)
Goodwill arising on acquisition BB FTEA 2 257.8
Analysis of net outflow of cash and cash WERBAREANRS RS

equivalents in connection with the acquisition of LBYRE FEON

subsidiaries:
Cash and cash equivalent balances acquired Pk BEIR & MIR & S BYEH -
Less: Cash considerations paid B EXAMERSRE (1,187.7)

(1,187.7)

The goodwill arose in the acquisition of Hearts On Fire included
amounts in relation to the benefit of expected synergies,
revenue growth, future market development and the
assembled workforce of Hearts On Fire. Both the goodwill and
other intangible assets are expected to be deductible for
income tax purpose.

Revenue and loss attributable to the acquisition during the year
are HK$400.8 million and HK$32.3 million, respectively. Had
the above acquisition completed on 1 April 2014, total group
revenue and profit for the year ended 31 March 2015 would
have been HK$64,612.2 million and HK$5,536.4 million,
respectively. The pro-forma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue
and results of operations of the Group that actually would have
been achieved had the above acquisition been completed on 1
April 2014, respectively, nor is it intended to be a projection of
future results.

U B8 Hearts On Fire Z= £ R 2 & 1578 5
R WSt R ARTSERR
Hearts On Fire E THHBE SR - BE X
HihmE A ERERESH o

RERN - WIEEMHEXEREBES A
4008 BEBTR3I2I3AEEBTT ° i Lt
W B R 2014F4 A1 BT - & £2015
F3A31 BILFENEBBEEE HEF
DRI fEA64,6122 5 &% T &%55636.4H
BB BEEHEHSE - RURKMH
LA U BEETER 2014 5 4 A1 B e A
SEHURSNEREXBREEXE B
FAEZER I IEAR R EERITER o
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33. Acquisition of Subsidiaries (continuea)

(b)

In July 2014, a subsidiary of the Group acquired 100% property
interests in World Peace Centre, an industrial building in Kwai
Chung, Hong Kong through the acquisition of 100% equity
interest in Eagle Planet Limited and Fortune Ruby Limited. The
property acquired was classified as investment properties by
the acquiree companies and were at the time of acquisition,
rented to the Group's companies and other lessees. The
acquisition is accounted for as purchase of assets at a cash
consideration of HK$860.5 million from a related party, being
an entity in which certain directors of the Company have
beneficial interests. At date of acquisition, the Group
recognised investment properties of HK$549.1 million and
property, plant and equipment of HK$300.9 million based on
the floor areas leased out to other leasees and floor areas
occupied by the Group, respectively.

34. Operating Lease Commitments

The Group as lessee

At the end of each reporting period, the Group was committed to
make the following future minimum lease payments which represent
lease payments of its rented premises, under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

33. WHEE B 2 B o

(b)

1201467 A ANEE—KHE A R@A
7B Eagle Planet Limited & Fortune Ruby
Limited 2 ZB AR 2 i W B tt R0 AR .0 (R2 &
BERN —RIERNE) MY ERE
7 o FTUREE B9 A Rl A FT U iR 0 WD 3 51 1B
By WEEREATASENARKE
A A o AR K E860.5 8 &H it
BER (ARRETESHEE ST EN
ER)BA REEEENSIRAAR R
W B AEBEENHEFEMARA
MELEBEEN AN EEEERR
BEYEA1BEBTHENE  BE K
HfE300.9EEE T

4. KEMERE

. ne =

FREERRBA

REMEIR - N EER

&2 LRI N AT

E’J%ﬁ“%ﬁisj’\"l’ﬂ MR REEHRRRERS
MR (RFAEYENES) R

Within one year —FR 1,467.5 1,286.7
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_ZERE (BHEEREMF) 1,830.3 1,947.9
Over five years RAFELAE 485.0 524.7

3,782.8 3,759.3

Included in above are commitments to entities in which certain
directors* of the Company have beneficial interests:

AL RAARRE TEE * AR SR
B R 2 R

Within one year —FR 204.9 116.8
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_ZERE (BHEEREMF) 260.2 160.6
Over five years AFLAR 518.4 436.2

983.5 713.6

The directors also have beneficial interests in the Company.
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34. Operating Lease Commitments (continea)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

There are certain lease arrangements for rented premises, according
to which the Group is committed to pay minimum guaranteed
amounts and additional monthly payments determined based on
monthly sales levels. The amount of the additional monthly payments
paid during the year was not material.

There are concessionaire arrangements for concessionaire stores
according to which the Group is committed to pay either minimum
guaranteed amounts or concessionaire fees that are based on
prescribed rates of corresponding sales depending on product
categories, whichever is higher. The minimum guaranteed amounts
are not material and the concessionaire fees paid during the year
were all determined based on sales level.

Majority of leases with fixed rentals and concessionaire arrangement
are negotiated for terms ranging from 1 year to 3 years.

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was HK$14.5 million
(2014: nil). All of the Group's investment properties are held for
rental purposes. All of the properties held have committed tenants
for the next 1 to 3 years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

%§%$ﬁkdﬁftﬁ

AEEEBRBEA @)

RIBETABEMENEELR G NEBAEX
NH&EREREBRRIESAHEKFETNE
HEIMIR - REE N HE A BINFIRL D
BKXe

AEE R FEREFTELH - Bt - NE B
R FERBNRAERBEERZADEX
NEERESHEBIK(ABREGERE) - &
BEERSBITEKX  AEEXNNZHEHE
DRRTIRIEHEKFEETE ©

KEHBOREBE SRR BT -
—FE=FRALTE -

FREERHAA

RERARBRZYEESRANI45BEET
(20144 : &) - REEAARENEDFER
E-MBAZEBVERRR—E=FHALD
A EZ P -

REIERR - AEEEBPHAETHEON KKK
ERESARET

Within one year —FR 12.8 -
In the second to fifth year inclusive ZEZERF (BEEREWF) 19.4 -
32.2 -
35. Capital Commitments 35, BARIE
Capital expenditure in respect of the acquisition BEUEEME « BRE &iE
of property, plant and equipment; WERMRX
Authorised but not contracted for EFEERRETL 1,859.6 2,277.3
Contracted but not provided for BRI EREE 403.0 536.3
FARFE2015F F 3R
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36. Retirement Benefits Obligations 36. RIRE R EIE

Defined contribution scheme E R Rt El
The Group participates in defined contribution schemes which are NEE B 2 EARR A B B R IR ET & &5
registered under the Hong Kong Occupational Retirement Scheme B TE BE A AT 8l ([ 3 R IR T B BIET 81 1) &

Ordinance (the “ORSO" Scheme) and a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme"”) established under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance in December 2000. The assets
of the schemes are held separately from those of the Group, in funds
under the control of independent trustees. Employees who were
members of the ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment of the
MPF Scheme were offered a choice of staying within the ORSO
Scheme or switching to the MPF Scheme, whereas all new
employees joining the Group on or after 1 December 2000 are
required to join the MPF Scheme.

The retirement benefit cost charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income represents
contributions payable to the funds by the Group at rates specified in
the rules of the schemes. Where there are employees who leave the
ORSO Scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions, the
contributions payable by the Group are reduced by the amount of
forfeited contributions.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes 5% of
relevant payroll costs to the MPF Scheme, which contribution is
matched by the employee. The maximum monthly amount of
contribution is limited to HK$1,000 per employee, which was revised
to HK$1,250 with effect from 1 June 2012 and further revised to
HK$1,500 with effect from 1 June 2014.

The eligible employees of the Company's subsidiaries in Mainland
China and Macau are members of pension schemes operated by
local government of Mainland China and the Macau government,
respectively. The subsidiaries in Mainland China are required to
contribute a certain percentage of the relevant cost of the payroll of
these employees to the pension schemes to fund the benefits. The
subsidiary in Macau is required to pay a monthly fixed contribution to
the retirement benefits schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
schemes is to make the required contribution under the schemes.
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36. Retirement Benefits Obligations (continued)

Defined benefit scheme

Certain subsidiaries of the Company provide defined pension
benefits to the employees, who joined to these subsidiaries before
1995. The amount payable is dependent on the employees’ final
salary and years of services. The Group does not set aside any
assets to fund such obligations.

Under the scheme, the employees are entitled to a pension between
25% and 40% of final salary for each year of pensionable service at
an age of 65. No other post-retirement benefits are provided. The
most recent actuarial valuations of the present value of the defined
benefit obligations were carried out in March 2015 by Roma
Appraisals Limited (“Roma”), an independent qualified professional
valuer, using the projected unit credit method. The principal place of
business of Roma is Unit 3806, 38/F, China Resources Building, 26
Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The assumptions which have
the most significant effect on the results of the valuation are
discount rate, retirement rate, turnover rate, mortality rate and the
rate of increase in salaries.

The main actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

36. R IKEFIAIE @)

E B S

AR R)E T KB 2R B 7 1995 4 B I0A %
BRAMEBREEREARSEN - BAFIEA
HORNEBRENFH & RRBFH - REEIL
R TF R B AT N A I -

RIEZE - EERFE655EMETFIRER
BRRSHRBIZEN THEFHFL25% E40% F
BERE - NEEWEIBEREMBRKEER -
SR8 E R AEREREMETIN2015F
SABEBNABRAEMESBEETEERAR
(TBS ) RBEAENERAET - BENE
BB AR S B EEE 265k EMAES3S
123806 % - HHEARFAZENBKRIIAE
KRR - AER AT REHSHFHE o

PREAMEZBERRMAT

Discount rate BRIR &
Expected rate of salary increase TRHAS I L =&
Turnover rate BE=ES

1.6% 2.6%
3.0% 4.0%
0% 0%

Amounts recognised in comprehensive income in respect of the
defined benefit scheme are as follows:

FE BT EN R E RS R FIRNT

Current service cost REF RIS AR 4.1 3.7
Interest on obligation EER T 35 6.5
Components of defined benefits recognised PIBIRFER A R E A2

in profit or loss 7.6 10.2
Remeasurement on defined benefit scheme REMEERERERTEREEF

recognised in other comprehensive income: sHEIEREE -

Actuarial loss (gain) arising from changes in SRR E T EA R

financial assumptions BEEE (W) 19.0 (28.3)

Total azE 26.6 (18.1)
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36. Retirement Benefits Obligations (continued)

Defined benefit scheme (continued)

The current services cost and interest on obligation for the year
ended 31 March 2015 and 2014 are included in “selling and
distribution costs” and “administrative expenses”.

The remeasurement of the defined benefit scheme for the year ended
31 March 2015 and 2014 is included in other comprehensive income.

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations
are as follows:

36. RIKEFIAIE @)
EHEEAEE @

HZE2015F K% 201443 A31 B L FEHIREFAR
ERRAREENFSFATHER D HAAR] &
[fTEF 1B -

HZE2016F 201443 A31 BILFEHNTEREE
MBI EH St AR MR EUWES ©

At 1 April ®4R1H 225.0 251.3
Service costs R A A 4.1 3.7
Interest costs R B A 35 6.5
Actuarial loss (gain) FEEEE (W) 19.0 (28.3)
Benefits paid B X e (8.3) (8.2)
At 31 March M3A31H 243.3 225.0
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Pursuant to a resolution which were passed on 17 November 2011,
the Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme") for the purpose of attracting skilled and experienced
personnel, to incentivise them to remain with the Group and to
motivate them to strive for the future development and expansion of
the Group by providing them with the opportunity to acquire equity
interests in the Company. Under the Share Option Scheme, the
directors of the Company may grant options to directors (including
executive directors, non-executive directors and independent non-
executive directors), the directors of the subsidiaries and the
employees of the Group and any other persons (including consultants
or advisers) who the directors of the Company consider, in its
absolute discretion, have contributed or will contribute to the Group
(the “Participants”).

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
10 years commencing on 17 November 2011. An offer of the grant
of an option shall be made to a Participant by a notice of grant
requiring the Participant to undertake to hold the option on the terms
on which it is to be granted (which may include a minimum period
for which the option must be held before it can be exercised and a
performance target that must be reached before the option can be
exercised in whole or in part) and to be bound by the terms of the
Share Option Scheme. An offer of the grant of an option is deemed
to be accepted by the Participant (the “Grantee”) when the Company
receives from the Grantee the duplicate notice of grant duly signed
by the Grantee. An offer may be accepted or deemed to have been
accepted in respect of less than the number of shares in respect of
which it is offered, provided that it is accepted in respect of a board
lot or an integral multiple thereof. No amount is payable by the
Grantee upon acceptance of an offer of an option. The offer shall
remain open for acceptance for such time to be determined by the
directors of the Company, provided that no such offer shall be open
for acceptance after the expiry of the Share Option Scheme or after
the termination of the Share Option Scheme in accordance with its
terms or after the Participant to whom the offer is made has ceased
to be a Participant. To the extent that the offer is not accepted within
the time period and in the manner specified in the offer, the offer will
be deemed to have been irrevocably declined.

The exercise price shall be determined by the directors of the
Company, and shall not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price
of the Company’s shares on the date of grant, (ii) the average closing
price of the shares for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s share
on the date of grant.

During the year ended 31 March 2015 and 2014, no such share
options were granted nor exercised by the Company.

BRER201MENAI7TEBEBHRER AR
AN ERE I ((ERERTE ) BEdA
IR R IR A = R 5| A B e A5
MAE  BEEEBEASE  ZBEAEASE
ERARRERRKERMS N o RIEBERES
ARREESNRNEEENERAEAEEE
EeBEL EBNES (RIERATES « IEHIT
ESRBIUFNTES) HBRRAINES &
S E RS A REAEM AT (BIEHAASKE
R)([28%5])F L ERE -

BREZENERHAEI0F - 52011F11 A
17 BFE - BREERENZENEARHBAL
A2 EEEL  ERSEEAFER LG
PR BERE (e ETEERENSZERE
FRE - REPHIPHTEBRIBAAEZINOER
WA WEERETEERLIR o MARA A
BERCEABATAZENRLBAOIA - )%
ERERENZNSHEEAEEREE([FEEAL
B ARABEPNSEABENNELN TSR
MRNE B AISRMIEENENMERERD
HRENNER—FEESUNHEHEH -
ABEAENEREZNREDASNIMNSEE-
BREARA NI ESSECNHRAN—&EA
B - MER RS AR AE ST 8 HA IR [ W o BB AR T
ZIRMBEERR LB EEL BN EED
BA2HEER  AITHBIHEERN - MELONE
RAREZHAIERTNERN - HEAEDH
e IEREEEL -

TREEBEARARANESTSET L NFERMA
TESE (VKL BHARRFROEUEHEE : i)
EXFH AR AERS B RO FHRTIE
Ko (iii) B HIAR R R RV EE ©
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38. Related Party Transactions

(i)

Other than the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere (i)
in the consolidated financial statements, the Group had
entered into the following related party transactions during

the year:

38. BB AR5

BA M B RRAR S REOR SR
K890 - REEERE N THIRIBES
%%

Entities in which certain directors* of

the Company have beneficial interests

ARRETEF HAXSHENER

Advertising expenses
EERX

Concessionaire fees in department

10.3

stores
ERVNGIE:S 5034
Rental expenses

HEMX

Purchase of goods and coupons and

commission expenses
BEERREFURMBEMAX
Sales of goods and coupons
HEEmRES
Purchase of land and buildings
BERIEF
Rental income

HEWA

Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 33(b))

WEEHB R (FRE33(b))

Concessionaire fees in

department stores
BERRIEESK
Rental expenses
Hekx

Entities in which a director* of
the Company has significant
influence

ARB—REFABATENER

Concessionaire fees in

department stores
BERRIEESK
Franchise sales
INERSHE

Non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries

P8 2 RIS EHEAR AR

Entities in which a close family member Engineering services fee
of certain directors* of the Company TR E
has control Rental expenses
RATETES*HARKBEKE Hekx
BEREHIENEE Purchase of land and buildings
(note)
BETMRET ()

90.6 124.6

194.6 183.8

371 21.2

53.6 82.9

66.0 -

7.2 -

860.5 -

19.1 40.8

13.7 20.1

607.5 501.9

9.5 6.5

21.6 14.4

- 60.0

The directors also have beneficial interests in the Company.

Note:  Amount represented an addition of land and buildings of HK$60.0 million during the year
ended 31 March 2014 arising from an acquisition of a subsidiary. This transaction is for
the purpose of acquiring properties as warehouses for general storage purpose in the
ordinary course of business, and had been accounted for as a purchase of assets rather
than business combination as the acquired subsidiary is not a business.
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38. Related Party Transactions continea)

(i)~ Remuneration paid for key management personnel includes
the directors and the chief executives of the Company as

disclosed in note 12.

The remuneration of the directors and the chief executives of
the Company is determined by the remuneration committee
having regard to the performance of individuals and market

trends.

39. Principal Subsidiaries of the Company

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at the end of the
reporting period are set out below:

38. WA Zw

(i) ZFNFEEEBEASHMEBENE2
BENARAEZERRETHAR

ARAEZRERHTRABRNMEEEH
FE S SR BENALTHRBERTISEB
BMETE °

39. RATEEHEB AT

THRNBERARA AR EEMBARZFE

Highrise Achiever Limited*

(BRBRAR)*

Bentley Trading Limited
(FBNBHERAR)

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery
Company Limited
(ARBAHRESITBERAT)

CTF Diamond Trading
Company Limited
(ARBREAESHBERAT)

CTF Watch (HK) Limited
(AXtEER (F8)
BRRTE)

BVI

20 June 2011
REMBRES
201146 420H

Hong Kong

10 January 2008
&

200841 A 10H

Hong Kong

6 March 1961
]

1961463 A6 H

Hong Kong

19 September 2003
6

20039 A 19H

Hong Kong

7 February 2011
&
2011%2R7H

Share
US$1

[N
17T

Ordinary shares
HK$10,000
AR
10,0007 7T

Ordinary shares
HK$350,000,000
AR
350,000,000/ 7T

Ordinary shares
HK$100
A
1007 7T

Ordinary share
HK$1
A
BT

100% 100%

Investment holding

REER

100% 100%  Trading of diamond
BREE

100% 100%  Sales of jewellery
products

KREERBE

100% 100%  Procurement of
diamond

ERRE

100% 100%  Sales of watches
SEERINE
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39. KRB EEHB AT @

39. Principal Subsidiaries of the Company

(Continued)

Global Winner Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% - Property holding
(BEHEBRAR) 3 August 1993 HK$10,000 ESE
BB TR
1993F8HA3H 10,0007 7T
Techni Development Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Procurement of
Investment Limited 26 May 2005 HK$5,000,000 gemstones, sales
(EFERIRERRAA) S ELiRRA of jewellery products
200545 H 26 H 5,000,000 7T and investment
holding
RBER KREERHEE
AR AR B PERL
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Macau Quota capital 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery
and Watch Company 17 March 2009 MOP5,000,000 products
(Macau) Limited P BlERE R KEERIHE
(ARTEHREEE (RF) 200943 8178 5,000,0002F97T
BRRE])
CTF (Botswana) Diamond Cutting  The Republic of Botswana Shares 100% 100%  Diamond cutting and
Works (Proprietary) Limited 6 March 2012 BWP5,000,000 polishing
TR LA AR ERYE RATE
201243 A6H 5,000,000 &% FL 4% & i1
Zlotowski's Diamond The Republic of Shares 84% 84%  Diamond cutting and
Cutting Works South Africa (the ZAR10,020,000 polishing
(Proprietary) Limited “South Africa”)** iE&N EAYE RITE
25 October 1951 10,020,000 3E R 15
FAZEFANEE ([RIFE ) *>
1951410 A25 H
Hearts On Fire The United States of Capital 100% —  Sales of jewellery
America US$74,468,737 products
14 May 2001 =N KREEMEE
%6 74,468,737% 7T

200145 H14H
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(Continued)

Beijing Chow Tai Fook
Jewellery Company Limited
(ERAXEKRESTT
BRRF])

Chongging Flamingo
Watches Company Limited
(BEEEHASEEERAR)

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery
(Chongging) Company
Limited
(AREH®RERT(BE)
BRRE])

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery
(Shenyang) Company
Limited
(BARBH®RE 2T (RS)
BRRF])

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery
(Shenzhen) Company
Limited
(AREH®RE ST (R
BRAT)

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery
(Suzhou) Company Limited
(BARBARE 21T (FIM)
ARARD

PRC"

13 November 2006
e

2006411 4138

PRC*

25 December 2008
T

2008%F 12 A25H

PRC"

23 December 2008
B

2008%F 12 A23H

PRC"
2 January 2014
e
201441 A28

PRC"

2 April 2002
A
200254 H2H

PRC"
11 January 2006
e
200651 A11H

39. Principal Subsidiaries of the Company

Registered capital
US$30,000,000
FRUIEZES
30,000,000 7T

Registered capital
RMB1,000,000
fEAR

AR #1,000,0007T

Registered capital
US$30,000,000
FRUIEZES
30,000,000 7T

Registered capital
RMB20,000,000
GRUEZES

AR #20,000,0007T

Registered capital
US$100,000,000
FHITEAR
100,000,000%7C

Registered capital
US$30,000,000
&R
30,000,0003 7T

39. KB EEHB AT @

100%

80%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

80%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Sales of jewellery
products

KREERBE

Sales of watches

HBEIHE

Sales of jewellery
products

KREERBE

Sales of jewellery
products

KBEMHE

Manufacturing and sales
of jewellery products

KEEREEREE

Sales of jewellery
products

KEERBE

EAfE2015FFR
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39. KRB EEHB AT @

39. Principal Subsidiaries of the Company

(Continued)

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery PRC" Registered capital 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery
(Wuhan) Company Limited 29 January 2008 US$30,000,000 products
(AREH®RE T (RE) e aEMER KEBEMHEE
BRRTE) 200841 B 29H 30,000,000% 7T

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery PRC" Registered capital 100% 100%  Production of jewellery
Culture Industrial Park 16 August 2012 US$80,000,000 products
(Wuhan) Company Limited HhEgn & A KREEMEE
(ARBHRELEXER 201248716 H 80,000,0003 7T
(RE)ERAR)

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery PRC" Registered capital 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery
Zhangjiagang Baoshui 21 April 2010 US$10,000,000 products
Company Limited FRE AR KREEMMEE
(ARBHRESITRRE 201044 821 H 10,000,000 7T
RERARAA])

Foshan Shunde Zhifu Jewellery PRC* Registered capital 60% 60%  Sales of jewellery
Company Limited 23 July 2013 RMB90,000,000 products
(BLTIRERSREEDRIT  RE- FHITEAR KEEMEE
BRRT) 201347 A23H AR #£90,000,0007C

Foshan Yushunfu Jewellery PRC" Registered capital 100% 100%  Manufacturing of
and Diamond Company 9 November 1988 US$18,000,000 jewellery products
Limited " AR IREEMEE
(BRILARIRTE S A 19884 11 A9H 18,000,000 7T
BRAF])

Guangdong Chow Tai Fook PRC" Registered capital 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery
Jewellery Company Limited 10 December 2007 US$30,000,000 products
(BREARBHRERTT AR HfER KREERHE
BRRTE) 2007412 A10H 30,000,00057C
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39. Principal Subsidiaries of the Company

(Continued)

Kunming Yinfu Jewellery
Company Limited
RAAIRIEARE B4
BRRF])

Lida Noble Metal Technology
and Development
(Shenzhen) Company
Limited
(FiEB e BT &ERIMME
CRYDBRAR)

Shenzhen CTF Watch
Company Limited
CRINARIBERBRAF)

Shenzhen Shenfu Jewellery
Company Limited
(RYTRBARE 21T
BRRF])

Wuhan Hanfu Jewellery
Company Limited
(REERKE LT
BRRF])

Zhangjiagang Baoshui Dade
Xinfu Jewellery Company
Limited
(RFERBIRABIE
KESTARRAED

PRC*
20 January 2003
T
200341 H20H

PRC"

31 March 2006
e

2006 F3 A 31 H

PRC*

27 June 2011
e

201146 H27H

PRC*

19 April 2007
e

200744 A 198

PRC*

26 November 2003
e

2003411 A26H

PRC*

3 December 2010
e

201012 A3H

Registered capital
RMB5,000,000
FRUIEZES

AR #5,000,0007T

Registered capital
HK$10,000,000
FRUIEZES
10,000,000/ 7T

Registered capital
HK$300,000,000
GRUIEZES
300,000,000/ 7T

Registered capital
RMB8,000,000
GRUIEZES

AR #8,000,0007T

Registered capital
RMB50,000,000
&R

A 50,000,0007T

Registered capital
RMB3,000,000
&R

AR #3,000,0007T

70%

100%

80%

50%*

70%

50%*

70%

100%

80%

50%*

70%

50%*

39. KB EEHB AT @

Sales of jewellery
products

KREERBE

Manufacturing of
jewellery products

IR EMERE

Sales of watches

BERIHE

Sales of jewellery
products

KREEREE

Sales of jewellery
products

KBEEMHE

Sales of jewellery
products

KREEREE
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39. XA ARIFEME AT w

39. Principal Subsidiaries of the Company

(Continued)

Zhangjiagang Baoshui Dehui PRC" Registered capital 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery
Jewellery Company Limited 24 September 2012 US$15,000,000 products
(RRERBREEREST  FE" FRUIEZEN KEBEMMEE
BRRTE) 201269 A 241 15,000,000% 7T

Zhangjiagang Baoshui Qifu PRC* Registered capital 51% 51%  Sales of jewellery
Jewellery Trading 11 June 2007 RMB 150,000,000 products
Company Limited T & A KEERIHE
(REBRGEERURER S 200766 A11H AE#150,000,0007C
BRRF])

Zhangjiagang Baoshui Zhaofu PRC* Registered capital 51% 51%  Sales of jewellery
Jewellery Company Limited 17 November 2011 RMB70,000,000 products
(RRERVRER/UERT  PE- GRUIEZES KEEMMEE
BRRAT) 2011411 B17H AR¥70,000,0007C

o Directly held by the Company. * AAREERS °

*x

Note:

In accordance with the Mineral and Petroleum Resources Development Act no 28 of 2002 (“the
MPRDA"), the equity ownership held by the Company is required to be reduced to 74% by 31
July 2014 or such other later date as accepted by the South African Diamond and Precious
Metals Regulator and this has been completed in April 2015.

Pursuant to the relevant agreements entered into among shareholders of these entities, the
Group has power to govern the operating and financing policies of these entities since their
respective date of establishment/acquisition, and hence these entities are classified as
subsidiaries of the Company.

Being a cooperative joint venture establishment in the PRC.

Being a wholly foreign owned enterprise.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affect the results or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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40. Information About Statement of Financial 40. 22 BB &k R RIEEE K
Position of the Company

Assets AE
Investment in a subsidiary R—ENBARZIEE - -
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUR I B A B FRIE 25,108.3 23,313.8
Other assets EMEE 0.4 2.6
25,108.7 23,316.4

Liabilities =
Gold loans HEEE 3,639.8 4,009.4
Bank borrowings RITER 5,930.0 3,770.0
Other liabilities Hth B g 21 1.8
9,571.9 7,781.2
15,536.8 15,635.2

Capital and reserves B REE

Share capital N 10,000.0 10,000.0
Reserves E 5,536.8 5,635.2
15,536.8 15,635.2

At 1 April 2013 R2013F481H 10,000.0 5,498.7 1,635.9 17,134.6
Profit and total comprehensive FRmEAEEEEA

income for the year fEks) - - 1,700.6 1,700.6
Dividends % & - - (3,300.0) (3,300.0)
At 31 March 2014 M2014F3A31H 10,000.0 5,498.7 36.5 15,635.2
Profit and total comprehensive FEF R EERA

income for the year 4aEE - - 3,201.6 3,201.6
Dividends [iesh - - (3,200.0) (3,200.0)
At 31 March 2015 M2015%3A31H 10,000.0 5,498.7 38.1 15,536.8
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> FINANCIAL SUMMARY
BEE

The following is a summary of the published results and assets and UTAAEEBEEDTEAMRFEEE NIBEEAREE
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years. The financial HEEHNE FEMBERHEE FRAOELEMER
information are extracted from the consolidated financial statements in the 3% °

annual reports.

Revenue | 35,042.5 56,571.1 57,433.9 77,4071 64,277.0
Gross profit EF| 9,927.6 16,447.9 16,283.1 21,152.3 19,072.4
Profit for the year FE & A 3,672.5 6,570.9 5,678.4 7,449.2 5,535.8

Total assets BEERE 29,048.7 47,4143 43,218.6 61,817.1 61,121.0
Total liabilities BB 17,375.8 17,841.3 9,357.9 23,364.7 20,580.2
Net assets BEFRE 11,672.9 29,573.0 33,860.7 38,452.4 40,540.8
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> INFORMATION FOR INVESTORS

REEEM

FY2015 annual results announcement
5 June 2015

Annual general meeting
31 July 2015

Proposed payment of final dividend
on or about 19 August 2015

Closure of register of members (both days inclusive)
For ascertaining attendance and voting right at the annual general meeting

29 to 31 July 2015

For ascertaining entitlement to proposed final dividend
10 to 11 August 2015

2005 FEEFE£ENE
2015%F6A5H

BRFBFERE
201547 A31H

ERRERAKRE
20158 A19H & AlE

FERERMBEELEFTE (BREMABEENRN)
RECLHERRBFASURE LR
2015 7H29H=31H

LB RRRE 3 122 it AR A 2 O A R
201548 10H=11H

Company name
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited

Listing
Hong Kong Stock Exchange

Stock code
1929

Listing date
15 December 2011

Board lot size
200 shares

Issued share capital as at 31 March 2015
10,000,000,000 shares

Index constituent

Hang Seng Global Composite Index

Hang Seng Composite Index

Hang Seng Mainland 100 Index

Hang Seng China 50 Index

FTSE Asian Retail Index

Hang Seng Corporate Sustainability Benchmark Index

DREHE
AR EHREEEERAA

i)
e

B AP
1929

LB
20114128150

BFEHEEN
200

20153 A 31 HEBTRA
10,000,000,0000%

A7 B

BARBIGAIEH

BAEGA RS

18 4t B b 10045 81
(IS0 =t
BRI N T E g

AT EE R D EEERES

EAE2015FE®R 245



)

INFORMATION FOR INVESTORS #&EZEEH,

For matters relating to your shareholding such as transfer of shares, change
of name or address, and loss of share certificates, please write to our Hong
Kong Branch Registrar:

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2980 1333

Fax: (852) 2810 8185

Shareholders can obtain the annual/interim report of the Company by writing
to our Hong Kong Branch Registrar, or access the electronic version from our
company website.

For more information about the Group,

please visit our company website
www.chowtaifook.com

or contact our Investor Relations Department at
38/F, New World Tower

16-18 Queen's Road Central, Hong Kong

Tel:  (852) 2524-3166

Fax: (852) 2526-9178
e-mail:ir@chowtaifook.com

ERRTHRREER - RO EE - Boutasionit &
iﬁg%%‘i CEAEEAABARMNTEROBSER
Dk :

HEBREETERAA
H5

EFAER1835%
AP L221E

B35 1 (852) 2980 1333
{8H : (852) 28108185

R R A R E T AR B I BB R BB DR

LASEERA R R, EIRE - NI R B
BIEEFIR -

BRAEEFFS -
AT I R B

www.chowtaifook.com

SRERR PRI B B AR SR PIH 4% -
BHEZRREH16-185

it RARE38HE

EE ¢ (852) 2524-3166

f5E : (852) 2526-9178

FH : ir@chowtaifook.com

Headquarters and principal place of business in Hong Kong
33/F, New World Tower
16-18 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong

Registered office

Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P. O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman lIslands
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Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands



GLOSSARY

Bl

THFYEB B E 4
2HFYBT N EE T ¥ F

ALROSA

Articles# 8l

Board£EE€

China UnionPay ™ El$R B

Company/Chow Tai Fook

ARTF/BAKRE

concessionaire storeE4&

Directors®=%

FYBIEE

gem-set jewellery R B SE#R B 8

gemstonesE A

Group&EE AKEE

Hearts On Fire

high-end luxury jewellery
BHRE

karat gold K&

Listing Rules £/ #R Al

Mainland China™ Bl it

mass luxury jewellery

ERHKE

POSZEE,

the first half of the financial year, six months ending 30 September

MBEE LHF - #EIA30R LERNEA

the second half of the financial year, six months ending 31 March

MIRFE N5 BE3A3THIEANEA
0JSC ALROSA

the articles of association of the Company (as amended from time to time)
RNRABEBERMA (ETEHERT)

the board of Directors of the Company

ARRERE

a bankcard organisation based in Mainland China

FR B A3 Y — ZRERTT R AR

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited (stock code: 1929)
BAAREHRESEARR AR (BRMHKHR : 1929)

self-operated POS with concessionaire agreement

R BB HHENEETER

directors of the Company

RRARES

financial year, 1 April of a year to 31 March of the following year

MREE - EF4A1BEZEFI3A3H

jewellery products made with diamonds and gemstones

BEEONEANEMHER

colour stones, jadeite and pearls
YEEO  BRLPIK

the Company and its subsidiaries

RAR REMB AR
Hearts On Fire Company, LLC.

jewellery products with a retail price of above HK$100,000 per piece
BHZEBI108BTA LNAREER

jewellery products made from gold alloy

VAR S BUREY B B

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

ERBMARZMERATES EHARA

the mainland of the People’'s Republic of China

hEE A RAMBE A

jewellery products with a retail price ranging from HK$2,000 to HK$100,000 per piece
BHZEEN T2 T AT 108 B THREER

points of sale

EmTER

EX@20155F F 1R

217 <



GLOSSARY #%

R&DHF 2

Retail Sales Value/RSVEEE

Same StoreE/E

Same Store Sales[E/E$HE

Same Store Sales Growth/SSSG
E/EHEER

SFO= 3 R H & ikl

Stock Exchangel32 it

Tier I, Il, Il and other cities

—& TR ZEREMET

research and development

g b %

the ending price (VAT inclusive, if any) of products sold to customers in POS network and other
channels.

REEHBPRNEMRENTEPHEERNRKRTERE (RIFREN - 11F)

self-operated POS existing as at the end of the relevant financial period and which have been
operating since the beginning of the prior financial year

BRI —EFBFEVELELREHTBPERDABFNELETER

the revenue from Same Store for the relevant financial period. Revenue from wholesale and
other channels are excluded

BB BHERER XA - ETEEREREMRENERR

a comparison between Same Store Sales of a particular period and sales from comparable POS
in the previous period, measured at constant exchange rates

VAR RDE = Lt #s 7E 210 R 15 4 65 £2 A1 — AR ey AT Lb R E BhSH 8

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
EEEBIEST BB LRSI

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEBAXIERRAR]

for the list of cities, please refer to glossary of FY14/15 interim report

BRI M AHEE252014/201 58 B FE A Hi S
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